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Please fill out this form online, print completed form and submit with 
proposal to originating department.  All questions must be answered.

For details on use of this form, see Section 2-59 through 2-61 of the City's Ethics Code.

*This is a New Submission or Correction or Update to previous submission.

*1.  Name of person submitting this disclosure form.

First: Brian M.I. J Last: Ebert Suffix:

*2.  Contract information.

a)  Contract or project name: RFP 17-036, Household Hazardous Waste

b)  Originating department:

Clean Harbors Environmental Services, Inc.
*3. Name of individual(s) or entity(ies) seeking a contract with the city (i.e. parties to the contract).

*4.  List any individual(s) or entity(ies) that is a partner, parent, joint venture, or subsidiary entity(ies) of the individual or entity 
listed in Question 3.

Not applicable.  Contracting party(ies) does not have partner, parent, joint venture, or subsidiary entities.

Names of partner, parent, joint venture or subsidiary entities, and all the board members, executive committee members, 
and officers of each entity:✔

Clean Harbors Inc. is the parent company

Names of executive committee members, officers, partners, and directors:✔

Alan S McKim, James Rutledge, Gene Banucci, John DeVillars, Edward Galante, Rod Marlin, Daniel McCarthy, John Preston, 
Andrea Robertson, Thomas Shields, Lauren States, John Welch

*5.  List any individuals or entities that will be subcontractors on this contract.
Not applicable.  No subcontractors will be retained for this contract.

Subcontractors may be retained, but have not been selected at the time of this submission.

List of subcontractors, including the name of the owner(s), and business name:✔

See Attached Technical Proposal
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*6.  List any attorneys, lobbyists, or consultants retained by any individuals listed in Questions 3, 4, or 5 to assist in seeking this 
contract.

Not applicable.  No attorneys, lobbyists, or consultants have been retained to assist in seeking this contract.✔

List of attorneys, lobbyists, or consultants retained to assist in seeking this contract:

*7.  Disclosure of political contributions.  
List any campaign or officeholder contributions made by the following individuals in the past 24 months totaling more than 
$100 to any current member of City Council, former member of City Council, any candidate for City Council, or to any political 
action committee that contributes to City Council elections: 
 a)  any individual seeking contract with the city (Question 3) 
 b)  any owner or officer of entity seeking contract with the city (Question 3) 
 c)  any individual or owner or officer of an entity listed above as a partner, parent, or subsidiary business (Question 4) 
 d)  any subcontractor or owner/officer of subcontracting entity retained for the contract (Question 5) 
 e)  the spouse of any individual listed in response to (a) through (d) above 
 f)  any attorney, lobbyist, or consultant retained to assist in seeking contract (Question 6)

Not applicable.  No campaign or officeholder contributions have been made in preceding 24 months by these individuals.✔

List of contributions:

Updates on Contributions Required
Information regarding contributions must be updated by submission of a revised form from the date of the submission of this 
form, up through the time City Council takes action on the contract identified in response to Question 2 and continuing for 30 
calendar days after the contract has been awarded.

Notice Regarding Contribution Prohibitions for "High-Profile" Contracts
Under Section 2-309 of the Municipal Campaign Finance Code, the following listed individuals are prohibited from making a 
campaign or officeholder contribution to any member of City Council, candidate for City Council or political action committee 
that contributes to City Council elections from the 10th business day after a contract solicitation has been released until 30 
calendar days after the contract has been awarded:

           a)  Legal signatory of a high-profile contract 
           b)  Any individual seeking a high-profile contract 
           c)  Any owner or officer of an entity seeking a high-profile contract 
           d)  The spouse of any of individual listed in response to (a) through (c) above 
           e)  Any attorney, lobbyist, or consultant retained to assist in seeking a high-profile contract

Penalty.  A high-profile contract cannot be awarded to the individual or entity if a prohibited contribution has been made by 
any of these individuals during the contribution "black-out" period, which is the 10th business day after a solicitation has been 
released until 30 calendar days after the contract has been awarded.

*8.  Disclosure of conflict of interest.
Are you aware of any fact(s) with regard to this contract that would raise a "conflict of interest" issue under Sections 2-43 or 2-44 
of the City Ethics Code for any City Council member or board/commission member that has not or will not be raised by these 
city officials?

I am not aware of any conflict(s) of interest issues under Section 2-43 or 2-44 of the City Ethics Code for members of City 
Council or a city board/commission.

✔

I am aware of the following conflict(s) of interest:
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*9.  Prohibited Interest in Contracts.
Currently, or within the past twelve (12) months, have you, your spouse, sibling, parent, child or other family member within the 
first degree of consanguinity or affinity served on a City board or commission? 
  
Currently, or within the past twelve (12) months, has an owner, partner or employee of a business entity in which you, your 
spouse, parent, child own 10% or more of the voting stock or shares, or 10% or more of the fair market value served on a City 
board or commission? 
  
Currently, or within the past twelve (12) months, has an owner, partner, or employee of a business entity who owns 10% or more
of the voting stock or shares, or 10% or more of the fair market value, that will be a subcontractor for this contract, served on a  
City board or commission? 

No✔

Yes

Notice Regarding Prohibited Interest in Contracts.
Please be aware, the City's Charter and Ethics Code prohibits members of certain more-than-advisory boards and commissions, 
as well as their close family members and any businesses they or their families hold a 10% or greater ownership interest from 
obtaining a contract with the City during their board or commission service.  The prohibition extends to subcontracts on City 
contracts, and would also apply to parent, subsidiary or partner businesses owned by the member of the board or commission 
and their family.  Please see                                                                and                           of the City Ethics Code (Prohibited Interests in 
Contracts)  for complete information. 
  
Former members of certain more-than-advisory boards and commissions, their family members and the businesses they own 
will continue to be prohibited from obtaining any discretionary contracts for one year after leaving City service.  Please see            
o                       of the City Ethics Code (Prohibited Interest in Discretionary Contracts) for complete information.  
  
Please note that any contract in place at the time the applicant becomes a City officer may remain in effect, but cannot be 
amended, extended, modified, or changed in any manner during the officer's City service on the more-than-advisory board. 
  
If you have any questions, please contact  the Office of the City Attorney to request to speak with a member of the Ethics staff:  
 (210) 207-8940. 

Section 2-52

Section 2-58

Section 141 of the City Charter

Acknowledgements

*1.  Updates Required

✔ I understand that this form must be updated by submission of a revised form if there is any change in the information 
before the discretionary contract, housing and retail development incentive, or the purchase, sale,or lease of real estate to 
or from the City is the subject of action by the City Council, and no later than 5 business days after any change has 
occurred, whichever comes first.  This includes information about political contributions made after the initial submission 
and up until 30 calendar days after contract has been awarded.

*2.  No Contact with City Officials or Staff during Contract Evaluation

✔ I understand that a person or entity who seeks or applies for a city contract or any other person acting on behalf of that 
person or entity is prohibited from contacting city officials and employees regarding the contract after a Request for 
Proposal (RFP), Request for Qualification (RFQ), or other solicitation has been released. 
  
This no-contact provision shall conclude when the contract is posted as a City Council agenda item.  If contact is required 
with city officials or employees, the contact will take place in accordance with procedures incorporated into the 
solicitation documents.  Violation of this prohibited contacts provision set out in Section 2-61 of the City Ethics Code by 
respondents or their agents may lead to disqualification of their offer from consideration.
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*3.  Contribution Prohibitions for "High-Profile" Contracts

 This is not a high-profile contract.

 This is a high-profile contract.

 I acknowledge that this contract has been designated as a high-profile contract by the city.  I further acknowledge that the 
following individuals are prohibited from making campaign or officeholder contributions to members of City Council, 
candidates for City Council, or political action committees that make contributions to City Council elections from the 10th 
business day after the solicitation has been released until 30 calendar days after the contract has been awarded:  legal 
signatory to contract individual(s) seeking the contract, owner or officer of an entity seeking the contract, the spouse of any of 
these individuals, and any attorney, lobbyist, or consultant retained to assist in seeking the contract.

✔

I warrant that no contributions have been made by these individuals in violation of Section 2-309 of the Municipal 
Campaign Finance Code.

✔

*4.  Conflict of Interest Questionnaire (CIQ) 
Chapter 176 of the Local Government Code requires all contractors and vendors to submit a Conflict of Interest Questionnaire 
Form (CIQ) to the Office of the City Clerk, even if contract is not designated as "High Profile".

I acknowledge that I have been advised of the requirement to file a CIQ form under Chapter 176 of the Local Government 
Code.

✔

*Oath

I swear or affirm that the statements contained in this Contracts Disclosure Form, including any attachments, to the best of 
my knowledge and belief are true, correct, and complete.

✔

Your Name: Brian Ebert Title: Senior Proposal Manager

Company Name or DBA: Clean Harbors Environmental Services, Inc. Date: 04/25/2017Date:

Please fill this form out online, print completed form and submit with 
proposal to originating department.  All questions must be answered. 

If necessary to mail, send to: 
Purchasing 

P.O. Box 839966 
San Antonio, Texas 78283-3966
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
As the City is aware through previous companies and acquisitions to date, Clean Harbors has 
serviced this contract since 1995.  Many of the personnel involved in this contract have been 
involved in the contract for many years and have helped maintained the level of service the City 
has become accustomed to.  We are honored to have been a part of this longstanding and 
successful relationship; and privileged to be considered as the City’s exclusive provider for the 
new contract term. 

Over the past 37 years, Clean Harbors has grown to become North America's leading provider of 
environmental and hazardous waste management services. The Company serves a diverse 
customer base, including a majority of the Fortune 500 companies, across the chemical, energy, 
manufacturing and additional markets, as well as numerous government agencies. These 
customers rely on Clean Harbors to deliver a broad range of services such as end-to-end 
hazardous waste management, emergency spill response, industrial cleaning and maintenance, 
and recycling services. Through its Safety-Kleen subsidiary, Clean Harbors also is North 
America’s largest re-refiner and recycler of used oil and a leading provider of parts washers and 
environmental services to commercial, industrial and automotive customers. 

With annual sales over $3.2 billion, Clean Harbors Technical Services segment, which handles 
transportation and disposal as well as HHW services, accounted for approximately $957 million 
or 30% of company revenue in FY 2015. 

The City of San Antonio can remain reassured by the fact that its HHW program is supported by 
one of the largest providers of environmental services and the largest operator of non-nuclear 
hazardous waste treatment facilities in North America based.  Clean Harbors services 
approximately 65% of North America’s commercial hazardous incineration volume and 24% of 
North America’s hazardous landfill volume, and are the industry leader in total hazardous waste 
disposal facilities. 

We perform our comprehensive environmental services through a network of more than 100 
service locations, and we operate more than 50 treatment facilities including: 

� 8 incinerators at five commercial incineration facilities 
� 7 Commercial hazardous waste landfills 
� 2 commercial non-hazardous industrial waste landfills 
� 7 waste water treatment facilities 
� 6 PCB management facilities 
� Oil and solvent recycling facilities 
� More than 20 TSDF’s 

We provide the City low cost solutions due to our large scale, industry knowledge, recent cost 
cutting and productivity-enhancing initiatives, and our ability to internalize our waste streams. 

Clean Harbors offers true comprehensive services – a multitude of environmental services that 
fall under two main Business Units beneath the Clean Harbors umbrella: Technical Services and 
Site Services.  Therefore, whether the City of San Antonio requires a routine waste pick up at the 
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Drop-Off Center, or a major complex site remediation, Clean Harbors is able to supply the expert 
personnel and necessary equipment to get the job done professionally and cost-effectively with 
our internal resources in the majority of cases.   

Technical Services 
This principle line provides the collection, transportation and logistics management of 
containerized and bulk waste, as well as the categorizing, packaging and removal of laboratory 
chemicals for disposal (CleanPack®).  Through a highly coordinated transportation fleet, Clean 
Harbors provides reliable, cost effective transportation and disposal to customers across North 
America. From the Technical Service Centers, trucks are dispatched to pick up customers’ waste 
on a predetermined schedule as well as on demand, and then deliver it to one of our nearby 
transfer, storage and disposal (“TSD”) facilities.  From these same Technical Service Centers, 
specially trained chemists are dispatched to customer locations to safely collect, label and 
package all quantities of laboratory chemicals for disposal.  Collection, Transportation and 
Logistics Management is an integral part of our services; industrial wastes are collected from 
customers and transported by us to and between our facilities for treatment or bulking for 
shipment to final disposal locations.  In providing this service, we utilize a variety of specially 
designed and constructed tank trucks and semi-trailers as well as third party transporters, 
including railroads.  

Clean Harbors’ Site Services are designed to provide customers with highly skilled experts with 
specialty equipment and resources to perform an array of services at any chosen location. Under 
the Site Services umbrella, Clean Harbors’ Field Services ensures that crews and equipment are 
dispatched on a scheduled or on-call emergency basis to perform everything from facility 
decontamination and large remediation projects to selective demolition, spill cleanup, and 
vacuum services.  Also, as part of Clean Harbors’ Site Services, our Industrial Services group 
features crews focused on industrial cleaning and maintenance projects that typically require fast 
turnaround due to facility shutdown and may include chemical cleaning, hydroblasting, 
liquid/dry vacuuming, sodium bicarbonate blasting, and steam cleaning of equipment and 
systems.  

Clean Harbors’ InSite Program is a premier on-site solution that serves the dual purpose of not 
only improving customers’ waste stream management, but also making their entire 
environmental program safer, more cost-effective and self-sufficient.   Clean Harbors’ skilled 
technicians work on site in tandem with customers to deliver proper waste transportation and 
disposal, lab chemical packing (CleanPack®), industrial cleaning and maintenance, and more.  
Whether a customer requires a single field technician or a multi-person team of diversified 
experience, Clean Harbors can design the right program to satisfy their specific needs.  We 
utilize a hand-in-hand, team approach that leverages our extensive resources and infrastructure, 
including our Web-enhanced technology and online services. 

Summary of Scope of Work 
Clean Harbors will supply the City of San Antonio with experienced and knowledgeable staff for 
the categorization, segregation and packaging of household hazardous waste (HHW) at its 
permanent collection centers located at Culebra Road and Bitters.  The services will include 
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labeling packages, preparing all shipping documentation, and arranging for the transport of the 
waste utilizing company owned and operated vehicles.  Waste will picked up as needed or 
requested by the City and transported to our Deer Park, TX facility for receipt and processing, or 
redistribution to final disposition at other approved TSDF’s.  All waste will be meticulously 
managed in accordance with all local, state, and federal regulations. 

Waste Management 
Management of the City’s waste will be performed in a safe, productive and cost-efficient 
manner by our staff.  All waste will be identified when possible by checking container labels 
and/or inquiring of participants.  Our personnel will perform field-testing as necessary to 
determine waste characteristics. 

Upon identification, our CleanPack® Chemists’ responsibilities are to properly categorize and 
separate the waste according to Department of Transportation chemical compatibility guidelines 
(49 CFR 173.21), applicable state compatibility regulations, and ultimate disposal facility 
packing protocol.  The lab pack waste is packaged in accordance with the regulations and our 
disposal facility packaging requirements, maximizing the amount of allowable waste packed per 
container.  

Bulkable waste will be “poured up” in 55-gallon containers using necessary safety precautions.  

Packing lists are generated for each drum, listing each substance in the drum, its physical state, 
size of the container, RCRA waste codes, and number of containers. 

In addition to packing lists, the CleanPack® Chemists also generate the following regulatory 
documentation: 

� Hazardous Waste Manifests / Bills of Lading 

� Land Disposal Restriction Notification (LDR) forms 

� Required EPA Labels 

� Required DOT Labels 

Training of City Personnel 

Clean Harbors shall provide training to City staff to properly receive, identify, segregate, 
package, and manifest materials subject of the contract.  

Clean Harbors shall provide local, or onsite training for up to 25 City employees associated with 
the program, as designated by the ESD Representative.  The prices included in our proposal 
include training of City staff in the following areas: 

� 40-hour OSHA Hazardous Materials Training in accordance with 29 CFR 

1910.120,  

� Hazardous Waste Operations and Emergency Response 
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� Annual 8-hour refresher training 

� High-Haz identification/awareness 

� DOT training 

WHY CLEAN HARBORS? 

 
Local Resources and Technical Support 
Clean Harbors Satellite Service Center in San Antonio is conveniently located approximately 20 
miles from the Drop-Off Center.   

 

Our Technical Service Center is locally positioned to provide premier service to the City of San 
Antonio and fully equipped with the necessary CleanPack® personnel, equipment, materials, and 
other necessary resources to comprehensively manage this contract.     The City can expect 
unlimited environmental management and technical assistance from Clean Harbors’ professional 
and dedicated staff.   

Drop-
Off
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Simply put, no other company offers the internal capabilities and strategically located support as 
Clean Harbors. The City of San Antonio and its residents will benefit immensely from local 
service, regional support, and a dedicated corporate alliance.   

Equipment and Extensive Resources 
We own and operate essential equipment, supplies, specialized equipment and technology to 
provide a complete solution to the City in any situation – whether routine or unique.  Our San 
Antonio Satellite Service Center presently employs a staff of twenty five (25) personnel that will 
be fully dedicated to meeting or exceeding the City’s contract requirements. 

We use our own transportation resources, drivers, technicians, and chemists, who are already 
familiar with the City’s unique requirements.  This will further streamline the service of this 
contract in a variety of ways, such as increased response time, elimination of communication 
errors, correct and legible shipping documentation and paperwork, etc. 

Together, the Clean Harbors team ensures quality service, cost control, and risk containment. 
Furthermore, the implementation and administrating of a program of this type is simplified by 
our extensive knowledge of the City’s unique requirements as well as application of our current 
information technology systems. Clean Harbors’ integrated operating systems are the backbone 
of our service capabilities.  

Maximizing CH disposal outlets 
Reducing liability begins with knowing where your waste materials are being disposed.  
Many other vendors must broker out your waste, and liability, to other companies for final 
disposition because they simply don’t own the disposal outlets.  Based upon your generation 
rates from last year, Clean Harbors is able to manage more than 98% of all your hazardous 
waste materials at our own disposal sites.  
 
This is important to the City because it increases your liability protection by reducing the number 
vendors required to handle your waste.  Unlike other vendors, Clean Harbors will not pass your 
liability on to others.  

Providing Financial Stability  
Ensuring the long-term environmental security for the City of San Antonio begins with selecting 
a reliable business partner.  As you know, the hazardous waste operating environment has been 
extremely challenging for all participants, particularly those providing hazardous waste disposal 
services.  Waste minimization efforts, recycling, process improvements, and relaxed regulatory 
initiatives were factors that resulted in industry overcapacity and declining volume trends.  Small 
environmental companies struggle to compete in this industry and are more susceptible to 
downward changes in the economy.  The City can feel confident that partnering with the industry 
leader, Clean Harbors, assures long-term environmental protection.    
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Past Experience with the City of San Antonio 
Clean Harbors Environmental Services’ personnel have extensive experience in managing the 
City’s HHW collection center program.  Our integral staff members and facilities have provided 
service to the City since 1995.  Upon award of the new contract to Clean Harbors, many of those 
same employees and facilities will once again play an integral role in servicing the City’s needs.  
Facilities, such as the Deer Park, TX facility, and the Clean Harbors staff that the City is already 
familiar with will use their direct experience from the previous contract to ensure a smooth 
transition and meet the service the needs of the City.   
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EXPERIENCE, BACKGROUND & QUALIFICATIONS 
 

RFP ATTACHMENT A, PART TWO 
 

EXPERIENCE, BACKGROUND, QUALIFICATIONS 
 
Prepare and submit narrative responses to address the following items.  If Respondent is proposing 
as a team or joint venture, provide the same information for each member of the team or joint 
venture. 
 
1. Background of Respondent and support personnel, including professional qualifications 

and length of time working in Respondent’s capacity.  Provide a completed 
organizational chart which clearly shows the team/firm structure, key personnel and 
area(s) of responsibility, and reporting/workflow hierarchy.   Include résumés of key 
personnel that would be assigned to this contract for services;    Respondents shall 
provide documentation of the qualifications of all personnel to be assigned to this 
engagement. 

Company Overview 
Over the past 37 years, Clean Harbors has grown to become North America’s largest provider of 
environmental services.  Clean Harbors has a network of over 175 service locations provides 
transportation and disposal, laboratory chemical packing, 24-hour emergency response, and field, 
energy and industrial services on customer sites or other locations.  With over 50 waste 
management facilities offering a wide range of disposal options including incineration, 
wastewater treatment, and landfill, recycling and specialty disposal services, Clean Harbors is 
North America’s largest hazardous waste disposal company. 

Project Support Personnel 
The following chart indicates the key personnel for providing services on this contract.  The top 
of the chart indicates the person ultimately responsible for contract performance.  The table 
following the chart briefly summarizes the role of each position and describes the level of 
interaction the individuals in each position currently has and will continue to have with City of 
San Antonio Project Management. 
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Position Responsibilities 

Technical Services 
Branch Manager 
(TSBM) 

The TSBM is responsible for all Clean Harbors operations within a 
designated region.  The TSBM will negotiate contract terms, resolve 
issues at a contract level and is responsible for all contract personnel.  
The TSBM is ultimately responsible for customer satisfaction and 
compliant contract execution.   

Account Manager 
(AM) 

The AM is responsible for a specific subset of customer accounts 
within the region.  The AM can arrange for all services, reports, 
invoices and can answer questions and resolve problems for the 
customer.   

Project Manager (PM) The PM is the main point of contact for City of San Antonio 
personnel.  In addition to physically working on the project, the PM 
will arrange for appropriate staffing, ensure the staff is meeting 
contract requirements, ensures compliance with contract terms and 
conditions. 

 

CleanPack Chemist 

The Chemists are responsible for testing, packaging, consolidating, 
labeling and manifesting waste.  The CleanPack Chemists are 
responsible for being aware of and meeting all contract requirements 
and working safely.   

HHW Technician The HHW Technician is expected to perform all tasks safely, in 
compliance with regulations and according to contract terms as tasks 
are assigned 

 

Resumes 
Resumes outlining the relevant experience, training and qualifications of key project support 
staff are presented on the following pages. 

Brian Key
District Manager

William Dalzell
Branch Manager

John Guzman
Project Manager

Sam Dorman
Sr. CleanPack 

Chemist

George Hernandez
Sr. CleanPack 

Chemist

Chris Edwards
CleanPack Chemist

Paul Bordelon
Account Manager
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a. Name, Title & Local Company Address:

Brian Key
Technical Services District Manager
Clean Harbors Environmental Services
500 Independence Parkway South
La Porte, Texas 77571

b. Corporate Address:

Clean Harbors Environmental Services
42 Longwater Drive
Norwell, Massachusetts 02061

c. Years Experience – With This Firm: 25 With Other Firms: 0

d. Education: Degree(s) / Specialization & Licenses / Registrations

� M.B.A., Management – Baker University

� B.S., Chemistry – George Mason University

� Certified National Safety Council Trainer

� Certified First Aid / CPR

e. Other Experience and Qualifications:

� As the Technical Services District Manager, Brian Key is responsible for all the Sales and 
Operational aspects of the Texas and Oklahoma region including: developing and 
maintaining business with existing and potential customers; networking with other Clean 
Harbors' service centers to effectively service the customers' needs; determining the most 
cost effective and proper disposal options; regulatory compliance; and much more.

� Between February 2007 and May 2011 Mr. Key had been a Distributor Services Account 
Manager; whereby he managed the accounts of Clean Harbors’ broker customers in 
Kansas and surrounding states.  Prior to that, Brian Key had been the Technical Services 
General Manager for Clean Harbors’ Wichita, Kansas Service Center for over 11 years.  

� Mr. Key began working for Clean Harbors in 1990 as a Senior Field Chemist for the Laurel, 
Maryland Service Center.  One year later he became a Customer Service Representative; 
and two years after that promoted to Operations Manager.  He stayed in that position for 
over three years before accepting the promotion in April 1996 to General Manager in 
Wichita, Kansas.

f. Environmental & Health and Safety Training:

� 40-Hour OSHA HAZWOPER

� 8-Hour OSHA HAZWOPER Annual Refresher

� 8-Hour OSHA HAZWOPER Supervisor

� 24-Hour Confined Space Supervisor

� Annual RCRA Training

� DOT Regulations Training for Hazardous Materials Employees

� Transportation Security Awareness Training
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� HHW Supervisor Training

� Blood-borne Pathogens Training

� Medical Surveillance Program | Quantitative Fit Test
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:a. Name, Title & Local Company Address:
William D. Dalzell
Branch Manager
Clean Harbors Environmental Services, Inc.
4303 Profit Drive
San Antonio, TX 78219

b. Corporate Address:
42 Longwater Drive
Norwell, MA 02061

c. Years Experience – With This Firm: 3 With Other Firms: 8
                                                    

d. Education: Degree(s) / Specialization & Licenses / Registrations
High School Diploma

e. Other Experience and Qualifications:
· Branch manager:

Responsible for daily operations; scheduling, invoicing, payroll
            Direct contact with customers 
            Maintaining up to date records and trainings on employees
            Vehicle maintenance 
· Field Service Project Manager:

Working in confined space
Management of workers
Ensuring safe worksite and safety of workers
Working with customers to ensure satisfaction on jobsite

· Emergency Response disaster relief Supervisor
Travel throughout US to assist in disaster relief
Working on contained spills/clean-up
Managing 10-15 workers 
Ensuring safe worksite and safety of workers

f. Environmental & Health and Safety Training:
· 40-Hour OSHA HAZWOPER

·         8-Hour OSHA HAZWOPER Annual Refresher

·         HAZWOPER Manager / Supervisor Training

·         Annual RCRA Training

·         DOT Regulations Training for Hazardous Materials Employees

·         40-Hour Clean Harbors Chemist Lab Pack Training Certification

·         Household Hazardous Waste Collection Event Supervisor Training

·         Powered Industrial Truck (i.e. forklift) Training

·         Blood-borne Pathogens Training

·         Respirator Fit Test

·         First Aid / CPR

· Confined Space Supervisor Training
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a. Name, Title & Local Company Address:

John Guzman
CleanPack® Specialist
Clean Harbors Environmental Services
4303 Profit Drive
San Antonio, Texas 78219

b. Corporate Address:

Clean Harbors Environmental Services
42 Longwater Drive
Norwell, Massachusetts 02061

c. Years Experience – With This Firm: 21 With Other Firms: 0

d. Education: Degree(s) / Specialization & Licenses / Registrations

� B.S., Southwest Texas State University

� Class B Commercial Drivers License with Hazardous Materials Endorsement

e. Other Experience and Qualifications:

� As a CleanPack® Specialist for Clean Harbor's San Antonio Service Center, Mr. Guzman is 
responsible for the development of CleanPack® (i.e. lab pack) business in conjunction with 
sales and operations personnel; prospecting and scoping new lab pack opportunities; and 
managing specific CleanPack® accounts.  He develops health and safety plans for 
chemists prior to starting a job, and assists customers with characterization and profiling of 
their waste.

� Prior to 2006, Mr. Guzman served at the Technical Services Operations Manager for the 
San Antonio Service Center.  He had oversight for the scope of operations performed by 
his field group including lab packs, routine waste management transportation and disposal, 
and household hazardous waste collections.  Other duties included providing health and 
safety supervision and project management.

� John Guzman joined Clean Harbors in 1994 as a CleanPack® Chemist.  His typical duties 
included segregating known waste, testing and characterizing unknown waste, and 
sampling, profiling, packaging, labeling, and manifesting of all waste for transportation and 
disposal.

f. Environmental & Health and Safety Training:

� 40-Hour OSHA HAZWOPER

� 8-Hour OSHA HAZWOPER Annual Refresher

� HAZWOPER Manager / Supervisor Training

� Annual RCRA Training

� DOT Regulations Training for Hazardous Materials Employees

� 40-Hour Clean Harbors Chemist Lab Pack Training Certification

� DEA Controlled Substances Training

� Radiation Awareness Training

� 16-Hour New Driver Training
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� Transportation Security Awareness Training

� IATA Dangerous Goods Packaging for Air Shipments Training

� Health Care Train-the-Trainer Training

� Household Hazardous Waste Collection Event Supervisor Training

� Cylinder Evaluation and Shipment Training

� Powered Industrial Truck (i.e. forklift) Training

� Blood-borne Pathogens Training

� Respirator Fit Test

� First Aid / CPR
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a. Name, Title & Local Company Address:

Sam Dorman
Senior Lead CleanPack® Chemist
Clean Harbors Environmental Services
4303 Profit Drive
San Antonio, Texas 78219

b. Corporate Address:

Clean Harbors Environmental Services
42 Longwater Drive
Norwell, Massachusetts 02061

c. Years Experience – With This Firm: 15 With Other Firms: 0

d. Education: Degree(s) / Specialization & Licenses / Registrations

� B.S., Kinesiology – Southwest Texas State University

� Class B Commercial Drivers License with Hazardous Materials Endorsement

e. Other Experience and Qualifications:

� As a Senior Lead CleanPack® Chemist for Clean Harbor's San Antonio Service Center, Mr. 
Dorman is responsible for the supervision and oversight of daily lab pack jobs; participation 
in household hazardous waste collection events; the development and training of new 
CleanPack® Chemists; and typical chemist duties (e.g. segregating known waste, testing 
and characterizing unknown waste, and sampling, profiling, packaging, labeling, and 
manifesting of all waste for transportation and disposal).

f. Environmental & Health and Safety Training:

� 40-Hour OSHA HAZWOPER

� 8-Hour OSHA HAZWOPER Annual Refresher

� Annual RCRA Training

� DOT Regulations Training for Hazardous Materials Employees

� 40-Hour Clean Harbors Chemist Lab Pack Training Certification

� 16-Hour New Driver Training

� Transportation Security Awareness Training

� IATA Dangerous Goods Packaging for Air Shipments Training

� Explosives Packaging and Handling Training

� Radiation Awareness Training

� Household Hazardous Waste Collection Event Supervisor Training

� Cylinder Evaluation and Shipment Training

� Powered Industrial Truck (i.e. forklift) Training

� Blood-borne Pathogens Training

� Respirator Fit Test

� First Aid / CPR
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a. Name, Title & Local Company Address:

George Hernandez
Senior Lead CleanPack® Chemist
Clean Harbors Environmental Services
4303 Profit Drive
San Antonio, Texas 78219

b. Corporate Address:

Clean Harbors Environmental Services
42 Longwater Drive
Norwell, Massachusetts 02061

c. Years Experience – With This Firm: 14 With Other Firms: 0

d. Education: Degree(s) / Specialization & Licenses / Registrations

� B.S., Biology (Chemistry minor) – University of the Incarnate Word

� Class B Commercial Drivers License with Hazardous Materials Endorsement

e. Other Experience and Qualifications:

� As a Senior Lead CleanPack® Chemist for Clean Harbor's San Antonio Service Center, Mr. 
Hernandez is responsible for the supervision and oversight of daily lab pack jobs;
participation in household hazardous waste collection events; the development and training 
of new CleanPack® Chemists; and typical chemist duties (e.g. segregating known waste,
testing and characterizing unknown waste, and sampling, profiling, packaging, labeling, 
and manifesting of all waste for transportation and disposal).

f. Environmental & Health and Safety Training:

� 40-Hour OSHA HAZWOPER

� 8-Hour OSHA HAZWOPER Annual Refresher

� Annual RCRA Training

� DOT Regulations Training for Hazardous Materials Employees

� 40-Hour Clean Harbors Chemist Lab Pack Training Certification

� Lab Pack Unknown Materials Handling Training

� 16-Hour New Driver Training

� Transportation Security Awareness Training

� IATA Dangerous Goods Packaging for Air Shipments Training

� Explosives Packaging and Handling Training

� Household Hazardous Waste Collection Event Supervisor Training

� Cylinder Evaluation and Shipment Training

� Powered Industrial Truck (i.e. forklift) Training

� Blood-borne Pathogens Training

� Respirator Fit Test

� First Aid / CPR
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a. Name, Title & Local Company Address:

Chris Edwards
CleanPack® Chemist
Clean Harbors Environmental Services, Inc.
4303 Profit Drive
San Antonio, TX 78219
(210) 304-3000

b. Corporate Address:

Clean Harbors Environmental Services, Inc.
42 Longwater Drive
Norwell, Massachusetts 02061

c. Years Experience – With This Firm: 9 With Other Firms: 7

d. Education: Degree(s) / Specialization & Licenses / Registrations

Bachelor of Science - Environmental Health/Industrial Hygiene,  Cal State University, Fresno,  Fresno, CA  1998
e. Other Experience and Qualifications:

As a CleanPack® Chemist for Clean Harbor's San Antonio satellite facility, Mr. Edwards is responsible for 
performing daily lab packs at customer’s facilities, household hazardous waste collections and lab moves.

Prior to his role as a CleanPack® Chemist, Mr. Edwards served as an Environmental Health & Safety Specialist for 
Gen-Probe in San Diego, CA. Mr. Edwards was responsible for management of all radioactive and hazardous waste,
including coordinating proper transportation and disposal of hazardous wastes through qualified vendors. He also
provided technical support for all employees and EH&S Department in the areas of chemical, biological, and 
radiological waste management.

Prior to this position, Mr. Edwards was an Environmental Health & Safety Specialist for La Jolla Institute for Allergy 
and Immunology in La Jolla, CA. In this position, Mr. Edwards was responsible for management of all radioactive 
and hazardous waste, including coordinating proper transportation and disposal of hazardous wastes through qualified 
vendors. He also performed radioactive contamination inspections in multiple research areas and completed detailed 
radioactive survey reports on a weekly and monthly basis.

Mr. Edwards was formerly an Environmental Safety Specialist at ISIS Pharmaceuticals in Carlsbad, CA.  In this 
position, Mr. Edwards managed all radioactive and hazardous waste and managed the Storm Water Program 
including maintenance, sampling, inspections for non-authorize and authorize discharge of all storm drains, Best 
Management Practices, and annual reporting. Also, Mr. Edwards provided individual training sessions on Hazard 
Communications, Chemical Hygiene, Injury Illness Prevention Program, Respirator use, Confined Space, Lock 
out/Tag out, and Emergency Response Teams and he actively supported emergency response teams, drills, routine 
chemical lab spills and incidents.

f. Environmental & Health and Safety Training:
� 40 Hour OSHA Certification
� 24 Hour RCRA Training
� Radiation, Biological and Chemical Safety Training
� Emergency Response Team Training
� DOT/ HM 181 Hazardous Materials Handling Training
� First Aid/CPR Training



City of San Antonio                                                                                                                                       RFP 17-036 

Clean Harbors Environmental Services 25  www.cleanharbors.com 

2. Relevant experience of Respondent as it relates to the scope of services contemplated by 
the RFP (include specific information regarding Respondent’s experience with any 
previous household hazardous waste collection, characterization, packaging, transportation 
and disposal, or other related activities within the past five years, including the names, titles 
and telephone numbers of contact persons at the involved entities for which the work was 
performed); 

 
Nationwide, Clean Harbors has performed over 10,000 household hazardous waste collection 
events over the last two decades.  We currently average 45 HHW events per weekend.  During 
the height of the HHW season that average climbs to over 60 events for a period of 24-32 
weekends per year.   Last year Clean Harbors successfully executed almost 6,000 HHW orders.  
The chart below demonstrates the number of HHW Orders, Manifests and Pounds that we have 
successfully managed since 2008.  

 

3. Specific experience with public entity clients, especially large municipalities.  If 
Respondent has provided services for the City of San Antonio in the past, identify the name 
of the project and the department for which Respondent provided those services.  If 
Respondent is proposing as a team or joint venture provide the same information for each 
member of the team or joint venture;   

Municipal Experience 
As the largest provider of HHW services in the nation, Clean Harbors has extensive experience 
with large municipalities, counties and other government divisions.  Our vast experience includes 
providing service to such large municipalities as the Austin, Texas area, Seattle, Washington and 
Los Angeles, California among countless others. 

Clean Harbors is the current Household Hazardous Waste Services provider for the City of San 
Antonio and as such currently provides service to the Solid Waste Management Department.  
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Clean Harbors familiarity with the project and our ability to provide a high level of service can 
be confirmed by the Department. 

4. Other resources, including total number of employees, number and location of offices, 
number and types of equipment available to support this project.  Information on proposed 
sub-Respondents for this project with their experience and qualifications, identifying what 
tasks in the contract would be subcontracted; 

 

Clean Harbors Resources 
Clean Harbors is headquartered in Norwell, Massachusetts and is a publicly traded company 
whose more than 14,000 employees provide a wide range of environmental services from 
strategic locations to a diversified customer base.  Clean Harbors has 51 waste management 
facilities offering a wide range of disposal options including incineration, wastewater treatment, 
and landfill, recycling and specialty disposal services. Clean Harbors' network of over 100 
service locations provides transportation and disposal, laboratory chemical packing, 24-hour 
emergency response, and field and industrial services on customer sites or other locations. 

Clean Harbors Texas Resources 
In addition to the staff of highly experienced Technical Service personnel located within the City 
of San Antonio, Clean Harbors will provide support from our additional offices located in Dallas 
and La Porte.   

Clean Harbors Environmental Services  Clean Harbors Environmental Services 
8100 Chancellor Row     500 Battleground Road 
Dallas, TX 75247     La Porte, TX 77571 
 
These locations are staffed with approximately 100 Clean Harbors’ chemists, technicians, drivers 
and support personnel.  Each carries an in-stock supply of drums, labels, manifests, vermiculite, 
health and safety equipment and all other supplies necessary for waste packaging and removal 
eliminating the need for supply drops at customer sites.  Each Texas Service Center is equipped 
with waste hauling vehicles capable of transporting varying quantities of supplies to customer 
sites, and removing waste from the sites the same day. 

Subcontractors 
Clean Harbors will utilize a minimal number of subcontractors for support of this project, 
although they will be SBE’s.  These vendors are: 

Subcontractor Address Task 

Safety Supply, Inc. 121 Interpark Blvd # 108 
San Antonio, TX 78216 

Supplies, PPE, materials. 

Tri-Starr Personnel 11827 Tech Com Dr #114 
San Antonio, TX 78233 

Labor and staffing 
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5. Respondent shall submit proof of firm’s registration with the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency and the Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission; 

Transportation Permits 
Clean Harbors will utilize its own permitted vehicles to provide transportation for this contract.  
Permits and registrations necessary to transport hazardous waste, including HHW, are 
summarized in the following Table.  Copies of the permits and a state-by state listing of 
additional permits follows.  Please note that the Texas Natural Resource Conservation 
Commission has been renamed the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality. 

Authority License/Permit 
Number Expiration 

US EPA 
Hazardous Waste Transporter MAD039322250 NA 

US DOT Research and Special Programs 
Administration 
Hazardous Materials Certificate of Registration 

060314 555 
043WY 6/30/2017 

US DOT  
Hazardous Materials Safety Permit 

US-180743-MA-
HMSP 3/31/2018 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
Notice of Registration – Industrial and Hazardous 
Waste 

41315 N/A 

Texas Department of State Health Services 
Asbestos Transporter Permit 400290 9/19/2018 
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6.  Respondent shall submit a list of their corporate and individual experience in handling 
other household hazardous waste program(s).  The list shall show experience since 1983 
and include the project title, year, and references (title, present address, and phone number 
of principal personnel for whom prior projects were accomplished).  

 
Please refer to data provided for Question number 2, earlier in this section.   

7.  The closest technical service representative, either chemist or field technician, is available 
at the following location (City and State): San Antonio, TX_________, approximately 
__0___ miles from San Antonio, Texas.   

 TELEPHONE (      )_210.304.3037____________________________. 
 
8. If Respondent has had experience in working as a member of a joint venture or team, 

describe that experience, including the type of project for which the joint venture or team 
was formed. 

 
As a full service provider of Environmental Services, Clean Harbors does not need to enter into 
joint ventures to provide the services contemplated. 
 
9. Has Respondent’s firm ever had a contract terminated or prematurely concluded due to 

alleged unsatisfactory performance or other unresolved dispute or conflict?  If so, state 
when, where, why, client name, contact person and telephone number. 

 
No, Clean Harbors has not had a contract prematurely terminated. 
 
10. Submit a Certification of Franchise Tax Account Status.  
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
Please find Clean Harbors’ most recent annual report as a separate attachment to this document.  
It contains 5 years of financial results. 
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
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ý  ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such
files). Yes ý No o 
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Non-accelerated filer o

(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)  Smaller reporting company o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes o   No ý

On June 30, 2016 (the last business day of the registrant's most recently completed second fiscal quarter), the aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common
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Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

In addition to historical information, this annual report contains forward-looking statements, which are generally identifiable by use of the words
"believes," "expects," "intends," "anticipates," "plans to," "estimates," "projects," or similar expressions. These forward-looking statements are subject to
certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those reflected in these forward-looking statements. Factors that might
cause such a difference include, but are not limited to, those discussed in this report under Item 1A, "Risk Factors," and Item 7, "Management's Discussion and
Analysis on Financial Condition and Results of Operations." Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which
reflect management's opinions only as of the date hereof. We undertake no obligation to revise or publicly release the results of any revision to these forward-
looking statements. Readers should also carefully review the risk factors described in other documents which we file from time to time with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the "SEC"), including the quarterly reports on Form 10-Q to be filed by us during 2017.

PART I

ITEM 1.    BUSINESS

General

Clean Harbors, Inc. and its subsidiaries (collectively, "we," "Clean Harbors" or the "Company") is a leading provider of environmental, energy and
industrial services throughout North America. We are also the largest re-refiner and recycler of used oil in the world and the largest provider of parts cleaning
and related environmental services to commercial, industrial and automotive customers in North America.

During the fourth quarter of 2016, we changed the manner in which we manage our business, make operating decisions and assess our performance.
These changes included combining the Safety-Kleen Environmental Services business and Kleen Performance Products business as a single operating
segment called "Safety-Kleen," moving the Production Services business, previously included in our Oil and Gas Field Services operating segment, into our
Industrial Services operating segment, and reassigning certain departments among our operating segments in line with management reporting changes. In
addition, for purposes of segment disclosure within Note 18, "Segment Reporting," to our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this report,
we combined the Oil and Gas Field Services and Lodging Services operating segments under the heading "Oil, Gas and Lodging Services," as those
individual operating segments do not meet the quantitative thresholds for separate disclosure.

We believe that this new organizational structure aligns our businesses for growth and efficiency. The amounts presented for all periods herein have
been recast to reflect the impact of such changes. Our operations are now managed in six operating segments based primarily upon the nature of the various
operations and services provided: Technical Services, Industrial Services, Field Services, Safety-Kleen, Oil and Gas Field Services, and Lodging Services.

• Technical Services — provides a broad range of hazardous material management services including the packaging, collection, transportation,
treatment and disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous waste at our incinerator, landfill, wastewater and other treatment facilities.

• Industrial and Field Services — provides industrial and specialty services such as high-pressure and chemical cleaning, daylighting services,
production servicing, decoking, pigging and material processing to refineries, chemical plants, oil sands facilities, pulp and paper mills, and other
industrial facilities. These businesses also provide a wide variety of environmental cleanup services on customer sites or other locations on a
scheduled or emergency response basis including tank cleaning, decontamination, remediation, and spill cleanup.

• Safety-Kleen — provides a broad range of environmental services such as parts cleaning, containerized waste services, used oil collection, and other
complementary products and services, including vacuum services, allied products and other environmental services. In addition, Safety-Kleen
manufactures, formulates, packages, blends, distributes and markets high-quality lubricants. We process used oil into high quality base and blended
lubricating oils which, through our OilPlusTM closed loop initiative, are then sold to third-party customers, and provide recycling of oil in excess of
our current re-refining capacity into recycled fuel oil which is then sold to third parties. Processing into base and blended lubricating oils takes place
in our six owned and operated re-refineries, and recycling of oil into recycled fuel oil takes place in one of our used oil terminals. In 2016, we also
increased our internal capabilities for blending and packaging of these oils.

• Oil, Gas and Lodging Services — provides fluid handling, surface rentals, seismic support services, and directional boring services to the energy
sector serving oil and gas exploration and power generation. In addition, we provide lodges and remote workforce accommodation facilities
throughout Western Canada. These include our open lodges,
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operator camps, drill camps, manufacturing of modular units and wastewater processing plants, operating services and parts.

Clean Harbors, Inc. was incorporated in Massachusetts in 1980 and our principal office is located in Norwell, Massachusetts. We maintain a website
at the following Internet address: http://www.cleanharbors.com. Through a link on this website to the SEC website, http://www.sec.gov, we provide free
access to our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished
pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as soon as reasonably practicable after electronic filing with the SEC. Our
guidelines on corporate governance, the charters for our board committees, and our code of ethics for members of the board of directors, our chief executive
officer and our other senior officers are also available on our website, and we will post on our website any waivers of, or amendments to, such code of ethics.
Our website and the information contained therein or connected thereto are not incorporated by reference into this annual report.

Health and Safety

Health and Safety is our #1 priority—companywide. Employees at all levels of our Company share this philosophy and are committed to ensuring our
safety goals are met. As an industry leader, our commitment to health and safety benefits everyone—our employees, our customers, the community, and the
environment. In 2016 we continued with our very successful Safety Starts With Me: Live It 3-6-5 program which is a key component in our overall safety
program and along with our many other programs has continued to achieve low Total Recordable Incident Rate, or "TRIR;" Days Away, Restricted Activity
and Transfer Rate, or "DART;" and Experience Modification Rate, or "EMR." For the year ended December 31, 2016, our Company wide TRIR, DART and
EMR were 1.18, 0.72 and 0.67, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2015, our Company wide TRIR, DART and EMR were 1.33, 0.83 and 0.54,
respectively.

In order to protect our employees, continue to lower our incident rates, and satisfy our customers' demands to retain the best service providers with the
lowest TRIR, DART and EMR rates, we are fully committed to continuously improving our health and safety performance. All employees recognize the
importance of protecting themselves, their fellow employees, their customers, and all those around them from harm. This commitment is supported by the
philosophies and Golden Rules of Safety that is the cornerstone of the Safety Starts with Me: Live It 3-6-5 program. Live It 3-6-5 is our dedication to the
safety of our workers through each and every employee’s commitment to our three Safety philosophies, our six Golden Rules of Safety and each employee’s
five personal reasons why they choose to be safe both at work, on the road and at home.

Compliance

We regard compliance with applicable environmental regulations as a critical component of our overall operations. We strive to maintain the highest
professional standards in our compliance activities. Our compliance program has been developed for each of our waste management facilities and service
centers under the direction of our compliance staff. The compliance staff is responsible for facilities permitting and regulatory compliance, compliance
training, transportation compliance, and related record keeping. To ensure the effectiveness of our regulatory compliance program, our compliance staff
monitors daily operational activities. We also have an Environmental Health and Safety Compliance Internal Audit Program designed to identify any
weaknesses or opportunities for improvement in our ongoing compliance programs. We also perform periodic audits and inspections of the disposal facilities
owned by other companies which we utilize.

Our facilities are frequently inspected and audited by regulatory agencies, as well as by customers. Although our facilities have been cited on occasion
for regulatory violations, we believe that each of our facilities is currently in substantial compliance with applicable permit requirements.

Strategy

Our strategy is to develop and maintain ongoing relationships with a diversified group of customers that have recurring needs for environmental,
energy or industrial services. We strive to be recognized as the premier supplier of a broad range of value-added services based upon quality, responsiveness,
customer service, information technologies, breadth of service offerings and cost effectiveness.

The principal elements of our business strategy are to:

• Expand Service Offerings and Geographic Coverage—We believe our Technical Services, Industrial and Field Services, and Safety-Kleen
segments have a competitive advantage, particularly in areas where we maintain service locations at or near a treatment, storage and disposal
facility, or "TSDF." By opening additional service locations in close proximity to our TSDFs, we believe that we can increase our market share
within these segments. We believe this will drive additional waste to our existing facilities, thereby increasing utilization and enhancing overall
profitability. In addition, our management team continues to assess the competitive landscape in order to identify new
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business opportunities and, at the end of 2016, included the Healthcare services and Daylighting businesses which will expand our services
offerings to existing and potential customers.

• Cross-Sell Across Segments—We believe the breadth of our service offerings allows us to provide additional services to existing customers. In
particular, we believe we can provide industrial and field services to customers that traditionally have only used our technical services and technical
services to customers that use our industrial services or oil and gas field services. At the same time, we see a variety of cross-selling opportunities
between our Technical Services, Industrial and Field Services and Safety-Kleen segments. Evidencing this strategy, we have been successfully cross
selling the services of Safety-Kleen, such as parts washers, allied products, recycling services and the implementation of our OilPlusTM closed loop
initiative, to legacy Clean Harbors customers. We believe leveraging our ability to cross-sell across all of our segments will drive additional revenue
for our Company.

• Capture Large-Scale Projects—We provide turnkey offsite transportation and landfill or incineration disposal services for soil and other
contaminated media generated from remediation activities. We also assist remediation contractors and project managers with support services
including groundwater disposal, investigation derived waste disposal, rolloff container management, and many other related services. We believe
this will drive incremental waste volume to our existing facilities, thereby increasing utilization and enhancing overall profitability.

• Expand Throughput Capacity of Existing Waste Facilities—We operate an extensive network of hazardous waste management facilities and have
made substantial investments in these facilities, which provide us with significant operating leverage as volumes increase. In addition, there are
opportunities to expand waste handling capacity at these facilities by modifying the terms of the existing permits and by adding equipment and new
technology. Through selected permit modifications, we can expand the range of treatment services offered to our customers without the large capital
investment necessary to acquire or build new waste management facilities.

• Pursue Selective Acquisitions—We actively pursue selective acquisitions in certain services or market sectors where we believe the acquisitions can
enhance and expand our business, such as the oil collection and refinery markets. We believe that we can expand existing services, especially in our
non-disposal services, through strategic acquisitions in order to generate incremental revenues from existing and new customers and to obtain
greater market share. Evidencing this strategy, during 2016, we acquired seven businesses that will primarily complement the strategy to create a
closed loop model as it relates to the sale of our oil products. For additional information on our acquisitions, see "Acquisitions and Other Business
Transactions" below.

• Execute Strategic Mergers and Divestitures—To complement our acquisition strategy and focus on internal growth, we regularly review and
evaluate our existing operations to determine whether our business model should change through the merger or divestiture of certain businesses.
Accordingly, from time to time, we may merge or divest certain non-core businesses and reallocate our resources to businesses that better align with
our long-term strategic direction. For instance, on September 1, 2016, we completed the sale of our catalyst services business, which was a non-core
business previously included within our Industrial and Field Services segment.

• Focus on Cost, Pricing and Productivity Initiatives—We continually seek to increase efficiency and to reduce costs in our business through
enhanced technology, process efficiencies and stringent expense management. For instance, in 2016 and in response to current and expected
business conditions, we successfully undertook headcount reductions, branch consolidations, reduction in third-party rentals, greater internalization
of maintenance costs, procurement and supply chain improvements and lowering reliance on outside transportation.

Acquisitions and Other Business Transactions

Acquisitions are an element of our business strategy that involves expansion through the acquisition of businesses that complement our existing
company and create multiple opportunities for profitable growth.

Demonstrating our selective acquisition strategy, we acquired during 2016 seven businesses for a combined purchase price of $205.0 million, paid in
cash and subject to customary post-closing adjustments, which complement our strategy to create a closed loop model as it relates to the sale of our oil
products. These acquisitions also provided us two additional oil re-refineries while also expanding our used motor oil collection network and providing
greater blending and packaging capabilities. These acquisitions provided us with greater access to customers in the West Coast region of the United States
and additional locations with Part B permits. Operations of these acquisitions are primarily being integrated across our Safety-Kleen segment, with certain
operations also being integrated into our Technical Services and Industrial and Field Services segments.

In 2015, we completed the acquisition of Heckmann Environmental Services, Inc. (“HES”) and Thermo Fluids Inc. (“TFI”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of HES. The acquisition was accomplished through a purchase by Safety-Kleen, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company, of all of the issued and
outstanding shares of HES from Nuverra Environmental Solutions, Inc. HES is a holding company that does not conduct any operations. TFI provides
environmental services, including

3



Table Of Contents

used oil recycling, used oil filter recycling, antifreeze products, parts washers and solvent recycling, and industrial waste management services, including
vacuum services, remediation, lab pack and hazardous waste management. We acquired TFI for a purchase price of $79.3 million. The acquisition expanded
our environmental services customer base while also complementing the Safety-Kleen network and presence in the western United States.

For additional information relating to our acquisition activities during fiscal years 2016, 2015 and 2014, see Note 3, "Business Combinations," to our
consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this report.

Other business transactions may consist of mergers or divestitures and is another element of our business strategy that involves review of our portfolio of
assets to determine the extent to which they are contributing to our objectives and growth strategy.

On September 1, 2016, we completed the sale of our catalyst services business, which was a non-core business previously included within the Industrial
Services operating segment, for approximately $50.6 million ($49.2 million net of cash retained by the catalyst services business) subject to customary post-
closing conditions. For additional information relating to this divestiture, see Note 4, "Disposition of Business," to our consolidated financial statements
included in Item 8 of this report.

Protecting the Environment and Corporate Sustainability

Our core business is to provide industry, government and the public a wide range of environmental, energy and industrial services that protect and
restore North America's natural environment.

As a leading provider of environmental, energy and industrial services throughout North America, our first goal is to help our customers prevent the
release of hazardous wastes into the environment. We also are the leading service provider in the recovery and decontamination of pollutants that have been
released. This includes the safe destruction or disposal of hazardous materials in a manner that ensures these materials are no longer a danger to the
environment. When providing these services, we are committed to the recycling, reuse and reclamation of these wastes whenever possible using a variety of
methods more fully explained below in the sections describing our general operations. Our Safety-Kleen branded services exemplify our commitment to
sustainability and providing environmental solutions to the marketplace. Where possible, liquids such as solvents, chemicals and used oil are recycled to our
high-quality standards and made into useful products. Tolling programs provide a closed-loop cycle in which the customer’s spent solvents are recycled to
their precise specifications and returned directly to them.

We have also become the leading North American provider of services to protect the ozone layer from the destructive effects of chlorofluorocarbons, or
"CFCs," which are ozone layer depleting substances and global warming compounds that have global warming potentials up to 10,000 times more powerful
than carbon dioxide. Global-warming potential is a relative measure of how much heat a greenhouse gas traps in the atmosphere.

Since 2013, California Air Resources Board has issued over 7,900,000 emission reduction credits that were generated by destroying CFC’s at Clean
Harbors’ El Dorado Arkansas incinerator. Over 7,900,000 metric tons of carbon dioxide emissions were avoided by destroying these greenhouse gases.  That
is equivalent to removing over 1,668,745 passenger vehicles from the road for one year.

One of our most highly visible public programs for various governmental and community entities involves the removal of thousands of tons of
hazardous wastes, from households throughout the United States and Canada, that might otherwise be improperly disposed of or become dangerous to the
communities where they are stored.

As we provide these wide-ranging services throughout North America, we are committed to ensuring that our own operations are environmentally
responsible. Our sustainability efforts are guided by a formal policy, strategy and plan and we continue to build on our past efforts, such as implementing
numerous energy efficiency improvements and various transportation initiatives.

Competitive Strengths

• Leading Provider of Environmental, Energy and Industrial Services—We are a leading provider of environmental, energy and industrial services
and the largest operator of non-nuclear hazardous waste treatment facilities in North America. We provide multi-faceted and low cost services to a
broad mix of customers. We attract and better serve our customers because of our capabilities and the size, scale and geographic location of our
assets, which allow us to serve multiple locations.

• Largest collector and recycler of used motor oil— As the largest re-refiner and recycler of used oil in the world, we returned during 2016
approximately 176.3 million gallons of new re-refined oil, lubricants and byproducts back into the marketplace. In 2016, our re-refining process
eliminated more than one million metric tons of greenhouse gas
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("GHG"), which is the equivalent of growing more than 32 million trees for 10 years in an urban environment or taking over 200,000 passenger cars
off the road for one year.

• Large and Diversified Customer Base—Our customers range from Fortune 500 companies to midsize and small public and private entities that
span multiple industries and business types, including governmental entities. This diversification limits our credit exposure to any one customer and
potential cyclicality to any one industry. As a percentage of our 2016 revenues, the top ten industries we service totaled approximately 69% and
included chemical (13%), general manufacturing (13%), automotive (9%), refineries and oil sands (9%), government (6%), base oil, blenders and
packagers (6%), utilities (4%), terminals and pipelines (3%), pharmaceutical and biotechnology (3%), and transportation (3%).

• Stable and Recurring Revenue Base—We have long-standing relationships with our customers. Our diversified customer base provides stable and
recurring revenues as a significant portion of our revenues are derived from previously served customers with recurring needs for our services. In
addition, switching costs for many of our customers are high. This is due to many customers' desire to audit disposal facilities prior to their
qualification as approved sites and to limit the number of facilities to which their hazardous wastes are shipped in order to reduce their potential
liability under United States and Canadian environmental regulations. We have been selected as an approved vendor by large and small generators
of waste because we possess comprehensive collection, recycling, treatment, transportation, disposal, and waste tracking capabilities and have the
expertise necessary to comply with applicable environmental laws and regulations. Those customers that have selected us as an approved vendor
typically continue to use our services on a recurring basis.

• Comprehensive Service Capabilities—Our comprehensive service offerings allow us to act as a full-service provider to our customers. Our full-
service orientation creates incremental revenue growth as customers seek to minimize the number of outside vendors and demand "one-stop shop"
service providers.

• Integrated Network of Assets—We believe we operate, in the aggregate, the largest number of hazardous waste incinerators, landfills, treatment
facilities and TSDFs in North America. Our broad service network enables us to effectively handle a waste stream from origin through disposal and to
efficiently direct and internalize our waste streams to reduce costs. As our processing of wastes increases, our size allows us to increase our profit
margins as we can internalize a greater volume of waste in our incinerators, landfills and other disposal facilities.

• Regulatory Compliance—We continue to make capital investments in our facilities to ensure that they are in compliance with current federal, state,
provincial and local regulations. Companies that rely on in-house disposal may find the current regulatory requirements to be too capital intensive
or complicated, and may choose to outsource many of their hazardous waste disposal needs.

• Effective Cost Management—Our significant scale allows us to maintain low costs through standardized compliance procedures, significant
purchasing power, research and development capabilities and our ability to efficiently utilize logistics and transportation to economically direct
waste streams to the most efficient facility. We also have the ability to transport and process with internal resources the substantial majority of all
hazardous waste that we manage for our customers. In addition, our Safety-Kleen results are significantly impacted by the overall market pricing and
product mix associated with base and blended oil products and, more specifically, the market prices of Group II base oils. Given the impact of lower
base and blended oil pricing, we are now charging stop fees related to our used oil collection services which have allowed us to more effectively
manage the profit spreads inherent in the business.

• Proven and Experienced Management Team—Our executive management team provides depth and continuity. Our 13 executive officers
collectively have a significant amount of experience and expertise in the environmental, energy and industrial services industries. Our chief
executive officer founded our Company in 1980, and since its formation has served as both the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board.

Operations

General

Seasonality and Cyclical Nature of Business. Our operations may be affected by seasonal fluctuations due to weather and budgetary cycles influencing
the timing of customers' spending for products and services. Typically during the first quarter of each year there is less demand for our products, oil
collection, recycling and environmental services due to the lower levels of activities by our customers as a result of the cold weather, particularly in the
Northern and Midwestern regions of the United States and Canada. As a result, reduced volumes of waste are received at our facilities, higher operating costs
are realized due to sub-freezing weather and high levels of snowfall, factory closings for year-end holidays reduce waste volume, and lower volumes of used
oil are generated for collection by us.
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Conversely, typically during the first quarter of each year there is more demand for our Industrial and Field Services and Oil, Gas and Lodging Services
segments due to the cold weather, particularly in Alberta, Canada, and less demand during the warmer months. The main reason for this is that the areas we
service in Alberta are easier to access when the cold conditions make the terrain more suitable for companies to deploy their equipment. During the warmer
months, thawing and muddy conditions may impede deployment of equipment.

Geographical Information.    For the year ended December 31, 2016, we generated $2,213.4 million or 80.3% of our revenues in the United States and
Puerto Rico, $538.0 million or 19.5% of revenues in Canada, and less than 1% of revenues in other international locations. For the year ended December 31,
2015, we generated $2,576.2 million or 78.7% of our revenues in the United States and Puerto Rico, $695.0 million or 21.2% of revenues in Canada, and less
than 1% of revenues in other international locations. For additional information about the geographical areas from which our revenues are derived and in
which our assets are located, see Note 18, "Segment Reporting," to our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this report.

Technical Services

These services involve the collection, transportation, treatment and disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous waste, and include resource recovery,
physical treatment, fuel blending, incineration, landfill disposal, wastewater treatment, lab chemical disposal, explosives management and CleanPack®
services. Our CleanPack services include the collection, identification and categorization, specialized packaging, transportation and disposal of laboratory
chemicals and household hazardous waste. Our technical services are provided through a network of service centers from which a fleet of trucks are
dispatched to pick up customers' waste either on a predetermined schedule or on demand, and to deliver the waste to permitted facilities, which are usually
Company-owned. Our service centers also can dispatch chemists to a customer location for collection of chemical and laboratory waste for disposal.

Collection, Transportation and Logistics Management.    As an integral part of our services, we collect industrial waste from customers and transport
such waste to and between our facilities for treatment or bulking for shipment to final disposal locations. Customers typically accumulate waste in containers,
such as 55-gallon drums, bulk storage tanks or 20-cubic-yard roll-off containers. In providing this service, we utilize a variety of specially designed and
constructed tank trucks and semi-trailers as well as third-party transporters, including railroads.

Treatment and Disposal.    We recycle, treat and dispose of hazardous and non-hazardous industrial waste. The waste handled includes substances
which are classified as "hazardous" because of their corrosive, ignitable, infectious, reactive or toxic properties, and other substances subject to federal, state
and provincial environmental regulation. We provide final treatment and disposal services designed to manage waste which cannot be otherwise
economically recycled or reused. The waste that we handle comes in solid, sludge, liquid and gas form.

We operate a network of TSDFs that collect, temporarily store and/or consolidate compatible waste streams for more efficient transportation to final
recycling, treatment or disposal destinations. These facilities hold special permits, such as Part B permits under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act,
or "RCRA," in the United States, which allow them to process, transfer and dispose of waste through various technologies including recycling, incineration,
and landfill and wastewater treatment depending on each locations permitted and constructed capabilities.

Resource Recovery and Fuel Blending.    We operate recycling systems for the reclamation and reuse of certain waste, particularly solvent-based waste
generated by industrial cleaning operations, metal finishing and other manufacturing processes. Resource recovery involves the treatment of wastes using
various methods, which effectively remove contaminants from the original material to restore its fitness for its intended purpose and to reduce the volume of
waste requiring disposal.

We also operate a recycling facility that recycles refinery waste and spent catalyst. The recycled oil and recycled catalyst depending on market
conditions are sold to third parties.

Incineration.    Incineration is the preferred method for the treatment of organic hazardous waste, because it effectively destroys the contaminants at
high temperatures. High temperature incineration effectively eliminates organic waste such as herbicides, halogenated solvents, pesticides, pharmaceutical
and refinery waste, regardless of whether gases, liquids, sludge or solids. Federal and state incineration regulations require a destruction and removal
efficiency of 99.99% for most organic waste and 99.9999% for polychlorinated biphenyls, or "PCB," and dioxins.

As of December 31, 2016, we had eight active incinerators operating in five incinerator facilities that offer a wide range of technological capabilities to
customers. In the United States, we operate a fluidized bed thermal oxidation unit for maximum destruction efficiency of hazardous waste with an estimated
annual practical capacity of 58,808 tons and three solids and liquids capable incinerator facilities with a combined estimated annual practical capacity of
317,387 tons. We also operate one hazardous waste liquid injection incinerator in Canada with total annual practical capacity of 115,526 tons. Our state-of-
the-art
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hazardous waste incinerator at our El Dorado, Arkansas site, which officially came online in early 2017, is expected to add approximately 70,000 tons of
additional capacity to our Arkansas facility.

Our incinerator facilities in Kimball, Nebraska; Deer Park, Texas; El Dorado, Arkansas; and Aragonite, Utah, are designed to process liquid organic
waste, sludge, solids, soil and debris. Our Deer Park facility has two kilns and a rotary reactor. Our El Dorado facility specializes in the treatment of bulk and
containerized hazardous liquids, solids and sludge. Our new state-of-the-art hazardous waste incinerator at our El Dorado, Arkansas, site specializes in high-
temperature incineration of regulated waste, such as industrial and laboratory chemicals, manufacturing byproducts, medical waste, fertilizers and other solid
and liquid materials that would otherwise be hazardous to the environment and public health if not properly managed. Our facilities in Kimball and Deer Park
have on-site landfills for the disposal of ash produced as a result of the incineration process.

Our incinerator facility in Lambton, Ontario, is a liquid injection incinerator, designed primarily for the destruction of liquid organic waste. Typical
waste streams include wastewater with low levels of organics and other higher concentration organic liquid waste not amenable to conventional physical or
chemical waste treatment.

Landfills.    Landfills are primarily used for the disposal of inorganic waste. In the United States and Canada, we operate nine commercial landfills.
Seven of our commercial landfills are designed and permitted for the disposal of hazardous waste and two of our landfills are operated for non-hazardous
industrial waste disposal and, to a lesser extent, municipal solid waste. In addition to our commercial landfills, we also own and operate two non-commercial
landfills that only accept waste from our on-site incinerators.

Of our seven commercial landfills used for disposal of hazardous waste, five are located in the United States and two are located in Canada. As of
December 31, 2016, the useful economic lives of these landfills include approximately 27.5 million cubic yards of remaining capacity. This estimate of the
useful economic lives of these landfills includes permitted airspace and unpermitted airspace that our management believes to be probable of being permitted
based on our analysis of various factors. In addition to the capacity included in the useful economic lives of these landfills, there are approximately 31.9
million cubic yards of additional unpermitted airspace capacity included in the footprints of these landfills that may ultimately be permitted, although there
can be no assurance that this unpermitted additional capacity will be permitted. In addition to the hazardous waste landfills, we operate two non-hazardous
industrial landfills with 4.2 million cubic yards of remaining permitted capacity. These two facilities are located in the United States and have been issued
operating permits under Subtitle D of RCRA. Our non-hazardous landfill facilities are permitted to accept commercial industrial waste, including waste from
foundries, demolition and construction, machine shops, automobile manufacturing, printing, metal fabrications and recycling.

Wastewater Treatment.    We operate eight wastewater treatment facilities that offer a range of wastewater treatment technologies. These wastewater
treatment operations involve processing hazardous and non-hazardous waste through the use of physical and chemical treatment methods. These facilities
treat a broad range of industrial liquid and semi-liquid waste containing heavy metals, organics and suspended solids.

Total Project Management. We also provide total project management services in areas such as chemical packing, on-site waste management,
remediation, compliance training and emergency spill response, while leveraging the Clean Harbors network of Technical Services and Industrial and Field
Services centers and capabilities.

Industrial and Field Services

Industrial Services. We provide a wide range of industrial maintenance services and specialty industrial services at refineries, mines, upgraders,
chemical plants, pulp and paper mills, manufacturing, and power generation facilities. We provide these services throughout North America, which includes
our presence in the oil sands region in Alberta, Canada as well as the gulf coast region of the United States.

Our crews handle as-needed in-plant services to support ongoing in-plant cleaning and maintenance services, including liquid/dry vacuum, hydro-
blasting, dewatering and materials processing, water and chemical hauling and steam cleaning. We provide a variety of specialized industrial services
including plant outage and turnaround services, decoking and pigging, chemical cleaning, high and ultra-high pressure water cleaning, daylighting and
hydro excavation, pipeline inspection and coating services, and large tank and surface impoundment cleaning.

Our crews also handle oilfield transport and production services supporting drilling, completions and production programs. On the drilling and
completions side, we provide vehicles and services for fluid hauling and disposal for ad hoc and turnkey operations. We also provide services and equipment
for drilling site cleanups and support. On the production side, we provide complete turnarounds and tank cleaning services. Our downhole well equipment
helps maintain and increase well productivity.
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Field Services. We provide customers with highly skilled experts who utilize specialty equipment and resources to perform services at any chosen
location. Our field service crews and equipment are dispatched on a planned or emergency basis, and perform services such as confined space entry for tank
cleaning, site decontamination, large remediation projects, demolition, spill cleanup, railcar cleaning, product recovery and transfer, scarifying and media
blasting and vacuum services. Additional services include used oil and oil products recycling. Other services include filtration and water treatment services.

We are a leader in providing response services for environmental emergencies of any scale from man-made disasters such as oil spills, and natural
disasters such as hurricanes.

Safety-Kleen

Our Safety-Kleen service brand offers an array of environmental services and complementary products to a diverse range of customers including
automobile repair shops, car and truck dealers, metal fabricators, machine manufacturers, fleet maintenance shops and other automotive, industrial and retail
customers.

As the largest provider of parts cleaning services in North America, our Safety-Kleen business offers a complete line of specially designed parts washers
to customer locations and then delivers recurring service that includes machine cleaning and maintenance and the disposal and replacement of clean solvent
or aqueous fluids. We also sell allied products including degreasers, glass and floor cleaners, hand cleaners, absorbents, antifreeze, windshield washer fluid,
mats and spill kits.

Utilizing our collection network, we provide the pickup and transportation of hazardous and non-hazardous containerized waste for recycling or
disposal, primarily through the Clean Harbors network of recycling and waste treatment and disposal facilities. We also collect used oil which serves as
feedstock for our oil re-refineries discussed below, although a portion of the used oil brought to the re-refineries is either not suitable for re-refining or cannot
be re-refined because we do not have sufficient re-refining capacity at a specific point in time. That oil is processed into recycled fuel oil, or “RFO,” and is
then sold to various customers, such as asphalt plants, industrial plants, pulp and paper companies, and vacuum gas oil and marine diesel oil producers.

Our vacuum services provide the removal of solids, residual oily water and sludge and other fluids from customers' oil/water separators, sumps and
collection tanks. We also remove and collect waste fluids found at large and small industrial locations, including metal fabricators, auto maintenance
providers, and general manufacturers.

Utilizing used oil collected by Safety-Kleen branches, we manufacture, formulate, package, distribute and markets high-quality lubricants and allied
products. We offer these services to business end-users and customers that can in turn market to retailers and end-consumers. The used oil collected by Safety-
Kleen's branch network is processed or re-refined to convert into a variety of products, mostly base lubricating oils, and much smaller quantities of asphalt-
like material, glycols and fuels. As the largest re-refiner of used oil in the world, we process the used oil collected through our six re-refineries located in East
Chicago, Indiana; Newark, California; Wichita, Kansas; Tacoma, Washington; Fallon, Nevada, and Breslau, Ontario. Our primary goal is to produce and sell
high-quality blended oils, which are created by combining our re-refined base and other base oils with performance additives in accordance with our
proprietary formulations and American Petroleum Institute licenses. Our Performance Plus® brand and “green” proprietary brand EcoPower® sold under our
Kleen Performance Products line of oil products are sold to on- and off-road corporate fleets, government entities, automotive service shops and industrial
plants, which are serviced through our internal distribution network, as well as an extensive United States and Canada-wide independent distributor network.
We also sell unbranded blended oils to distributors that resell them under their private label brands. In 2016, we implemented our OilPlusTM program
resulting in the sale of our renewable oil products directly to our end customers. We sell the base oil that we do not blend and sell ourselves to independent
blenders/packagers that use it to blend their own branded or private label oils. With more than 200 million gallons of used oil processed annually, we were
able to return in 2016 approximately 176.3 million gallons of new re-refined oil, lubricants and byproducts back into the marketplace.

Oil, Gas and Lodging Services

Oil and Gas Field Services. Consists of two lines of businesses; Seismic Services and Surface Rentals. These services support exploration and drilling
programs for oil and gas companies.

Seismic Services provides integrated seismic and right-of-way services for efficient resource discovery and site preparation. These services include: (i)
seismic surveying that minimizes costs, environmental impact, and time in field; (ii) mulching/line clearing that expedites additional geophysical activities
and minimizes environmental impact; and (iii) shot-hole drilling that provides safe and efficient operations in every terrain, including hostile and
inaccessible regions.

Surface Rentals services support oil and gas companies' drilling and well completion programs. Key to our services is our ability to provide solids
control to support the drilling process. Our technologies help manage liquids, solids and semi-solid material during the drilling operation, and include
centrifuges, tanks, and drilling fluid recovery. We also can provide container
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rentals for the safe collection of drill cuttings and other wastes, as well as manage disposal for drilling fluids and solids. We also supply surface rental
equipment to support drill sites by providing wellsite trailers, wastewater treatment systems and holding tanks, light towers, and generators and handling
tools.

Lodging Services. Consists of three lines of businesses; Lodge Operations, Camps and Catering, and Manufacturing. Synergy is created among all three
lines of businesses within Lodging Services itself, as well with other Clean Harbors divisions by providing turnkey remote accommodations and
manufacturing support.

Lodge Operations operates fixed lodges ranging in sizes up to approximately 600 beds throughout Western Canada, primarily in the Fort McMurray
area. These are open lodges, with amenities that include catering and housekeeping services, fully equipped common areas, fitness rooms and computer
rooms, wireless internet and public phones, powered parking stalls, laundry facilities, and daily towel service.

Camps and Catering operates remote workforce accommodation facilities throughout Western Canada, currently in British Columbia, Saskatchewan
and Alberta, with multiple accommodation types. These include both client and open camps, operator camps, and drill camps. In addition, we provide
internally to the majority of our lodges and camps food services prepared by Red Seal Chefs, hospitality services, camp and lodge managers, and
housekeeping. Furthermore, hospitality services are available as a standalone service to clients who have other accommodation arrangements.

Manufacturing operates through BCT Structures Inc., a custom manufacturer of modular buildings specializing in providing workforce housing, office
complexes, schools, lavatories, multi-story buildings, affordable housing, kitchen facilities and other customized modular solutions for various industries.

Competition

The hazardous waste management industry in which we compete is highly competitive. The sources of competition vary by locality and by type of
service rendered, with competition coming from national and regional waste services companies and hundreds of privately-owned firms. Veolia
Environmental Services, or "Veolia," Waste Management, Inc., or "WM," U.S. Ecology, and Stericycle, Inc. are the principal national firms with which we
compete. Each of these competitors is able to provide one or more of the environmental services we offer.

Under federal and state environmental laws in the United States, generators of hazardous wastes remain liable for improper disposal of such wastes.
Although generators may hire various companies that have the proper permits and licenses, because of the generators' potential liability, they are very
interested in the reputation and financial strength of the companies they use for the management of their hazardous wastes. We believe that our technical
proficiency and reputation are important considerations to our customers in selecting and continuing to utilize our services.

We believe that the depth of our recycling, treatment and disposal capabilities and our ability to collect and transport waste products efficiently,
quality of service, safety, and pricing are the most significant factors in the market for treatment and disposal services.

For our Technical Services segment, competitors include several major national and regional environmental services firms, as well as numerous smaller
local firms. We believe the availability of skilled technical professional personnel, quality of performance, diversity of services, safety record and price are
the key competitive factors in this service industry.

For our Industrial and Field Services segment, competitors vary by locality and by type of service rendered, with competition coming from national and
regional service providers and hundreds of privately-owned firms that offer energy or industrial services. CEDA International Corporation and Newalta in
Canada, and Philip Services Corporation, Hydrochem and Veolia in the United States, are the principal national firms with which we compete. Each of these
competitors is able to provide one or more of the industrial and field services offered by us. We believe the availability of specialized equipment, skilled
technical professional personnel, quality of performance, diversity of services, safety record and price are the key competitive factors in this industry.

For our Safety-Kleen segment, competitors vary by locality and by type of service rendered, with competition coming from Heritage-Crystal Clean and
Veolia, along with several regional and local firms.

For our Oil, Gas and Lodging Services segment, competitors vary by locality and type of services provided, with competition coming from national,
regional and local service providers. Some of these competitors are able to provide one or more of the oil and gas field services we offer. Others only provide
a limited range of equipment or services tailored for local markets. Competition is based on a number of factors, including safety, quality, performance,
reliability, service, price, response time, and, in some cases, breadth of service offering. Our primary competitors in our lodging business are Civeo, Black
Diamond, Horizon North Logistics, Noralta, Royal Camps and William Scotsman.
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The principal methods of competition for all of our services are price, quality, reliability of service rendered and technical proficiency. We believe that
we offer a more comprehensive range of environmental, energy and industrial services than our competitors in major portions of the United States and
Canada.

Employees

As of December 31, 2016, we employed approximately 12,400 active full-time employees, of which 711 in the United States and 524 in Canada were
represented by labor unions. We believe that our relationship with our employees is satisfactory. As part of our commitment to employee safety and quality
customer service, we have an extensive compliance program and trained environmental, health and safety staff. We adhere to a risk management program
designed to reduce potential liabilities to us and to our customers.

Intellectual Property

We have invested significantly in the development of proprietary technology and also to establish and maintain an extensive knowledge of leading
technologies and incorporate these technologies into the services we offer and provide to our customers. As of December 31, 2016, we held a total of 38 U.S.
and 13 foreign issued or granted patents (which will expire between 2017 and 2031), 7 U.S. and 5 foreign pending patent applications, 69 U.S. and 53 foreign
trademark registrations, and 6 U.S. and 10 foreign trademark applications. We also license software and other intellectual property from various third parties.
We enter into confidentiality agreements with certain of our employees, consultants and corporate partners, and control access to software documentation and
other proprietary information. We believe that we hold adequate rights to all intellectual property used in our business and that we do not infringe upon any
intellectual property rights held by other parties.

Management of Risks

We adhere to a program of risk management policies and practices designed to reduce potential liability, as well as to manage customers' ongoing
environmental exposures. This program includes installation of risk management systems at our facilities, such as fire suppression, employee training,
environmental, auditing and policy decisions restricting the types of wastes handled. We evaluate all revenue opportunities and decline those that we believe
involve unacceptable risks.

We dispose of wastes at our incinerator, wastewater treatment and landfill facilities, or at facilities owned and operated by other firms that we have
audited and approved. We apply established technologies to the treatment, storage and recovery of hazardous wastes. We believe our operations are
conducted in a safe and prudent manner and in substantial compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Insurance and Financial Assurance

Our insurance programs cover the potential risks associated with our multifaceted operations from two primary exposures: direct physical damage and
third-party liability. We maintain a casualty insurance program providing coverage for vehicles, employer's liability and commercial general liability in the
aggregate amount of $105.0 million, $102.0 million and $104.0 million, respectively, per year, subject to retentions of $2.0 million per occurrence for auto
and commercial general liability and $1.0 million for employers' liability in the United States and $2.0 million in Canada. We also have workers'
compensation insurance whose limits are established by state statutes.

We have pollution liability insurance policies covering potential risks in three areas: as a contractor performing services at customer sites, as a
transporter of waste, and as a processor of waste at our facilities. The contractor's pollution liability insurance has limits of $20.0 million per occurrence and
$25.0 million in the aggregate, covering offsite remedial activities and associated liabilities.

For sudden and accidental in-transit pollution liability, our auto liability policy provides the primary $5.0 million per occurrence of transportation
pollution insurance. Our pollution liability policies provide an additional $60.0 million per occurrence and $85.0 million in the aggregate for a total of
$65.0 million per occurrence and $90.0 million, respectively. A $2.0 million deductible per occurrence applies to this coverage in the United States and
Canada.

Federal and state regulations require liability insurance coverage for all facilities that treat, store or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRA, the Toxic
Substances Control Act, and comparable state hazardous waste regulations typically require hazardous waste handling facilities to maintain pollution
liability insurance in the amount of $1.0 million per occurrence and $2.0 million in the aggregate for sudden occurrences, and $3.0 million per occurrence
and $6.0 million in the aggregate for non-sudden occurrences. Our liability insurance coverage meets or exceeds all federal and state regulations.

Our international operations are insured under locally placed insurance policies that are compulsory in a specific country. In addition, we have a global
foreign liability policy that will provide excess and difference in condition coverage in international countries.
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Under our insurance programs, coverage is obtained for catastrophic exposures as well as those risks required to be insured by law or contract. It is our
policy to retain a significant portion of certain expected losses related primarily to employee benefit, workers' compensation, commercial general and vehicle
liability. Provisions for losses expected under these programs are recorded based upon our estimates of the actuarial calculation of the aggregate liability for
claims. We believe that policy cancellation terms are similar to those of companies in other industries.

Operators of hazardous waste handling facilities are also required by federal, state and provincial regulations to provide financial assurance for closure
and post-closure care of those facilities should the facilities cease operation. Closure would include the cost of removing the waste stored at a facility which
ceased operating and sending the material to another facility for disposal and the cost of performing certain procedures for decontamination of the facility. As
of December 31, 2016, our total estimated closure and post-closure costs requiring financial assurance by regulators were $442.3 million for our U.S. facilities
and $41.7 million for our Canadian facilities. We have obtained all of the required financial assurance for our facilities through a combination of surety
bonds, funded trusts, letters of credit and insurance from a qualified insurance company. The financial assurance related to closure and post-closure
obligations of our U.S. facilities will renew in 2017. Our Canadian facilities utilize surety bonds, which renew at various dates throughout 2017, as well as
letters of credit.

Environmental Regulation

While our business has benefited substantially from increased governmental regulation of hazardous waste transportation, storage and disposal, the
environmental services industry itself is the subject of extensive and evolving regulation by federal, state, provincial and local authorities. We are required to
obtain federal, state, provincial and local permits or approvals for each of our hazardous waste facilities. Such permits are difficult to obtain and, in many
instances, extensive studies, tests, and public hearings are required before the approvals can be issued. We have acquired all operating permits and approvals
now required for the current operation of our business, and have applied for, or are in the process of applying for, all permits and approvals needed in
connection with continued operation and planned expansion or modifications of our operations.

We make a continuing effort to anticipate regulatory, political and legal developments that might affect operations, but are not always able to do so.
We cannot predict the extent to which any environmental legislation or regulation that may be enacted or enforced in the future may affect our operations.

United States Hazardous Waste Regulation

Federal Regulations.    The most significant federal environmental laws affecting us are the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, or "RCRA," the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, or "CERCLA," also known as the "Superfund Act," the Clean Air Act, the Clean
Water Act, and the Toxic Substances Control Act, or "TSCA."

RCRA.    RCRA is the principal federal statute governing hazardous waste generation, treatment, transportation, storage and disposal. Pursuant to
RCRA, the EPA has established a comprehensive "cradle-to-grave" system for the management of a wide range of materials identified as hazardous waste.
States that have adopted hazardous waste management programs with standards at least as stringent as those promulgated by the EPA have been delegated
authority by the EPA to administer their facility permitting programs in lieu of the EPA's program.

Every facility that treats, stores or disposes of hazardous waste must obtain a RCRA permit from the EPA or an authorized state agency unless a specific
exemption exists, and must comply with certain operating requirements (the Part B permitting process). RCRA also requires that Part B permits contain
provisions for required on-site study and cleanup activities, known as "corrective action," including detailed compliance schedules and provisions for
assurance of financial responsibility. See Note 9, "Closure and Post-Closure Liabilities," and Note 10, "Remedial Liabilities," to our consolidated financial
statements included in Item 8 of this report for a discussion of our environmental liabilities. See "Insurance and Financial Assurance" above for a discussion
of our financial assurance requirements.

The Superfund Act.    The Superfund Act is the primary federal statute regulating the cleanup of inactive hazardous substance sites and imposing
liability for cleanup on the responsible parties. It also provides for immediate response and removal actions coordinated by the EPA to releases of hazardous
substances into the environment, and authorizes the government to respond to the release or threatened release of hazardous substances or to order
responsible persons to perform any necessary cleanup. The statute provides for strict and, in certain cases, joint and several liability for these responses and
other related costs, and for liability for the cost of damages to natural resources, to the parties involved in the generation, transportation and disposal of
hazardous substances. Under the statute, we may be deemed liable as a generator or transporter of a hazardous substance which is released into the
environment, or as the owner or operator of a facility from which there is a release of a hazardous substance into the environment. See Note 17, "Commitments
and Contingencies," to our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this report for a description of the principal such proceedings in which we
are now involved.
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The Clean Air Act.    The Clean Air Act was passed by Congress to control the emissions of pollutants into the air and requires permits to be obtained
for certain sources of toxic air pollutants such as vinyl chloride, or criteria pollutants, such as carbon monoxide. In 1990, Congress amended the Clean Air
Act to require further reductions of air pollutants with specific targets for non-attainment areas in order to meet certain ambient air quality standards. These
amendments also require the EPA to promulgate regulations which (i) control emissions of 189 hazardous air pollutants; (ii) create uniform operating permits
for major industrial facilities similar to RCRA operating permits; (iii) mandate the phase-out of ozone depleting chemicals; and (iv) provide for enhanced
enforcement.

The Clean Water Act.    This legislation prohibits discharge of pollutants into the waters of the United States without governmental authorization and
regulates the discharge of pollutants into surface waters and sewers from a variety of sources, including disposal sites and treatment facilities. The EPA has
promulgated "pretreatment" regulations under the Clean Water Act, which establish pretreatment standards for introduction of pollutants into publicly owned
treatment works. In the course of the treatment process, our wastewater treatment facilities generate wastewater, which we discharge to publicly owned
treatment works pursuant to permits issued by the appropriate governmental authorities. We are required to obtain discharge permits and conduct sampling
and monitoring programs.

TSCA.    We also operate a network of collection, treatment and field services (remediation) activities throughout North America that are regulated
under provisions of TSCA. TSCA established a national program for the management of substances classified as polychlorinated biphenyls, or "PCBs," which
include waste PCBs as well as RCRA wastes contaminated with PCBs. The rules set minimum design and operating requirements for storage, treatment and
disposal of PCB wastes. Since their initial publication, the rules have been modified to enhance the management standards for TSCA-regulated operations
including the decommissioning of PCB transformers and articles, detoxification of transformer oils, incineration of PCB liquids and solids, landfill disposal
of PCB solids, and remediation of PCB contamination at customer sites.

Other Federal Laws.    In addition to regulations specifically directed at our transportation, storage, and disposal facilities, there are a number of
regulations that may "pass-through" to the facilities based on the acceptance of regulated waste from affected client facilities. Each facility that accepts
affected waste must comply with the regulations for that waste, facility or industry. Examples of this type of regulation are National Emission Standards for
Benzene Waste Operations and National Emissions Standards for Pharmaceuticals Production. Each of our facilities addresses these regulations on a case-by-
case basis determined by its ability to comply with the pass-through regulations.

In our transportation operations, we are regulated by the U.S. Department of Transportation, the Federal Railroad Administration, the Federal Aviation
Administration and the U.S. Coast Guard, as well as by the regulatory agencies of each state in which we operate or through which our vehicles pass.

Health and safety standards under the Occupational Safety and Health Act, or "OSHA," are also applicable to all of our operations.

State and Local Regulations. Pursuant to the EPA's authorization of their RCRA equivalent programs, a number of U.S. states have regulatory programs
governing the operations and permitting of hazardous waste facilities. Accordingly, the hazardous waste treatment, storage and disposal activities of a
number of our facilities are regulated by the relevant state agencies in addition to federal EPA regulation.

Some states classify as hazardous some wastes that are not regulated under RCRA. For example, Massachusetts considers used oil as "hazardous waste"
while RCRA does not. Accordingly, we must comply with state requirements for handling state regulated wastes, and, when necessary, obtain state licenses
for treating, storing, and disposing of such wastes at our facilities.

Our facilities are regulated pursuant to state statutes, including those addressing clean water and clean air. Local sewer discharge and flammable storage
requirements are applicable to certain of our facilities. Our facilities are also subject to local siting, zoning and land use restrictions. We believe that each of
our facilities is in substantial compliance with the applicable requirements of federal and state licenses which we have obtained. Once issued, such licenses
have maximum fixed terms of a given number of years, which differ from state to state, ranging from three to ten years. The issuing state agency may review or
modify a license at any time during its term. We anticipate that once a license is issued with respect to a facility, the license will be renewed at the end of its
term if the facility's operations are in compliance with applicable requirements. However, there can be no assurance that regulations governing future
licensing will remain static, or that we will be able to comply with such requirements.

Canadian Hazardous Waste Regulation

In Canada, the provinces retain control over environmental issues within their boundaries and thus have the primary responsibility for regulating
management of hazardous wastes. The federal government regulates issues of national scope or where activities cross provincial boundaries.
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Provincial Regulations.    Most of Canada's industrial development and the major part of its population are located in four provinces: Ontario, Quebec,
Alberta and British Columbia. These provinces have the most detailed environmental regulations. We operate major waste management facilities in each of
these provinces, as well as waste transfer facilities in Nova Scotia and Manitoba.

The main provincial acts dealing with hazardous waste management are:

• Ontario—Environmental Protection Act;

• Quebec—Environmental Quality Act;

• Alberta—Environmental Protection and Enhancement Act; and

• British Columbia—Waste Management Act.

These pieces of legislation were developed by the provinces independently and, among other things, generally control the generation, characterization,
transport, treatment and disposal of hazardous wastes. Regulations developed by the provinces under the relevant legislation are also developed
independently, but are often quite similar in effect and sometimes in application. For example, there is some uniformity in manifest design and utilization.

Provincial legislation also provides for the establishment of waste management facilities. In this case, the facilities are also controlled by provincial
statutes and regulations governing emissions to air, groundwater and surface water and prescribing design criteria and operational guidelines.

Waste transporters require a permit to operate under provincial waste management regulations and are subject to the requirements of the Federal
Transportation of Dangerous Goods legislation. They are required to report the quantities and disposition of materials shipped.

Canadian Federal Regulations.    The Canadian federal government has authority for those matters which are national in scope and in impact and for
Canada's relations with other nations. The main federal laws governing hazardous waste management are:

• Canadian Environmental Protection Act (1999) ("CEPA 99"), and

• Transportation of Dangerous Goods Act.

Environment Canada is the federal agency with responsibility for environmental matters and the main legislative instrument is the Canadian
Environmental Protection Act. This act charges Environment Canada and Health Canada with protection of human health and the environment and seeks to
control the production, importation and use of substances in Canada and to control their impact on the environment.

The Export and Import of Hazardous Wastes Regulations under CEPA 99 control the export and import of hazardous wastes and hazardous recyclable
materials. By reference, these regulations incorporate the Transportation of Dangerous Goods Act and Regulations, which address identification, packaging,
marking and documentation of hazardous materials during transport. CEPA 99 requires that anyone proposing to export or import hazardous wastes or
hazardous recyclable materials or to transport them through Canada notify the Minister of the Environment and obtain a permit to do so. Section 9 of CEPA
99 allows the federal government to enter into administrative agreements with the provinces and territories for the development and improvement of
environmental standards. These agreements represent cooperation towards a common goal rather than a delegation of authority under CEPA 99. To facilitate
the development of provincial and territorial agreements, the federal, provincial and territorial governments participate in the Canadian Council of Ministers
of the Environment ("CCME"). The CCME comprises the 14 environment ministers from the federal, provincial and territorial governments, who normally
meet twice a year to discuss national environmental priorities and to determine work to be carried out under the auspices of the CCME.

Canadian Local and Municipal Regulations.    Local and municipal regulations seldom reference direct control of hazardous waste management
activities. Municipal regulations and by-laws, however, control such issues as land use designation, access to municipal services and use of emergency
services, all of which can have a significant impact on facility operation.

Compliance with Environmental Regulations

We incur costs and make capital investments in order to comply with the previously discussed environmental regulations. These regulations require
that we remediate contaminated sites, operate our facilities in accordance with enacted regulations, obtain required financial assurance for closure and post-
closure care of our facilities should such facilities cease operations, and make capital investments in order to keep our facilities in compliance with
environmental regulations.
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As further discussed in Note 9, "Closure and Post-Closure Liabilities," and Note 10, "Remedial Liabilities," to our consolidated financial statements
included in Item 8 of this report, we have accrued environmental liabilities as of December 31, 2016, of $186.3 million. For the years ended December 31,
2016 and 2015, we spent $12.2 million and $20.1 million, respectively, to address environmental liabilities.

As discussed more fully above under the heading "Insurance and Financial Assurance," we are required to provide financial assurance with respect to
certain statutorily required closure, post-closure and corrective action obligations at our facilities. We have placed the required financial assurance primarily
through a qualified insurance company.

As described in Note 17, "Commitments and Contingencies," to our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this report, we are involved
in legal proceedings arising under environmental laws and regulations. Alleged failure to comply with laws and regulations may lead to the imposition of
fines or the denial, revocation or delay of the renewal of permits and licenses by governmental entities. In addition, such governmental entities, as well as
surrounding landowners, may claim that we are liable for environmental damages. Citizens groups have become increasingly active in challenging the grant
or renewal of permits and licenses for hazardous waste facilities, and responding to such challenges has further increased the costs associated with
establishing new facilities or expanding current facilities. A significant judgment against us, the loss of a significant permit or license, or the imposition of a
significant fine could have a material effect on our business and future prospects.

ITEM 1A.    RISK FACTORS

An investment in our securities involves certain risks, including those described below. You should consider carefully these risk factors together with
all of the information included in this report before investing in our securities.

Risks Affecting All of Our Businesses

Our businesses are subject to operational and safety risks.

Provision of environmental, energy and industrial services to our customers by all four of our business segments involves risks such as equipment
defects, malfunctions and failures, and natural disasters, which could potentially result in releases of hazardous materials, injury or death of our employees, or
a need to shut down or reduce operation of our facilities while remedial actions are undertaken. Our employees often work under potentially hazardous
conditions. These risks expose us to potential liability for pollution and other environmental damages, personal injury, loss of life, business interruption, and
property damage or destruction. We must also maintain a solid safety record in order to remain a preferred supplier to our major customers.

While we seek to minimize our exposure to such risks through comprehensive training programs, vehicle and equipment maintenance programs, and
insurance, such programs and insurance may not be adequate to cover all of our potential liabilities and such insurance may not in the future be available at
commercially reasonable rates. If we were to incur substantial liabilities in excess of policy limits or at a time when we were not able to obtain adequate
liability insurance on commercially reasonable terms, our business, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected to a material
extent. Furthermore, should our safety record deteriorate, we could be subject to a potential reduction of revenues from our major customers.

Our businesses are subject to numerous statutory and regulatory requirements, which may increase in the future.

Our businesses are subject to numerous statutory and regulatory requirements, and our ability to continue to hold licenses and permits required for our
businesses is subject to maintaining satisfactory compliance with such requirements. These requirements may increase in the future as a result of statutory and
regulatory changes. Although we are very committed to compliance and safety, we may not, either now or in the future, be in full compliance at all times with
such statutory and regulatory requirements. Consequently, we could be required to incur significant costs to maintain or improve our compliance with such
requirements.

Certain adverse conditions have required, and future conditions might require, us to make substantial write-downs in our assets, which have
adversely affected or would adversely affect our balance sheet and results of operations.

We review our long-lived tangible and intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
an asset may not be recoverable. We also test our goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment at least annually on December 31, or when
events or changes in the business environment indicate that the carrying value of a reporting unit may exceed its fair value. Based on the results of those
tests, we determined
during the third quarter of 2016 that the then carrying amount of our Lodging Services reporting unit exceeded the estimated fair value of that unit and we
therefore then recognized a goodwill impairment charge of $34.0 million with respect to that unit.
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During the second quarter of 2015, we determined that the then carrying amount of our Oil and Gas Field Services reporting unit exceeded the estimated fair
value of that unit and we therefore then recognized a goodwill impairment charge of $32.0 million with respect to that unit. During and as of the end of each
of 2016 and 2015, we determined that no additional asset write-downs were required. However, if conditions in any of the businesses in which we compete
were to deteriorate, we could determine that certain of our assets were impaired and we would then be required to write-off all or a portion of our costs for such
assets. Any significant write-offs would adversely affect our balance sheet and results of operations.

Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange could affect our financial results.

We earn revenues, pay expenses, own assets and incur liabilities in countries using currencies other than the U.S. dollar. In fiscal 2016, we recorded
approximately 20% of our revenues outside of the United States, primarily in Canada. Because our consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S.
dollars, we must translate revenues, income and expenses as well as assets and liabilities into U.S. dollars at exchange rates in effect during or at the end of
each reporting period. Therefore, increases or decreases in the value of the U.S. dollar against other currencies in countries where we operate will affect our
results of operations and the value of balance sheet items denominated in foreign currencies.

Failure to effectively manage acquisitions and divestitures could adversely impact our future results.

We continuously evaluate potential acquisition candidates and from time to time acquire companies that we believe will strategically fit into our
business and growth objectives. In particular, we acquired in 2015 all of the outstanding shares of Thermo Fluids Inc. for approximately $79.3 million in cash
and in 2016, we acquired seven business for approximately $205 million in cash, subject to customary post-closing adjustments. If we are unable to
successfully integrate and develop acquired businesses, we could fail to achieve anticipated synergies and cost savings, including any expected increases in
revenues and operating results, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial results. We also continually review our portfolio of assets to
determine the extent to which they are contributing to our objectives and growth strategy. In particular, we divested our catalyst services business on
September 1, 2016 for approximately $50.6 million ($49.2 million net of cash divested), subject to customary post-closing conditions.

Our acquisitions may expose us to unknown liabilities.
 

Because we have acquired, and expect generally to acquire, all the outstanding shares of most of our acquired companies, our investment in those
companies are or will be subject to all of their liabilities other than their respective debts which we paid or will pay at the time of the acquisitions. If there are
unknown liabilities or other obligations, our business could be materially affected. We may also experience issues relating to internal controls over financial
reporting, issues that could affect our ability to comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, or issues that could affect our ability to comply with other applicable
laws.

A cyber security incident could negatively impact our business and our relationships with customers.

We use computers in substantially all aspects of our business operations and also mobile devices and other online activities to connect with our
employees and customers. Such uses give rise to cyber security risks, including security breach, espionage, system disruption, theft and inadvertent release of
information. Our business involves the storage and transmission of numerous classes of sensitive and/or confidential information and intellectual property
including, but not limited to, private information about employees, and financial and strategic information about our Company and our business partners.
Furthermore, as we pursue our strategy to grow through acquisitions and new initiatives that improve our operations and cost structure, we are also expanding
and improving our information technologies, resulting in a larger technological presence and corresponding exposure to cyber security risk. If we fail to
assess and identify cyber security risks associated with acquisitions and new initiatives, we may become increasingly vulnerable to such risks. Additionally,
while we have implemented measures to prevent security breaches and cyber incidents, our preventative measures and incident response efforts may not be
entirely effective. The theft, destruction, loss, misappropriation, or release of sensitive and/or confidential information or intellectual property, or interference
with our information technology systems or the technology systems of third parties on which we rely, could result in business disruption, negative publicity,
brand damage, violation of privacy laws, loss of customers, potential liability and competitive disadvantage.
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Additional Risks of Our Technical Services Business

The hazardous waste management business conducted by our Technical Services segment is subject to significant environmental liabilities.

We have accrued environmental liabilities valued as of December 31, 2016, at $186.3 million, substantially all of which we assumed in connection
with certain acquisitions. We calculate our environmental liabilities on a present value basis in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
which take into consideration both the amount of such liabilities and the timing when it is projected that we will be required to pay such liabilities. We
anticipate our environmental liabilities will be payable over many years and that cash flows generated from our operations will generally be sufficient to fund
the payment of such liabilities when required. However, events not now anticipated (such as future changes in environmental laws and regulations or their
enforcement) could require that such payments be made earlier or in greater amounts than now estimated, which could adversely affect our financial
condition and results of operations.

We may also assume additional environmental liabilities as part of future acquisitions. Although we will endeavor to accurately estimate and limit
environmental liabilities presented by the businesses or facilities to be acquired, some liabilities, including ones that may exist only because of the past
operations of an acquired business or facility, may prove to be more difficult or costly to address than we then estimate. It is also possible that government
officials responsible for enforcing environmental laws may believe an environmental liability is more significant than we then estimate, or that we will fail to
identify or fully appreciate an existing liability before we become legally responsible to address it.

If we become unable to obtain at reasonable cost the insurance, surety bonds, letters of credit and other forms of financial assurance required for our
facilities and operations, our business and results of operations would be adversely affected.

We are required to provide substantial amounts of financial assurance to governmental agencies for closure and post-closure care of our licensed
hazardous waste treatment facilities should those facilities cease operation, and we are also occasionally required to post surety, bid and performance bonds
in connection with certain projects. As of December 31, 2016, our total estimated closure and post-closure costs requiring financial assurance by regulators
were $442.3 million for our U.S. facilities and $41.7 million for our Canadian facilities. We have obtained all of the required financial assurance for our
facilities through a combination of surety bonds, funded trusts, letters of credit and insurance from a qualified insurance company. The financial assurance
related to closure and post-closure obligations of our U.S. facilities will renew in 2017. Our Canadian facilities utilize surety bonds, which renew at various
dates throughout 2017, as well as letters of credit.

Our ability to continue operating our facilities and conducting our other operations would be adversely affected if we became unable to obtain
sufficient insurance, surety bonds, letters of credit and other forms of financial assurance at reasonable cost to meet our regulatory and other business
requirements. The availability of insurance, surety bonds, letters of credit and other forms of financial assurance is affected by our insurers', sureties' and
lenders' assessment of our risk and by other factors outside of our control such as general conditions in the insurance and credit markets.

The hazardous waste management industry in which we participate is subject to significant economic and business risks.

The future operating results of our Technical Services segment may be affected by such factors as our ability to utilize our facilities and workforce
profitably in the face of intense price competition, maintain or increase market share in an industry which has in the past experienced significant downsizing
and consolidation, realize benefits from cost reduction programs, invest in new technologies for treatment of hazardous waste, generate incremental volumes
of waste to be handled through our facilities from existing and acquired sales offices and service centers, obtain sufficient volumes of waste at prices which
produce revenue sufficient to offset the operating costs of our facilities, minimize downtime and disruptions of operations, and develop our field services
business. In particular, economic downturns or recessionary conditions in North America, and increased outsourcing by North American manufacturers to
plants located in countries with lower wage costs and less stringent environmental regulations, have adversely affected and may in the future adversely affect
the demand for our services. Our Technical Services business is also cyclical to the extent that it is dependent upon a stream of waste from cyclical industries
such as chemical and petrochemical. If those cyclical industries slow significantly, the business that we receive from them would likely decrease.

The extensive environmental regulations to which we are subject may increase our costs and potential liabilities and limit our ability to expand our
facilities.

Our operations and those of others in the environmental services industry are subject to extensive federal, state, provincial and local environmental
requirements in both the United States and Canada, including those relating to emissions to air, discharged wastewater, storage, treatment, transport and
disposal of regulated materials, and cleanup of soil and
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groundwater contamination. For example, any failure to comply with governmental regulations governing the transport of hazardous materials could
negatively impact our ability to collect, process and ultimately dispose of hazardous wastes generated by our customers. While increasing environmental
regulation often presents new business opportunities for us, it often also results in increased operating and compliance costs. Efforts to conduct our
operations in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations, including environmental rules and regulations, require programs to promote compliance,
such as training employees and customers, purchasing health and safety equipment, and in some cases hiring outside consultants and lawyers. Even with
these programs, we and other companies in the environmental services industry are routinely faced with governmental enforcement proceedings, which can
result in fines or other sanctions and require expenditures for remedial work on waste management facilities and contaminated sites. Certain of these laws
impose strict and, under certain circumstances, joint and several liability on current and former owners and operators of facilities that release regulated
materials or that generate those materials and arrange for their disposal or treatment at contaminated sites. Such liabilities can relate to required cleanup of
releases of regulated materials and related natural resource damages.

From time to time, we have paid fines or penalties in governmental environmental enforcement proceedings, usually involving our waste treatment,
storage and disposal facilities. Although none of these fines or penalties that we have paid in the past has had a material adverse effect upon us, we might in
the future be required to make substantial expenditures as a result of governmental proceedings which would have a negative impact on our earnings.
Furthermore, regulators have the power to suspend or revoke permits or licenses needed for operation of our plants, equipment, and vehicles based on, among
other factors, our compliance record, and customers may decide not to use a particular disposal facility or do business with us because of concerns about our
compliance record. Suspension or revocation of permits or licenses would impact our operations and could have a material impact on our financial results.
Although we have never had any of our facilities' operating permits revoked, suspended or non-renewed involuntarily, it is possible that such an event could
occur in the future.

Some environmental laws and regulations impose liability and responsibility on present and former owners, operators or users of facilities and sites for
contamination at such facilities and sites without regard to causation or knowledge of contamination. In the past, practices have resulted in releases of
regulated materials at and from certain of our facilities, or the disposal of regulated materials at third-party sites, which may require investigation and
remediation, and potentially result in claims of personal injury, property damage and damages to natural resources. In addition, we occasionally evaluate
various alternatives with respect to our facilities, including possible dispositions or closures. Investigations undertaken in connection with these activities
may lead to discoveries of contamination that must be remediated, and closures of facilities might trigger compliance requirements that are not applicable to
operating facilities. We are currently conducting remedial activities at certain of our facilities and paying a portion of the remediation costs at certain sites
owned by third parties. While, based on available information, we believe these remedial activities will not result in a material effect upon our operations or
financial condition, these activities or the discovery of previously unknown conditions could result in material costs.

In addition to the costs of complying with environmental laws and regulations, we incur costs defending against environmental litigation brought by
governmental agencies and private parties. We are now, and may in the future be, a defendant in lawsuits brought by parties alleging environmental damage,
personal injury, and/or property damage, which may result in our payment of significant amounts.

Environmental and land use laws also impact our ability to expand our facilities. In addition, we are required to obtain governmental permits to operate
our facilities, including all of our landfills. Even if we comply with all applicable environmental laws, we might not be able to obtain requisite permits from
applicable governmental authorities to extend or modify such permits to fit our business needs.

If our assumptions relating to expansion of our landfills should prove inaccurate, our results of operations and cash flow could be adversely affected.

When we include expansion airspace in our calculation of available airspace, we adjust our landfill liabilities to the present value of projected costs for
cell closure and landfill closure and post-closure. It is possible that our estimates or assumptions could ultimately turn out to be significantly different from
actual results. In some cases we may be unsuccessful in obtaining an expansion permit or we may determine that an expansion permit that we previously
thought was probable has become unlikely. To the extent that such estimates, or the assumptions used to make those estimates, prove to be significantly
different than actual results, or our belief that we will receive an expansion permit changes adversely in a significant manner, our landfill assets, including the
assets incurred in the pursuit of the expansion, may be subject to impairment testing. Furthermore, lower prospective profitability may result due to increased
interest accretion and depreciation or asset impairments related to the removal of previously included expansion airspace. In addition, if our assumptions
concerning expansion airspace should prove inaccurate, certain of our cash expenditures for closure of landfills could be accelerated and adversely affect our
results of operations and cash flow.
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Additional Risks of Our Industrial and Field Services Business

A significant portion of our Industrial and Field Services business depends upon the demand for cleanup of major spills and other remedial projects
and regulatory developments over which we have no control.

Our operations can be affected by the commencement and completion of cleanup of major spills and other events, customers' decisions to undertake
remedial projects, seasonal fluctuations due to weather and budgetary cycles influencing the timing of customers' spending for remedial activities, the timing
of regulatory decisions relating to hazardous waste management projects, changes in regulations governing the management of hazardous waste, secular
changes in the waste processing industry towards waste minimization and the propensity for delays in the demand for remedial services, and changes in the
myriad of governmental regulations governing our diverse operations. We do not control such factors and, as a result, our revenue and income can vary from
quarter to quarter, and past financial performance for certain quarters may not be a reliable indicator of future performance for comparable quarters in
subsequent years.

Additional Risks of Our Safety-Kleen Business

Fluctuations in oil prices may negatively affect our Safety-Kleen business.

A significant portion of our Safety-Kleen business involves collecting used oil from certain of our customers, re-refining a portion of such used oil into
base and blended lubricating oils, and then selling both such re-refined oil and the excess recycled oil which we do not currently have the capacity to re-
refine, or ‘‘RFO,’’ to other customers. Changes in the reported spot market prices of oil affect the prices at which we can sell our re-refined oil and RFO. If
applicable rates increase or decrease, we typically will charge a higher or lower corresponding price for our re-refined oil and RFO. The price at which we sell
our re-refined oil and RFO is also affected by changes in certain indices measuring changes in the price of heavy fuel oil, with increases and decreases in the
indices typically translating into a higher or lower price for our RFO. The cost to collect used oil, including the amounts we pay to obtain a portion of our
used oil and therefore ability to collect necessary volumes and the fuel costs of our oil collection fleet, typically also increases or decreases when the relevant
indices increase or decrease. However, even though the prices we can charge for our re-refined oil and RFO and the costs to collect and re-refine used oil and
process RFO typically increase and decrease together, there is no assurance that when our costs to collect and re-refine used oil and process RFO increase we
will be able to increase the prices we charge for our re-refined oil and RFO to cover such increased costs, or that our costs to collect and re-refine used oil and
process RFO will decline when the prices we can charge for re-refined oil and RFO decline. These risks are exacerbated when there are rapid fluctuations in
these oil indices.

Environmental laws and regulations have adversely affected and may adversely affect Safety-Kleen's parts cleaning and other solvent related
services.

In connection with its parts cleaning and other solvent related services, Safety-Kleen has been subject to fines and certain orders requiring it to take
environmental remedial action. Safety-Kleen may also be subject to monetary fines, civil or criminal penalties, remediation, cleanup or stop orders,
injunctions, orders to cease or suspend certain practices or denial of permits required for the operation of its facilities. The outcome of any proceeding and
associated costs and expenses could have a material adverse impact on Safety-Kleen’s financial condition and results of operations.

Recent and potential changes in environmental laws and regulations may also adversely affect in the future Safety-Kleen's parts cleaning and other
solvent related services. Interpretation or enforcement of existing laws and regulations, or the adoption of new laws and regulations, may require Safety-Kleen
to modify or curtail its operations or replace or upgrade its facilities or equipment at substantial cost, which we may not be able to pass on to our customers,
and we may choose to indemnify our customers from any fines or penalties they may incur as a result of these new laws and regulations. On the other hand, in
some cases if new laws and regulations are less stringent, Safety-Kleen’s customers or competitors may be able to manage waste more effectively themselves,
which could decrease the need for Safety-Kleen’s services or increase competition, which could adversely affect Safety-Kleen’s results of operations.
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Safety-Kleen is subject to existing and potential product liability lawsuits.

Safety-Kleen has been named from time to time as a defendant in product liability lawsuits in various courts and jurisdictions throughout the United
States. As of December 31, 2016, Safety-Kleen was involved in approximately 60 such proceedings (including cases which have been settled but not formally
dismissed) wherein persons claim personal injury resulting from the use of its parts cleaning equipment or cleaning products. These proceedings typically
involve allegations that the solvents used in Safety-Kleen’s parts cleaning equipment contains contaminants or that Safety-Kleen’s recycling process does
not effectively remove the contaminants that become entrained in the solvents during their use. In addition, certain claimants assert that Safety-Kleen failed
to warn adequately the product user of potential risks, including a historic failure to warn that such solvents contain trace amounts of toxic or hazardous
substances such as benzene. Although Safety-Kleen maintains insurance that we believe will provide coverage for these claims (over amounts accrued for
self-insured retentions and deductibles in certain limited cases), this insurance may not provide coverage for potential awards of punitive damages against
Safety-Kleen. Although Safety-Kleen has vigorously defended and will continue to vigorously defend itself and the safety of its products against all of these
claims, these lawsuits are subject to many uncertainties and outcomes cannot be predicted with assurance. Safety-Kleen may also be named in similar
lawsuits, additional lawsuits in the future, including claims for which insurance coverage may not be available. If any one or more of these lawsuits were
decided unfavorably against Safety-Kleen and the plaintiffs were awarded punitive damages, or if insurance coverage were not available for any such claim,
our financial condition and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected. Additionally, if any one or more of these lawsuits were decided
unfavorably against Safety-Kleen, such outcome may encourage more lawsuits against us.

Safety-Kleen is dependent on third parties for manufacturing the majority of its equipment.

Safety-Kleen does not manufacture the majority of the equipment, including parts washers, that Safety-Kleen places at customer sites. Accordingly,
Safety-Kleen relies on a limited number of third-party suppliers for manufacturing this equipment. The supply of third-party equipment could be interrupted
or halted by a termination of Safety-Kleen’s relationships, a failure of quality control or other operational problems at such suppliers or a significant decline
in their financial condition. If Safety-Kleen were not able to retain these providers or obtain its requests from them, Safety-Kleen may not be able to obtain
alternate providers in a timely manner or on economically attractive terms and, as a result, Safety-Kleen may not be able to compete successfully for new
business, complete existing engagements profitably or retain its existing customers. Additionally, if Safety-Kleen’s third-party suppliers provide defective
equipment, Safety-Kleen may be subject to reputational damage or product liability claims which may negatively impact its reputation, financial condition
and results of operations. Further, Safety-Kleen generally does not have long-term contracts with its third-party suppliers, and as a result these suppliers may
increase the price of the equipment they provide to Safety-Kleen, which may hurt Safety-Kleen’s results of operations.

Additional Risks of Our Oil, Gas and Lodging Services Businesses

A large portion of our Oil and Gas Field Services business is dependent on the oil and gas industry in Western Canada, and declines in oil and gas
exploration in that region have adversely affected and could in the future adversely affect our business.

Our Oil and Gas Field Services business generates a significant portion of its total revenues from customers in the oil and gas industry operating in
Western Canada, although a majority of the services we provide to such customers relate to oil and gas refining which is less volatile than oil and gas
exploration. Accordingly, declines in the general level of oil and gas exploration in Western Canada have had and could potentially have significant adverse
effects on the revenues and profitability of our Oil and Gas Field Services business. Such declines have occurred and could potentially occur in the future if
reductions in the commodity prices of oil and gas result in reduced oil and gas exploration and refining. Such declines could also be triggered by
technological and regulatory changes, such as those affecting the availability and cost of alternative energy sources and other changes in industry and
worldwide economic and political conditions.

Many of our major customers in the oil and gas industry conduct a significant portion of their operations in the Alberta oil sands. The Alberta oil sands
contain large oil deposits, but extraction may involve significantly greater cost and environmental concerns than conventional drilling. While we believe our
major involvement in the oil sands region will provide significant future growth opportunities, such involvement also increases the risk that our business will
be adversely affected if future economic activity in the Alberta oil sands were to further decline. Major factors that could cause such a decline might include a
prolonged reduction in the commodity price of oil and future changes in environmental restrictions and regulations. The downturn in worldwide economic
conditions and in the commodity price of oil and gas which has occurred in recent years and continues to occur has caused certain of our customers to delay a
number of large projects in the planning and early development phases within the oil sands region. In addition, customers are revisiting their operating
budgets and challenging their suppliers to reduce costs and achieve better efficiencies in their work programs.
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All of our major Canadian lodges are located on land subject to leases; if we were unable to renew a lease, we could be materially and adversely
affected.
 

All of our major Canadian lodges are located on land subject to leases. Accordingly, while we own the accommodations assets and can move them to
other locations, if necessary, we only own a leasehold in those properties. If we were found to be in breach of a lease, we could lose the right to use the
property. In addition, unless we could extend the terms of these leases before their expiration, we would lose our right to operate our facilities located on
these properties upon expiration of the leases. In that event, we would be required to remove our accommodations assets and remediate the sites. We may not
be able to renew our leases upon expiration on similar terms, or at all, and if we were unable to renew leases on similar terms, it may have an adverse effect on
our business. In addition, if we were to lose the right to use a lodge due to non-renewal of a lease, we would be unable to derive income from such lodge,
which could materially and adversely affect us.
 

Due to the significant concentration of our Lodging Services business in the oil sands region of Alberta, Canada, adverse events in that region could
negatively impact our business.
 

Because of the concentration of our Lodging Services business in the oil sands region of Alberta, Canada, we have increased exposure to political,
economic, regulatory, environmental, labor, climate or natural disaster events or developments that could disproportionately impact our operations and
financial results. Such events include, for example, the large forest fires which during 2016 occurred in the Fort McMurray area of Alberta.

Our Lodging Services business depends significantly on several major customers, and the loss of one or more such customers or the inability of one or
more such customers to meet their obligations to us could adversely affect our results of operations.
 

Our Lodging Services business depends significantly on several major customers engaged primarily in oil and gas exploration. Declines in the general
level of oil and gas exploration in the oil sands region resulting in decreased demand for our lodging services have occurred in recent periods and could
occur in the future, and have had and could have in the future adverse effects on the revenues and profitability of our Lodging Services business. The loss of
any one or more of such large customers or a sustained decrease in demand by any of them have resulted and could result in a substantial loss of revenues and
have had and could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.  In addition, the concentration of our customers in oil and gas exploration may
impact our overall exposure to credit risk, either positively or negatively, because our customers may be similarly affected by changes in economic and
industry conditions. While we perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers, we do not generally require collateral in support of our trade
receivables. As a result, we are subject to risks of loss resulting from nonpayment or nonperformance by our customers.  
 

We may be adversely affected if customers reduce their accommodations outsourcing.
 

The business and growth strategy of our Lodging Services business depends in large part on the continuation of a current trend toward outsourcing such
services. Many oil and gas companies in our core markets own their own accommodations facilities, while others outsource all or part of their
accommodations requirements. Customers have largely built their accommodations in the past but will outsource if they perceive that outsourcing may
provide quality services at a lower overall cost or allow them to accelerate the timing of their projects. We cannot be certain that this trend will continue and
not be reversed or that customers that have outsourced accommodations will not decide to perform these functions themselves or only outsource
accommodations during the development or construction phases of their projects. In addition, labor unions representing customer employees and contractors
have, in the past, opposed outsourcing accommodations to the extent that the unions believe that third-party accommodations negatively impact union
membership and recruiting. The reversal or reduction in customer outsourcing of accommodations could negatively impact our financial results and growth
prospects.  
 

Increased operating costs and obstacles to cost recovery due to the pricing and cancellation terms of our lodging services contracts may constrain
our ability to make a profit.
 

The profitability of our Lodging Services business can be adversely affected by cost increases for food, wages and other labor related expenses,
insurance, fuel and utilities, especially to the extent we are unable to recover such increased costs through increases in the prices for our services due to
general economic conditions, competitive conditions or contractual provisions in our customer contracts. Oil and natural gas prices have fluctuated
significantly in the last several years, and substantial increases in the cost of fuel and utilities have historically resulted in cost increases for our lodges. From
time to time we have also experienced increases in our food costs. While we believe a portion of these increases were attributable to fuel prices, we believe
the increases also resulted from rising global food demand. In addition, food prices can fluctuate as a result of temporary changes in supply, including as a
result of severe weather such as droughts, heavy rains and late freezes. While
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our long-term contracts often provide for annual escalation in our room rates for food, labor and utility inflation, we may be unable to fully recover costs and
such increases in costs would negatively impact our profitability on contracts that do not contain inflation protections.

Risks Relating to Our Level of Debt, Letters of Credit and Senior Unsecured Notes

Our substantial levels of outstanding debt and letters of credit could adversely affect our financial condition and ability to fulfill our obligations.

As of December 31, 2016, we had outstanding $1.6 billion of senior unsecured notes and $132.6 million of letters of credit. Our substantial levels of
outstanding debt and letters of credit may:

• adversely impact our ability to obtain additional financing in the future for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions or other general
corporate purposes or to repurchase the notes from holders upon any change of control;

• require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow to payment of interest on our debt and fees on our letters of credit, which reduces the
availability of our cash flow to fund working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions and other general corporate purposes;

• subject us to the risk of increased sensitivity to interest rate increases based upon variable interest rates, including borrowings (if any) under our
revolving credit facility;

• increase the possibility of an event of default under the financial and operating covenants contained in our debt instruments; and

• limit our ability to adjust to rapidly changing market conditions, reduce our ability to withstand competitive pressures and make us more vulnerable
to a downturn in general economic conditions of our business than our competitors with less debt.

Our ability to make scheduled payments of principal or interest with respect to our debt, including our outstanding notes, any revolving loans and our
capital leases, and to pay fee obligations with respect to our letters of credit, will depend on our ability to generate cash and our future financial results. If we
were unable to generate sufficient cash flow from operations in the future to service our debt and letter of credit fee obligations, we might be required to
refinance all or a portion of our existing debt and letter of credit facilities or to obtain new or additional such facilities. However, we might not be able to
obtain any such new or additional facilities on favorable terms or at all.

Despite our substantial levels of outstanding debt and letters of credit, we could incur substantially more debt and letter of credit obligations in the
future.

Although our revolving credit agreement and the indentures governing our outstanding notes contain restrictions on the incurrence of additional debt
(including, for this purpose, reimbursement obligations under outstanding letters of credit), these restrictions are subject to a number of qualifications and
exceptions and the additional debt which we might incur in the future in compliance with these restrictions could be substantial. In particular, we had
available at December 31, 2016, up to an additional approximately $195.2 million for purposes of additional borrowings and letters of credit under our
revolving credit facility. Our revolving credit agreement and the indentures governing our outstanding notes also allow us to borrow significant amounts of
money from other sources. These restrictions also do not prevent us from incurring obligations (such as operating leases) that do not constitute “debt” or
“indebtedness” as defined in the relevant agreements. To the extent we incur in the future additional debt and letter of credit or other obligations, the related
risks would increase.

The covenants in our debt agreements restrict our ability to operate our business and might lead to a default under our debt agreements.

Our revolving credit agreement and the indentures governing our outstanding notes limit, among other things, our ability and the ability of our
restricted subsidiaries to:

• incur or guarantee additional indebtedness (including, for this purpose, reimbursement obligations under letters of credit) or issue preferred stock;
• pay dividends or make other distributions to our stockholders;
• purchase or redeem capital stock or subordinated indebtedness;
• make investments;
• create liens;
• incur restrictions on the ability of our restricted subsidiaries to pay dividends or make other payments to us;
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• sell assets, including capital stock of our subsidiaries;
• consolidate or merge with or into other companies or transfer all or substantially all of our assets; and
• engage in transactions with affiliates.

As a result of these covenants, we may not be able to respond to changes in business and economic conditions and to obtain additional financing, if
needed, and we may be prevented from engaging in transactions that might otherwise be beneficial to us. Our revolving credit facility requires, and our future
credit facilities may require, us to maintain certain financial ratios and satisfy certain other financial condition tests. Our ability to meet these financial ratios
and tests can be affected by events beyond our control, and we may not be able to meet those tests. The breach of any of these covenants could result in a
default under our revolving credit facility or future credit facilities. Upon the occurrence of an event of default, the lenders could elect to declare all amounts
outstanding under such credit facilities, including accrued interest or other obligations, to be immediately due and payable. If amounts outstanding under
such credit facilities were accelerated, our assets might not be sufficient to repay in full that indebtedness and our other indebtedness.

Our revolving credit agreement and the indentures governing our outstanding notes also contain cross-default and cross-acceleration provisions. Under
these provisions, a default or acceleration under one instrument governing our debt may constitute a default under our other debt instruments that contain
cross-default and cross-acceleration provisions, which could result in the related debt and the debt issued under such other instruments becoming
immediately due and payable. In such event, we would need to raise funds from alternative sources, which funds might not be available to us on favorable
terms, on a timely basis or at all. Alternatively, such a default could require us to sell assets and otherwise curtail operations to pay our creditors. The
proceeds of such a sale of assets, or curtailment of operations, might not enable us to pay all of our liabilities.

Other Risks Relating to Our Common Stock

The Massachusetts Business Corporation Act and our By-Laws contain certain anti-takeover provisions.

Sections 8.06 and 7.02 of the Massachusetts Business Corporation Act provide that Massachusetts corporations which are publicly-held must have a
staggered board of directors and that written demand by holders of at least 40% of the outstanding shares of each relevant voting group of stockholders is
required for stockholders to call a special meeting unless such corporations take certain actions to affirmatively "opt-out" of such requirements. In accordance
with these provisions, our By-Laws provide for a staggered board of directors which consists of three classes of directors of which one class is elected each
year for a three-year term, and require that written application by holders of at least 25% (which is less than the 40% which would otherwise be applicable
without such a specific provision in our By-Laws) of our outstanding shares of common stock is required for stockholders to call a special meeting. In
addition, our By-Laws prohibit the removal by the stockholders of a director except for cause. These provisions could inhibit a takeover of our Company by
restricting stockholders' action to replace the existing directors or approve other actions which a party seeking to acquire us might propose. A takeover
transaction would frequently afford stockholders an opportunity to sell their shares at a premium over then market prices.

ITEM 1B.    UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable.

ITEM 2.    PROPERTIES

Our principal executive offices are in Norwell, Massachusetts, where we lease approximately 151,000 square feet under arrangements expiring in 2022.
We also have regional administrative offices in Texas, South Carolina, Seattle and Alberta, Canada. Our properties are sufficient and suitable for our current
needs.

We have a network of more than 475 service locations across 48 states, eight Canadian provinces, Puerto Rico and Mexico. Those service locations
include service centers, satellite locations, branches, active hazardous waste management properties, lodging facilities and oil processing facilities. The
service centers and branches are the principal sales and service centers from which we provide our environmental, energy and industrial services. The active
hazardous waste management properties include incinerator facilities, commercial and non-commercial landfills, wastewater treatment facilities, treatment,
storage and disposal facilities ("TSDFs"), solvent recovery management and recycling facilities, locations specializing in polychlorinated biphenyls ("PCBs")
management, oil accumulation centers, oil terminals and oil re-refineries. Some of our properties offer multiple capabilities. The following sets forth certain
information as of December 31, 2016 regarding our properties.

Service Centers, Satellite Locations and Branches

We have approximately 370 service centers, satellite locations and branches throughout the United States and Canada
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which serve as principal sales and service centers from which we provide parts cleaning services, containerized waste services, oil collection services and
other environmental services.

Active Hazardous Waste Management Properties

Incinerator Facilities.   We own five operating incinerator facilities that have a total of eight incinerators with 491,721 tons of total practical capacity
and an average utilization rate for 2016 of 88.8%. Our practical capacity is not based on a theoretical 24-hour, seven-day operation, but rather is determined
as the production level at which our incinerators can operate with an acceptable degree of efficiency, taking into consideration factors such as longer term
customer demand, permanent staffing levels, operating shifts, holidays, scheduled maintenance and mix of product. Capacity utilization is calculated by
dividing actual production pounds by practical capacity at each incinerator.

 # of Incinerators  Practical Capacity (Tons)  

Utilization Rate
Year Ended

December 31, 2016

Arkansas 2  85,072  92.1%
Nebraska 1  58,808  77.0%
Utah 1  66,815  75.8%
Texas 3  165,500  92.5%
Ontario, Canada 1  115,526  94.5%
 8  491,721  88.8%

Our incinerators offer a wide range of technological capabilities to customers through this network. We provide incineration in the United States
through one fluidized bed thermal oxidation unit and three solids and liquids-capable incinerator facilities and we operate in Canada one active hazardous
waste liquid injection incinerator. Our state-of-the-art hazardous waste incinerator at our El Dorado, Arkansas site, which officially came online in early 2017,
is expected to add approximately 70,000 tons of additional capacity to our Arkansas facility.

Commercial and Non-Commercial Landfills.  In the United States and Canada, we operate nine commercial landfills with approximately 31.8 million
cubic yards of remaining highly probable airspace. Seven of our commercial landfills are designed and permitted for the disposal of hazardous wastes and two
landfills are operated for nonhazardous industrial waste disposal and, to a lesser extent, municipal solid waste. In addition to our commercial landfills, we
also own and operate two non-commercial landfills that only accept waste from our on-site incinerators. See "Landfill Accounting" within Note 2,
"Significant Accounting Policies," to our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this report for additional information on our commercial and
non-commercial landfills.

Wastewater Treatment Facilities. We operate a total of eight facilities, of which six are owned and two are leased, that offer a range of wastewater
treatment technologies and customer services. Wastewater treatment consists primarily of three types of services: hazardous wastewater treatment, sludge de-
watering or drying, and non-hazardous wastewater treatment.

Treatment, Storage and Disposal Facilities. We operate 22 TSDFs, of which 20 are owned and two are leased, in the United States and Canada. Our
TSDFs facilitate the movement of materials among our network of service centers and treatment and disposal facilities. Transportation may be accomplished
by truck, rail, barge or a combination of modes, with our own assets or in conjunction with third-party transporters. Specially designed containment systems,
vehicles and other equipment permitted for hazardous and industrial waste transport, together with drivers trained in transportation and waste handling
procedures, provide for the movement of customer waste streams.

Solvent Recovery Management and Recycling Operations. We own two facilities specializing in solvent recovery management.

PCB Management Facilities and Oil Storage or Recycling Capabilities. We operate six facilities, of which four are owned and two are leased,
specializing in PCB management or providing oil recycling capabilities.

Lodging Facilities

Lodge Operations. We operate six fixed lodges, all of which are owned and located on sites in Alberta, Canada that are leased under long-term
operating agreements.
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Camps. We operate various camp facilities that can grow and shrink in size and location. Generally, we have ongoing operations at 1-2 larger facilities
that we expect to operate on a multi-year basis. Additionally, we operate five office complexes, six mini-camps, and approximately 50 single and double
occupancy drill camps. All of our camp facilities are owned and located on various sites throughout Western Canada. Sites for the larger facilities are
generally leased, whereas sites for our smaller facilities are generally provided by our customers.

Oil Processing, Blending and Packaging Facilities

Oil Accumulation Centers. We operate a total of nine accumulation centers, of which eight are owned and one is leased, used for accumulating waste oil
from our branches.

Oil Terminals. We operate a total of 42 oil terminals, of which 29 are owned and 13 are leased, which collect or process used oil prior to delivery to re-
refineries or distribution as RFO.

Oil Recycling and Re-refining Facilities. With our recent acquisitions we now own six oil re-refineries, five in the United States and one in Canada.
With more than 200 million gallons of used oil processed annually, we were able to return in 2016 176.3 million gallons of new re-refined oil, lubricants and
byproducts back into the marketplace.

Oil Packaging and Blending Facilities. We operate a total of four oil packaging and blending facilities, of which two are owned and two are leased and
used for blending and packaging oil from our branches.

ITEM 3.    LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

See Note 17, "Commitments and Contingencies," to our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this report for a description of legal
proceedings.

ITEM 4.    MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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PART II

ITEM 5.    MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

Common Stock

Our common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange (the "NYSE") under the symbol CLH. The following table sets forth the high and low sales
prices of our common stock for the indicated periods as reported by the NYSE.

 2016  2015

 High  Low  High  Low

First Quarter $ 49.97  $ 37.09  $ 58.44  $ 44.70
Second Quarter $ 54.54  $ 46.40  $ 59.29  $ 50.65
Third Quarter $ 53.79  $ 44.91  $ 54.31  $ 43.00
Fourth Quarter $ 58.23  $ 43.03  $ 48.05  $ 39.89

On February 10, 2017, the closing price of our common stock on the NYSE was $54.87 and there were 294 stockholders of record of our common stock,
excluding stockholders whose shares were held in nominee, or "street," name. We estimate that approximately 22,400 additional stockholders beneficially
held shares in street name on that date.

We have never declared nor paid any cash dividends on our common stock, and we do not intend to pay any dividends on our common stock in the
foreseeable future. We intend to retain our future earnings, if any, for use in the operation and expansion of our business and payment of our outstanding
debt, and for our stock repurchase program. In addition, our current credit agreement and indentures limit the amount we could pay as cash dividends on, or
for repurchase of, our common stock. See "Liquidity and Capital Resources" under Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations" for additional information.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Period
Total Number of Shares

Purchased (1)  

Average Price Paid Per
Share

 (2)  

Total Number of Shares
Purchased as Part of
Publicly Announced
Plans or Programs  

Approximate Dollar
Value of Shares that

May Yet Be Purchased
Under the Plans or

Programs (3)

October 1, 2016 through October 31, 2016 1,672  $ 47.75  —  $ 105,963,952
November 1, 2016 through November 30, 2016 111,716  $ 49.99  111,300  $ 100,398,445
December 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016 8,860  $ 55.85  5,000  $ 100,123,458
Total 122,248  $ 50.38  116,300  $ 100,123,458
______________________

(1) Includes 5,948 shares withheld by us from employees to satisfy employee tax obligations upon vesting of restricted shares granted under our long-
term equity incentive programs.

(2) The average price paid per share of common stock repurchased under our stock repurchase program includes commissions paid to the brokers.
(3) On March 13, 2015, our board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to $300 million of our common stock. We have funded and intend to fund

the repurchases through available cash resources. The stock repurchase program authorizes us to purchase our common stock on the open market
from time to time in a manner that complies with applicable U.S. securities laws. The number of shares purchased and the timing of the purchases has
depended and will depend on a number of factors, including share price, cash required for business plans, trading volume and other conditions. We
have no obligation to repurchase stock under this program and may suspend or terminate the repurchase program at any time.
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COMPARISON OF 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

AMONG CLEAN HARBORS, INC.,

NYSE COMPOSITE INDEX, AND CUSTOM PEER GROUP

Performance Graph

The following graph compares the five-year return from investing $100 in each of our common stock, the NYSE Composite Index, and an index of
environmental services companies (custom peer group) compiled by CoreData. The environmental services group used by CoreData includes all companies
whose listed line-of-business is SIC Code 4953 (refuse systems), and assumes reinvestment of dividends on the ex-dividend date. An index compares relative
performance since a particular starting date. In this instance, the starting date was December 30, 2011, when our common stock closed at $63.73 per share.

ASSUMES $100 INVESTED ON JAN. 01, 2012

ASSUMES DIVIDENDS REINVESTED

Securities Authorized For Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

See Item 12, "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters," for a description of the securities
which are authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans.
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ITEM 6.    SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following summary of consolidated financial information has been derived from the audited consolidated financial statements included in Item 8,
"Financial Statements and Supplementary Data," of this report and in the annual reports we previously filed with the SEC. This information should be
reviewed in conjunction with Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," and the financial
statements and notes thereto included in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data," of this report.

 For the Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands except per share amounts) 2016  2015  2014  2013  2012

Income Statement Data:          
Total revenues $ 2,755,226  $ 3,275,137  $ 3,401,636  $ 3,509,656  $ 2,187,908
Net (loss) income (1) $ (39,873)  $ 44,102  $ (28,328)  $ 95,566  $ 129,674
(Loss) earnings per share: (1)(2)          
     Basic $ (0.69)  $ 0.76  $ (0.47)  $ 1.58  $ 2.41
     Diluted $ (0.69)  $ 0.76  $ (0.47)  $ 1.57  $ 2.40
Other Financial Data:          
Adjusted EBITDA (3) $ 400,354  $ 504,167  $ 521,919  $ 510,105  $ 373,767

 At December 31,

(in thousands) 2016  2015  2014  2013  2012

Balance Sheet Data:          
Total assets $ 3,681,920  $ 3,431,428  $ 3,689,423  $ 3,936,430  $ 3,819,338
Long-term obligations (including current portion) 1,633,272  1,382,543  1,380,681  1,385,516  1,389,223
Stockholders' equity (2) 1,084,241  1,096,282  1,262,871  1,475,639  1,432,072
___________________________________________

(1) The 2016 results include a $34.0 million goodwill impairment charge in our Lodging Services reporting unit and a $16.9 million pre-tax gain on the
sale of a non-core line of business within our Industrial and Field Services segment. The 2015 results include a $32.0 million goodwill impairment
charge in our Oil and Gas Field Services reporting units, and the 2014 results include a $123.4 million goodwill impairment charge in our Kleen
Performance Products reporting unit. In 2016, we did not record any income tax benefit as a result of the goodwill impairment charge. In 2015 and
2014, we recorded income tax benefits of $2.0 million and $2.7 million, respectively, as a result of the goodwill impairment charges. See Note 4,
"Disposition of Business" and Note 7, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets," to our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this
report for additional information regarding these 2016 and 2015 items. The 2012 results include a $26.4 million loss on early extinguishment of
debt in connection with a redemption and repurchase of our $520.0 million previously outstanding senior secured notes and a benefit for income
taxes of $1.9 million primarily due to a decrease in unrecognized tax benefits of $52.4 million (net of interest and penalties of $29.3 million)
resulting from expiring statute of limitation periods related to a historical Canadian debt restructuring transaction.

(2) We issued 6.9 million shares of our common stock in December 2012 upon the closing of a public offering for aggregate net proceeds of $369.3
million.

(3) The following is a reconciliation of net (loss) income to Adjusted EBITDA for the following periods (in thousands):

 For the Year Ended December 31,

 2016  2015  2014  2013  2012

Net (loss) income $ (39,873)  $ 44,102  $ (28,328)  $ 95,566  $ 129,674
Accretion of environmental liabilities 10,177  10,402  10,612  11,541  9,917
Depreciation and amortization 287,002  274,194  276,083  264,449  161,646
Goodwill impairment charges 34,013  31,992  123,414  —  —
Other (income) expense, net (6,195)  1,380  (4,380)  (1,705)  802
Loss on early extinguishment of debt —  —  —  —  26,385
Gain on sale of business (16,884)  —  —  —  —
Interest expense, net 83,525  76,553  77,668  78,376  47,287
Pre-tax, non-cash acquisition accounting inventory adjustments —  —  —  13,559  —
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 48,589  65,544  66,850  48,319  (1,944)

Adjusted EBITDA $ 400,354  $ 504,167  $ 521,919  $ 510,105  $ 373,767
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ITEM 7.    MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

We are North America’s leading provider of environmental, energy and industrial services. We believe we operate, in the aggregate, the largest number
of hazardous waste incinerators, landfills, treatment facilities and TSDFs in North America. We serve a diverse customer base, including a majority of the
Fortune 500, across the chemical, energy, manufacturing and additional markets, as well as numerous government agencies. These customers rely on us to
deliver a broad range of services including but not limited to end-to-end hazardous waste management, emergency spill response, industrial cleaning and
maintenance, and recycling services. We are also the largest re-refiner and recycler of used oil in the world and the largest provider of parts cleaning and
related environmental services to commercial, industrial and automotive customers in North America.

During the fourth quarter of 2016, we changed the manner in which we manage our business, make operating decisions and assess our performance.
These changes included combining the Safety-Kleen Environmental Services business and Kleen Performance Products business as a single operating
segment called "Safety-Kleen," moving the Production Services business, previously included in our Oil and Gas Field Services operating segment, into our
Industrial Services operating segment, and reassigning certain departments among our operating segments in line with management reporting changes. In
addition, for purposes of segment disclosure within Note 18, "Segment Reporting," to our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this report,
we combined the Oil and Gas Field Services and Lodging Services operating segments under the heading "Oil, Gas and Lodging Services," as those
individual operating segments do not meet the quantitative thresholds for separate disclosure.

We believe that this new organizational structure aligns our businesses for growth and efficiency. The amounts presented for all periods herein have
been recast to reflect the impact of such changes. Our operations are now managed in six operating segments based primarily upon the nature of the various
operations and services provided: Technical Services, Industrial Services, Field Services, Safety-Kleen, Oil and Gas Field Services, and Lodging Services.

Performance of our segments is evaluated on several factors of which the primary financial measure is Adjusted EBITDA as described more fully below.
The following is a discussion of how management evaluates its segments in regards to other factors including key performance indicators that management
uses to assess the segments’ results, as well as certain macroeconomic trends and influences that impact each reportable segment:

• Technical Services - Technical Services segment results are predicated upon the demand by our customers for waste services directly
attributable to waste volumes generated by them and project work contracted by our Technical Services segment and/or other segments for
which waste handling and/or disposal is required. In managing the business and evaluating performance, management tracks the volumes of
waste handled and disposed of through our owned incinerators and landfills as well as the utilization of such incinerators. Levels of activity and
ultimate performance associated with this segment can be impacted by inherent seasonality in the business and weather conditions, market
conditions and overall levels of industrial activity, efficiency of our operations, competition and market pricing of our services and the
management of our related operating costs.

• Industrial and Field Services - Industrial and Field Services segment results are impacted by the demand for planned and unplanned industrial
related cleaning and maintenance services at customer sites and the requirement for environmental cleanup services on a scheduled or
emergency basis, including response to national events such as major oil spills, natural disasters or other events where immediate and
specialized services are pertinent. Management considers the number of plant sites where services are contracted and expected site turnaround
schedules to be indicators of the business’ performance along with the existence of local or national events.

• Safety-Kleen - Safety-Kleen segment results are significantly impacted by the overall market pricing and product mix associated with base and
blended oil products and, more specifically, the market prices of Group II base oils, which historically have correlated with overall crude oil
prices. Costs incurred in connection with the collection of used oils, which are raw materials associated with the segment’s products, can also be
volatile. Starting in 2015, we began charging for collection of used oils, which has allowed us to more effectively manage the profit spreads
inherent in the business. The implementation of our OilPlusTM closed loop initiative resulting in the sale of our renewable oil products directly
to our end customers will also impact future operating results. In addition, this segment's results are also impacted by the number of parts
washers serviced by the business and the ability to attract small quantity waste producers as customers and integrate them into the Clean
Harbors waste network.
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• Oil, Gas and Lodging Services - Oil, Gas and Lodging Services segment results are dependent upon levels of oil and gas related exploration,
drilling and refining activity in North America. The levels of such exploration, drilling and refining activity are largely dependent upon the
number of oil rigs in operation, which also drives the demand and related pricing for lodging and camp accommodations. In addition, global
and North American Crude oil prices on which such activity levels are strongly predicated have significantly declined since a high of $106.57
in 2013 to a low of $30.32 in 2016. This oil price volatility and future price uncertainty has resulted in lower customer spending and activity
levels which have negatively impacted the business’ results. To mitigate the decrease in demand experienced in the manufacturing operation of
our lodging business, we have targeted more non-traditional markets such as schools, hospitals, and other municipal structures to offer our
modular unit accommodations and related services. The majority of the segment's operations are in Canada, and therefore the impact of US to
Canadian dollar foreign currency translation also significantly impacts the segment's results.

Highlights

Total revenues for 2016 were $2.76 billion, compared with $3.28 billion in 2015. Decreases in total revenues were primarily related to lower levels of
emergency response projects, continued weakness in crude oil markets which significantly and negatively impacted our business activity in Western Canada,
reductions in commodity pricing, weakening of the Canadian dollar and an overall slowdown in industrial production. Direct revenues recorded by Safety-
Kleen increased in 2016 as compared to 2015 primarily due to our recent acquisitions and increased revenues from used oil collection resulting from the
successful management of our charge-for-oil program. The weakening Canadian dollar and related effects of foreign currency translation on our Canadian
business operations also negatively impacted direct revenues by approximately $20.0 million in 2016 as compared to 2015. Changes in segment revenues
are more fully described in our Segment Performance section below.

We reported income from operations in 2016 of $69.2 million, compared with $187.6 million in 2015. We reported a net loss in 2016 of $39.9 million,
compared to net income of $44.1 million in 2015. Net loss in 2016 included a $34.0 million goodwill impairment charge recorded on our Lodging Services
reporting unit and a $16.9 million pre-tax gain on the sale of a non-core line of business within our Industrial and Field Services segment. Net income in
2015 included a $32.0 million goodwill impairment charge recorded on our Oil and Gas Field Services reporting unit. Adjusted EBITDA, which is the
primary financial measure by which our segments are evaluated, decreased to $400.4 million for 2016 from $504.2 million for 2015. The decreased levels of
Adjusted EBITDA in 2016 was attributable to lower revenue amounts as described above, partially offset by significant cost reduction initiatives we
successfully undertook in fiscal year 2016. Additional information, including a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net (loss) income, appears below under
the heading "Adjusted EBITDA."
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Segment Performance

The primary financial measure by which we evaluate the performance of our segments is Adjusted EBITDA. The following table sets forth certain
financial information associated with our results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014.

 Summary of Operations (in thousands)
 Year Ended December 31,  2016 over 2015  2015 over 2014

 2016  2015  2014  $ Change  % Change  $ Change  % Change

Direct Revenues(1):              
Technical Services $ 1,056,735  $ 1,139,080  $ 1,205,383  $ (82,345)  (7.2)%  $ (66,303)  (5.5)%
Industrial and Field Services 582,215  989,953  749,096  (407,738)  (41.2)  240,857  32.2
Safety-Kleen 996,083  941,689  1,079,462  54,394  5.8  (137,773)  (12.8)
Oil, Gas and Lodging Services 119,883  207,139  373,275  (87,256)  (42.1)  (166,136)  (44.5)
Corporate Items 310  (2,724)  (5,580)  3,034  111.4  2,856  51.2

Total 2,755,226  3,275,137  3,401,636  (519,911)  (15.9)  (126,499)  (3.7)
Cost of Revenues(2):              

Technical Services 710,338  769,625  791,824  (59,287)  (7.7)  (22,199)  (2.8)
Industrial and Field Services 468,603  762,992  592,535  (294,389)  (38.6)  170,457  28.8
Safety-Kleen 645,275  649,317  788,717  (4,042)  (0.6)  (139,400)  (17.7)
Oil, Gas and Lodging Services 108,688  174,272  259,596  (65,584)  (37.6)  (85,324)  (32.9)
Corporate Items (47)  600  9,124  (647)  (107.8)  (8,524)  (93.4)

Total 1,932,857  2,356,806  2,441,796  (423,949)  (18.0)  (84,990)  (3.5)
Selling, General and Administrative
Expenses:              

Technical Services 75,221  77,718  85,429  (2,497)  (3.2)  (7,711)  (9.0)
Industrial and Field Services 62,421  65,514  58,295  (3,093)  (4.7)  7,219  12.4
Safety-Kleen 131,262  120,110  125,198  11,152  9.3  (5,088)  (4.1)
Oil, Gas and Lodging Services 14,487  21,163  22,802  (6,676)  (31.5)  (1,639)  (7.2)
Corporate Items 138,624  129,659  146,197  8,965  6.9  (16,538)  (11.3)

Total 422,015  414,164  437,921  7,851  1.9  (23,757)  (5.4)
Adjusted EBITDA              

Technical Services 271,176  291,737  328,130  (20,561)  (7.0)  (36,393)  (11.1)
Industrial and Field Services 51,191  161,447  98,266  (110,256)  (68.3)  63,181  64.3
Safety-Kleen 219,546  172,262  165,547  47,284  27.4  6,715  4.1
Oil, Gas and Lodging Services (3,292)  11,704  90,877  (14,996)  (128.1)  (79,173)  (87.1)
Corporate Items (138,267)  (132,983)  (160,901)  (5,284)  (4.0)  27,918  17.4

Total $ 400,354  $ 504,167  $ 521,919  $ (103,813)  (20.6)%  $ (17,752)  (3.4)%
___________________________________

(1) Direct revenue is revenue allocated to the segment performing the provided service.
(2) Cost of revenue is shown exclusive of items presented separately on the statements of operations, which consist of (i) accretion of environmental

liabilities and (ii) depreciation and amortization.
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Direct Revenues

There are many factors which have impacted and continue to impact our revenues. These factors include, but are not limited to: overall industrial
activity, general conditions of the energy related industries, competitive industry pricing, the effects of fuel prices on our fuel recovery fees, acquisitions, the
level of emergency response projects and foreign currency translation.

Technical Services

 For the years ended December 31,  2016 over 2015  2015 over 2014

 2016  2015  2014  
$

Change  
%

Change  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change
Direct revenues $ 1,056,735  $ 1,139,080  $ 1,205,383  $ (82,345)  (7.2)%  $ (66,303)  (5.5)%

Technical Services direct revenues for the year ended December 31, 2016 decreased $82.3 million from the comparable period in 2015 primarily due to
decreased revenues associated with our waste disposal services whereby waste is disposed of through our incinerator and landfill facilities network. This
direct revenue decrease was impacted by lower waste volumes in our landfills, which decreased 34% primarily due to lower industrial and energy related
waste streams, as well as project deferrals and lower customer spending related to waste projects and remediation activities. The utilization rate at our
incinerators was 88.8% for the year ended December 31, 2016, compared with 90.9% in the comparable period of 2015. The decrease in utilization rate was
primarily due to waste streams as discussed above, and a greater number of turnaround days at our incinerator facilities in 2016.

Technical Services direct revenues for the year ended December 31, 2015 decreased $66.3 million from the comparable period in 2014 primarily due to
decreased revenues associated with our waste disposal services whereby waste is disposed of through our incinerator and landfill facilities network. This
direct revenue decrease was impacted by lower waste volumes disposed of in our landfills, which decreased 28.6% primarily due to lower oil and gas
production waste streams and project delays. Pricing attributable to our recycled products and fuel recovery revenues was also negatively impacted by
overall lower market rates. The utilization rate at our incinerators was 90.9% for year ended December 31, 2015, compared with 91.2% in the comparable
period of 2014.

Industrial and Field Services

 For the years ended December 31,  2016 over 2015  2015 over 2014

 2016  2015  2014  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change
Direct revenues $ 582,215  $ 989,953  $ 749,096  $ (407,738)  (41.2)%  $ 240,857  32.2%

Industrial and Field Services direct revenues for the year ended December 31, 2016 decreased $407.7 million from the comparable period in 2015. The
decrease was primarily due to the large emergency response projects associated with our Field Services business in 2015 which did not reoccur in 2016.
Those large emergency response projects accounted for revenues of $313.8 million in 2015. In addition, for the year ended December 31, 2016, lower activity
levels and pricing pressures across North America reduced customer spending on maintenance and turnaround projects, resulting in a decrease in revenues of
$98.1 million from the comparable period in 2015. Inclusive in the year-over-year changes within this segment was the negative impact of foreign currency
translation on our Canadian operations of approximately $7.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 from the comparable period in 2015.

Industrial and Field Services direct revenues for the year ended December 31, 2015 increased $240.9 million from the comparable period in 2014. The
increase was primarily due to revenues associated with our Field Services business, which included large emergency response service projects in 2015 which
did not occur in 2014. Those large emergency response projects accounted for revenues of $313.8 million in 2015. The significant level of emergency
response projects during 2015 included services primarily in response to outbreaks of avian flu and oil spill related incidents. This increase was offset by
$72.9 million which was primarily related to lower activity levels and pricing pressures across North America resulting in reduced customer spending on
maintenance and turnaround projects in the year ended December 31, 2015 from the comparable period in 2014. Inclusive in the year-over-year changes
within this segment was also the negative impact of foreign currency translation on our Canadian operations of approximately $31.8 million as a result of the
weakening Canadian dollar in the year ended December 31, 2015 from the comparable period in 2014.
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Safety-Kleen

 For the years ended December 31,  2016 over 2015  2015 over 2014

 2016  2015  2014  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change
Direct revenues $ 996,083  $ 941,689  $ 1,079,462  $ 54,394  5.8%  $ (137,773)  (12.8)%

Safety-Kleen direct revenues for the year ended December 31, 2016 increased $54.4 million from the comparable period in 2015. This increase was
derived from acquisitions which accounted for $72.9 million of incremental revenue and a continued shift from a pay-for-oil to a charge-for-oil program
which began in 2015 and accounted for $56.6 million of incremental revenue in 2016. These items were partially offset by decreases in base and blended oil
pricing, which accounted for a $73.0 million decrease to direct revenues in the year ended December 31, 2016 from the comparable period in 2015. Inclusive
in the year-over-year changes within the Safety-Kleen segment was also the negative impact of foreign currency translation on our Canadian operations of
approximately $4.6 million in the year ended December 31, 2016 from the comparable period in 2015.

Safety-Kleen direct revenues for the year ended December 31, 2015 decreased $137.8 million from the comparable period in 2014 primarily due to a
decrease in base and blended pricing of $134.1 million. Inclusive in the year-over-year changes within this segment was also the negative impact of foreign
currency translation on our Canadian operations of approximately $19.6 million as a result of the weakening Canadian dollar in the year ended December 31,
2015 from the comparable period in 2014.

Oil, Gas and Lodging Services

 For the years ended December 31,  2016 over 2015  2015 over 2014

 2016  2015  2014  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change
Direct revenues $ 119,883  $ 207,139  $ 373,275  $ (87,256)  (42.1)%  $ (166,136)  (44.5)%

Oil, Gas and Lodging Services direct revenues for the year ended December 31, 2016 decreased $87.3 million from the comparable period in 2015
primarily due to lower pricing, business activity and rig counts serviced consistent with overall market conditions. Lower exploration budgets of our
customers, project cancellations, and reduced customer spending also negatively impacted results in 2016. Rig count serviced decreased approximately 40%
for the year ended December 31, 2016 from the comparable period in 2015. Inclusive in the year-over-year changes within this segment was also the negative
impact of foreign currency translation on our Canadian operations of approximately $3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 from the comparable
period in 2015.

Oil, Gas and Lodging Services direct revenues for the year ended December 31, 2015 decreased $166.1 million from the comparable period in 2014
primarily due to decreases in the occupancy rates at our fixed lodges, business activity and rig counts serviced consistent with overall market conditions.
Occupancy rates at our primary fixed lodges for the year ended December 31, 2015 were 33%, compared to 61% in the comparable period in 2014. Rig count
serviced by our Oil and Gas Field Services segment decreased approximately 32% in the year ended December 31, 2015 from the comparable period in 2014.
Inclusive in the year-over-year changes within this segment was also the negative impact of foreign currency translation on our Canadian operations of
approximately $23.5 million as a result of the weakening Canadian dollar in the year ended December 31, 2015 from the comparable period in 2014.

Cost of Revenues

We believe that our ability to manage operating costs is important to our ability to remain price competitive. We continue to upgrade the quality and
efficiency of our services through the development of new technology and continued modifications at our facilities, and implementation of strategic sourcing
and logistics solutions as well as other cost reduction initiatives in an effort to improve our operating margins.

Technical Services

 For the years ended December 31,  2016 over 2015  2015 over 2014

 2016  2015  2014  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change
Cost of revenues $ 710,338  $ 769,625  $ 791,824  $ (59,287)  (7.7)%  $ (22,199)  (2.8)%
As a % of Direct Revenue 67.2%  67.6%  65.7%   (0.4)%    1.9 %
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Technical Services cost of revenues for the year ended December 31, 2016 decreased $59.3 million from the comparable period in 2015 primarily due to
lower overall activity levels. Specific cost reductions included decreases in equipment and supply costs of $25.0 million, labor and transportation related
cost of $23.6 million, and $10.7 million of costs spread across multiple expense categories. As a percentage of direct revenue, our costs remained consistent
for the year ended December 31, 2016 as compared to 2015.

Technical Services cost of revenues for the year ended December 31, 2015 decreased $22.2 million from the comparable period in 2014 primarily due to
decreases in transportation related costs of $22.5 million. As a percentage of direct revenue, our costs increased 1.9% for the year ended December 31, 2015
as compared to 2014, primarily due to lower revenue levels associated with higher margin businesses such as landfills in 2015.

Industrial and Field Services

 For the years ended December 31,  2016 over 2015  2015 over 2014

 2016  2015  2014  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change
Cost of revenues $ 468,603  $ 762,992  $ 592,535  $ (294,389)  (38.6)%  $ 170,457  28.8 %
As a % of Direct Revenue 80.5%  77.1%  79.1%    3.4 %    (2.0)%

Industrial and Field Services cost of revenues for the year ended December 31, 2016 decreased $294.4 million from the comparable period in 2015
primarily due to the costs associated with large emergency response projects which did not reoccur in 2016. Costs of revenues as a percentage of direct
revenue increased 3.4% for the year ended December 31, 2016 from the comparable period in 2015. The increase as a percentage of direct revenue was
primarily attributable to the lack of large emergency response projects in 2016. When such large projects occur, the business is able to greater leverage its
costs structure, resulting in higher profit margins.

Industrial and Field Services cost of revenues for the year ended December 31, 2015 increased $170.5 million from the comparable period in 2014
primarily due to the costs associated with large scale emergency response projects which did not occur in 2014. Costs of revenues as a percentage of direct
revenue decreased 2.0% for the year ended December 31, 2015 from the comparable period in 2014 primarily due to the increased overall revenue levels
experienced during 2015, which outpaced increases in cost structure, as well as improved margin on emergency response and unplanned turnaround projects
in our Industrial and Field Services business.

Safety-Kleen

 For the years ended December 31,  2016 over 2015  2015 over 2014

 2016  2015  2014  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change
Cost of revenues $ 645,275  $ 649,317  $ 788,717  $ (4,042)  (0.6)%  $ (139,400)  (17.7)%
As a % of Direct Revenue 64.8%  69.0%  73.1%    (4.2)%    (4.1)%

Safety-Kleen cost of revenues for the year ended December 31, 2016 decreased $4.0 million from the comparable period in 2015 primarily due to
decreased costs of used oil inventory consumed during 2016. During 2015, the segment recognized $27.1 million of charges for high-priced inventory
relating to used oil collected prior to the full implementation of our charge-for-oil program which did not reoccur in 2016. This decrease was partially offset
by increased labor related costs of $21.6 million primarily related to our recent acquisitions and implementation of the closed loop initiative. As a percentage
of direct revenue, these costs decreased 4.2% in the year ended December 31, 2016 from the comparable period in 2015 primarily due to successful
management of our charge-for-oil program.

Safety-Kleen cost of revenues for the year ended December 31, 2015 decreased $139.4 million from the comparable period in 2014 primarily due to
decreases in costs attributable to used oil collections in the amounts of $176.9 million. This cost reduction was partially offset by the increased cost of used
oil inventory consumed during 2015. During 2015, the segment recognized charges for high priced inventory relating to used oil collected, which increased
$32.0 million in 2015 from 2014. As a percentage of direct revenue, this cost decreased 4.1% in the year ended December 31, 2015 from 2014. The improved
margins were most significantly impacted by the lower used oil collection costs implemented in 2015.
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Oil, Gas and Lodging Services

 For the years ended December 31,  2016 over 2015  2015 over 2014

 2016  2015  2014  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change
Cost of revenues $ 108,688  $ 174,272  $ 259,596  $ (65,584)  (37.6)%  $ (85,324)  (32.9)%
As a % of Direct Revenue 90.7%  84.1%  69.5%    6.6 %    14.6 %

Oil, Gas and Lodging Services cost of revenues for the year ended December 31, 2016 decreased $65.6 million from the comparable period in 2015.
This change was primarily due to decreases in labor and equipment related costs of $48.4 million and catering and material costs of $13.8 million during the
year ended December 31, 2016 from the comparable period in 2015. These decreases were the result of overall lower demand for our services as overall
activity in the regions in which this business operates declined. As a percentage of direct revenue, these costs increased 6.6% in the year ended December 31,
2016 from the comparable period in 2015, as certain fixed costs incurred in the operations of these businesses could not be reduced proportionately to the
pricing and activity declines which occurred.

Oil, Gas and Lodging Services cost of revenues for the year ended December 31, 2015 decreased $85.3 million from the comparable period in 2014.
This change was primarily due to decreases in labor and equipment related costs of $57.9 million and catering and material costs of $21.8 million during the
year ended December 31, 2015 from the comparable period in 2014. These decreases were the result of overall lower demand for our services as overall
activity in the regions in which this business operates declined. As a percentage of direct revenue, these costs increased 14.6% as certain fixed costs incurred
in the operations of these businesses could not be reduced proportionate to the pricing and activity declines which occurred.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, General and Administrative expenses represent costs incurred in aspects of our business which are not directly attributable to the sale of our
services and/or products. We strive to manage such costs commensurate with the overall performance of our segments and corresponding revenue levels. We
believe that our ability to properly align these costs with overall business performance is reflective of our strong management of the businesses and further
promotes our ability to remain competitive in the marketplace.

Technical Services

 For the years ended December 31,  2016 over 2015  2015 over 2014

 2016  2015  2014  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change
SG&A $ 75,221  $ 77,718  $ 85,429  $ (2,497)  (3.2)%  $ (7,711)  (9.0)%
As a % of Direct Revenue 7.1%  6.8%  7.1%    0.3 %    (0.3)%

Technical Services selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2016 decreased $2.5 million from the comparable
period in 2015 primarily due to a decrease in variable compensation of $2.1 million. As a percentage of direct revenue, our costs remained consistent for the
year ended December 31, 2016 as compared to 2015.

Technical Services selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2015 decreased $7.7 million from the comparable
period in 2014 primarily due to decreases in variable compensation of $2.7 million and changes in estimates for environmental liabilities of $3.6 million
which did not reoccur in 2015. As a percentage of direct revenue, our costs remained consistent for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to 2014.

Industrial and Field Services

 For the years ended December 31,  2016 over 2015  2015 over 2014

 2016  2015  2014  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change
SG&A $ 62,421  $ 65,514  $ 58,295  $ (3,093)  (4.7)%  $ 7,219  12.4 %
As a % of Direct Revenue 10.7%  6.6%  7.8%    4.1 %    (1.2)%

Industrial and Field Services selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2016 decreased $3.1 million from the
comparable period in 2015 primarily due to decreases in professional fees and variable compensation of approximately $2.5 million. As a percentage of
direct revenue, selling, general and administrative expenses increased 4.1% in the year ended December 31, 2016 from the comparable period in 2015
primarily due to the decreased overall revenue level experienced during 2016.
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Industrial and Field Services selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2015 increased $7.2 million from the
comparable period in 2014 primarily due to increases in professional fees and marketing costs of $3.9 million and $3.3 million spread across multiple
expense categories. As a percentage of direct revenue, selling, general and administrative expense decreased 1.2% in the year ended December 31, 2015 from
the comparable period in 2014 primarily due to the increased revenue attributable to this segment which was achieved without significant incremental SG&A
related costs.

Safety-Kleen

 For the years ended December 31,  2016 over 2015  2015 over 2014

 2016  2015  2014  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change
SG&A $ 131,262  $ 120,110  $ 125,198  $ 11,152  9.3%  $ (5,088)  (4.1)%
As a % of Direct Revenue 13.2%  12.8%  11.6%    0.4%    1.2 %

Safety-Kleen selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2016 increased $11.2 million from the comparable period in
2015 primarily due to increases in labor related costs of $6.3 million as a result of our recent acquisitions and changes in estimates for environmental
liabilities of $2.3 million which did not reoccur in 2016. As a percentage of direct revenue, our costs remained consistent for the year ended December 31,
2016 as compared to 2015.

Safety-Kleen selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2015 decreased $5.1 million from the comparable period in
2014 primarily due to decreases in marketing costs of $4.8 million. As a percentage of direct revenue, our costs increased 1.2% primarily due to the decreased
revenue levels experienced during 2015 which outpaced deceases in SG&A expenses.

Oil, Gas and Lodging Services

 For the years ended December 31,  2016 over 2015  2015 over 2014

 2016  2015  2014  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change
SG&A $ 14,487  $ 21,163  $ 22,802  $ (6,676)  (31.5)%  $ (1,639)  (7.2)%
As a % of Direct Revenue 12.1%  10.2%  6.1%    1.9 %    4.1 %

Oil, Gas and Lodging Services selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2016 decreased $6.7 million from the
comparable period in 2015 primarily due to decreases in labor related costs of $4.0 million and legal costs of $1.3 million. As a percentage of direct revenue,
selling, general and administrative expenses increased 1.9% in the year ended December 31, 2016 from the comparable period in 2015 as a result of lower
overall revenues.

Oil, Gas and Lodging Services selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2015 decreased $1.6 million from the
comparable period in 2014 primarily due to decreases in salaries and benefits of $3.1 million partially offset by an increase in professional fees of $1.0
million. As a percentage of direct revenue, selling, general and administrative expenses increased 4.1% in the year ended December 31, 2015 from the
comparable period in 2014 as a result of lower overall revenues which outpaced decreases in SG&A expenses.

Corporate Items

 For the years ended December 31,  2016 over 2015  2015 over 2014

 2016  2015  2014  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change  
$ 

Change  
% 

Change
SG&A $ 138,624  $ 129,659  $ 146,197  $ 8,965  6.9%  $ (16,538)  (11.3)%

Corporate Items selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2016 increased $9.0 million from the comparable period
in 2015 primarily due to an increase in severance related costs of $7.0 million and changes in estimates for environmental liabilities of $6.9 million which
did not reoccur in 2015. These negative impacts on a year-over-year basis were partially offset by decreases in labor related costs of $5.4 million related to
cost saving initiatives implemented throughout the year.

Corporate Items selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2015 decreased $16.5 million from the comparable
period in 2014 primarily due to decreases in variable compensation and related payroll taxes of $11.7 million and labor related costs of $3.0 million.
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Adjusted EBITDA

Management considers Adjusted EBITDA to be a measurement of performance which provides useful information to both management and investors.
Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered an alternative to net income or other measurements under generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP").
Adjusted EBITDA is not calculated identically by all companies and, therefore our measurements of Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly
titled measures reported by other companies.

We use Adjusted EBITDA to enhance our understanding of our operating performance, which represents our views concerning our performance in the
ordinary, ongoing and customary course of our operations. We historically have found it helpful, and believe that investors have found it helpful, to consider
an operating measure that excludes certain expenses relating to transactions not reflective of our core operations.

The information about our operating performance provided by this financial measure is used by our management for a variety of purposes. We regularly
communicate Adjusted EBITDA results to our lenders and to our board of directors and discuss with the board our interpretation of such results. We also
compare our Adjusted EBITDA performance against internal targets as a key factor in determining cash bonus compensation for executives and other
employees, largely because we believe that this measure is indicative of how the fundamental business is performing and is being managed.

We also provide information relating to our Adjusted EBITDA so that analysts, investors and other interested persons have the same data that we use to
assess our core operating performance. We believe that Adjusted EBITDA should be viewed only as a supplement to the GAAP financial information. We also
believe, however, that providing this information in addition to, and together with, GAAP financial information permits the foregoing persons to obtain a
better understanding of our core operating performance and to evaluate the efficacy of the methodology and information used by management to evaluate
and measure such performance on a standalone and a comparative basis.

The following is a reconciliation of net (loss) income to Adjusted EBITDA for the following periods (in thousands):

 Year Ended December 31,

 2016  2015  2014

Net (loss) income $ (39,873)  $ 44,102  $ (28,328)
Accretion of environmental liabilities 10,177  10,402  10,612
Depreciation and amortization 287,002  274,194  276,083
Goodwill impairment charges 34,013  31,992  123,414
Other (income) expense, net (6,195)  1,380  (4,380)
Gain on sale of business (16,884)  —  —
Interest expense, net 83,525  76,553  77,668
Provision for income taxes 48,589  65,544  66,850
Adjusted EBITDA $ 400,354  $ 504,167  $ 521,919

Depreciation and Amortization

 Year Ended December 31,  2016 over 2015  2015 over 2014

(in thousands) 2016  2015  2014  $ Change  % Change  $ Change  % Change

Depreciation of fixed assets and landfill
amortization $ 246,960  $ 233,998  $ 239,410  $ 12,962  5.5 %  $ (5,412)  (2.3)%
Permits and other intangibles amortization 40,042  40,196  36,673  (154)  (0.4)%  3,523  9.6 %
Total depreciation and amortization $ 287,002  $ 274,194  $ 276,083  $ 12,808  4.7 %  $ (1,889)  (0.7)%

Depreciation and amortization increased $12.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 from the comparable period in 2015 primarily due to a
larger fixed asset base resulting from our recent acquisitions.

Depreciation of fixed assets and landfill amortization decreased $5.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 from the comparable period in 2014
primarily due to lower landfill volumes generated in the year ended December 31, 2015 which resulted in $2.9 million of lower amortization in those periods.
Permits and other intangibles amortization increased $3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 from the comparable period in 2015 primarily due to
an increased intangible base as a result of our acquisition of TFI in April 2015.
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Goodwill impairment charges

 Year Ended December 31,  2016 over 2015  2015 over 2014

(in thousands) 2016  2015  2014  $ Change  % Change  $ Change  % Change

Goodwill impairment charges $ 34,013  $ 31,992  $ 123,414  $ 2,021  6.3%  $ (91,422)  74.1%

During the year ended December 31, 2016, we recorded a $34.0 million goodwill impairment charge in our Lodging Services reporting unit. During the
year ended December 31, 2015, we recorded a $32.0 million goodwill impairment charge in our Oil and Gas Field Services reporting unit. During the year
ended December 31, 2014, we recorded a $123.4 million goodwill impairment charge in our Kleen Performance Products reporting unit. For additional
information regarding our 2016 and 2015 goodwill impairment charges, see Note 7 under item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data," under the
heading "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets" and the discussion under the goodwill heading within our "Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates"
below.

Gain on sale of business

 Year Ended December 31,  2016 over 2015  2015 over 2014

 2016  2015  2014  $ Change  % Change  $ Change  % Change

Gain on sale of business $ 16,884  $ —  $ —  16,884  100%  $ —  —%

During the year ended December 31, 2016, we recorded a $16.9 million gain on the sale of a non-core line of business within our Industrial and Field
Services segment. For additional information regarding this gain on sale of business, see Note 4, under item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data" under the heading "Disposition of Business."

Other Income (Expense), net

 Year Ended December 31,  2016 over 2015  2015 over 2014

(in thousands) 2016  2015  2014  $ Change  % Change  $ Change  % Change

Other income (expense), net $ 6,195  $ (1,380)  $ 4,380  $ 7,575  (548.9)%  $ (5,760)  (131.5)%

Other income (expense), net increased $7.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 as compared to 2015 primarily due to gains recognized on
sales of fixed assets. For the year ended December 31, 2015, other income (expense), net decreased $5.8 million from the comparable period in 2014 primarily
due to losses recognized on sales of fixed assets which occurred in 2015 and 2014 gains on the sale of investments which did not reoccur in 2015.

Provision for Income Taxes

 Year Ended December 31,  2016 over 2015  2015 over 2014

(in thousands) 2016  2015  2014  $ Change  % Change  $ Change  % Change

Provision for income taxes $ 48,589  $ 65,544  $ 66,850  $ (16,955)  (25.9)%  $ (1,306)  (2.0)%

The income tax provision for the year ended December 31, 2016 decreased $17.0 million from the comparable period in 2015 primarily due to lower
earnings in the United States. The effective tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 was 557.5% and 59.8% respectively. The variation in
the effective income tax rates for the year ended December 31, 2016 as compared to a more customary relationship between pre-tax income and the provision
for income taxes, was primarily due to the recognition of a $12.9 million valuation allowance related to net operating loss carryforwards generated by certain
Canadian subsidiaries in 2016, as well as an additional $9.7 million valuation allowance recorded as a result of a change in the likelihood of realizing benefit
from foreign tax credits and other net deferred tax assets. Additionally the $34.0 million goodwill impairment charge in our Lodging Services reporting unit
recorded in 2016 is a non-deductible tax item and therefore no tax benefit was recorded on this loss and further caused the 2016 effective tax rate to vary from
a more typical relationship between income before taxes and the recorded provision for income taxes. The 2015 provision and related effective rate was also
impacted by the $32.0 million goodwill impairment charge in our Oil and Gas Field Services reporting unit for which a $2.0 million tax benefit was recorded.
The income tax provision remained consistent over the year ended December 31, 2015 from the comparable period in 2014.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources    

 For the years ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2016  2015  2014

Net cash from operating activities $ 259,624  $ 396,383  $ 297,366
Net cash used in investing activities (361,777)  (350,642)  (258,294)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities 220,235  (90,179)  (93,945)

Net cash from operating activities

Net cash from operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2016 was $259.6 million, a decrease of $136.8 million compared with net cash from
operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2015. The change primarily resulted from lower income generated in 2016 and the impacts of changes in
net working capital related to increases in inventory as a result of our closed loop initiative, as well as decreases to accounts payable as compared to the prior
year.

Net cash from operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $396.4 million, an increase of $99.0 million compared with cash from
operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2014. The change was primarily the result of improved management of working capital in 2015, more
specifically from the timing of accounts receivable collections and decreased levels of inventories and supplies as compared to the prior year.

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2016 was $361.8 million, an increase of $11.1 million, compared with cash used
in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2015. The change was primarily driven by an increase in cash paid for acquisitions in 2016 partially
offset by proceeds from the sale of a non-core line of business within our Industrial and Field Services segment, increased proceeds from the sales of fixed
assets and lower capital expenditures in 2016.

Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $350.6 million, an increase of $92.3 million, compared with cash used
in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2014. The change was primarily driven by an increase in cash paid for acquisitions in 2015 and
decrease in proceeds from investment sales that occurred in 2014 and did not reoccur in 2015.

Net cash from (used in) financing activities

Net cash from financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2016 was $220.2 million, an increase of $310.4 million, compared with cash used in
financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2015. The change was primarily due to the issuance of $250.0 million in aggregate principal amount of
5.125% senior notes due 2021 which we completed on March 17, 2016, as well as lower repurchases of common stock in 2016 as compared to 2015.

Net cash used in financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $90.2 million, an increase of $3.8 million, compared with net cash used
in financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2014. The change was primarily due to a decrease in repurchases of common stock and a reduction in
payments on capital leases in 2015 as compared to 2014, partially offset by changes in and from the timing of uncashed checks.

Working Capital

At December 31, 2016, cash and cash equivalents totaled $307.0 million, compared to $184.7 million at December 31, 2015. At December 31, 2016,
cash and cash equivalents held by foreign subsidiaries totaled $51.6 million and were readily convertible into other currencies including U.S. dollars. At
December 31, 2016, the cash and cash equivalents balance for our U.S. operations was $255.4 million, and our U.S. operations had net operating cash flows of
$239.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2016. Additionally, we have a $400.0 million revolving credit facility, of which approximately $195.2
million was available to borrow at December 31, 2016. Based on the above and our current plans, we believe that our U.S. operations have adequate financial
resources to satisfy their liquidity needs without being required to repatriate earnings from foreign subsidiaries. Accordingly, although repatriation to the U.S.
of foreign earnings would generally be subject to U.S. income taxation, net of any available foreign tax credits, we have not recorded any deferred tax
liability related to such repatriation since we intend to permanently reinvest foreign earnings outside the U.S.

We assess our liquidity in terms of our ability to generate cash to fund our operating, investing, and financing activities. Our primary ongoing cash
requirements will be to fund operations, capital expenditures, interest payments and investments in line with our business strategy. We believe our future
operating cash flows will be sufficient to meet our future operating and internal investing cash needs as well as any cash needs relating to our stock
repurchase program. Furthermore, our existing cash
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balances and availability of additional borrowings under our revolving credit facility provide additional potential sources of liquidity should they be
required.

Financing Arrangements

The financing arrangements and principal terms of our $800.0 million principal amount of 5.25% senior unsecured notes due 2020 and $845.0 million
principal amount of 5.125% senior unsecured notes due 2021 which were outstanding at December 31, 2016, and our $400.0 million revolving credit
facility, are discussed further in Note 11, “Financing Arrangements,” to our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this report.

As of December 31, 2016, we were in compliance with the covenants of all of our debt agreements, and we believe we will continue to meet such
covenants.

Environmental Liabilities

 As of December 31,  2016 over 2015

(in thousands) 2016  2015  $ Change  % Change

Closure and post-closure liabilities $ 58,331  $ 56,249  $ 2,082  3.7 %
Remedial liabilities 128,007  131,992  (3,985)  (3.0)%
Total environmental liabilities $ 186,338  $ 188,241  $ (1,903)  (1.0)%

Total environmental liabilities as of December 31, 2016 were $186.3 million, a decrease $1.9 million compared to the liabilities as of December 31,
2015. This decrease was primarily due to expenditures of $12.2 million partially offset by accretion of $10.2 million.

We anticipate our environmental liabilities, substantially all of which we assumed in connection with our acquisitions, will be payable over many years
and that cash flow from operations will generally be sufficient to fund the payment of such liabilities when required. However, events not anticipated (such as
future changes in environmental laws and regulations) could require that such payments be made earlier or in greater amounts than currently anticipated,
which could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flow and financial condition.

During each of 2016, 2015 and 2014, we benefited from reductions in our environmental liabilities due to changes in estimates recorded to the
statement of income. The benefits over these years were primarily due to the successful introduction of new technology for remedial activities, favorable
results from environmental studies of the on-going remediation, including favorable regulatory approvals, and lower project costs realized by utilizing
internal labor and equipment. The principal changes in estimates were from the following items:

In 2016, the net reduction in our environmental liabilities from changes in estimates recorded to the statement of operations was $4.3 million and
primarily related to reduced remedial spending at one of our locations as a result of new technologies and cost savings realized during the completed cell
closure at one of our landfills.

In 2015, the net reduction in our environmental liabilities from changes in estimates recorded to the statement of operations was $11.3 million and
primarily related to reductions in the estimates for remedial activities at four locations.  Events which occurred during 2015 and resulted in the changes in
estimates were attributable to favorable outcomes from negotiations among potentially responsible parties (or “PRPs”) in which we participate of $3.8
million, work performed by external third-party consultants whom we engaged to aid in estimating our future remedial activity costs at certain sites of $4.7
million, and receiving Provincial approval for a planned expansion of one of our landfills in Canada which will remediate our previously recognized
obligations of $2.5 million.

In 2014, the net reduction in our environmental liabilities from changes in estimates recorded to the statement of operations was $3.4 million and
primarily related to reductions in the estimates associated with future monitoring costs of certain sites and favorable settlement of negotiations among PRPs
in which we participate.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table has been included to assist understanding our debt and similar obligations as of December 31, 2016 and our ability to meet such
obligations (in thousands):

   Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligations Total  
Less than

1 year  1-3 years  4-5 years  After 5 years

Closure, post-closure and remedial liabilities $ 478,699  $ 21,015  $ 49,402  $ 33,328  $ 374,954
Long-term obligations, at par 1,645,000  —  —  1,645,000  —
Interest on long-term obligations 341,768  85,306  170,612  85,850  —
Operating leases 172,335  39,156  57,898  36,171  39,110
Total contractual obligations $ 2,637,802  $ 145,477  $ 277,912  $ 1,800,349  $ 414,064

The undiscounted value of closure, post closure and remedial liabilities of $478.7 million is equivalent to the present value of $186.3 million based on
discounting of $188.1 million and the undiscounted remainder of $104.3 million to be accrued for closure and post-closure liabilities over the remaining site
lives.

The following table has been included to assist in understanding our other contractual obligations as of December 31, 2016 and our ability to meet
such obligations (in thousands):

   Payments Due by Period

Other Commercial Commitments Total  
Less than

1 year  1-3 years  4-5 years  After 5 years

Standby letters of credit $ 132,597  $ 132,597  $ —  $ —  $ —

We obtained the standby letters of credit described in the above table primarily as security for financial assurances we have been required to provide to
regulatory bodies for our hazardous waste facilities and which would be called only in the event that we fail to satisfy closure, post-closure and other
obligations under the permits issued by those regulatory bodies for such licensed facilities. See Note 11, "Financing Arrangements," to our consolidated
financial statements included in Item 8 of this report for further discussion of our standby letters of credit and other financing arrangements.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Except for our obligations under operating leases and letters of credit described above under "Contractual Obligations" and performance obligations
incurred in the ordinary course of business, we are not party to any off-balance sheet arrangements involving guarantee, contingency or similar obligations to
entities whose financial statements are not consolidated with our results, and that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our
financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources that would
be material to investors in our securities.

Capital Expenditures

We anticipate that 2017 capital spending, net of disposals, will be in the range of $160.0 million to $170.0 million. However, changes in
environmental regulations could require us to make significant capital expenditures for our facilities and adversely affect our results of operations and cash
flow.

Stockholder Matters
On March 13, 2015, our board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to $300 million of our common stock. We have funded and intend to

continue to fund the repurchases through available cash resources. The repurchase program authorizes us to purchase our common stock on the open market
from time to time in a manner that complies with applicable U.S. securities laws. The number of shares purchased and the timing of the purchases has
depended and will depend on a number of factors including share price, cash required for business plans, trading volume and other conditions. We have no
obligation to repurchase stock under this program and may suspend or terminate the program at any time. During the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015
and 2014, we repurchased and retired a total of approximately 0.5 million shares, 1.4 million shares and 2.0 million, respectively, of our common stock for
total costs of approximately $22.2 million, $73.3 million and $104.3 million, respectively. Through December 31, 2016, we have repurchased and retired a
total of approximately 3.8 million shares of our common stock for approximately $199.9 million under this program. As of December 31, 2016, an
additional $100.1 million remained available for repurchase of shares under this program.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of our assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses, and related disclosures of contingent liabilities. The following are the areas that we believe require the greatest amount of judgments
or estimates in the preparation of the financial statements: revenue allowance, allowance for doubtful accounts, accounting for landfills, non-landfill closure
and post-closure liabilities, remedial liabilities, goodwill, permits and other intangible assets, insurance accruals, legal matters, and provision for income
taxes. Our management reviews critical accounting estimates with the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors on an ongoing basis and as needed prior to
the release of our annual financial statements. See also Note 2, "Significant Accounting Policies," to our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8
of this report, which discusses the significant assumptions used in applying our accounting policies.

Revenue Allowance.    Due to the nature of our business and the invoices that result from the services we provide, customers may withhold payments
and attempt to renegotiate amounts invoiced. In addition, for some of the services we provide, our invoices are based on quotes that can either generate
credits or debits when the actual revenue amount is known. Accordingly, based on our industry knowledge and historical trends, we record a revenue
allowance. Increases in overall sales volumes and the expansion of our customer base in recent years have also increased the volume of additions and
deductions to the allowance during the year, as well as increased the amount of the allowance at the end of the year.

Our revenue allowance is intended to cover the net amount of revenue adjustments that may need to be credited to customers' accounts in future
periods. We determine the appropriate total revenue allowance by evaluating the following factors on a customer-by-customer basis as well as on a
consolidated level: historical collection trends, age of outstanding receivables, existing economic conditions and other information as deemed applicable.
Revenue allowance estimates can differ materially from the actual adjustments, but historically our revenue allowance has been sufficient to cover the net
amount of the reserve adjustments recorded in subsequent reporting periods.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts.    We establish an allowance for doubtful accounts to cover accounts receivable that may not be collectible. In
establishing the allowance for doubtful accounts, we analyze the collectability of accounts that are large or past due. A considerable amount of judgment is
required to make this assessment, based on detailed analysis of the aging of our receivables, the creditworthiness of our customers, our historical bad debts
and other adjustments and current economic trends, for instance, seen in the oil and gas markets in Western Canada. Accounts receivable written off in
subsequent periods can differ materially from the allowance for doubtful accounts provided, but historically our provision has been adequate.

Landfill Accounting.    We amortize landfill improvements and certain landfill-related permits over their estimated useful lives. The units-of-
consumption method is used to amortize land, landfill cell construction, asset retirement costs and remaining landfill cells and sites. We also utilize the units-
of-consumption method to record closure and post-closure obligations for landfill cells and sites. Under the units-of-consumption method, we include future
estimated construction and asset retirement costs, as well as costs incurred to date, in the amortization base of the landfill assets. Additionally, where
appropriate, as discussed below, we include probable expansion airspace yet to be permitted in the calculation of the total remaining useful life of the
landfill. If we determine that expansion capacity should no longer be considered in calculating the recoverability of a landfill asset, we may be required to
recognize an asset impairment or incur significantly higher amortization expense. If at any time we make the decision to abandon the expansion effort, the
capitalized costs related to the expansion effort are expensed immediately.

Landfill Assets. Landfill assets include the costs of landfill site acquisition, permits and cell construction incurred to date. These amounts are
amortized under the units-of-consumption method such that the asset is completely amortized when the landfill ceases accepting waste.

Landfill Capacity. Landfill capacity, which is the basis for the amortization of landfill assets and for the accrual of final closure and post-closure
obligations, represents total permitted airspace plus unpermitted airspace that management believes is probable of ultimately being permitted based on
established criteria. Our management applies the following criteria for evaluating the probability of obtaining a permit for future expansion airspace at
existing sites, which provides management a basis to evaluate the likelihood of success of unpermitted expansions:

• Personnel are actively working to obtain the permit or permit modifications (land use, state and federal) necessary for expansion of an existing
landfill, and progress is being made on the project.

• Management expects to submit the application within the next year and to receive all necessary approvals to accept waste within the next five years.
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• At the time the expansion is included in management's estimate of the landfill's useful economic life, it is probable that the required approvals will
be received within the normal application and processing time periods for approvals in the jurisdiction in which the landfill is located.

• We or the other owner of the landfill has a legal right to use or obtain the right to use the land associated with the expansion plan.

• There are no significant known political, technical, legal or business restrictions or other issues that could impair the success of such expansion.

• A financial feasibility analysis has been completed and the results demonstrate that the expansion will have a positive financial and operational
impact such that management is committed to pursuing the expansion.

• Additional airspace and related additional costs, including permitting, final closure and post-closure costs, have been estimated based on the
conceptual design of the proposed expansion.

As of December 31, 2016, there were two unpermitted expansions at two locations included in management's landfill calculation, which represented
17.7% of our remaining airspace at that date. If actual expansion airspace is significantly different from management's estimate of expansion airspace, the
amortization rates used for the units-of-consumption method would change, therefore impacting our profitability. If we determine that there is less actual
expansion airspace at a landfill, this would increase amortization expense recorded and decrease profitability, while if we determine a landfill has more actual
expansion airspace, amortization expense would decrease and profitability would increase.

Landfill Final Closure and Post-Closure Liabilities. The balance of landfill final closure and post-closure liabilities at December 31, 2016 and 2015
was $30.6 million and $32.0 million, respectively. We have material financial commitments for the costs associated with requirements of the EPA and the
comparable regulatory agency in Canada for landfill final closure and post-closure activities. In the United States, the landfill final closure and post-closure
requirements are established under the standards of the EPA, and are implemented and applied on a state-by-state basis. We develop estimates for the cost of
these activities based on our evaluation of site-specific facts and circumstances, such as the existence of structures and other landfill improvements that
would need to be dismantled, the amount of groundwater monitoring and leachate management expected to be performed, and the length of the post-closure
period as determined by the applicable regulatory agency. Included in our cost estimates are our interpretation of current regulatory requirements and
proposed regulatory changes. Such estimates may change in the future due to various circumstances including, but not limited to, permit modifications,
changes in legislation or regulations, technological changes and results of environmental studies. We perform zero-based reviews of these estimated
liabilities at least every five years or sooner if the occurrence of a significant event is likely to change the timing or amount of the currently estimated
expenditures. We consider a significant event to be a new regulation or an amendment to an existing regulation, a new permit or modification to an existing
permit, or a change in the market price of a significant cost item. Our cost estimates are calculated using internal sources as well as input from third-party
experts. These costs are measured at estimated fair value using present value techniques, and therefore changes in the estimated timing of closure and post-
closure activities would affect the liability, the value of the related asset, and our results of operations.

Final closure costs are the costs incurred after the site ceases to accept waste, but before the landfill is certified as closed by the applicable state or
provincial regulatory agency. These costs generally include the costs required to cap the final cell of the landfill (if not included in cell closure), to dismantle
certain structures for landfills and other landfill improvements and regulation-mandated groundwater monitoring, and for leachate management. Post-closure
costs involve the maintenance and monitoring of a landfill site that has been certified closed by the applicable regulatory agency. These costs generally
include groundwater monitoring and leachate management. Regulatory post-closure periods are generally 30 years after landfill closure. Final closure and
post-closure obligations are accrued on a units-of-consumption basis, such that the present value of the final closure and post-closure obligations are fully
accrued at the date the landfill discontinues accepting waste.

Non-Landfill Closure and Post-Closure Liabilities.    The balance of our non-landfill closure and post-closure liabilities at December 31, 2016 and
2015 was $27.7 million and $24.2 million, respectively. We base estimates for non-landfill closure and post-closure liabilities on our interpretations of
existing permit and regulatory requirements for closure and post-closure maintenance and monitoring. Our cost estimates are calculated using internal
sources as well as input from third-party experts. We use probability scenarios to estimate when future operations will cease and inflate the current cost of
closing the non-landfill facility on a probability weighted basis using the appropriate inflation rate and then discounting the future value to arrive at an
estimated present value of closure and post-closure costs. The estimates for non-landfill closure and post-closure liabilities are inherently uncertain due to the
possibility that permit and regulatory requirements will change in the future, impacting the estimation of total costs and the timing of the expenditures. We
review non-landfill closure and post-closure liabilities for changes to key assumptions that would impact the amount of the recorded liabilities. Changes that
would prompt us to revise a liability estimate include changes in legal requirements that impact our expected closure plan or scope of work, in the market
price of a significant cost item, in the probability scenarios as to when future operations at a location might cease, or
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in the expected timing of the cost expenditures. Changes in estimates for non-landfill closure and post-closure events immediately impact the required
liability and the value of the corresponding asset. If a change is made to a fully-consumed asset, the adjustment is charged immediately to expense. When a
change in estimate relates to an asset that has not been fully consumed, the adjustment to the asset is recognized in income prospectively as a component of
amortization. Historically, material changes to non-landfill closure and post-closure estimates have been infrequent.

Remedial Liabilities.    The balance of our remedial liabilities at December 31, 2016 and 2015 was $128.0 million and $132.0 million, respectively. See
Note 10, "Remedial Liabilities," to our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this report for the changes to the remedial liabilities during the
years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015. Remedial liabilities are obligations to investigate, alleviate and/or eliminate the effects of a release (or threat of a
release) of hazardous substances into the environment and may also include corrective action under RCRA. Our remediation obligations can be further
characterized as Long-term Maintenance, One-Time Projects, Legal and Superfund. Legal liabilities are typically comprised of litigation matters that involve
potential liability for certain aspects of environmental cleanup and can include third-party claims for property damage or bodily injury allegedly arising from
or caused by exposure to hazardous substances originating from our activities or operations or, in certain cases, from the actions or inactions of other persons
or companies. Superfund liabilities are typically claims alleging that we are a potentially responsible party ("PRP") and/or are potentially liable for
environmental response, removal, remediation and cleanup costs at/or from either a facility we own or a site owned by a third-party. As described in Note 17,
"Commitments and Contingencies," to our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this report, Superfund liabilities also include certain
liabilities payable to governmental entities for which we are potentially liable to reimburse the sellers in connection with our 2002 acquisition of
substantially all of the assets of the Chemical Services Division (the "CSD assets") of Safety-Kleen Corp. Long-term Maintenance liabilities include the costs
of groundwater monitoring, treatment system operations, permit fees and facility maintenance for inactive operations. One-Time Projects liabilities include
the costs necessary to comply with regulatory requirements for the removal or treatment of contaminated materials.

Amounts recorded related to the costs required to remediate a location are determined by internal engineers and operational personnel and incorporate
input from external third parties. The estimates consider such factors as the nature and extent of environmental contamination (if any); the terms of applicable
permits and agreements with regulatory authorities as to cleanup procedures and whether modifications to such permits and agreements will likely need to be
negotiated; the cost of performing anticipated cleanup activities based upon current technology; and in the case of Superfund and other sites where other
parties will also be responsible for a portion of the cleanup costs, the likely allocation of such costs and the ability of such other parties to pay their share.
Each quarter, our management discusses if any events have occurred or milestones have been met that would warrant the creation of a new remedial liability
or the revision of an existing remedial liability. Such events or milestones include identification and verification as a PRP, receipt of a unilateral
administrative order under Superfund or requirement for RCRA interim corrective measures, completion of the feasibility study under Superfund or the
corrective measures study under RCRA, new or modifications to existing permits, changes in property use, or a change in the market price of a significant
cost item. Remedial liabilities are inherently difficult to estimate and there is a risk that the actual quantities of contaminants could differ from the results of
the site investigation, which could materially impact the amount of our liability. It is also possible that chosen methods of remedial solutions will not be
successful and funds will be required for alternative solutions.

Remedial liabilities are discounted only when the timing of the payments is estimable and the amounts are determinable, with the exception of
remedial liabilities assumed as part of an acquisition that are measured at fair value.

We establish reserves for estimated environmental liabilities based on acceptable technologies when we determine the liability is appropriate.
Introductions of new technologies are subject to successful demonstration of the effectiveness of the alternative technology and regulatory approval. We
routinely review and evaluate the sites for which we have established estimated environmental liabilities reserves to determine if there should be changes in
the established reserves. The changes in estimates are reflected as adjustments in the ordinary course of business in the period when we determine that an
adjustment is appropriate as new information becomes available. Upon demonstration of the effectiveness of the alternative technology and applicable
regulatory approval, we update our estimated cost of remediating the affected sites.

Goodwill and Other Long-Lived Assets.   Goodwill is not amortized but is reviewed for impairment annually as of December 31 or when events or
changes in the business environment indicate the carrying value of a reporting unit may exceed its fair value. This review is performed by comparing the fair
value of each reporting unit to its carrying value, including goodwill. If the fair value is less than the carrying amount, a Step II analysis of the fair value of all
the elements of the reporting unit is performed to determine if and to what degree goodwill is impaired. The loss, if any, is measured as the excess of the
carrying value of the goodwill over the value of the goodwill implied by the results of the Step II analysis.
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We determine our reporting units by identifying the components of each operating segment, and then in some circumstances aggregate components
having similar economic characteristics based on quantitative and/or qualitative factors. In the fourth quarter of 2016, we reassigned certain components
among our operating segments to be in line with management reporting changes. There were no changes to our reporting units as a result of these changes
that impacted goodwill measurement. As of December 31, 2016, we have determined that we have seven reporting units. Technical Services, Industrial
Services, Field Services, Kleen Performance Products, SK Environmental Services, Oil and Gas Field Services and Lodging Services, each of which
constitutes a reporting unit. As a result of impairment charges recognized in the third quarter of 2016 and second quarter of 2015 discussed more fully below,
no goodwill was recorded by the Oil and Gas Field Services reporting unit or the Lodging Services reporting unit as of December 31, 2016.

We conducted our annual impairment test of goodwill for all of our reporting units to which goodwill is allocated as of December 31, 2016 and
determined that no adjustment to the carrying value of goodwill for any reporting unit was then necessary. In all cases except for our Industrial Services and
Kleen Performance Products reporting units, the estimated fair values of each reporting unit significantly exceeded its carrying value. The annual impairment
test fair value for all of our reporting units is determined using an income approach (a discounted cash flow analysis) which incorporates several underlying
estimates and assumptions with varying degrees of uncertainty. The discounted cash flow analyses include estimated cash flows for a discrete five year future
period and for a terminal period thereafter. In all instances, we corroborate our estimated fair values by also considering other factors such as the fair value of
comparable companies to businesses contained in our reporting units. As part of the annual test we also perform a reconciliation of the total estimated fair
values of all reporting units to our market capitalization.

In conducting our December 31, 2016 goodwill impairment test, we determined that the estimated fair value of our Kleen Performance Products
reporting unit exceeded its carrying value by 15.0%.  Significant assumptions included in the discounted cash flow model utilized to estimate the reporting
unit’s fair value were a compounded annual revenue growth assumption of approximately 8% over a five-year discrete period and 2% thereafter and lower
estimated EBITDA margins in the near term, with improvement over the discrete period resulting in estimated margins consistent with historical performance
of the business by the end of the discrete period.   A weighted average cost of capital assumption equal to 11% was utilized to discount the estimated future
cash flows of the business in order to estimate its current fair value. Goodwill allocated to the Kleen Performance Products reporting unit as of December 31,
2016 was $64.3 million.

In performing the annual goodwill impairment test as of December 31, 2016, the estimated fair value of the Industrial Services reporting unit exceeded
its carrying value by 12%.  Significant assumptions were used in developing the discounted cash flows utilized to estimate the fair value of the Industrial
Services reporting unit. These significant assumptions included a compounded annual revenue growth assumption of approximately 6% over a five-year
discrete period with 3% thereafter and lower estimated EBITDA margins in the near term, with improvement over the discrete period resulting in estimated
margins consistent with historical performance of the business by the end of the discrete period.  A weighted average cost of capital assumption of 10% was
used to discount the estimated future cash flows of the business in order to estimate its fair value.  Goodwill allocated to the Industrial Services reporting unit
at December 31, 2016 was $24.5 million.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2016, certain events and changes in circumstances arose which led management to conclude that the fair value
of the Lodging Services reporting unit might be less than its carrying value, and therefore an interim goodwill impairment test was conducted. The primary
events and changes in circumstances which led to this conclusion were:

• Macroeconomic conditions for service companies operating in western Canada’s oil sands region deteriorated in 2016 primarily due to persistently
low oil and gas prices. Persistently low prices have caused Lodging Services' main customers to significantly reduce, defer, or cancel oil and gas
projects that are in, or had been planned for, this region during periods of more robust commodity pricing

• Government regulatory delays related to oil and gas pipeline projects have reduced management’s confidence that these projects will move forward
in a timely manner or in the form that had been originally contemplated by their planners. These projects represented a significant portion of
Lodging Services' future growth in terms of the demand they would mean for temporary accommodation from the Lodging Services reporting unit.
While some of these projects have made recent advancements towards successful government approval, the lack of meaningful progress to date does
not provide sufficient positive evidence that a recovery will be significant enough to improve Lodging Services' previously forecasted outlook.

• There have been consecutive historical quarters where business results were significantly less than internal forecasts, and previous actual results, for
the Lodging Services reporting unit.
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• During the quarter ended September 30, 2016, management’s near-term outlook was clarified in regards to the business’ projections and the impacts
of large scale forest fires which took place in the Fort McMurray area of Alberta, Canada, where we have significant Lodging Services operations.

• Due to the factors listed above, management significantly lowered its 2016 forecasts and long-range plans relative to the Lodging Services reporting
unit.

Significant judgments and unobservable inputs categorized as Level III in the fair value hierarchy are inherent in the impairment test performed for
Lodging Services and include assumptions about the amount and timing of expected future cash flows, growth rates, profit margins and the determination of
appropriate discount rates. In performing the Step I test as of September 30, 2016 and using revised long-term projections that were developed for all
reporting units during the quarter ended September 30, 2016, some of the significant assumptions inherent in the long-term projections changed from those
which were used in performing our annual goodwill impairment test as of December 31, 2015. Based on information known as of September 30, 2016, we
reduced the average estimated annual revenue earned by the Lodging Services reporting unit 18.2% from fiscal year 2017 through fiscal year 2020 due to the
aforementioned macroeconomic events. Compared to our December 31, 2015 impairment assessment, estimated EBITDA margins were lowered from 29.7%
to 19.1% due to lower anticipated pricing as demand for our services was lower. Lower revenue and EBITDA margin estimates also resulted in lower current
expectations for future cash flows, which lengthened our assumptions around the recovery from the current business downturn as compared to our
assumptions utilized in our previous annual test. The changes in these estimates and business assumptions had a significant negative impact on our estimates
of future anticipated cash flows used in our impairment test and therefore on our estimates of the fair value of the Lodging Services reporting unit.

For purposes of the September 30, 2016 goodwill impairment test, the discount rate was decreased from 13.0% in the prior test to 11.0%, or 200 basis
points, primarily due to lower debt borrowing rates and equity returns across the evaluated peer group, which put downward pressure on the Lodging Services
reporting unit’s estimated weighted average cost of capital. We also assessed a range of different discount rate assumptions, and noted a change of 50 basis
points to the previous discount rate would decrease the estimated fair value of the reporting unit by $6 million to $8 million. A larger discount rate
assumption would not have changed the resulting impairment charge as the entire goodwill balance associated with the reporting unit would already be
impaired based upon a reduction of 50 basis points to the previously assumed discount rate. If the discount rate utilized in the Step 1 test were reduced by
another 200 basis points to 9%, then the results of the Step 1 test would have provided an estimated fair value for Lodging Services which exceeded its then
carrying value. The results of the Step I test therefore indicated that the previously estimated fair value of the reporting unit was less than its carrying value,
and we therefore performed a Step II test to determine if and in what amount goodwill was impaired. The results of the Step II test indicated that as of
September 30, 2016, the total amount of goodwill was impaired and therefore a $34.0 million impairment charge was recorded to reduce the recorded
goodwill value to $0.

During the second quarter of 2015, certain events and changes in circumstances arose which led management to conclude that the fair value of the Oil
and Gas Field Services reporting unit more likely than not had reduced to an amount less than its carrying value and therefore an interim impairment test was
conducted relative to goodwill recorded by the Oil and Gas Field Services reporting unit. The primary events and changes in circumstances which led to this
conclusion were:    

• The second quarter is the period of time where greater levels of communication with customers and the receipt of bids and proposals for project work
take place and provide management with more clarity into levels of activity and other economic and business indicators for the latter half of the
fiscal year and into the first quarter of the following year. During the quarter ended June 30, 2015, it became apparent that oil and gas exploration
and production activity would continue to be lower than in prior periods and than we had previously anticipated. This was evidenced by reduced
volume in bid and proposal requests from customers and communications indicating the reduction in customer budgets in these areas as well as
lower than anticipated pricing for our services.

• Market and industry reports to which management looks in projecting business conditions and establishing forecast information evidenced more
pessimistic views in the near term. The continued depressed price of oil without any upward momentum since December 2014, as well as declining
and expected continued decline in rig count for the remainder of 2015, resulted in lower estimates of industry activity in the second half of 2015 and
early 2016.

• In recognition of lower than anticipated business results and less optimistic market indicators, management significantly lowered its 2015 forecasts
relative to the Oil and Gas Field Services reporting unit.
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Significant judgments and unobservable inputs categorized as Level III in the fair value hierarchy are inherent in the impairment tests performed and
include assumptions about the amount and timing of expected future cash flows, growth rates, profit margins and the determination of appropriate discount
rates. In performing the Step I test as of June 30, 2015 relating to the fair value of our Oil and Gas Field Services reporting unit, certain of these significant
assumptions changed from those utilized in performing our annual goodwill impairment test as of December 31, 2014. Based upon information known as of
June 30, 2015, we reduced the estimates and assumptions around the 2015 fiscal year annual revenue growth from 1% of growth to a contraction in 2015
revenues of 24%. This decrease resulted largely from projects which were expected to occur in the second half of 2015 but had then been canceled or
reduced, as well as updated outlooks on pricing of our services. EBITDA margins relative to 2015 were also reduced from estimates of 13% utilized in the
most recent annual test to 6%. Prior to June 30, 2015, we had assumed greater EBITDA margin expansion driven by more positive revenue growth which
increased estimated future cash flows. The reduction in margin assumptions utilized in the June 30, 2015 Step I test was based upon the lower levels of
revenue then forecasted for 2015, lower pricing of our services and less than anticipated cost savings from cost cutting measures which had been planned but
had not fully materialized as of June 30, 2015. These lower revenue and margin estimates associated with 2015 resulted in lower expectations and cash flows
in 2015 and also decreases in expected revenues and cash flows in future periods, thus lengthening our assumptions around the recovery from the current
business downturn as compared to assumptions utilized in prior tests.

The changes in these estimates and business assumptions had significant negative impact on our estimates of future anticipated cash flows used in our
impairment test and therefore on our estimate of the fair value of the Oil and Gas Field Services reporting unit. Discount rate assumptions utilized in the June
30, 2015 test were consistent with those used in the December 31, 2015 annual test. The results of the Step I test conducted as of June 30, 2015 indicated that
the estimated fair value of that reporting unit was less than its carrying value, and we therefore performed a Step II test to determine if and in what amount
goodwill recorded by our Oil and Gas Field Services segment was impaired. The results of the Step II test indicated that as of June 30, 2015, the total amount
of goodwill recorded by that reporting unit was impaired and therefore a $32.0 million impairment charge was recorded and is reflected in our 2015 operating
results.

During the third quarter of 2014, we obtained evidence that indicated the carrying value of our Kleen Performance reporting unit may have exceeded its
estimated fair value and therefore an interim goodwill impairment test was performed. As a result of that test, we recorded a $123.4 million impairment
charge related to goodwill recorded by our Kleen Performance operating segment. The factors contributing to this goodwill impairment charge principally
related to decreases in market prices of oil products sold by our Kleen Performance Products business which took place during the third quarter of 2014.
These decreasing market prices negatively impacted the profitability of our Kleen Performance operating segment and further resulted in lower assumptions
for future revenues and profits of the business. These factors adversely affected the estimated fair value of the reporting unit as of September 30, 2014 and
ultimately led to the recognition of the goodwill impairment charge.

See further information related to the goodwill impairment charges recorded in Note 7, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets," to our consolidated
financial statements included in Item 8 of this report.

Indefinite-lived intangible assets are not amortized but are reviewed for impairment annually as of December 31, or when events or changes in the
business environment indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. If the fair value of the asset is less than the carrying amount, we perform a
quantitative test to determine the fair value. The impairment loss, if any, is measured as the excess of the carrying value of the asset over its fair value. The fair
value of the indefinite-lived intangibles exceeded their carrying values at December 31, 2016. However, we will continue to closely monitor the performance
of our indefinite-lived intangible assets, and future events might result in an impairment of indefinite-lived intangible assets.

Our long-lived assets are carried on our financial statements based on their cost less accumulated depreciation or amortization. Long-lived assets with
finite lives are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying value may not be entirely recoverable.
When such factors and circumstances exist, our management compares the projected undiscounted future cash flows associated with the related asset or group
of assets over their estimated useful lives against their respective carrying amounts. The impairment loss, if any, is measured as the excess of the carrying
amount over the fair value of the asset and is recorded in the period in which the determination is made. Any resulting impairment losses recorded by us
would have an adverse impact on our results of operations.

In consideration of the goodwill impairments for our Oil and Gas Field Services and Lodging Services reporting units and continued lower than
historical results and overall slowdown in the oil and gas related industries, we continue to monitor the carrying value of those reporting units’ long-lived
assets and assess the risk of asset impairment. As of December 31, 2016, our Oil and Gas Field Services and Lodging Services reporting units had property,
plant and equipment, net of $88.2 million and $93.8 million, respectively, and intangible assets of $5.5 million and $5.4 million, respectively. As a result of
analyses
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performed as of December 31, 2016, we concluded that no events or circumstances have arisen which would indicate that the carrying values of those asset
groups are not recoverable.

We will continue to evaluate all of our goodwill and other long-lived assets impacted by economic downturns most predominantly in the oil and
energy related markets in which we operate. If further economic difficulties resulting from depressed oil and gas related pricing and lower overall activity
levels, particularly in our Canadian operations, continue for a significant foreseeable period of time and thus future operating results are significantly less
than current expectations, additional impairment charges may be recognized. The market conditions which could lead to such future impairments are
currently most prevalent in our Oil and Gas Field Services, Lodging Services and Industrial Services operations.

Legal Matters.    As described in Note 17, "Commitments and Contingencies," to our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this report,
we are subject to legal proceedings which relate to our past acquisitions or which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. Accruals are established for
legal matters when, in our opinion, it is probable that a liability exists and the liability can be reasonably estimated. As of December 31, 2016, we had
reserves of $22.0 million consisting of (i) $18.2 million related to pending legal or administrative proceedings, including Superfund liabilities, which were
included in the $186.3 million accrued environmental liabilities as of December 31, 2016 for closure, post-closure and remediation as described above, and
(ii) $3.8 million primarily related to federal and state enforcement actions, which were included in accrued expenses on the consolidated balance sheets. We
also estimate that it is "reasonably possible," as that term is defined ("more than remote but less than likely"), that the amount of such total liabilities could be
as much as $1.9 million more. Actual expenses incurred in future periods could differ materially from accruals established.

Provision for Income Taxes.    Our income tax expense, deferred tax assets and liabilities and reserves for unrecognized tax benefits reflect
management's best estimate of future taxes to be paid. We are subject to income taxes in both the United States and in foreign jurisdictions. Significant
judgments and estimates are required in determining the consolidated income tax expense. We do not accrue U.S. tax for foreign earnings that we consider to
be permanently reinvested outside the United States. Consequently, we have not provided any U.S. tax on the unremitted earnings of our foreign subsidiaries.
As of December 31, 2016, the amount of earnings for which no U.S tax has been provided was $238.5 million. It is not practicable to estimate the amount of
additional tax that might be payable on those earnings if repatriated.

Deferred income taxes arise from temporary differences between the tax and financial statement recognition of revenue and expense. In evaluating our
ability to recover our deferred tax assets within the jurisdiction from which they arise, we consider all available positive and negative evidence. We establish
a valuation allowance when, based on an evaluation of objective verifiable evidence, we believe it is more likely than not that some portion or all of our
deferred tax assets will not be realized. Such evidence considered includes historical results, future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences and
expectations for future taxable income (exclusive of the reversal of temporary differences and carryforwards), as well as the implementation of feasible and
prudent tax planning strategies. As of December 31, 2016, we have recorded a valuation allowance related to foreign tax credit carryforwards, state and
foreign net operating loss carryforwards and other deferred tax assets of $55.2 million. If operating results improve or decline on a continual basis in a
particular jurisdiction or other factors impacting our conclusions as to the likelihood that these deferred tax assets being realized were to change, our decision
regarding the need for a valuation allowance could also change, resulting in either the initial recognition or reversal of a valuation allowance. Any such
future recognition or reversal of a valuation allowance could have a significant impact on income tax expense in the period recognized and subsequent
periods.

A liability for uncertain tax positions is recorded to the extent a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return does not meet certain
recognition or measurement criteria. We record interest and penalties on these uncertain tax positions as applicable as a component of income tax expense.
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ITEM 7A.    QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

In the normal course of business, we are exposed to market risks, including changes in interest rates and certain foreign currency rates, primarily the
Canadian dollar. Our philosophy in managing interest rate risk is to borrow at fixed rates for longer time horizons to finance non-current assets and (to the
extent, if any, required) at variable rates for working capital and other short-term needs. We therefore have not entered into derivative or hedging transactions
relating to interest rate risk, nor have we entered into transactions to finance off-balance sheet debt. The following table provides information regarding our
fixed rate borrowings at December 31, 2016 (in thousands):

Scheduled Maturity Dates 2017  2018  2019  2020  2021  Thereafter  Total

Senior unsecured notes due 2020 $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 800,000  $ —  $ —  $ 800,000
Senior unsecured notes due 2021 —  —  —  —  $ 845,000  —  $ 845,000
Long term obligations, at par $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 800,000  $ 845,000  $ —  $ 1,645,000
Weighted average interest rate on fixed
rate borrowings             5.2%

In addition to the fixed rate borrowings described in the above table, we had at December 31, 2016, variable rate instruments that included a revolving
credit facility with maximum borrowings of up to $400.0 million (with a $325.0 million sub-limit for letters of credit). Interest payments are due in the
amount of $21.0 million each related to the $800.0 million senior unsecured notes payable semi-annually on February 1 and August 1 of each year, and in
the amount of $21.7 million each related to the $845.0 million senior unsecured notes payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 of each year.

We view our investment in our foreign subsidiaries as long-term; thus, we have not entered into any hedging transactions between any two foreign
currencies or between any of the foreign currencies and the U.S. dollar. Given this significant investment in Canada and the fluctuations that have and can
occur between the U.S. Dollar and Canadian Dollar exchange rates, significant movements in cumulative translation adjustment amounts recorded as a
component of other comprehensive income (loss) can occur in any given period.

During 2016, our Canadian subsidiaries transacted approximately 13% of their business in U.S. dollars and at any period end had cash on deposit in
U.S. dollars and outstanding U.S. dollar accounts receivable related to those transactions. Those cash and receivable accounts are vulnerable to foreign
currency transaction gains or losses. Exchange rate movements also affect the translation of Canadian generated profits and losses into U.S. dollars. Had the
Canadian dollar been 10.0% stronger or weaker against the U.S. dollar, we would have reported increased or decreased net income of $10.1 million and $6.5
million for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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ITEM 8.    FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Clean Harbors, Inc.
Norwell, Massachusetts

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Clean Harbors, Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2016 and
2015, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), cash flows and stockholders' equity for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2016. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15. These financial statements and
financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Clean Harbors, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2016, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the financial
statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the
information set forth therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Company's internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 22, 2017 expressed an unqualified opinion on the
Company's internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
February 22, 2017
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CLEAN HARBORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(dollars in thousands)

 As of December 31,

 2016  2015

ASSETS    
Current assets:    

Cash and cash equivalents $ 306,997  $ 184,708
Accounts receivable, net of allowances aggregating $29,249 and $31,426, respectively 496,226  496,004
Unbilled accounts receivable 36,190  25,940
Deferred costs 18,914  18,758
Inventories and supplies 178,428  149,521
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 56,116  46,265

Total current assets 1,092,871  921,196
Property, plant and equipment, net 1,611,827  1,532,467
Other assets:    

Goodwill 465,154  453,105
Permits and other intangibles, net 498,721  506,818
Other 13,347  17,842

Total other assets 977,222  977,765

Total assets $ 3,681,920  $ 3,431,428

    

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY    
Current liabilities:    

Accounts payable $ 229,534  $ 241,183
Deferred revenue 64,397  61,882
Accrued expenses 190,721  193,660
Current portion of closure, post-closure and remedial liabilities 20,016  20,395

Total current liabilities 504,668  517,120
Other liabilities:    

Closure and post-closure liabilities, less current portion of $6,220 and $7,229, respectively 52,111  49,020
Remedial liabilities, less current portion of $13,796 and $13,166, respectively 114,211  118,826
Long-term obligations 1,633,272  1,382,543
Deferred taxes, unrecognized tax benefits and other long-term liabilities 293,417  267,637

Total other liabilities 2,093,011  1,818,026
Commitments and contingent liabilities (See Note 17)  
Stockholders' equity:    

Common stock, $.01 par value:    
Authorized 80,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding 57,297,978 and 57,593,201 shares, respectively 573  576
Shares held under employee participation plan (469)  (469)
Additional paid-in capital 725,670  738,401
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (214,326)  (254,892)
Accumulated earnings 572,793  612,666

Total stockholders' equity 1,084,241  1,096,282

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 3,681,920  $ 3,431,428

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CLEAN HARBORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands except per share amounts)

 For the years ended December 31,

 2016  2015  2014

Revenues:      
Service revenues $ 2,280,809  $ 2,744,272  $ 2,639,796
Product revenues 474,417  530,865  761,840

Total revenues 2,755,226  3,275,137  3,401,636
Cost of revenues: (exclusive of items shown separately below)      

Service revenues 1,543,210  1,898,907  1,790,377
Product revenues 389,647  457,899  651,419

Total cost of revenues 1,932,857  2,356,806  2,441,796
Selling, general and administrative expenses 422,015  414,164  437,921
Accretion of environmental liabilities 10,177  10,402  10,612
Depreciation and amortization 287,002  274,194  276,083
Goodwill impairment charges 34,013  31,992  123,414
Income from operations 69,162  187,579  111,810
Other income (expense), net 6,195  (1,380)  4,380
Gain on sale of business 16,884  —  —
Interest expense, net of interest income of $784, $626, and $819, respectively (83,525)  (76,553)  (77,668)
Income before provision for income taxes 8,716  109,646  38,522
Provision for income taxes 48,589  65,544  66,850
Net (loss) income $ (39,873)  $ 44,102  $ (28,328)

(Loss) earnings per share:      
Basic $ (0.69)  $ 0.76  $ (0.47)

Diluted $ (0.69)  $ 0.76  $ (0.47)

Shares used to compute (loss) earnings per share — Basic 57,532  58,324  60,311

Shares used to compute (loss) earnings per share — Diluted 57,532  58,434  60,311

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CLEAN HARBORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(in thousands)

 For the years ended December 31,

 2016  2015  2014

Net (loss) income $ (39,873)  $ 44,102  $ (28,328)
Other comprehensive income (loss):      

Unrealized (losses) gains on available-for-sale securities (net of taxes of $214, $0 and $183,
respectively) (321)  —  976
Reclassification adjustment for gains on available-for-sale securities included in net income (net
of taxes of $0, $0, $508, respectively) —  —  (2,880)
Foreign currency translation adjustments (including a tax benefit of $16.8 million in 2016) 40,728  (144,050)  (88,725)
Unfunded pension liability (net of taxes of $57, $7 and $248, respectively) 159  —  (657)

Other comprehensive income (loss) 40,566  (144,050)  (91,286)
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 693  $ (99,948)  $ (119,614)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CLEAN HARBORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

 For the years ended December 31,

 2016  2015  2014

Cash flows from operating activities:      

Net (loss) income $ (39,873)  $ 44,102  $ (28,328)

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash from operating activities:      

Depreciation and amortization 287,002  274,194  276,083

Goodwill impairment charges 34,013  31,992  123,414

Allowance for doubtful accounts 6,907  4,793  8,917

Amortization of deferred financing costs and debt discount 3,537  3,280  3,289

Accretion of environmental liabilities 10,177  10,402  10,612

Changes in environmental liability estimates (4,254)  (11,345)  (3,367)

Deferred income taxes 15,184  1,930  32,320

Other (income) expense, net (5,685)  1,380  (4,380)

Stock-based compensation 10,481  8,550  8,800

Excess tax benefit of stock-based compensation (1,198)  (71)  (878)

Net tax benefit (deficiency) on stock-based awards 1,165  (82)  816

Gain on sale of business (16,884)  —  —

Environmental expenditures (12,170)  (20,130)  (20,245)

   Changes in assets and liabilities:      

      Accounts receivable and unbilled accounts receivables (15,009)  55,271  (14,342)

      Inventories and supplies (16,080)  14,059  (21,339)

      Other current assets (8,036)  48,760  (19,030)

      Accounts payable (3,503)  (16,299)  (52,026)

      Other current and long-term liabilities 13,850  (54,403)  (2,950)

Net cash from operating activities 259,624  396,383  297,366

Cash flows used in investing activities:      

Additions to property, plant and equipment (219,384)  (257,196)  (257,613)

Proceeds from sales of fixed assets 20,817  6,195  8,164

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (206,915)  (94,345)  (16,187)

Additions to intangible assets including costs to obtain or renew permits (2,831)  (5,296)  (6,519)

Purchase of available-for-sale securities (598)  —  —

Proceeds on sale of business, net of cash 47,134  —  —

Proceeds from sales of investments —  —  13,861

Net cash used in investing activities (361,777)  (350,642)  (258,294)

Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:      

Change in uncashed checks (3,177)  (14,630)  15,069

Proceeds from exercise of stock options 627  397  —

Issuance of restricted shares, net of shares remitted (2,819)  (2,159)  (2,793)

Repurchases of common stock (22,188)  (73,347)  (104,341)

Excess tax benefit of stock-based compensation 1,198  71  878

Deferred financing costs paid (4,031)  —  —

Repayment of long-term obligations —  —  (5,000)

Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan —  —  4,364

Payments on capital leases —  (511)  (2,122)

Issuance of senior unsecured notes, including premium 250,625  —  —

Net cash from (used in) financing activities 220,235  (90,179)  (93,945)

Effect of exchange rate change on cash 4,207  (17,733)  (8,321)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 122,289  (62,171)  (63,194)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 184,708  246,879  310,073

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 306,997  $ 184,708  $ 246,879

Supplemental information:      

Cash payments for interest and income taxes:      

Interest paid $ 88,669  $ 73,926  $ 75,408

Income taxes paid 29,255  52,970  42,022



Non-cash investing and financing activities:      

Property, plant and equipment accrued 9,214  32,677  23,563

Transfer of inventory to property, plant and equipment —  —  1,324

Accrued business combination adjustments —  —  355

Receivable for estimated purchase price adjustment 1,910  1,000  —
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CLEAN HARBORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in thousands)

 Common Stock  Shares Held
Under

Employee
Participation

Plan  

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

 
Accumulated

Other
Comprehensive

loss

   

Total
Stockholders'

Equity 
Number of

Shares  
$0.01 Par

Value    
Accumulated

Earnings  
Balance at January 1, 2014 60,672  $ 607  $ (469)  $ 898,165  $ (19,556)  $ 596,892  $ 1,475,639

Net loss —  —  —  —  —  (28,328)  (28,328)

Other comprehensive loss —  —  —  —  (91,286)  —  (91,286)

Stock-based compensation —  —  —  8,800  —  —  8,800

Issuance of restricted shares, net of shares remitted 113  1  —  (2,794)  —  —  (2,793)

Repurchases of common stock (1,973)  (20)  —  (104,321)  —  —  (104,341)

Net tax benefit on stock-based awards —  —  —  816  —  —  816

Employee stock purchase plan 91  1  —  4,363  —  —  4,364

Balance at December 31, 2014 58,903  $ 589  $ (469)  $ 805,029  $ (110,842)  $ 568,564  $ 1,262,871

Net income —  —  —  —  —  44,102  44,102

Other comprehensive loss —  —  —  —  (144,050)  —  (144,050)

Stock-based compensation —  —  —  8,550  —  —  8,550

Issuance of restricted shares, net of shares remitted 100  1  —  (2,160)  —  —  (2,159)

Exercise of stock options 12  —  —  397  —  —  397

Repurchases of common stock (1,422)  (14)  —  (73,333)  —  —  (73,347)

Net tax benefit on stock-based awards —  —  —  (82)  —  —  (82)

Balance at December 31, 2015 57,593  $ 576  $ (469)  $ 738,401  $ (254,892)  $ 612,666  $ 1,096,282

Net loss —  —  —  —  —  (39,873)  (39,873)

Other comprehensive income —  —  —  —  40,566  —  40,566

Stock-based compensation —  —  —  10,481  —  —  10,481

Issuance of restricted shares, net of shares remitted 136  1  —  (2,820)  —  —  (2,819)

Exercise of stock options 22  —  —  627  —  —  627

Repurchases of common stock (453)  (4)  —  (22,184)  —  —  (22,188)

Net tax benefit on stock-based awards —  —  —  1,165  —  —  1,165

Balance at December 31, 2016 57,298  $ 573  $ (469)  $ 725,670  $ (214,326)  $ 572,793  $ 1,084,241

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CLEAN HARBORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) OPERATIONS

Clean Harbors, Inc., through its subsidiaries (collectively, the "Company"), is a leading provider of environmental, energy and industrial services
throughout North America.

(2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company reflect the application of certain significant accounting policies as described
below:

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated statements include the accounts of Clean Harbors, Inc. and its majority-owned subsidiaries. All intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assumptions, which are evaluated on an ongoing basis, that affect the amounts reported in the Company's
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Management bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions it
believes to be reasonable at the time under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets
and liabilities and disclosure, if any, of contingent assets and liabilities and reported amounts of revenues and expenses. Actual results could differ from those
estimates and judgments.

Reclassifications

During the fourth quarter of 2016, the Company changed the manner in which it manages its business, makes operating decisions and assesses the
Company's performance. These changes included combining the Safety-Kleen Environmental Services business and Kleen Performance Products business
into a single operating segment called "Safety-Kleen," moving the Production Services business, previously included in the Company's Oil and Gas Field
Services operating segment, into the Company's Industrial Services operating segment, and reassigning certain departments among the Company's operating
segments in line with management reporting changes. In addition, for purposes of segment disclosure within Note 18, "Segment Reporting," the Company
combined the Oil and Gas Field Services and Lodging Services operating segments and has shown such financial information on a combined basis under the
heading "Oil, Gas and Lodging Services," as those individual operating segments do not meet the quantitative thresholds for separate disclosure. The
amounts presented for all historical periods herein have been recast to reflect the impact of such changes. These reclassifications and adjustments had no
effect on consolidated net income, comprehensive income (loss), cash flows or stockholders' equity for any of the periods presented.

Fair Value Valuation Hierarchy

The Company defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or be paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The Company applies the following fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value
into three levels and bases the categorization within the hierarchy upon the lowest level of input that is available and significant to the fair value
measurement. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the
measurement date. Level 2 utilizes quoted market prices in markets that are not active, broker or dealer quotations, or alternative pricing sources with
reasonable levels of price transparency. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability in which there is little, if any, market activity for the
asset or liability at the measurement date.

The Company's financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts and unbilled receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities
and long-term debt obligations. Due to the short-term nature of these instruments, with the exception of long-term debt obligations, their estimated fair value
approximates carrying value. Senior unsecured notes are recorded at par.
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CLEAN HARBORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Uncashed Checks

Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of cash on deposit, money market accounts or short-term investments with original maturities of three
months or less. The fair value of cash equivalents is considered a Level 1 measure according to the fair value hierarchy and is adjusted to fair value based on
quoted market prices. The Company's cash management program with its revolving credit lender allows for the maintenance of a zero balance in the U.S.
bank disbursement accounts that are used to issue vendor and payroll checks. The program can result in checks outstanding in excess of bank balances in the
disbursement accounts. When checks are presented to the bank for payment, cash deposits in amounts sufficient to fund the checks are made, at the
Company's discretion, either from funds provided by other accounts or under the terms of the Company's revolving credit facility. Therefore, until checks are
presented for payment, there is no right of offset by the bank and the Company continues to have control over cash relating to both released as well as
unreleased checks. Checks that have been written to vendors or employees but have not yet been presented for payment at the Company's bank are classified
as uncashed checks as part of accounts payable and added back to cash balances.

Marketable Securities

The Company has classified its marketable securities as available-for-sale and, accordingly, carries such securities at fair value. Unrealized gains and
losses are reported, net of tax, as a component of other comprehensive income (loss).

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

On a regular basis, the Company evaluates its accounts receivable and establishes the allowance for doubtful accounts based on an evaluation of
certain criteria and evidence of collection certainty including historical collection trends, current economic trends and changes in customer payment
patterns. Past-due receivable balances are written off when the Company's internal collection efforts have been deemed unsuccessful in collecting the
outstanding balance due.

Credit Concentration

Concentration of credit risks in accounts receivable is limited due to the large number of customers comprising the Company's customer base
throughout North America. The Company maintains policies over credit extension that include credit evaluations, credit limits and collection monitoring
procedures on a customer-by-customer basis. However, the Company generally does not require collateral before services are performed. As of December 31,
2016 and 2015, no individual customer accounted for more than 10% of accounts receivable. During each of the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and
2014, no individual customer accounted for more than 10% of total revenues.

Unbilled Receivables

The Company recognizes unbilled accounts receivable for service and disposal transactions rendered but not invoiced to the customer as of the end of
the period.

Deferred Costs Relating to Deferred Revenue

Commissions and other incremental direct costs, primarily costs of materials, relating to deferred revenue from the Company’s parts cleaning services,
containerized waste services and vacuum services are capitalized and deferred. The deferred costs are included in current assets in the consolidated balance
sheet and charged to expense when the related revenues are recognized.

Inventories and Supplies

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. The cost of oil and oil products is principally determined on a first-in, first-out ("FIFO") basis. The
cost of supplies and drums, solvent and solution and other inventories is determined on a FIFO or a weighted average cost basis. Costs for oil and oil
products, solvent and repair parts include purchase costs, fleet and fuel costs, direct labor, transportation costs and production related costs. The Company
continually reviews its inventories for obsolete or unsalable items and adjusts its carrying value to reflect estimated realizable values.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

Prepaid expenses and other current assets consist primarily of prepayments for various services, refundable deposits, and income taxes receivable.
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CLEAN HARBORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment (excluding landfill assets)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost and include amounts capitalized under capital lease obligations. Expenditures for major renewals and
improvements which extend the life or usefulness of the asset are capitalized. Items of an ordinary repair or maintenance nature are charged directly to
operating expense as incurred. During the construction and development period of an asset, the costs incurred, including applicable interest costs, are
classified as construction-in-progress.

The Company depreciates and amortizes the cost of these assets, using the straight-line method as follows:

Asset Classification  Estimated Useful Life

Buildings and building improvements   
Buildings 30–42 years
Leasehold and building improvements  2–45 years

Camp equipment  8–15 years
Vehicles  3–15 years
Equipment   

Capitalized software and computer equipment  3–5 years
Solar equipment  30 years
Containers and railcars  15–20 years
All other equipment  8–25 years

Furniture and fixtures  5–8 years

Leasehold and building improvements have a weighted average life of 9.6 years.

Camp equipment consists of industrial lodging facilities that are utilized to provide lodging services to downstream oil and gas companies in Western
Canada.

Solar equipment consists of a solar array that is used to provide electric power for a continuously operating groundwater decontamination pump and
treatment system at a closed and capped landfill located in New Jersey.

The Company recognizes an impairment in the carrying value of long-lived assets when the expected future undiscounted cash flows derived from the
assets, or group of assets, are less than their carrying value. For the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, the Company did not record impairment
charges related to long-lived assets. The Company will continue to assess all of its long-lived assets for impairment as necessary.

Goodwill

Goodwill is comprised of the purchase price of business acquisitions in excess of the fair value assigned at acquisition to the net tangible and
identifiable intangible assets acquired. Goodwill is not amortized but is reviewed for impairment annually as of December 31, or when events or changes in
the business environment indicate that the carrying value of the reporting unit may exceed its fair value, by comparing the fair value of each reporting unit to
its carrying value, including goodwill. If the fair value is less than the carrying amount, a Step II goodwill impairment test is performed to determine if
goodwill is impaired. The loss, if any, is measured as the excess of the carrying value of the goodwill over the implied value of the goodwill. See Note 7,
"Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets," for additional information related to the Company's goodwill impairment tests and the goodwill impairment charges
recorded in 2016 and 2015.

Permits and other intangibles

Permits and intangible assets, such as legal fees, site surveys, engineering costs and other expenditures are recorded at cost. Other intangible assets
consist primarily of customer and supplier relationships, trademarks and trade names, and non-compete agreements. Permits relating to landfills are amortized
on a units-of-consumption basis. All other permits are amortized over periods ranging from 5 to 30 years on a straight-line basis. Other intangible assets are
amortized on a straight-line basis over their respective useful lives, which range from 2 to 20 years.
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CLEAN HARBORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Finite-lived intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying value may not be
entirely recoverable. When such factors and circumstances exist, management compares the projected undiscounted future cash flows associated with the
related asset or group of assets over their estimated useful lives against their respective carrying amounts. The impairment loss, if any, is measured as the
excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of the asset or group of assets.

Indefinite-lived intangible assets are not amortized but are reviewed for impairment annually as of December 31, or when events or changes in the
business environment indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. If the fair value of the asset is less than the carrying amount, the Company performs a
quantitative test to determine the fair value. The impairment loss, if any,
is measured as the excess of the carrying value of the asset over its fair value. The fair value of the indefinite-lived intangible assets exceeded their carrying
values at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Leases

The Company leases rolling stock, rail cars, equipment, real estate and office equipment under operating leases. Certain real estate leases contain rent
holidays and rent escalation clauses. Most of the Company's real estate lease agreements include renewal periods at the Company's option. For its operating
leases, the Company recognizes rent holiday periods and scheduled rent increases on a straight-line basis over the lease term beginning with the date the
Company takes possession of the leased assets.

Landfill Accounting

The Company amortizes landfill improvements and certain landfill-related permits over their estimated useful lives. The units-of-consumption method
is used to amortize land, landfill cell construction, asset retirement costs and remaining landfill cells and sites. The Company also utilizes the units-of-
consumption method to record closure and post-closure obligations for landfill cells and sites. Under the units-of-consumption method, the Company
includes future estimated construction and asset retirement costs, as well as costs incurred to date, in the amortization base of the landfill assets. Additionally,
where appropriate, as described below, the Company includes probable expansion airspace that has yet to be permitted in the calculation of the total
remaining useful life of the landfill. If it is determined that expansion capacity should no longer be considered in calculating the recoverability of a landfill
asset, the Company may be required to recognize an asset impairment or incur significantly higher amortization expense. If at any time the Company makes
the decision to abandon the expansion effort, the capitalized costs related to the expansion effort are expensed immediately.

Landfill assets—Landfill assets include the costs of landfill site acquisition, permits and cell construction incurred to date. These amounts are recorded
at cost, which includes capitalized interest as applicable. Landfill assets, net of amortization, are combined with management's estimate of the costs required
to complete construction of the landfill to determine the amount to be amortized over the remaining estimated useful economic life of a site. Amortization of
landfill assets is recorded on a units-of-consumption basis, such that the landfill assets should be completely amortized at the date the landfill ceases
accepting waste. Amortization totaled $9.7 million, $11.2 million and $14.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Changes in estimated costs to complete construction are applied prospectively to the amortization rate.

Landfill capacity—Landfill capacity, which is the basis for the amortization of landfill assets and for the accrual of final closure and post-closure
obligations, represents total permitted airspace plus unpermitted airspace that management believes is probable of ultimately being permitted based on
established criteria. The Company applies the following criteria for evaluating the probability of obtaining a permit for future expansion airspace at existing
sites, which provides management a basis to evaluate the likelihood of success of unpermitted expansions:

• Personnel are actively working to obtain the permit or permit modifications (land use, state, provincial and federal) necessary for expansion of an
existing landfill, and progress is being made on the project.

• Management expects to submit the application within the next year and to receive all necessary approvals to accept waste within the next 5 years.

• At the time the expansion is included in the Company's estimate of the landfill's useful economic life, it is probable that the required approvals will
be received within the normal application and processing time periods for approvals in the jurisdiction in which the landfill is located.
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(2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

• The Company or other owner of the landfill has a legal right to use or obtain the right to use the land associated with the expansion plan.

• There are no significant known political, technical, legal or business restrictions or issues that could impair the success of such expansion.

• A financial feasibility analysis has been completed and the results demonstrate that the expansion will have a positive financial and operational
impact such that management is committed to pursuing the expansion.

• Additional airspace and related additional costs, including permitting, final closure and post-closure costs, have been estimated based on the
conceptual design of the proposed expansion.

As of December 31, 2016, there were two unpermitted expansions at two locations included in the Company's landfill accounting model, which
represented 17.7% of the Company's remaining airspace at that date. If actual expansion airspace is significantly different from the Company's estimate of
expansion airspace, the amortization rates used for the units-of-consumption method would change, therefore impacting the Company's profitability. If the
Company determines that there is less actual expansion airspace at a landfill, this would increase amortization expense recorded and decrease profitability,
while if the Company determines a landfill has more actual expansion airspace, amortization expense would decrease and profitability would increase.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company had 11 active landfill sites (including the Company's two non-commercial landfills), which have estimated
remaining lives (based on anticipated waste volumes and remaining highly probable airspace) as follows:

    Remaining
Lives

(Years)  

Remaining Highly Probable Airspace
(cubic yards) (in thousands)

Facility Name  Location  Permitted  Unpermitted  Total

Altair  Texas  4  562  —  562
Buttonwillow  California  26  6,760  —  6,760
Deer Park  Texas  6  230  —  230
Deer Trail  Colorado  29  1,862  —  1,862
Grassy Mountain  Utah  55  375  4,830  5,205
Kimball  Nebraska  18  232  —  232
Lambton  Ontario  38  4,973  —  4,973
Lone Mountain  Oklahoma  31  4,627  —  4,627
Ryley  Alberta  14  494  880  1,374
Sawyer  North Dakota  82  3,671  —  3,671
Westmorland  California  64  2,732  —  2,732
      26,518  5,710  32,228

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company had no cubic yards of permitted, but not highly probable, airspace.

The following table presents the remaining highly probable airspace from January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2016 (in thousands of cubic yards):

 2016  2015  2014

Remaining capacity at January 1, 29,786  30,544  29,323
Addition of highly probable airspace, net 3,464  516  2,809
Consumed (1,022)  (1,274)  (1,588)
Remaining capacity at December 31, 32,228  29,786  30,544

Amortization of cell construction costs and accrual of cell closure obligations—Landfills are typically comprised of a number of cells, which are
constructed within a defined acreage (or footprint). The cells are typically discrete units, which require both separate construction and separate capping and
closure procedures. Cell construction costs are the costs required to excavate and construct the landfill cell. These costs are typically amortized on a units-of-
consumption basis, such that they are
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(2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

completely amortized when the specific cell ceases accepting waste. In some instances, the Company has landfills that are engineered and constructed as
"progressive trenches." In progressive trench landfills, a number of contiguous cells form a progressive trench. In those instances, the Company amortizes cell
construction costs over the airspace within the entire trench, such that the cell construction costs will be fully amortized at the end of the trench useful life.

The design and construction of a landfill does not create a landfill asset retirement obligation. Rather, the asset retirement obligation for cell closure
(the cost associated with capping each cell) is incurred in relatively small increments as waste is placed in the landfill. Therefore, the cost required to
construct the cell cap is capitalized as an asset retirement cost and a liability of an equal amount is established, based on the discounted cash flow associated
with each capping event, as airspace is consumed. Spending for cell capping is reflected as environmental expenditures within operating activities in the
statement of cash flows.

Landfill final closure and post-closure liabilities—The balance of landfill final closure and post-closure liabilities at December 31, 2016 and 2015 was
$30.6 million and $32.0 million, respectively. The Company has material financial commitments for the costs associated with requirements of the
Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") and the comparable regulatory agency in Canada for landfill final closure and post-closure activities. In the
United States, the landfill final closure and post-closure requirements are established under the standards of the EPA, and are implemented and applied on a
state-by-state basis. The Company develops estimates for the cost of these activities based on an evaluation of site-specific facts and circumstances, including
the Company's interpretation of current regulatory requirements and proposed regulatory changes. Such estimates may change in the future due to various
circumstances including, but not limited to, permit modifications, changes in legislation or regulations, technological changes and results of environmental
studies.

Final closure costs are the costs incurred after the site ceases to accept waste, but before the landfill is certified as closed by the applicable state
regulatory agency. These costs generally include the costs required to cap the final cell of the landfill (if not included in cell closure), the costs required to
dismantle certain structures for landfills and other landfill improvements, and regulation-mandated groundwater monitoring, and leachate management. Post-
closure costs involve the maintenance and monitoring of a landfill site that has been certified closed by the applicable regulatory agency. These costs
generally include groundwater monitoring and leachate management. Regulatory post-closure periods are generally 30 years after landfill closure. Final
closure and post-closure obligations are accrued on a units-of-consumption basis, such that the present value of the final closure and post-closure obligations
are fully accrued at the date the landfill discontinues accepting waste.

Cell closure, final closure and post closure costs (also referred to as "asset retirement obligations") are calculated by estimating the total obligation in
current dollars, adjusted for inflation (1.02% during 2016 and 2015) and discounted at the Company's credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate (6.23% and 5.99%
during 2016 and 2015, respectively.)

Non-Landfill Closure and Post-Closure Liabilities

Non-landfill closure costs include costs required to dismantle and decontaminate certain structures and other costs incurred during the closure process.
Post-closure costs, if required, include associated maintenance and monitoring costs as required by the closure permit. Post-closure periods are performance-
based and are not generally specified in terms of years in the closure permit, but generally range from 10 to 30 years or more.

The Company records its non-landfill closure and post-closure liability by: (i) estimating the current cost of closing a non-landfill facility and the post-
closure care of that facility, if required, based upon the closure plan that the Company is required to follow under its operating permit, or in the event the
facility operates with a permit that does not contain a closure plan, based upon legally enforceable closure commitments made by the Company to various
governmental agencies; (ii) using probability scenarios as to when in the future operations may cease; (iii) inflating the current cost of closing the non-
landfill facility on a probability weighted basis using the inflation rate to the time of closing under each probability scenario; and (iv) discounting the future
value of each closing scenario back to the present using the credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate. Non-landfill closure and post-closure obligations arise when
the Company commences operations. The balance of non-landfill closure and post-closure liabilities at December 31, 2016 and 2015 was $27.7 million and
$24.2 million, respectively.

The estimates for non-landfill closure and post-closure liabilities are inherently uncertain due to the possibility that permit and regulatory requirements
will change in the future, impacting the estimation of total costs and the timing of the expenditures. Management reviews non-landfill closure and post-
closure liabilities for changes to key assumptions that would impact the amount of the recorded liabilities. Changes that would prompt management to revise
a liability estimate include changes in legal requirements that impact the Company's expected closure plan or scope of work, in the market price of a
significant cost
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item, in the probability scenarios as to when future operations at a location might cease, or in the expected timing of the cost expenditures. Changes in
estimates for non-landfill closure and post-closure events immediately impact the required liability and the value of the corresponding asset. If a change is
made to a fully-consumed asset, the adjustment is charged immediately to expense. When a change in estimate relates to an asset that has not been fully
consumed, the adjustment to the asset is recognized in income prospectively as a component of amortization. Historically, material changes to non-landfill
closure and post-closure estimates have been infrequent.

Remedial Liabilities

The balance of remedial liabilities at December 31, 2016 and 2015 was $128.0 million and $132.0 million, respectively. Remedial liabilities, including
Superfund liabilities, include the costs of removal or containment of contaminated material, treatment of potentially contaminated groundwater and
maintenance and monitoring costs necessary to comply with regulatory requirements. Most of the Company's remedial liabilities relate to the active and
inactive hazardous waste treatment and disposal facilities which the Company acquired in the last 15 years and 35 Superfund sites owned by third parties for
which the Company agreed to indemnify certain remedial liabilities owed or potentially owed to governmental entities by the sellers of certain assets (the
"CSD assets") which the Company acquired in 2002. The Company performed extensive due diligence to estimate accurately the aggregate liability for
remedial liabilities to which the Company became potentially liable as a result of the acquisitions. The Company's estimate of remedial liabilities involved
an analysis of such factors as: (i) the nature and extent of environmental contamination (if any); (ii) the terms of applicable permits and agreements with
regulatory authorities as to cleanup procedures and whether modifications to such permits and agreements will likely need to be negotiated; (iii) the cost of
performing anticipated cleanup activities based upon current technology; and (iv) in the case of Superfund and other sites where other parties will also be
responsible for a portion of the cleanup costs, the likely allocation of such costs and the ability of such other parties to pay their share. Remedial liabilities
and on-going operations are reviewed quarterly and adjustments are made as necessary.

The Company periodically evaluates potential remedial liabilities at sites that it owns or operates or to which the Company or the sellers of the CSD
assets (or the respective predecessors of the Company or such sellers) transported or disposed of waste, including 129 Superfund sites as of December 31,
2016. The Company periodically reviews and evaluates sites requiring remediation, including Superfund sites, giving consideration to the nature (i.e., owner,
operator, arranger, transporter or generator) and the extent (i.e., amount and nature of waste hauled to the location, number of years of site operations or other
relevant factors) of the Company's (or such sellers') alleged connection with the site, the extent (if any) to which the Company believes it may have an
obligation to indemnify cleanup costs in connection with the site, the regulatory context surrounding the site, the accuracy and strength of evidence
connecting the Company (or such sellers) to the location, the number, connection and financial ability of other named and unnamed potentially responsible
parties ("PRPs") and the nature and estimated cost of the likely remedy. Where the Company concludes that it is probable that a liability has been incurred
and an amount can be estimated, a provision is made, based upon management's judgment and prior experience, of such estimated liability.

Remedial liabilities are inherently difficult to estimate. Estimating remedial liabilities requires that the existing environmental contamination be
understood. There are risks that the actual quantities of contaminants differ from the results of the site investigation, and that contaminants exist that have not
been identified by the site investigation. In addition, the amount of remedial liabilities recorded is dependent on the remedial method selected. There is a risk
that funds will be expended on a remedial solution that is not successful, which could result in the additional incremental costs of an alternative solution.
Such estimates, which are subject to change, are subsequently revised if and when additional or new information becomes available.

Remedial liabilities are discounted only when the timing of the payments is determinable and the amounts are estimable. Management's experience has
been that the timing of payments for remedial liabilities is not usually estimable, and therefore the amounts of remedial liabilities are not generally
discounted. In the case of remedial liabilities assumed in connection with acquisitions, acquired liabilities are recorded at fair value as of the dates of the
acquisitions calculated by inflating costs in current dollars using an estimate of future inflation rates as of the respective acquisition dates until the expected
time of payment, and then discounting the amount of the payments to their present value using a risk-free discount rate as of the acquisition dates. Discounts
have been and will be applied to the remedial liabilities as follows:
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• Remedial liabilities assumed relating to acquisitions are and will continue to be inflated using the inflation rates at the time of each acquisition
(ranging from 1.01% to 2.57%) until the expected time of payment, then discounted at the risk-free interest rate at the time of such acquisition
(ranging from 1.37% to 5.99%).

• Remedial liabilities incurred subsequent to the acquisitions and remedial liabilities of the Company that existed prior to the acquisitions have been
and will continue to be recorded at the estimated current value of the liabilities, which is usually neither increased for inflation nor reduced for
discounting.

Foreign Currency

During the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company had operations in Canada, and to a much lesser extent, Mexico and Trinidad. The
functional currencies of those operations are their local currency and therefore assets and liabilities of those foreign operations are translated to U.S. dollars at
the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date and revenue and expenses at the average exchange rate for the period. Gains and losses from the
translation of the consolidated financial statements of foreign subsidiaries into U.S. dollars are included in stockholders' equity as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive loss. Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are recognized in the consolidated statements of
operations. Recorded balances that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency are remeasured to the functional currency using the
exchange rate at the balance sheet date and gains or losses are recorded in the statements of operations.

As part of the Company’s overall capital structure, intercompany loans have been established between subsidiaries of the Company and in some cases
are denominated in Canadian dollars. These intercompany loans are considered to be of a long-term investment nature as the repayment of these loans is
neither planned nor anticipated in the foreseeable future. Impacts from the remeasurement of these loan amounts from the Canadian to the U.S. dollar
reporting currency are recorded as an adjustment to foreign currency translation adjustment within accumulated other comprehensive loss, a component of
shareholders' equity.

Revenue Recognition and Deferred Revenue

In 2016, the Company generated services and product revenues through the following operating segments: Technical Services, Industrial Services,
Field Services, Safety-Kleen, Oil and Gas Field Services, and Lodging Services. The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, the price is fixed or determinable, and collection is reasonably assured. In many
cases revenue is recognized net of estimated allowances. Revenue is generated by short-term projects, most of which are governed by master service
agreements that are long-term in nature. These master service agreements are typically entered into with the Company's larger customers and outline the
pricing and legal frameworks for such arrangements.

Due to the nature of the Company's business and the invoices that result from the services provided, customers may withhold payments and attempt to
negotiate amounts invoiced. Accordingly, management establishes a revenue allowance to cover the estimated amounts of revenue that may need to be
credited to customers' accounts in future periods. The Company records a provision for revenue allowances based on specific review of particular customers,
historical trends and other relevant information.

Technical Services revenue is generated from fees charged for hazardous material management and disposal services including onsite environmental
management services, collection and transportation, packaging, recycling, treatment and disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. Services are
provided based on purchase orders or agreements with the customer and include prices based upon units of volume of waste, and transportation and other
fees. Collection and transportation, and packaging revenues are recognized when the transported waste is received at the disposal facility. Revenues for
treatment and disposal of hazardous waste are recognized upon completion of wastewater treatment, final disposition in a landfill or incineration of the waste,
all at Company-owned sites, or when the waste is shipped to a third party for processing and disposal. Revenues from recycled oil are recognized upon
shipment to the customer. Revenue for all other Technical Services is recognized when services are rendered. The Company, at the request of a customer,
periodically enters into bundled arrangements for the collection and transportation and disposal of waste. The Company accounts for such arrangements as
multiple-element arrangements with each substantive deliverable treated as a separate unit of accounting. The Company measures and allocates the
consideration from the arrangement to the separate units, based on evidence of the estimated selling price for each deliverable. Revenues from waste that is
not yet completely processed and disposed and the related costs are deferred. The revenue is recognized and the deferred costs are expensed when the related
services are completed.
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Industrial Services provides industrial and specialty services, such as high-pressure and chemical cleaning, daylighting services, production servicing,
decoking, pigging and material processing to refineries, chemical plants, oil sands facilities, pulp and paper mills, and other industrial facilities. These
services are provided based on purchase orders or agreements with the customer and include prices based upon daily, hourly or job rates for equipment,
materials and personnel. Revenues are recognized over the term of the agreements or as services are performed. Field Services provides cleanup services on
customer sites or other locations on a scheduled or emergency response basis. These services are provided based on purchase orders or agreements with the
customers and include prices based upon daily, hourly or job rates for equipment, materials and personnel. Revenues are recorded as services are performed.
Revenue is recognized on contracts with retainage when services have been rendered and collectability is reasonably assured.

Safety-Kleen service revenues are generated from providing parts cleaning services, containerized waste services, oil collection services, blending and
packaging of blended oils, and other complementary services. Product revenues consist of sales of high quality base and blended lubricating oils
manufactured from re-refining used oil and sales of recycled used oil collected in excess of the Company's re-refining capacity into recycled fuel oil. Revenue
is recognized when products are delivered and services are performed. Parts cleaning services generally consist of placing a specially designed parts washer at
a customer's premises and then, on a recurring basis, delivering clean solvent or aqueous-based washing fluid, cleaning and servicing the parts washer and
removing the used solvent or aqueous fluid. The Company also services customer-owned parts washers. Revenue from parts cleaning services is recognized
over the service interval. Service intervals represent the actual amount of time between service visits to a particular parts cleaning customer. Average service
intervals vary from seven to 14 weeks depending on several factors, such as customer accommodation, types of machines serviced and frequency of use.
Containerized waste services consist of profiling, collecting, transporting and recycling or disposing of a wide variety of hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes. Collection and transportation, and packaging revenues are recognized when the transported waste is received at the disposal facility. Other
complementary products and services include vacuum services, sale of allied supply products and other environmental services. The high quality base and
blended lubricating oils are sold to third-party distributors, retailers, government agencies, fleets, railroads and industrial customers. In 2016, the Company
implemented a direct-to-consumer sales model for Safety-Kleen’s renewable oil products. The recycled fuel oil is sold to asphalt plants, industrial plants,
blenders, pulp and paper companies, vacuum gas oil producers and marine diesel oil producers. Revenue is recognized upon the transfer of title.

Oil and Gas Field Services provides fluid handling, fluid hauling, surface rentals, seismic services, and directional boring services to the energy sector
serving oil and gas exploration and production and power generation. These services are provided based on purchase orders or agreements with the customer
and include prices based upon daily, hourly or job rates for equipment, materials and personnel. Revenues for such services are recognized over the term of
the agreements or as services are performed. Oil and Gas Field Services also provides equipment rentals to support drill sites. Revenue from rentals is
recognized ratably over the rental period.

Lodging Services provides accommodation services, along with catering and hospitality primarily in remote areas of Western Canada.  In addition,
within Lodging Services is a manufacturing unit that provides construction of modular buildings including modular camp accommodations and wastewater
solutions.  Revenue for lodging and related services is recognized in the period each room is used by the customer based on the related lodging agreements.
Revenue for manufacturing services is recognized based on contracted terms resulting in either a percentage of completion methodology or upon transfer of
ownership of completed units.

  For all periods presented, any amounts billed to customers related to shipping and handling are classified as revenue and the Company's shipping and
handling costs are included in costs of revenues. In the course of the Company's operations, it collects sales tax from its customers and recognizes a current
liability which is then relieved when the taxes are remitted to the appropriate governmental authorities. The Company excludes the sales tax collected from
its revenues.

Advertising Expense

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense was approximately $10.8 million in 2016, $15.0 million in 2015 and $11.3
million in 2014.
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Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense over the requisite service
period, which generally represents the vesting period, and includes an estimate of awards that will be forfeited. In addition, the Company issues awards with
performance targets which are recognized as expense over the requisite service period when management believes it is probable those targets will be
achieved. The fair value of the Company's grants of restricted stock are based on the quoted market price for the Company's common stock on the respective
dates of grant. Compensation expense is based on the number of awards expected to vest. Forfeitures estimated when recognizing compensation expense are
adjusted when actual forfeitures differ from the estimate.

Income Taxes

There are two major components of income tax expense, current and deferred. Current income tax expense approximates cash to be paid or refunded for
taxes for the applicable period. Deferred tax expense or benefit is the result of changes between deferred tax assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are determined based upon the temporary differences between the financial statement basis and tax basis of assets and liabilities as well as from net
operating loss and tax credit carryforwards as measured by the enacted tax rates, which will be in effect when these differences reverse. The Company
evaluates the recoverability of future tax deductions and credits and a valuation allowance is established by tax jurisdiction when, based on an evaluation of
both positive and negative objective verifiable evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of deferred tax assets will not be realized.

The Company recognizes and measures a tax benefit from uncertain tax positions when it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained
on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The Company recognizes a liability for unrecognized tax benefits
resulting from uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The Company adjusts these liabilities when its judgment changes as a
result of the evaluation of new information not previously available. Due to the complexity of some of these uncertainties, the ultimate resolution may result
in a payment that is materially different from the current estimate or future recognition of an unrecognized benefit. These differences will be reflected as
increases or decreases to income tax expense in the period in which they are determined.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits within the income tax expense line in the consolidated statements
of operations. Accrued interest and penalties are included within deferred taxes, unrecognized tax benefits and other long-term liabilities line in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Earnings per Share ("EPS")

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing income available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during
the period. Diluted EPS gives effect to all potentially dilutive common shares that were outstanding during the period.

Business Combinations

For all business combinations, the Company records 100% of all assets and liabilities of the acquired business, including goodwill, at their estimated
fair values. Acquisition-related costs are expensed in the period in which the costs are incurred and the services are received.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Standards implemented

In February 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standard Update ("ASU") 2015-02, Consolidation (Topic
810). The amendment provides guidance regarding amendments to the consolidation analysis. The adoption of ASU 2015-02 as of January 1, 2016 did not
have an impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In September 2015, FASB issued ASU 2015-16, Business Combinations (Topic 805). The amendment provides guidance to simplify the accounting for
adjustments made to provisional amounts recognized in a business combination. This amendment eliminates the requirement to retrospectively account for
those adjustments. ASU 2015-16 is applied prospectively to
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adjustments to provisional amounts that occur after the effective date of this update. The adoption of ASU 2015-16 as of January 1, 2016 did not have a
material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Standards to be implemented

The Company is currently evaluating the impact that the below standards to be implemented will have on the Company's consolidated financial
statements.

In May 2014, FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). ASU 2014-09 outlines a single comprehensive model
for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes most current revenue recognition guidance, including
industry-specific guidance. In August 2015, FASB issued ASU 2015-14 which deferred the effective date of ASU 2014-09 for all entities by one year. In
March 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-08, which reduces the potential for diversity in practice arising from inconsistent application of the principal versus
agent guidance, as well as the cost and complexity of applying Topic 606 both at transition and on an ongoing basis. In April 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-
10, which reduces the potential for diversity in initial application, as well as the cost and complexity of applying Topic 606 both at transition and on an
ongoing basis. In May 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-12, which provided narrow scope improvements and practical expedients on assessing collectability,
presentation of sales taxes, noncash consideration, and completed contracts and contract modifications at transition. ASU 2014-09 is currently effective for
annual reporting periods (including interim reporting periods within those periods) beginning after December 15, 2017. The guidance permits two methods
of adoption: retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented (full retrospective method), or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially
applying the guidance recognized at the date of initial application (the cumulative catch-up transition method). The Company expects that it will adopt ASU
2014‑09 beginning in the first quarter of 2018 and is in the initial stages of its evaluation of the impact of the new standard on its accounting policies,
processes, and system requirements. The Company has assigned internal resources to assist in the evaluation. A final decision regarding the adoption method
has not been finalized at this time. The Company’s final determination will depend on a number of factors, such as the significance of the impact of the new
standard on its financial results, system readiness, and its ability to accumulate and analyze the information necessary to assess the impact on prior period
financial statements, as necessary.

In July 2015, FASB issued ASU 2015-11, Inventory (Topic 330). The amendment provides guidance regarding the measurement of inventory. Entities
should measure inventory within the scope of this update at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The amendments in this update are currently effective
for annual reporting periods (including interim reporting periods within those periods) beginning after December 15, 2016. Adoption is not expected to have
a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In January 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-10). The amendment provides guidance to enhance the
reporting model for financial instruments to provide users of financial statements with more decision-useful information. The amendment in this update is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019.

In February 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The amendment increases transparency and comparability among organizations by
recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet and disclosing key information about leasing arrangements. ASU 2016-02 should be
applied using a modified retrospective approach and early adoption is permitted. The amendments in this update are effective for annual reporting periods
(including interim reporting periods within those periods) beginning after December 15, 2018.

In March 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-09, Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 718). The amendment simplifies several aspects of the
accounting for share-based payment transactions, including the income tax consequences, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities and
classification on the statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-09 allows for retrospective or prospective application and early adoption is permitted. The
amendments in this update are effective for annual reporting periods (including interim reporting periods within those periods) beginning after December 15,
2016. Adoption is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In August 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments (a
consensus of the Emerging Issues Task Force). The amendment provides updated guidance on
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eight specific cash flow issues, including debt prepayment or debt extinguishment costs, settlement of zero-coupon debt instruments, contingent
consideration payments made after a business combination, proceeds from settlement of insurance claims and corporate-owned life insurance, distributions
received from equity method investees, beneficial interests in securitization transactions and separately identifiable cash flows and application of the
predominance principle. Early adoption is permitted. The amendments in this update are effective for annual reporting periods (including interim reporting
periods within those periods) beginning after December 15, 2017.

In January 2017, FASB issued ASU 2017-01, Business Combinations (Topic 805): Clarifying the Definition of a Business. The amendments in this
Update provide a more robust framework to use in determining when a set of assets and activities is a business. The amendments in this Update should be
applied prospectively and are effective for annual reporting periods (including interim reporting periods within those periods) beginning after December 15,
2017. Adoption is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In January 2017, FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment. The
amendments in this Update simplifies the subsequent measurement of goodwill by eliminating Step 2 from the goodwill impairment test. The amendments in
this Update should be applied prospectively and are effective for annual reporting periods (including interim reporting periods within those periods)
beginning after December 15, 2019.

(3) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

2016 Acquisitions
    

During 2016, the Company acquired seven businesses that complement the strategy to create a closed loop model as it relates to the sale of the
Company's oil products. These acquisitions provided the Company with two additional oil re-refineries while also expanding its used motor oil collection
network and providing greater blending and packaging capabilities. These acquisitions also provide the Company with greater access to customers in the
West Coast region of the United States and additional locations with Part B permits. Operations of these acquisitions are primarily being integrated into the
Safety-Kleen operating segment with certain operations also being integrated into the Technical Services and Industrial Services operating segments.

The combined purchase price for the seven acquisitions was approximately $205.0 million paid in cash and subject to customary post-closing
adjustments. The combined amount of direct revenue from the acquisitions included in the Company's results of operations for the year ended December 31,
2016 was approximately $69.8 million. Upon acquisition, the acquired entities are immediately integrated into the Company's operating segments. Therefore
it is impracticable to measure earnings attributable to the acquired businesses. During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company incurred acquisition-
related costs of approximately $1.7 million in connection with the transactions which are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statements of operations.
 

The purchase price allocation for acquisitions may reflect various fair value estimates and analysis, including preliminary work performed by third-
party valuation specialists. In addition, purchase prices for acquisitions may reflect preliminary working capital based adjustments. These estimates are
subject to change within the measurement period as valuations and working capital adjustments are finalized. The primary areas of the preliminary purchase
price allocation that are subject to change relate to the fair values of certain tangible assets and liabilities acquired, the valuation of intangible assets
acquired, certain legal matters, income and income based taxes, and residual goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are recorded in the reporting period
in which the estimates are finalized and adjustment amounts are determined.
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The components and preliminary allocation of the purchase price consist of the following amounts (in thousands):

 
At Acquisition

Dates  
Measurement Period

Adjustments  

At Acquisition Dates As
Reported 

December 31, 2016

Accounts receivable $ 17,384  $ (1,617)  $ 15,767
Inventories and supplies 13,859  (1,344)  12,515
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 920  (143)  777
Property, plant and equipment 132,705  10,320  143,025
Permits and other intangibles 23,405  5,451  28,856
Current liabilities (19,482)  (776)  (20,258)
Closure and post-closure liabilities, less current portion

(1,709)  (699)  (2,408)
Remedial liabilities, less current portion (4)  (2,037)  (2,041)
Deferred taxes, unrecognized tax benefits and other long-term liabilities (8,663)  (8,356)  (17,019)
Total identifiable net assets 158,415  799  159,214
Goodwill 48,500  (2,709)  45,791
Total purchase price, net of cash acquired $ 206,915  $ (1,910)  $ 205,005

The excess of the total purchase price, which includes the aggregate cash consideration paid in excess of the fair value of the tangible net assets and
intangible asset acquired, was recorded as goodwill. The goodwill recognized is attributable to the expected operating synergies and growth potential that
the Company expects to realize from these acquisitions. Goodwill generated from the acquisitions was not deductible for tax purposes.

Pro forma revenue and earnings amounts on a combined basis as if these acquisitions had been completed on January 1, 2014 are immaterial to the
consolidated financial statements of the Company since that date.

2015 Acquisitions

Thermo Fluids Inc.

On April 11, 2015, the Company completed the acquisition of Heckmann Environmental Services, Inc. (“HES”) and Thermo Fluids Inc. (“TFI”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of HES. The acquisition was accomplished through a purchase by Safety-Kleen, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
of all of the issued and outstanding shares of HES from Nuverra Environmental Solutions, Inc. HES is a holding company that does not conduct any
operations. TFI provides environmental services, including used oil recycling, used oil filter recycling, antifreeze products, parts washers and solvent
recycling, and industrial waste management services, including vacuum services, remediation, lab pack and hazardous waste management. The Company
acquired TFI for a purchase price of $79.3 million. The acquisition was financed with cash on hand and expands the Company’s environmental services
customer base while also complimenting the Safety-Kleen network and presence in the western United States. The amount of revenue from TFI included in
the Company's results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 was $38.0 million and $33.8 million, respectively. Upon acquisition,
TFI was immediately integrated into the Company's Safety-Kleen operating segment. Therefore it is impracticable to measure earnings attributable to TFI.

The allocation of the purchase price was based on estimates of the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of April 11, 2015. The
Company believes that such information provides a reasonable basis for estimating the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The Company
finalized the purchase accounting for the acquisition of TFI in the second quarter of 2016.
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Preliminary Allocations
as reported at December

31, 2015  
Measurement Period

Adjustments  Final Allocations

Accounts Receivable $ 7,585  $ (284)  $ 7,301
Inventories and supplies 1,791  —  1,791
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 665  —  665
Property, plant and equipment 28,862  (1,221)  27,641
Permits and other intangibles 18,100  —  18,100
Current liabilities (5,845)  (39)  (5,884)
Closure and post-closure liabilities (1,676)  (657)  (2,333)
Deferred taxes, unrecognized tax benefits and other long-term liabilities (10,030)  856  (9,174)
Total identifiable net assets 39,452  (1,345)  38,107
Goodwill 39,134  2,095  41,229
Total $ 78,586  $ 750  $ 79,336

Pro forma revenue and earnings amounts on a combined basis as if TFI had been acquired on January 1, 2014 are immaterial to the consolidated
financial statements of the Company since that date.

Other 2015 Acquisitions

In December 2015, the Company acquired certain assets and assumed certain defined liabilities of a privately owned company for approximately $14.7
million in cash. That company specializes in the collection and recycling of used oil filters and was a service provider to the Safety-Kleen operating segment
prior to the acquisition. The acquired company has been integrated into the Safety-Kleen operating segment. In connection with this acquisition a
preliminary goodwill amount of $7.4 million was recognized.

2014 Acquisitions

In 2014, the Company acquired the assets of two privately owned companies for approximately $16.1 million in cash, net of cash acquired. The
acquired companies have been integrated into the Technical Services and Lodging Services operating segments.

(4) DISPOSITION OF BUSINESS

On September 1, 2016, the Company completed the sale of its catalyst services business, which was a non-core business previously included within the
Industrial Services operating segment, for approximately $50.6 million ($49.2 million net of cash retained by the catalyst services business) subject to
customary post-closing conditions. As a result of the sale, the Company recognized during the year ended December 31, 2016, a pre-tax gain of $16.9 million
which is included in gain on sale of business in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations. Inclusive within this gain was $1.6 million of
transactional related costs.

The following table presents the carrying amounts of the Company's Catalyst Services business immediately preceding the disposition on September 1,
2016 (in thousands):

 September 1, 2016
Total current assets $ 19,019
Property, plant and equipment, net 11,154
Total other assets 6,500
Total assets divested $ 36,673
Total current liabilities 4,040
Total other liabilities 566
Total liabilities divested $ 4,606
Net carrying value divested $ 32,067
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The Company evaluated the disposition and determined it did not meet the “major effect” criteria for classification as a discontinued operation largely
due to the nature and size of the operations of the disposed of entity. However, the Company determined that the disposition did represent an individually
significant component of its business. The following table presents income attributable to the catalyst services business included in the Company's
consolidated results of operations for each of the periods shown and through its disposition on September 1, 2016 (in thousands):

For the years ended December 31,
2016  2015  2014

Income before provision for income taxes $ 290  $ 2,520  $ 358

(5) INVENTORIES AND SUPPLIES

Inventories and supplies consisted of the following (in thousands):

 December 31, 2016  December 31, 2015

Oil and oil related products $ 52,158  $ 33,603
Supplies and drums 90,610  78,132
Solvent and solutions 8,566  8,868
Modular camp accommodations 15,255  15,126
Other 11,839  13,792
Total inventories and supplies $ 178,428  $ 149,521

The increase in oil and oil related products as of December 31, 2016 as compared to December 31, 2015 was primarily the result of the Company's
recent acquisitions. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, other inventories consisted primarily of cleaning fluids, such as absorbents and wipers, and
automotive fluids, such as windshield washer fluid and antifreeze.

(6) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the following (in thousands):

 December 31, 2016  December 31, 2015

Land $ 120,575  $ 100,582
Asset retirement costs (non-landfill) 14,567  12,434
Landfill assets 139,708  136,624
Buildings and improvements 373,160  344,209
Camp equipment 152,740  149,361
Vehicles 541,022  500,619
Equipment 1,483,736  1,328,915
Furniture and fixtures 5,492  5,337
Construction in progress 146,904  113,657
 2,977,904  2,691,738
Less - accumulated depreciation and amortization 1,366,077  1,159,271
Total property, plant and equipment, net $ 1,611,827  $ 1,532,467

Interest in the amount of $5.5 million, $2.0 million and $0.5 million was capitalized to fixed assets during the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015
and 2014, respectively. Depreciation expense, inclusive of landfill amortization was $247.0 million, $234.0 million and $239.4 million for the years ended
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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The changes in goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 were as follows (in thousands):

 
Technical
Services  

Industrial
and Field Services  Safety-Kleen  

Oil, Gas and Lodging
Services  Totals

Balance at January 1, 2015 $ 50,092  $ 109,214  $ 224,756  $ 68,607  $ 452,669
Increase from current period acquisitions —  —  46,539  —  46,539
Measurement period adjustments from prior
period acquisitions —  —  —  3,574  3,574
Goodwill impairment charge —  —  —  (31,992)  (31,992)
Foreign currency translation and other (825)  (3,928)  (4,951)  (7,981)  (17,685)
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 49,267  $ 105,286  $ 266,344  $ 32,208  $ 453,105
Increase from current period acquisitions 12,572  6,953  26,266  —  45,791
Measurement period adjustments from prior
period acquisitions —  —  2,095  —  2,095
Decrease from disposition of business —  (4,994)  —  —  (4,994)
Goodwill impairment charge —  —  —  (34,013)  (34,013)
Foreign currency translation and other (723)  723  1,365  1,805  3,170
Balance at December 31, 2016 $ 61,116  $ 107,968  $ 296,070  $ —  $ 465,154

The Company assesses goodwill for impairment on an annual basis as of December 31, or at an interim date when events or changes in the business
environment would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying value.

The Company conducted its annual impairment test of goodwill for all of the Company's reporting units with remaining goodwill as of December 31,
2016 and determined that no adjustment to the carrying value of goodwill for any reporting unit was then necessary because the fair values of the reporting
units exceeded their respective carrying values. The fair value of all reporting units was determined using an income approach based upon estimates of future
discounted cash flows. The resulting estimates of fair value were validated through the consideration of other factors such as the fair value of comparable
companies to the reporting units and a reconciliation of the sum of all estimated fair values of the reporting units to the Company’s overall market
capitalization. In all cases, except for the Company's Industrial Services and Kleen Performance Products reporting units, the estimated fair values of the
reporting units significantly exceeded their carrying values.

Significant judgments and unobservable inputs categorized as Level III in the fair value hierarchy are inherent in the impairment tests performed and
include assumptions about the amount and timing of expected future cash flows, growth rates, and the determination of appropriate discount rates. The
Company believes that the assumptions used in its annual and any interim date impairment tests are reasonable, but variations in any of the assumptions may
result in different calculations of fair values and impairment charges.

The impacts of any adverse business and market conditions which impact the overall performance of the Company's reporting units will continue to be
monitored. If the Company's reporting units do not achieve the financial performance that the Company expects, it is possible that additional goodwill
impairment charges may result. There can therefore be no assurance that future events will not result in an impairment of goodwill.

At December 31, 2016, the total accumulated goodwill impairment charges was $189.4 million, of which $34.0 million was recorded during the year
ended December 31, 2016 within the Lodging Services reporting unit, $32.0 million was recorded during the year ended December 31, 2015 within the Oil
and Gas Field Services reporting unit, and $123.4 million was recorded within the Kleen Performance Products reporting unit during the year ended
December 31, 2014.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2016, certain events and changes in circumstances arose which led management to conclude that the fair value
of the Lodging Services reporting unit was more likely than not less than its carrying value, and
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therefore an interim goodwill impairment test was performed. The primary events and changes in circumstances which led to this conclusion were:

• Macroeconomic conditions for service companies operating in western Canada’s oil sands region deteriorated in 2016 primarily due to persistently
low oil and gas prices. Persistently low prices have caused Lodging Services' primary customers to significantly reduce, defer, or cancel oil and gas
projects that are in, or had been planned for, this region during periods of more robust commodity pricing.

• Government regulatory delays related to oil and gas pipeline projects have reduced management’s confidence that these projects will move forward
in a timely manner or in the form that had been originally contemplated by their planners. These projects represented a significant portion of
Lodging Services' future growth in terms of the demand for temporary accommodations provided by the Lodging Services reporting unit. While
some of these projects have made recent advancements towards successful government approval, the lack of meaningful progress to date does not
provide enough positive evidence that a recovery will be significant enough to improve Lodging Services' current forecasted outlook.

• There have been consecutive historical quarters where business results were significantly less than internal forecasts, and previous actual results, for
the Lodging Services reporting unit.

• During the quarter ended September 30, 2016, management’s near-term outlook was clarified in regards to the business’ projections and the impacts
of large scale forest fires which took place in the Fort McMurray area of Alberta, Canada, where the Company has significant Lodging Services
operations.

• Due to the factors listed above, management significantly lowered its 2016 forecasts and long-range performance relative to the Lodging Services
reporting unit.

In performing Step I of the interim goodwill impairment test, the estimated fair value of the Lodging Services reporting unit was determined using an
income approach with discounted cash flows which were compared to the reporting unit’s carrying value as of September 30, 2016. Based on the results of
that evaluation, the carrying amount of the reporting unit, including $34.0 million of goodwill, exceeded Lodging Services' estimated fair value and as a
result the Company performed Step II of the goodwill impairment test to determine the amount of goodwill impairment that would need to be recognized.

Step II of the goodwill impairment test required the Company to perform a theoretical purchase price allocation for Lodging Services to determine the
implied fair value of its goodwill and then compare that implied fair value to its recorded amount. Estimates and assumptions were used to determine the fair
values for Lodging Services long-lived assets in Step II and these involved the use of significant professional judgment on the part of management. The
classes of assets that were affected by these estimates and assumptions related most significantly to property, plant, and equipment, goodwill, and intangible
assets. Based on the results of this test the implied fair value of goodwill was determined to be $0. Accordingly, the Company recognized a goodwill
impairment charge equal to its recorded amount, or $34.0 million, as of September 30, 2016.

The factors contributing to the $34.0 million goodwill impairment charge principally related to events and changes in circumstances discussed above
which negatively impacted the Company’s prospective financial information in its discounted cash flow model and the reporting unit's estimated fair value.
Lower levels of pricing and an unfavorable change in product mix that reduced expected profit became evident during the quarter ended September 30, 2016
due to market conditions as management updated the Company's long-term projections for the business which, as a result, decreased the reporting unit’s
anticipated future cash flows as compared to those estimated previously. These factors also provided evidence of a longer than expected recovery from
current industry depressed pricing and activity levels, which negatively impacted the estimated levels of cash flows in future periods that are assumed in the
cash flow model. These factors adversely affected the estimated fair value of the reporting unit and ultimately led to the recognition of the goodwill
impairment charge.

During the second quarter of 2015, certain events and changes in circumstances arose which led management of the Company to conclude that the fair
value of the Oil and Gas Field Services reporting unit may be less than its carrying value and
therefore an interim impairment test was conducted relative to goodwill recorded by the Oil and Gas Field Services reporting unit. The primary events and
changes in circumstances which led to this conclusion were:    
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• The second quarter is the period of time where greater levels of communication with customers and the receipt of bids and proposals for project work
take place and provide management with more clarity into levels of activity and other economic and business indicators for the latter half of the
fiscal year and into the first quarter of the following year. During the quarter ended June 30, 2015, it became apparent that oil and gas exploration
and production activity would continue to be lower than for prior periods and than previously anticipated by the Company. This was evidenced by
reduced volume in bid and proposal requests from customers and communications indicating the reduction in customer budgets in these areas as
well as lower than anticipated pricing for the Company's services.

• Market and industry reports to which management looks in projecting business conditions and establishing forecast information evidenced more
pessimistic views in the near term. The continued depressed price of oil without any upward momentum since December 2014, as well as declining
and expected continued decline in rig count for the remainder of 2015, resulted in lower estimates of industry activity in the second half of 2015 and
early 2016.

• In recognition of lower than anticipated business results and less optimistic market indicators, management significantly lowered its 2015 forecasts
relative to the Oil and Gas Field Services reporting unit.

In performing Step I of this interim goodwill impairment test, the estimated fair value of the Oil and Gas Field Services reporting unit was determined
using an income approach based upon discounted cash flows and was compared to the reporting unit's carrying value as of June 30, 2015. Based on the
results of that valuation, the carrying amount of the reporting unit, including $32.0 million of goodwill, exceeded its estimated fair value and as a result the
Company performed Step II of the
goodwill impairment test to determine the amount of goodwill impairment charge to be recorded.

Step II of the goodwill impairment test required the Company to perform a theoretical purchase price allocation for the reporting unit to determine the
implied fair value of goodwill and to compare the implied fair value of goodwill to the recorded
amount. The estimates of the fair values of intangible assets identified in performing this theoretical purchase price allocation and resulting implied fair value
of goodwill required significant judgment. Based on the results of this goodwill impairment test, the implied value of goodwill was $0 and the Company
therefore recognized a goodwill impairment charge equal to the recorded amount of goodwill of $32.0 million as of June 30, 2015.

The factors contributing to the $32.0 million goodwill impairment charge principally related to events and changes in circumstances discussed above
which had negative impacts on the Company’s prospective financial information utilized in its discounted cash flow model prepared in connection with the
interim impairment test. The projected lower levels of activity and pricing in the latter half of the year which became evident during the second quarter
decreased the reporting unit’s anticipated future cash flows for 2015 as compared to those estimated previously. These factors also provided evidence of a
longer than expected overall recovery from current industry decreased pricing and activity levels which negatively impacted the estimated levels of cash
flows in future periods that were assumed in the cash flow models utilized in the interim impairment test. These factors adversely affected the estimated fair
value of the reporting unit as of June 30, 2015 and ultimately led to the recognition of the goodwill impairment charge.

During the third quarter of 2014, the Company obtained evidence that indicated the carrying value of the Kleen Performance Products reporting unit
may have exceeded its estimated fair value and therefore an interim goodwill impairment test was performed. As a result of that test the Company recorded a
$123.4 million impairment charge. The factors contributing to this goodwill impairment charge principally related to decreases in market prices of oil
products sold by the Kleen Performance Products business which took place during the third quarter of 2014. These decreasing market prices negatively
impacted the profitability of the Kleen Performance operating segment and further resulted in lower assumptions for future revenues and profits of the
business. These factors adversely affected the estimated fair value of the reporting unit as of September 30, 2014 and ultimately led to the recognition of the
goodwill impairment charge.
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As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company's finite-lived and indefinite lived intangible assets consisted of the following (in thousands):

 December 31, 2016  December 31, 2015

 Cost  
Accumulated
Amortization  Net  

Weighted
Average

Amortization
Period

(in years)  Cost  
Accumulated
Amortization  Net  

Weighted
Average

Amortization
Period

(in years)

Permits $ 171,637  $ 67,301  $ 104,336  18.9  $ 161,396  $ 61,142  $ 100,254  19.0
Customer and supplier

relationships 393,426  127,462  265,964  12.2  374,866  99,463  275,403  10.1
Other intangible
   assets 34,254  28,456  5,798  7.1  31,416  22,581  8,835  1.5
Total amortizable permits

and other intangible
assets 599,317  223,219  376,098  13.9  567,678  183,186  384,492  10.0

Trademarks and trade
    names 122,623  —  122,623  Indefinite  122,326  —  122,326  Indefinite
Total permits and other

intangible assets $ 721,940  $ 223,219  $ 498,721    $ 690,004  $ 183,186  $ 506,818   

The Company also performed an analysis to determine whether the carrying values of the Oil and Gas Field Services and Lodging Services operating
segments' finite-lived intangibles and other long lived assets as of December 31, 2016 may not be entirely recoverable. As of December 31, 2016, the Oil and
Gas Field Services and Lodging Services operating segments had property, plant and equipment, net of $88.2 million and $93.8 million, respectively, and
intangible assets of $5.5 million and $5.4 million, respectively. Based on the analysis performed, sufficient future cash flows are anticipated over those assets'
remaining lives to demonstrate recoverability. Thus no impairment charge was recorded related to those other long-lived assets. If expectations of future cash
flows were to decrease in the future as a result of worse than expected or prolonged periods of depressed activity, future impairments may become evident.

Amortization expense of permits and other intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were $40.0 million, $40.2 million
and $36.7 million, respectively.

The expected amortization of the net carrying amount of finite-lived intangible assets at December 31, 2016 is as follows (in thousands):

Years Ending December 31,
Expected

Amortization

2017 $ 36,904
2018 33,981
2019 31,272
2020 29,087
2021 26,515
Thereafter 218,339
 $ 376,098
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Accrued expenses consisted of the following at December 31 (in thousands):

 December 31, 2016  December 31, 2015

Insurance $ 63,061  $ 55,899
Interest 21,536  20,500
Accrued compensation and benefits 34,641  35,646
Income, real estate, sales and other taxes 35,083  37,095
Other 36,400  44,520
 $ 190,721  $ 193,660

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, other accrued expenses included accrued legal matters of $3.8 million and $3.0 million, respectively, and accrued
severance charges of $2.9 million and $1.1 million, respectively.

(9) CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE LIABILITIES

The changes to closure and post-closure liabilities (also referred to as "asset retirement obligations") from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2016
were as follows (in thousands):

 

Landfill
Retirement

Liability  

Non-Landfill
Retirement

Liability  Total

Balance at January 1, 2015 $ 29,932  $ 20,769  $ 50,701
Liabilities assumed in TFI acquisition —  1,676  1,676
New asset retirement obligations 3,151  —  3,151
Accretion 2,516  2,122  4,638
Changes in estimates recorded to statement of operations (162)  205  43
Changes in estimates recorded to balance sheet 2,942  —  2,942
Expenditures (5,946)  (177)  (6,123)
Currency translation and other (410)  (369)  (779)
Balance at December 31, 2015 32,023  24,226  56,249
Liabilities assumed in acquisitions —  2,408  2,408
Measurement period adjustments from prior period acquisitions —  657  657
New asset retirement obligations 1,983  —  1,983
Accretion 2,705  2,398  5,103
Changes in estimates recorded to statement of operations (1,415)  (1,204)  (2,619)
Changes in estimates recorded to balance sheet (3,289)  —  (3,289)
Expenditures (1,446)  (802)  (2,248)
Currency translation and other 69  18  87
Balance at December 31, 2016 $ 30,630  $ 27,701  $ 58,331

All of the landfill facilities included in the above table were active as of December 31, 2016 and 2015. There were no significant charges (benefits) in
2016 and 2015 resulting from changes in estimates for closure and post-closure liabilities.

New asset retirement obligations incurred during 2016 and 2015 were discounted at the credit-adjusted risk-free rate of 6.23% and 5.99%, respectively.
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Anticipated payments (based on current estimated costs and anticipated timing of necessary regulatory approvals to commence work on closure and
post-closure activities) for each of the next five years and thereafter are as follows (in thousands):

Year ending December 31,  

2017 $ 6,931
2018 8,181
2019 9,916
2020 8,646
2021 5,093
Thereafter 288,167
Undiscounted closure and post-closure liabilities 326,934
Less: Discount at credit-adjusted risk-free rate (164,350)
Less: Undiscounted estimated closure and post-closure liabilities relating to airspace not yet consumed (104,253)
Present value of closure and post-closure liabilities $ 58,331

(10) REMEDIAL LIABILITIES

The changes to remedial liabilities from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2016 were as follows (in thousands):

 

Remedial
Liabilities for
Landfill Sites  

Remedial
Liabilities for
Inactive Sites  

Remedial
Liabilities
(Including

Superfund) for
Non-Landfill
Operations  Total

Balance at January 1, 2015 $ 5,420  $ 68,528  $ 81,173  $ 155,121
Accretion 218  2,924  2,622  5,764
Changes in estimates recorded to statement of operations (2,841)  (2,927)  (5,620)  (11,388)
Expenditures (137)  (4,779)  (9,091)  (14,007)
Currency translation and other (333)  (133)  (3,032)  (3,498)
Balance at December 31, 2015 2,327  63,613  66,052  131,992
Liabilities assumed in acquisitions —  —  2,041  2,041
Accretion 110  2,737  2,227  5,074
Changes in estimates recorded to statement of operations (538)  1,520  (2,617)  (1,635)
Expenditures (122)  (3,893)  (5,907)  (9,922)
Currency translation and other —  174  283  457
Balance at December 31, 2016 $ 1,777  $ 64,151  $ 62,079  $ 128,007

There were no significant charges (benefits) in 2016 resulting from changes in estimates for remedial liabilities.

In 2015, the net reduction in the Company's remedial liabilities from changes in estimates recorded to the statement of operations was $11.4 million and
primarily related to reductions in the estimates for remedial activities at four locations. Events which occurred during 2015 and resulted in the changes in
estimates were attributable to favorable outcomes from negotiations among potentially responsible parties in which the Company participates of $3.8
million, work performed by external third-party consultants which were engaged to aid the Company in estimating future remedial activity costs at certain
sites of $4.7 million, and receiving Provincial approval for a planned expansion of one of the Company's landfills in Canada which as a result will remediate
the Company's previously recognized obligations of $2.5 million.
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Anticipated payments at December 31, 2016 (based on current estimated costs and anticipated timing of necessary regulatory approvals to commence
work on remedial activities) for each of the next five years and thereafter were as follows (in thousands):

Year ending December 31,  

2017 $ 14,084
2018 17,667
2019 13,638
2020 10,599
2021 8,990
Thereafter 86,787
Undiscounted remedial liabilities 151,765
Less: Discount (23,758)
Total remedial liabilities $ 128,007

Based on currently available facts and legal interpretations, existing technology, and presently enacted laws and regulations, the Company estimates
that its aggregate liabilities as of December 31, 2016 for future remediation relating to all of its owned or leased facilities and the Superfund sites for which
the Company has current or potential future liability is approximately $128.0 million. The Company also estimates that it is reasonably possible that the
amount of such total liabilities could be as much as $23.4 million more. Future changes in either available technology or applicable laws or regulations
could affect such estimates of remedial liabilities. Since the Company's satisfaction of the liabilities will occur over many years, the Company cannot now
reasonably predict the nature or extent of future changes in either available technology or applicable laws or regulations and the impact that those changes, if
any, might have on the current estimates of remedial liabilities.

The following tables show, respectively, (i) the amounts of such estimated liabilities associated with the types of facilities and sites involved and
(ii) the amounts of such estimated liabilities associated with each facility or site which represents at least 5% of the total and with all other facilities and sites
as a group and as of December 31, 2016.

Estimates Based on Type of Facility or Site (in thousands):

Type of Facility or Site
Remedial
Liability  % of Total  

Reasonably
Possible

Additional
Liabilities(1)

Facilities now used in active conduct of the Company's business (48 facilities) $ 55,467  43.3%  $ 11,862
Inactive facilities not now used in active conduct of the Company's business but most of which were
acquired because the assumption of remedial liabilities for such facilities was part of the purchase
price for the CSD assets (35 facilities) 64,151  50.1  10,679
Superfund sites owned by third parties (17 sites) 8,389  6.6  839
Total $ 128,007  100.0%  $ 23,380

___________________________________
(1) Amounts represent the high end of the range of management's best estimate of the reasonably possible additional liabilities.
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Estimates Based on Amount of Potential Liability (in thousands):

Location Type of Facility or Site  
Remedial
Liability  % of Total  

Reasonably
Possible

Additional
Liabilities(1)

Baton Rouge, LA(2) Closed incinerator and landfill  $ 23,256  18.2%  $ 3,940
Bridgeport, NJ Closed incinerator  19,059  14.9  2,590
Mercier, Quebec(2) Idled incinerator and legal proceedings  9,510  7.4  1,008
Linden, NJ Operating solvent recycling center  7,781  6.1  842
Various(2) All other incinerators, landfills, wastewater treatment facilities and

service centers (79 facilities)  60,012  46.8  14,161
Various(2) Superfund sites (each representing less than 5% of total liabilities)

owned by third parties (17 sites)  8,389  6.6  839
Total   $ 128,007  100.0%  $ 23,380

_________________________________

(1) Amounts represent the high end of the range of management's best estimate of the reasonably possible additional liabilities.
(2) $18.2 million of the $128.0 million remedial liabilities and $1.9 million of the $23.4 million reasonably possible additional liabilities include

estimates of remediation liabilities related to the legal and administrative proceedings discussed in Note 17, "Commitments and Contingencies," as
well as other such estimated remedial liabilities.

Revisions to remediation reserve requirements may result in upward or downward adjustments to income from operations in any given period. The
Company believes that its extensive experience in the environmental services business, as well as its involvement with a large number of sites, provides a
reasonable basis for estimating its aggregate liability. It is possible, however, that technological, regulatory or enforcement developments, the results of
environmental studies, or other factors could necessitate the recording of additional liabilities or the revision of currently recorded liabilities that could be
material. The impact of such future events cannot be estimated at the current time.

(11) FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

The following table is a summary of the Company's financing arrangements (in thousands):

 December 31, 2016  December 31, 2015

Senior unsecured notes, at 5.25%, due August 1, 2020 ("2020 Notes") $ 800,000  $ 800,000
Senior unsecured notes, at 5.125%, due June 1, 2021 ("2021 Notes") 845,000  595,000
Long-term obligations, at par $ 1,645,000  $ 1,395,000
Unamortized debt issuance costs and premium, net $ (11,728)  $ (12,457)
Long-term obligations, at carrying value $ 1,633,272  $ 1,382,543

Senior Unsecured Notes. On July 30, 2012, the Company issued $800.0 million aggregate principal amount of 5.25% senior unsecured notes due
August 1, 2020 with semi-annual fixed interest payments on February 1 and August 1 of each year. At December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the fair
value of the Company's 2020 Notes was $820.0 million and $812.0 million, respectively, based on quoted market prices for the instrument. The fair value of
the 2020 Notes is considered a Level 2 measure according to the fair value hierarchy. The Company may redeem some or all of the 2020 Notes at any time on
upon proper notice, at the following redemption prices plus unpaid interest:

Year  Percentage

Prior to August 1, 2017  102.625%
After August 1, 2017  101.313%
After August 1, 2018  100.000%
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On December 7, 2012, the Company issued $600.0 million aggregate principal amount of 5.125% senior unsecured notes due 2021 with semi-annual
fixed interest payments on June 1 and December 1 of each year. The Company used the net proceeds from such issuance to fund a portion of the purchase
price to acquire Safety-Kleen. The Company repurchased $5.0 million principal amount of the 2021 Notes during 2014. On March 14, 2016, the Company
issued $250.0 million aggregate principal amount as additional notes under the indenture. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the fair value of the Company's
2021 Notes was $861.9 million and $599.5 million, respectively, based on quoted market prices or other available market data. The fair value of the 2021
Notes is considered a Level 2 measure according to the fair value hierarchy. The Company may redeem some or all of the 2021 Notes at any time upon proper
notice, at the following redemption prices plus unpaid interest:

Year  Percentage

Prior to December 1, 2017  102.563%
After December 1, 2017  101.281%
After December 1, 2018  100.000%

The 2020 Notes and the 2021 Notes (collectively, the "Notes") and the related indentures contain various customary non-financial covenants and are
guaranteed by substantially all the Company's current and future domestic restricted subsidiaries. The Notes are the Company's and the guarantors' senior
unsecured obligations ranking equally with the Company's and the guarantors' existing and future senior unsecured obligations and senior to any future
indebtedness that is expressly subordinated to the Notes and the guarantees. The Notes are effectively subordinated to all of the Company's and the
Company's subsidiaries secured indebtedness under the Company's revolving credit facility and capital lease obligations to the extent of the value of the
assets securing such secured indebtedness. The Notes are not guaranteed by the Company's existing and future Canadian or other foreign subsidiaries, and the
Notes are structurally subordinated to all indebtedness and other liabilities, including trade payables, of the Company's subsidiaries that are not guarantors of
the Notes.

Revolving Credit Facility. On November 1, 2016, the Company and one of the Company's subsidiaries (the "Canadian Borrower") entered into an
amended and restated credit agreement for the Company's revolving credit facility with Bank of America, N.A. (“BofA”), as agent for the lenders under the
facility. Under the amended and restated facility, the Company has the right to obtain revolving loans and letters of credit for a combined maximum of up to
$300.0 million (with a sub-limit of $250.0 million for letters of credit) and the Canadian Borrower has the right to obtain revolving loans and letters of credit
for a combined maximum of up to $100.0 million (with a $75.0 million sub-limit for letters of credit).  Availability under the U.S. line is subject to a
borrowing base basically comprised of 85% of the eligible accounts receivable of the Company and its U.S. subsidiaries plus 100% of cash deposited in a
controlled account with the Agent, and availability under the Canadian line is subject to a borrowing base basically comprised of 85% of the eligible
accounts receivable of the Company’s Canadian subsidiaries plus 100% of cash deposited in a controlled account with the Agent’s Canadian affiliate.
Subject to certain conditions, the facility will expire on November 1, 2021. 

Borrowings under the revolving credit facility bear interest at a rate of, at the Company’s option, either (i) LIBOR plus an applicable margin ranging
from 1.25% to 1.50% per annum based primarily on the level of the Company’s average liquidity for the most recent 30 day period or (ii) BofA’s base rate
plus an applicable margin ranging from 0.25% to 0.50% per annum based primarily on such average liquidity. There is also an unused line fee, calculated on
the then unused portion of the lenders’ $400.0 million maximum commitments, ranging from 0.25% to 0.30% per annum of the unused commitment. For
outstanding letters of credit, the Company will pay to the lenders a fee equal to the then applicable LIBOR margin described above, and to the issuing banks
a standard fronting fee and customary fees and charges in connection with all amendments, extensions, draws and other actions with respect to letters of
credit.

 
The Company’s obligations under the revolving credit facility (including revolving loans and reimbursement obligations for outstanding letters of

credit) are guaranteed by substantially all of the Company’s U.S. subsidiaries and secured by a first lien on the Company’s and its U.S. subsidiaries’ accounts
receivable. The Canadian Borrower’s obligations under the facility are guaranteed by substantially all of the Company’s Canadian subsidiaries and secured
by a first lien on the accounts receivable of the Canadian subsidiaries.  The Company and its U.S. subsidiaries guarantee the obligations of the Canadian
subsidiaries under the facility, but the Canadian subsidiaries do not guarantee and are not otherwise responsible for the obligations of the Company and its
U.S. subsidiaries.
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The Company utilizes letters of credit primarily as security for financial assurance which it has been required to provide to regulatory bodies for its
hazardous waste facilities and which would be called only in the event that the Company fails to satisfy closure, post-closure and other obligations under the
permits issued by those regulatory bodies for such licensed facilities. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the revolving credit facility had no outstanding loan
balances, $195.2 million and $178.5 million, respectively, available to borrow and $132.6 million and $144.6 million, respectively, of letters of credit
outstanding.

(12) INCOME TAXES

The domestic and foreign components of income before provision for income taxes were as follows (in thousands):

 For the Year Ended December 31,

 2016  2015  2014

Domestic $ 87,328  $ 164,105  $ 44,737
Foreign (78,612)  (54,459)  (6,215)
Total $ 8,716  $ 109,646  $ 38,522

The provision for income taxes consisted of the following (in thousands):

 For the Year Ended December 31,

 2016  2015  2014

Current:      
Federal $ 14,798  $ 46,775  $ 17,184
State 8,763  11,120  6,918
Foreign 9,844  5,719  10,428

 33,405  63,614  34,530
Deferred      

Federal 21,814  12,254  33,858
State 1,644  2,766  1,840
Foreign (8,274)  (13,090)  (3,378)

 15,184  1,930  32,320
Provision for income taxes $ 48,589  $ 65,544  $ 66,850

The Company's effective tax rate for fiscal years 2016, 2015 and 2014 was 557.5%, 59.8% and 173.5%, respectively. The effective income tax rate
varied from the amount computed using the statutory federal income tax rate as follows (in thousands):

 For the Year Ended December 31,

 2016  2015  2014

Tax expense at US statutory rate $ 3,051  $ 38,376  $ 13,483
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 6,010  8,449  7,429
Foreign rate differential 3,646  3,951  (2,916)
Valuation allowance 22,564  1,824  827
Uncertain tax position interest and penalties 107  32  2,217
Goodwill impairment 11,905  10,974  44,273
Other 1,306  1,938  1,537
Provision for income taxes $ 48,589  $ 65,544  $ 66,850

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company allocated $16.8 million of tax benefits related to tax deductible foreign currency losses to
accumulated other comprehensive loss and as such these benefits are not included within the provision for income taxes.
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The components of the total net deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2016 and 2015 were as follows (in thousands):

 2016  2015

Deferred tax assets:    
Workers compensation and other claims related accruals $ 1,069  $ 15,316
Provision for doubtful accounts 11,189  12,654
Closure, post-closure and remedial liabilities 40,829  37,407
Accrued expenses 18,757  12,455
Accrued compensation 2,747  5,425
Net operating loss carryforwards(1) 46,752  41,191
Tax credit carryforwards(2) 25,348  25,040
Uncertain tax positions accrued interest and federal benefit 1,241  1,219
Stock-based compensation 1,993  615
Other 555  7,421
Total deferred tax assets 150,480  158,743

Deferred tax liabilities:    
Property, plant and equipment (207,799)  (221,969)
Permits and other intangible assets (161,295)  (159,698)
Prepaids (11,030)  —
Total deferred tax liabilities (380,124)  (381,667)

Total net deferred tax liability before valuation allowance (229,644)  (222,924)
Less valuation allowance (55,189)  (30,916)
Net deferred tax liabilities $ (284,833)  $ (253,840)

___________________________________
(1) As of December 31, 2016, the net operating loss carryforwards included (i) state net operating loss carryovers of $189.0 million which will begin to

expire in 2017, (ii) federal net operating loss carryforwards of $62.9 million which will begin to expire in 2025, and (iii) foreign net operating loss
carryforwards of $50.5 million which will begin to expire in 2017.

(2) As of December 31, 2016, the foreign tax credit carryforwards of $25.0 million will expire between 2020 and 2024.

The Company does not accrue U.S. tax for foreign earnings that it considers to be permanently reinvested outside the United States. Consequently, the
Company has not provided any U.S. tax on the unremitted earnings of its foreign subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2016, the amount of earnings for which no
repatriation tax has been provided was $238.5 million. It is not practicable to estimate the amount of additional tax that might be payable on those earnings
if repatriated.

A valuation allowance is required to be established when, based on an evaluation of available evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion or
all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Accordingly, as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company had a valuation allowance of $55.2 million
and $30.9 million, respectively. The total allowance as of December 31, 2016 consisted of $25.0 million of foreign tax credits, $1.5 million of acquired
federal net operating losses, $5.0 million of state net operating loss carryforwards, $18.0 million of foreign net operating loss carryforwards, and $5.7 million
of deferred tax assets of a Canadian subsidiary. The allowance as of December 31, 2015 consisted of $18.7 million of foreign tax credits, $4.1 million of state
net operating loss carryforwards and $6.8 million of foreign net operating loss carryforwards and $1.3 million of deferred tax assets of a Canadian subsidiary.
The increase in valuation allowances are due to the significant downturn in the operations of certain of the Company’s Canadian businesses in current and
recent years and uncertainty as to whether these Canadian businesses will generate sufficient future taxable income to utilize these deferred tax assets. The
Company therefore concluded that the recording of valuation allowances were required as of December 31, 2016.
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The changes to unrecognized tax benefits (excluding related penalties and interest) from January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2016, were as follows
(in thousands):

 2016  2015  2014

Unrecognized tax benefits as of January 1 $ 2,064  $ 2,537  $ 1,304
Additions to current year tax positions —  —  904
Additions to prior year tax positions —  —  419
Settlements (533)  (217)  —
Foreign currency translation 207  (256)  (90)
Unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31 $ 1,738  $ 2,064  $ 2,537

At December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, the Company had recorded $1.7 million, $2.1 million and $2.5 million, respectively, of unrecognized tax
benefits that if recognized would affect the annual effective tax rate.

The Company's policy is to recognize interest and penalties related to income tax matters as a component of income tax expense. The liability for
unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2016 included accrued interest of $0.3 million, $0.4 million and $0.4 million for the payment of interest accrued
at December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Interest expense that is recorded as a tax expense against the liability for unrecognized tax benefits for
the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 included interest and penalties of $0.1 million, $0.1 million and $0.3 million, respectively.

The Company files U.S. federal income tax returns as well as income tax returns in various states and foreign jurisdictions. The Company may be
subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS") for calendar years 2013 through 2015. Additionally, any net operating losses that were
generated in prior years and utilized in these years may also be subject to examination by the IRS. The Company may also be subject to examinations by
state and local revenue authorities for calendar years 2012 through 2015. The Company is currently not under examination by the IRS. The Company has
ongoing U.S. state and local jurisdictional audits, as well as Canadian federal and provincial audits, all of which the Company believes will not result in
material liabilities.

Due to expiring statute of limitation periods and the resolution of tax audits, the Company believes that total unrecognized tax benefits will decrease
by approximately $0.3 million within the next 12 months.

(13) (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following are computations of basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share (in thousands except for per share amounts):

 Years Ended December 31,

 2016  2015  2014

Numerator for basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share:      
Net (loss) income $ (39,873)  $ 44,102  $ (28,328)

Denominator:      
  Weighted basic shares outstanding 57,532  58,324  60,311
  Dilutive effect of equity-based compensation awards —  110  —
  Weighted dilutive shares outstanding 57,532  58,434  60,311

     
Basic (loss) earnings per share $ (0.69)  $ 0.76  $ (0.47)

Diluted (loss) earnings per share $ (0.69)  $ 0.76  $ (0.47)

As a result of the net loss reported for the year ended December 31, 2016, all then outstanding restricted stock awards and performance awards totaling
730,929 potentially dilutive instruments were excluded from the calculation of diluted loss per share as their inclusion would have an antidilutive effect. For
the year ended December 31, 2015, all then outstanding stock options, restricted stock awards and performance awards were included in the calculation of
diluted earnings per share except for 154,577 of outstanding performance stock awards for which the performance criteria were not attained at that time
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and 31,656 restricted stock awards which were excluded as their inclusion would have an antidilutive effect. As a result of the net loss reported for the year
ended December 31, 2014, all outstanding stock options, restricted stock awards and performance awards totaling 562,896 potentially dilutive shares were
excluded from the calculation of diluted loss per share as their inclusion would have an antidilutive effect.

(14) STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

On March 13, 2015, the Company's board of directors increased the size of the Company’s current share repurchase program from $150 million to $300
million. The Company has funded and intends to continue to fund the repurchases through available cash resources. The repurchase program authorizes the
Company to purchase the Company's common stock on the open market from time to time in a manner that complies with applicable U.S. securities laws. The
number of shares purchased and the timing of the purchases has depended and will depend on a number of factors including share price, cash required for
future business plans, trading volume and other conditions.  The Company has no obligation to repurchase stock under this program and may suspend or
terminate the repurchase program at any time. During the years December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, the Company repurchased and retired a total of
approximately 0.5 million, 1.4 million and 2.0 million shares, respectively, of the Company's common stock for total costs of approximately $22.2 million,
$73.3 million and $104.3 million, respectively. Through December 31, 2016, the Company has repurchased and retired a total of approximately 3.8 million
shares of its common stock for approximately $199.9 million under this program. As of December 31, 2016, an additional $100.1 million remained available
for repurchase of shares under this program.

(15) ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

The changes in accumulated other comprehensive loss by component and related tax effects for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014
were as follows (in thousands):    

 

Foreign
Currency

Translation
Adjustments  

Unrealized Gains
(Losses) on

Available-for-
Sale Securities  

Unfunded
Pension Liability  Total

Balance at January 1, 2014 $ (20,164)  $ 1,904  $ (1,296)  $ (19,556)
Other comprehensive (loss) income before reclassifications (88,725)  1,159  (905)  (88,471)
Amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive loss —  (3,388)  —  (3,388)
Tax effects —  325  248  573
Other comprehensive loss (88,725)  (1,904)  (657)  (91,286)
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ (108,889)  $ —  $ (1,953)  $ (110,842)
Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications (144,050)  —  (7)  (144,057)
Amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive loss —  —  —  —
Tax effects —  —  7  7
Other comprehensive loss (144,050)  —  —  (144,050)
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ (252,939)  $ —  $ (1,953)  $ (254,892)
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications 23,967  (535)  216  23,648
Amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive loss —  —  —  —
Tax effects 16,761  214  (57)  16,918
Other comprehensive income (loss) 40,728  (321)  159  40,566
Balance at December 31, 2016 $ (212,211)  $ (321)  $ (1,794)  $ (214,326)

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company converted an intercompany loan with a subsidiary to equity, which resulted in a loss for tax
purposes. The loan had been historically treated as a component of the Company’s investment in that subsidiary, and as a result, foreign currency gains and
losses on the loan had been accumulated as a component of other comprehensive income. The subsidiary continues to operate as part of the Company. The
current tax benefit of $16.8 million, which was triggered by the conversion, was therefore allocated to other comprehensive income (loss) rather than net
(loss) income.
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There were no reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive loss during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015. The amounts
reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive loss into the consolidated statement of operations, with presentation location, during the year ended
December 31, 2014 were as follows (in thousands):

Comprehensive Loss Components  December 31, 2014  Location

Unrealized holding gains on available-for-sale investments  $ 3,388  Other income (expense), net

(16) STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Stock-Based Compensation

In 2000, the Company adopted a stock incentive plan (the "2000 Plan"), which provided for awards in the form of incentive stock options, non-
qualified stock options, restricted stock awards, performance stock awards and common stock awards. The 2000 Plan expired on April 15, 2010, but as of
December 31, 2016, 2,000 options remained outstanding under this plan. These options are fully vested with a weighted average exercise price of $23.01 and
will remain outstanding until they are either exercised or expire in accordance with their terms.

In 2010, the Company adopted an equity incentive plan (the "2010 Plan"), which provides for awards of up to 6,000,000 shares of common stock
(subject to certain anti-dilution adjustments) in the form of (i) stock options, (ii) stock appreciation rights, (iii) restricted stock, (iv) restricted stock units, and
(v) certain other stock-based awards. The Company ceased issuing stock options in 2008, and all awards issued to date under the 2010 Plan have been in the
form of restricted stock awards and performance stock awards as described below.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company had the following types of stock-based compensation awards outstanding under the 2000 Plan and
the 2010 Plan (collectively, the "Plans"): stock options, restricted stock awards and performance stock awards. The stock options generally become
exercisable up to five years from the date of grant, subject to certain employment requirements, and terminate 10 years from the date of grant. The restricted
stock awards generally vest over three to five years subject to continued employment. The performance stock awards vest depending on the satisfaction of
certain performance criteria and continued service conditions as described below.

Total stock-based compensation cost charged to selling, general and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014
was $10.5 million, $8.6 million and $8.8 million, respectively. The total income tax benefit recognized in the consolidated statements of income from stock-
based compensation was $2.8 million, $2.3 million and $1.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The expected per
annum forfeiture rates used to calculate compensation expense were 6% for all employees.

Restricted Stock Awards

The following information relates to restricted stock awards that have been granted to employees and directors under the Company's Plans. The
restricted stock awards are not transferable until vested and the restrictions generally lapse upon the achievement of continued employment over a three-
to-five-year period or service as a director until the following annual meeting of shareholders. The fair value of each restricted stock grant is based on the
closing price of the Company's common stock on the date of grant and is amortized to expense over its vesting period.

The following table summarizes information about restricted stock awards for the year ended December 31, 2016:

Restricted Stock
Number of

Shares  

Weighted Average
Grant-Date
Fair Value

Unvested at January 1, 2016 362,618  $ 55.79
Granted 393,492  50.57
Vested (175,699)  53.82
Forfeited (70,370)  54.24
Unvested at December 31, 2016 510,041  $ 52.65

As of December 31, 2016, there was $17.3 million of total unrecognized compensation cost arising from restricted stock awards under the Company's
Plans. This cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 3.1 years. The total fair value of restricted stock vested during 2016, 2015
and 2014 was $8.3 million, $6.9 million and $9.4 million, respectively.
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Performance Stock Awards

The following information relates to performance stock awards that have been granted to employees under the Company's Plans. The compensation
committee of the Company's board of directors established two-year performance targets which could potentially be achieved in the year granted or one year
thereafter. Performance stock awards are subject to performance criteria established by the compensation committee of the Company's board of directors prior
to or at the date of grant. The vesting of the performance stock awards is based on achieving such targets typically based on revenue, Adjusted EBITDA
margin, free cash flow and Total Recordable Incident Rate. In addition, performance stock awards include continued service conditions.

The fair value of each performance stock award is based on the closing price of the Company's common stock on the date of grant and is amortized to
expense over the service period if achievement of performance measures is then considered probable. The expected forfeiture rate used to calculate
compensation expense was 6% for all employees.

As of December 31, 2016, management determined that one of the four of the performance criteria were achieved with respect to the performance stock
awards granted in 2016 and as a result the Company recognized stock based compensation on 20% of the original award within selling, general and
administrative expenses. For the performance stock awards granted in 2015, management determined that one of the four performance criteria was achieved
and as a result the Company recognized stock based compensation on 20% of the original award within selling, general and administrative expenses. These
awards will vest over the remaining requisite service condition.

The following table summarizes information about performance stock awards for the year ended December 31, 2016:

Performance Stock
Number of

Shares  

Weighted Average
Grant-Date
Fair Value

Unvested at January 1, 2016 187,274  $ 57.13
Granted 207,624  54.21
Vested (19,981)  60.34
Forfeited (154,035)  56.29
Unvested at December 31, 2016 220,882  $ 54.69

As of December 31, 2016, there was $1.5 million of total unrecognized compensation cost arising from non-vested compensation related to
performance stock awards then deemed probable of vesting under the Company's Plans. The total fair value of performance awards vested during 2016 and
2015 was $1.0 million and $0.6 million, respectively. During 2014 no performance awards vested.

Employee Benefit Plans

As of December 31, 2016, the Company has responsibility for a defined benefit plan that covered 14 active non-supervisory Canadian employees. For
the year ended December 31, 2016, net periodic pension costs was $0.4 million. For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, net periodic pension cost
was $0.3 million. At December 31, 2016, the fair value of the Company's plan assets was $8.4 million. The fair value of $3.5 million of these plan assets was
considered a Level 1 measure and the fair value of $4.9 million of these plan assets was considered a Level 2 measure, according to the fair value hierarchy.
At December 31, 2015, the fair value of the Company's plan assets was $8.4 million. The fair value of $6.6 million of these plan assets was considered a Level
1 measure and the fair value of $1.8 million of these plan assets was considered a Level 2 measure, according to the fair value hierarchy. As of December 31,
2016 and 2015, the projected benefit obligation was $9.9 million and $10.0 million, respectively.

(17) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Legal and Administrative Proceedings

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to legal proceedings and claims arising in the ordinary course of business. Actions filed against the
Company arise from commercial and employment-related claims including alleged class actions related to sales practices and wage and hour claims. The
plaintiffs in these actions may be seeking damages or injunctive relief
or both. These actions are in various jurisdictions and stages of proceedings, and some are covered in part by insurance. In addition, the Company’s waste
management services operations are regulated by federal, state, provincial and local laws enacted to regulate discharge of materials into the environment,
remediation of contaminated soil and groundwater or otherwise
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protect the environment. This ongoing regulation results in the Company frequently becoming a party to legal or administrative proceedings involving all
levels of governmental authorities and other interested parties. The issues involved in such proceedings generally relate to alleged violations of existing
permits and licenses or alleged responsibility under federal or state
Superfund laws to remediate contamination at properties owned either by the Company or by other parties (“third-party sites”) to which either the Company
or the prior owners of certain of the Company’s facilities shipped wastes.

At December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Company had recorded reserves of $22.0 million and $21.9 million, respectively, in the Company's
financial statements for actual or probable liabilities related to the legal and administrative proceedings in which the Company was then involved, the
principal of which are described below. At December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Company also believed that it was reasonably possible that the
amount of these potential liabilities could be as much as $1.9 million and $1.9 million more, respectively. The Company periodically adjusts the aggregate
amount of these reserves when actual or probable liabilities are paid or otherwise discharged, new claims arise, or additional relevant information about
existing or probable claims becomes available. As of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the $22.0 million and $21.9 million, respectively, of
reserves consisted of (i) $18.2 million and $18.9 million, respectively, related to pending legal or administrative proceedings, including Superfund liabilities,
which were included in remedial liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets, and (ii) $3.8 million and $3.0 million, respectively, primarily related to
federal, state and provincial enforcement actions, which were included in accrued expenses on the consolidated balance sheets.

As of December 31, 2016, the principal legal and administrative proceedings in which the Company was involved, or which had been terminated
during 2016, were as follows:

Ville Mercier. In September 2002, the Company acquired the stock of a subsidiary (the "Mercier Subsidiary") which owns a hazardous waste incinerator
in Ville Mercier, Quebec (the "Mercier Facility"). The property adjacent to the Mercier Facility, which is also owned by the Mercier Subsidiary, is now
contaminated as a result of actions dating back to 1968, when the Government of Quebec issued to a company unrelated to the Mercier
Subsidiary two permits to dump organic liquids into lagoons on the property. In 1999, Ville Mercier and three neighboring municipalities filed separate legal
proceedings against the Mercier Subsidiary and the Government of Quebec. In 2012, the municipalities amended their existing statement of claim to
seek $2.9 million (Cdn) in general damages and $10.0 million (Cdn) in punitive damages, plus interest and costs, as well as injunctive relief. Both the
Government of Quebec and the Company have filed summary judgment motions against the municipalities. The parties are currently attempting to negotiate
a resolution and hearings on the motions have been delayed. In September 2007, the Quebec Minister of Sustainable Development, Environment and Parks
issued a Notice pursuant to Section 115.1 of the Environment Quality Act, superseding Notices issued in 1992, which are the subject of the pending
litigation. The more recent Notice notifies the Mercier Subsidiary that, if the Mercier Subsidiary does not take certain remedial measures at the site, the
Minister intends to undertake those measures at the site and claim direct and indirect costs related to such measures. The Company has accrued for costs
expected to be incurred relative to the resolution of this matter and believes this matter will not have future material effect on its financial position or results
of operations.

Safety-Kleen Legal Proceedings. On December 28, 2012, the Company acquired Safety-Kleen, Inc. ("Safety-Kleen") and thereby became subject to the
legal proceedings in which Safety-Kleen was a party on that date. In addition to certain Superfund proceedings in which Safety-Kleen has been named as a
potentially responsible party as described below under “Superfund Proceedings,” the principal such legal proceedings involving Safety-Kleen which were
outstanding as of December 31, 2016 were as follows:

Product Liability Cases. Safety-Kleen has been named as a defendant in various lawsuits that are currently pending in various courts and
jurisdictions throughout the United States, including approximately 60 proceedings (excluding cases which have been settled but not formally dismissed) as
of December 31, 2016, wherein persons claim personal injury resulting from the use of Safety-Kleen's parts cleaning equipment or cleaning products. These
proceedings typically involve allegations that the solvent used in Safety-Kleen's parts cleaning equipment contains contaminants and/or that Safety-Kleen's
recycling process does not effectively remove the contaminants that become entrained in the solvent during their use. In addition, certain claimants assert
that Safety-Kleen failed to warn adequately the product user of potential risks, including an historic failure to warn that solvent contains trace amounts of
toxic or hazardous substances such as benzene.

Safety-Kleen maintains insurance that it believes will provide coverage for these product liability claims (over amounts accrued for self-insured
retentions and deductibles in certain limited cases), except for punitive damages to the extent not insurable under state law or excluded from insurance
coverage. Safety-Kleen also believes that these claims lack merit and has historically vigorously defended, and intends to continue to vigorously defend,
itself and the safety of its products against
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all of these claims. Such matters are subject to many uncertainties and outcomes are not predictable with assurance. Consequently, Safety-Kleen is unable to
ascertain the ultimate aggregate amount of monetary liability or financial impact with respect to these matters as of December 31, 2016. From January 1, 2016
to December 31, 2016, 23 product liability claims were settled or dismissed. Due to the nature of these claims and the related insurance, the Company did not
incur any expense as Safety-Kleen's insurance provided coverage in full for all such claims. Safety-Kleen may be named in similar, additional lawsuits in the
future, including claims for which insurance coverage may not be available.      

Superfund Proceedings

The Company has been notified that either the Company (which, since December 28, 2012, includes Safety-Kleen) or the prior owners of certain of the
Company's facilities for which the Company may have certain indemnification obligations have been identified as potentially responsible parties ("PRPs") or
potential PRPs in connection with 129 sites which are subject to or
are proposed to become subject to proceedings under federal or state Superfund laws. Of the 129 sites, three (including the BR Facility described below)
involve facilities that are now owned or leased by the Company and 126 involve third-party sites to which either the Company or the prior owners of certain
of the Company’s facilities shipped wastes. Of the 126 third-party sites, 32 are now settled, 16 are currently requiring expenditures on remediation and 78 are
not currently requiring expenditures on remediation.

In connection with each site, the Company has estimated the extent, if any, to which it may be subject, either directly or as a result of any
indemnification obligations, for cleanup and remediation costs, related legal and consulting costs associated with PRP investigations, settlements, and
related legal and administrative proceedings. The amount of such actual and potential
liability is inherently difficult to estimate because of, among other relevant factors, uncertainties as to the legal liability (if any) of the Company or the prior
owners of certain of the Company's facilities to contribute a portion of the cleanup costs, the assumptions that must be made in calculating the estimated cost
and timing of remediation, the identification of other PRPs and their respective capability and obligation to contribute to remediation efforts, and the
existence and legal standing of indemnification agreements (if any) with prior owners, which may either benefit the Company or subject the Company to
potential indemnification obligations. The Company believes its potential liability could exceed $100,000 at 11 of the 126 third-party sites.

BR Facility.    The Company acquired in 2002 a former hazardous waste incinerator and landfill in Baton Rouge (the "BR Facility"), for which
operations had been previously discontinued by the prior owner. In September 2007, the EPA issued a special notice letter to the Company related to the
Devil's Swamp Lake Site ("Devil's Swamp") in East Baton Rouge Parish, Louisiana. Devil's Swamp includes a lake located downstream of an outfall ditch
where wastewater and storm water have been discharged, and Devil's Swamp is proposed to be included on the National Priorities List due to the presence of
Contaminants of Concern ("COC") cited by the EPA. These COCs include substances of the kind found in wastewater and storm water discharged from the
BR Facility in past operations. The EPA originally requested COC generators to submit a good faith offer to conduct a remedial investigation feasibility
study directed towards the eventual remediation of the site. The Company is currently performing corrective actions at the BR Facility under an order issued
by the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality, and has begun conducting the remedial investigation and feasibility study under an order issued by
the EPA. The Company cannot presently estimate the potential additional liability for the Devil's Swamp cleanup until a final remedy is selected by the EPA.

Third-Party Sites.    Of the 126 third-party sites at which the Company has been notified it is a PRP or potential PRP or may have indemnification
obligations, Clean Harbors has an indemnification agreement at 11 of these sites with ChemWaste, a former subsidiary of Waste Management, Inc., and at six
additional of these third-party sites, Safety-Kleen has a similar indemnification agreement with McKesson Corporation. These agreements indemnify the
Company (which now includes Safety-Kleen) with respect to any liability at the 17 sites for waste disposed prior to the Company's (or Safety-Kleen's)
acquisition of the former subsidiaries of Waste Management and McKesson which had shipped wastes to those sites. Accordingly, Waste Management or
McKesson are paying all costs of defending those subsidiaries in those 17 cases, including legal fees and settlement costs. However, there can be no
guarantee that the Company's ultimate liabilities for those sites will not exceed the amount recorded or that indemnities applicable to any of these sites will
be available to pay all or a portion of related costs. Except for the indemnification agreements which the Company holds from ChemWaste, McKesson and
one other entity, the Company does not have an indemnity agreement with respect to any of the 126 third-party sites discussed above.

86



Table of Contents

CLEAN HARBORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(17) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

Federal, State and Provincial Enforcement Actions

From time to time, the Company pays fines or penalties in regulatory proceedings relating primarily to waste treatment, storage or disposal facilities. As
of December 31, 2016 and 2015, there were five and six proceedings, respectively, for which the Company reasonably believes that the sanctions could equal
or exceed $100,000. The Company believes that the fines or other penalties in these or any of the other regulatory proceedings will, individually or in the
aggregate, not have a material effect on its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Leases

The Company leases facilities, service centers and personal property under certain operating leases. Some of these lease agreements contain an
escalation clause for increased taxes and operating expenses and are renewable at the option of the Company. Lease terms range from 1 to 20 years. The
following is a summary of future minimum payments under operating leases that have initial or remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year at
December 31, 2016 (in thousands):

Year

Total
Operating

Leases

2017 $ 39,156
2018 31,308
2019 26,590
2020 20,949
2021 15,222
Thereafter 39,110
Total minimum lease payments $ 172,335

During the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, rent expense including short-term rentals was approximately $121.9 million, $135.5
million, and $129.6 million, respectively.

Other Contingencies

Under the Company's insurance programs, coverage is obtained for catastrophic exposures, as well as those risks required to be insured by law or
contract. The Company's policy is to retain a significant portion of certain expected losses related to workers' compensation, health insurance, comprehensive
general liability and vehicle liability. A portion of these self-insured liabilities are managed through its wholly-owned captive insurance subsidiary.

Provisions for losses expected under these programs are recorded based upon the Company's estimates of the aggregate liability for claims. The
deductible per participant per year for the health insurance policy is $0.6 million. The deductible per occurrence for workers' compensation is $1.0 million,
general liability is $2.0 million and vehicle liability is $2.0 million. The retention per claim for the environmental impairment policy is $1.0 million. At
December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company had accrued $46.5 million and $42.5 million, respectively, for its self-insurance liabilities (exclusive of health
insurance) using a risk-free discount rate of 1.16% and 1.29%, respectively. Actual expenditures in future periods can differ materially from accruals based on
estimates.

Anticipated payments for contingencies related to workers' compensation, comprehensive general liability and vehicle liability related claims at
December 31, 2016 for each of the next five years and thereafter were as follows (in thousands):

Years ending December 31,  

2017 $ 17,827
2018 10,286
2019 7,559
2020 4,552
2021 3,978
Thereafter 3,269
Undiscounted self-insurance liabilities 47,471
Less: Discount 941
Total self-insurance liabilities (included in accrued expenses) $ 46,530
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Segment reporting is prepared on the same basis that the Company's chief executive officer, who is the Company's chief operating decision maker,
manages its business, makes operating decisions and assesses performance. During the fourth quarter of 2016, the Company changed the manner in which it
manages its business, makes operating decisions and assesses its performance. These changes included combining the Safety-Kleen Environmental Services
business and Kleen Performance Products business into a single operating segment called "Safety-Kleen," moving the Production Services business,
previously included in the Company's Oil and Gas Field Services operating segment, into the Company's Industrial Services operating segment, and
reassigning certain departments among the Company's operating segments in line with management reporting changes. In addition, for purposes of segment
disclosure, the Company combined the Oil and Gas Field Services and Lodging Services operating segments under the heading "Oil, Gas and Lodging
Services," as those individual operating segments do not meet the quantitative thresholds for separate disclosure.

The Company believes this new organizational structure aligns the businesses for growth and efficiency. The amounts presented for all periods herein
have been recast to reflect the impact of such changes. The Company's operations are now managed in six operating segments: Technical Services, Industrial
Services, Field Services, Safety-Kleen, Oil and Gas Field Services and Lodging Services. For purposes of segment disclosure the Industrial Services and Field
Services operating segments have been aggregated into a single reportable segment based upon their similar economic and other characteristics, and the Oil
and Gas Field Services and Lodging Services operating segments have been combined as they do not meet the quantitative thresholds for separate
presentation.

Third-party revenue is revenue billed to outside customers by a particular segment. Direct revenue is revenue allocated to the segment providing the
product or service. Intersegment revenues represent the sharing of third-party revenues among the segments based on products and services provided by each
segment as if the products and services were sold directly to the third-party. The intersegment revenues are shown net. The negative intersegment revenues
are due to more transfers out of customer revenues to other segments than transfers in of customer revenues from other segments. The operations not managed
through the Company’s operating segments described above are recorded as “Corporate Items.” Corporate Items revenues consist of two different operations
for which the revenues are insignificant. Corporate Items cost of revenues represents certain central services that are not allocated to the Company's operating
segments for internal reporting purposes. Corporate Items selling, general and administrative expenses include typical corporate items such as legal,
accounting and other items of a general corporate nature that are not allocated to the Company’s operating segments. 

The following table reconciles third-party revenues to direct revenues for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 (in thousands):

 For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

 
Technical
Services  

Industrial
and Field Services  Safety-Kleen  

Oil, Gas and
Lodging Services  

Corporate
Items  Totals

Third-party revenues $ 906,495  $ 618,245  $ 1,110,727  $ 116,692  $ 3,067  $ 2,755,226
Intersegment revenues, net 147,866  (35,724)  (115,013)  2,871  —  —
Corporate Items, net 2,374  (306)  369  320  (2,757)  —
Direct revenues $ 1,056,735  $ 582,215  $ 996,083  $ 119,883  $ 310  $ 2,755,226

 For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

 
Technical
Services  

Industrial
and Field Services  Safety-Kleen

Oil, Gas and
Lodging Services  

Corporate
Items  Totals

Third-party revenues $ 991,410  $ 1,023,638  $ 1,060,926  $ 198,705  $ 458  $ 3,275,137
Intersegment revenues, net 144,084  (32,903)  (119,232)  8,051  —  —
Corporate Items, net 3,586  (782)  (5)  383  (3,182)  —
Direct revenues $ 1,139,080  $ 989,953  $ 941,689  $ 207,139  $ (2,724)  $ 3,275,137
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 For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

 
Technical
Services  

Industrial
and Field Services  Safety-Kleen

Oil, Gas and
Lodging Services  

Corporate
Items  Totals

Third-party revenues $ 1,043,267  $ 795,249  $ 1,200,907  $ 361,937  $ 276  $ 3,401,636
Intersegment revenues, net 156,543  (46,424)  (121,382)  11,263  —  —
Corporate Items, net 5,573  271  (63)  75  (5,856)  —
Direct revenues $ 1,205,383  $ 749,096  $ 1,079,462  $ 373,275  $ (5,580)  $ 3,401,636

The primary financial measure by which the Company evaluates the performance of its segments is Adjusted EBITDA which consists of net (loss)
income plus accretion of environmental liabilities, depreciation and amortization, net interest expense, provision for income taxes, other gains or non-cash
charges (including gain on sale of business and goodwill impairment charges) not deemed representative of fundamental segment results and excludes other
(income) expense, net. Transactions between the segments are accounted for at the Company’s best estimate based on similar transactions with outside
customers.

The following table presents Adjusted EBITDA information used by management by reported segment (in thousands):

 For the Year Ended December 31,

 2016  2015  2014

Adjusted EBITDA:      
Technical Services $ 271,176  $ 291,737  $ 328,130
Industrial and Field Services 51,191  161,447  98,266
Safety-Kleen 219,546  172,262  165,547
Oil, Gas and Lodging Services (3,292)  11,704  90,877
Corporate Items (138,267)  (132,983)  (160,901)

Total 400,354  504,167  521,919
Reconciliation to Consolidated Statements of Operations:      

Accretion of environmental liabilities 10,177  10,402  10,612
Depreciation and amortization 287,002  274,194  276,083
Goodwill impairment charges 34,013  31,992  123,414
Income from operations 69,162  187,579  111,810
Other (income) expense, net (6,195)  1,380  (4,380)
Gain on sale of business (16,884)  —  —
Interest expense, net of interest income 83,525  76,553  77,668

Income from operations before provision for income taxes $ 8,716  $ 109,646  $ 38,522

Revenue, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets outside of the United States

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company generated $2,213.4 million or 80.3% of revenues in the United States and Puerto Rico, $538.0
million or 19.5% of revenues in Canada, and less than 1.0% of revenues in other international locations. For the year ended December 31, 2015, the
Company generated $2,576.2 million or 78.7% of revenues in the United States and Puerto Rico, $695.0 million or 21.2% of revenues in Canada, and less
than 1.0% of revenues in other international locations. For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company generated $2,414.6 million or 71.0% of
revenues in the United States and Puerto Rico, $982.1 million or 28.9% of revenues in Canada, and less than 1.0% of revenues in other international
locations.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company had property, plant and equipment, net of depreciation and amortization of $1,611.8 million, and permits and
other intangible assets of $498.7 million. Of these totals, $400.3 million or 24.8% of property, plant and equipment and $63.1 million or 12.7% of permits
and other intangible assets were in Canada, with the balance being in the United States and Puerto Rico (except for insignificant assets in other foreign
countries). As of December 31, 2015, the Company had property, plant and equipment, net of depreciation and amortization of $1,532.5 million, and permits
and other intangible assets of $506.8 million. Of these totals, $449.3 million or 29.3% of property, plant and equipment and $71.7 million or 14.2% of
permits and other intangible assets were in Canada, with the balance being in the United States and Puerto Rico (except for insignificant assets in other
foreign countries).
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The following table presents assets by reported segment and in the aggregate (in thousands):

 December 31, 2016  December 31, 2015

Property, plant and equipment, net    
Technical Services $ 521,134  $ 483,425
Industrial and Field Services 245,143  283,509
Safety-Kleen 584,647  458,394
Oil, Gas and Lodging Services 182,038  215,645
Corporate Items 78,865  91,494

Total property, plant and equipment, net $ 1,611,827  $ 1,532,467

    
Goodwill and Permits and other intangibles, net    
Technical Services    

Goodwill $ 61,116  $ 49,267
Permits and other intangibles, net 78,625  73,601

Total Technical Services 139,741  122,868
    
Industrial and Field Services    

Goodwill 107,968  105,286
Permits and other intangibles, net 17,817  17,198

Total Industrial and Field Services 125,785  122,484
    
Safety-Kleen    

Goodwill 296,070  266,344
Permits and other intangibles, net 391,390  396,661

Total Safety-Kleen 687,460  663,005
    
Oil, Gas and Lodging Services    

Goodwill —  32,208
Permits and other intangibles, net 10,889  19,358

Total Oil, Gas and Lodging Services 10,889  51,566
    

Total $ 963,875  $ 959,923

The following table presents the total assets by reported segment (in thousands):

 December 31, 2016  December 31, 2015  December 31, 2014

Technical Services $ 862,957  $ 800,060  $ 756,169
Industrial and Field Services 446,826  461,180  513,962
Safety-Kleen 1,474,755  1,297,971  1,269,993
Oil, Gas and Lodging Services 253,242  333,245  471,695
Corporate Items 644,140  538,972  677,604
Total $ 3,681,920  $ 3,431,428  $ 3,689,423

The following table presents the total assets by geographical area (in thousands):

 December 31, 2016  December 31, 2015  December 31, 2014

United States $ 2,960,337  $ 2,575,746  $ 2,557,639
Canada 721,583  851,949  1,128,458
Other foreign —  3,733  3,326
Total $ 3,681,920  $ 3,431,428  $ 3,689,423



90



Table of Contents

CLEAN HARBORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(19) GUARANTOR AND NON-GUARANTOR SUBSIDIARIES

The 2020 Notes and the 2021 Notes (collectively, the "Notes") are guaranteed by substantially all of the Company’s subsidiaries organized in the
United States. Each guarantor for the Notes is a 100% owned subsidiary of Clean Harbors, Inc. and its guarantee is both full and unconditional and joint and
several. The guarantees are, however, subject to customary release provisions under which, in particular, the guarantee of any domestic restricted subsidiary
will be released if the Company sells such subsidiary to an unrelated third party in accordance with the terms of the indentures which govern the Notes. The
Notes are not guaranteed by the Company’s subsidiaries organized outside the United States. The following supplemental condensed consolidating financial
information for the parent company, the guarantor subsidiaries and the non-guarantor subsidiaries, respectively, is presented in conformity with the
requirements of Rule 3-10 of SEC Regulation S-X (“Rule 3-10”).

Following is the condensed consolidating balance sheet at December 31, 2016 (in thousands):

 
Clean

Harbors, Inc.  
Guarantor
Subsidiaries  

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries  

Consolidating
Adjustments  Total

Assets:          
Cash and cash equivalents $ 51,417  $ 155,943  $ 99,637  $ —  $ 306,997
Intercompany receivables 200,337  354,836  49,055  (604,228)  —
Accounts receivable, net —  417,029  79,197  —  496,226
Other current assets 3,096  234,408  69,257  (17,113)  289,648
Property, plant and equipment, net —  1,211,210  400,617  —  1,611,827
Investments in subsidiaries 2,851,571  580,124  —  (3,431,695)  —
Intercompany debt receivable —  86,409  24,701  (111,110)  —
Goodwill —  412,638  52,516  —  465,154
Permits and other intangibles, net —  435,594  63,127  —  498,721
Other long-term assets 2,446  7,582  4,387  (1,068)  13,347

Total assets $ 3,108,867  $ 3,895,773  $ 842,494  $ (4,165,214)  $ 3,681,920

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity:          
Current liabilities $ 21,805  $ 366,831  $ 133,145  $ (17,113)  $ 504,668
Intercompany payables 365,848  237,058  1,322  (604,228)  —
Closure, post-closure and remedial liabilities, net —  150,682  15,640  —  166,322
Long-term obligations 1,633,272  —  —  —  1,633,272
Capital lease obligations, net —  —  —  —  —
Intercompany debt payable 3,701  21,000  86,409  (111,110)  —
Other long-term liabilities —  275,649  18,836  (1,068)  293,417

Total liabilities 2,024,626  1,051,220  255,352  (733,519)  2,597,679
Stockholders' equity 1,084,241  2,844,553  587,142  (3,431,695)  1,084,241

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 3,108,867  $ 3,895,773  $ 842,494  $ (4,165,214)  $ 3,681,920
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Following is the condensed consolidating balance sheet at December 31, 2015 (in thousands):

 
Clean

Harbors, Inc.  
Guarantor
Subsidiaries  

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries  

Consolidating
Adjustments  Total

Assets:          
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,017  $ 83,479  $ 90,212  $ —  $ 184,708
Intercompany receivables 164,709  213,243  39,804  (417,756)  —
Accounts receivable, net —  404,580  91,424  —  496,004
Other current assets —  179,969  60,515  —  240,484
Property, plant and equipment, net —  1,082,466  450,001  —  1,532,467
Investments in subsidiaries 2,547,307  522,067  —  (3,069,374)  —
Intercompany debt receivable —  260,957  3,701  (264,658)  —
Goodwill —  367,306  85,799  —  453,105
Permits and other intangibles, net —  435,080  71,738  —  506,818
Other long-term assets 1,068  10,274  6,500  —  17,842

Total assets $ 2,724,101  $ 3,559,421  $ 899,694  $ (3,751,788)  $ 3,431,428

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity:          
Current liabilities $ 20,813  $ 424,588  $ 71,719  $ —  $ 517,120
Intercompany payables 220,762  195,287  1,707  (417,756)  —
Closure, post-closure and remedial liabilities, net —  153,190  14,656  —  167,846
Long-term obligations 1,382,543  —  —  —  1,382,543
Capital lease obligations, net —  —  —  —  —
Intercompany debt payable 3,701  —  260,957  (264,658)  —
Other long-term liabilities —  239,049  28,588  —  267,637

Total liabilities 1,627,819  1,012,114  377,627  (682,414)  2,335,146
Stockholders' equity 1,096,282  2,547,307  522,067  (3,069,374)  1,096,282

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 2,724,101  $ 3,559,421  $ 899,694  $ (3,751,788)  $ 3,431,428
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Following is the consolidating statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2016 (in thousands):

 
Clean

Harbors, Inc.  
Guarantor
Subsidiaries  

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries  

Consolidating
Adjustments  Total

Revenues          
  Service revenues $ —  $ 1,747,985  $ 582,075  $ (49,251)  $ 2,280,809
  Product revenues —  410,868  73,793  (10,244)  474,417
   Total revenues —  2,158,853  655,868  (59,495)  2,755,226
Cost of revenues (exclusive of items shown separately
below)          
  Service cost of revenues —  1,116,132  476,329  (49,251)  1,543,210
  Product cost of revenues —  349,069  50,822  (10,244)  389,647
   Total cost of revenues —  1,465,201  527,151  (59,495)  1,932,857
Selling, general and administrative expenses 85  341,963  79,967  —  422,015
Accretion of environmental liabilities —  9,261  916  —  10,177
Depreciation and amortization —  201,153  85,849  —  287,002
Goodwill impairment charge —  —  34,013  —  34,013
Income (loss) from operations (85)  141,275  (72,028)  —  69,162
Other income (expense), net —  7,713  (1,518)  —  6,195
Gain on sale of business —  1,704  15,180  —  16,884
Interest (expense) income, net (88,984)  5,391  68  —  (83,525)
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of tax 13,568  (80,244)  —  66,676  —
Intercompany interest income (expense) —  19,855  (19,855)  —  —
(Loss) income before (benefit) provision for income
taxes (75,501)  95,694  (78,153)  66,676  8,716
(Benefit) provision for income taxes (35,628)  82,643  1,574  —  48,589
Net (loss) income (39,873)  13,051  (79,727)  66,676  (39,873)
Other comprehensive income 40,566  40,566  15,291  (55,857)  40,566
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 693  $ 53,617  $ (64,436)  $ 10,819  $ 693
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Following is the consolidating statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2015 (in thousands):

 
Clean

Harbors, Inc.  
Guarantor
Subsidiaries  

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries  

Consolidating
Adjustments  Total

Revenues          
  Service revenues $ —  $ 2,111,086  $ 692,216  $ (59,030)  $ 2,744,272
  Product revenues —  458,314  83,970  (11,419)  530,865
   Total revenues —  2,569,400  776,186  (70,449)  3,275,137
Cost of revenues (exclusive of items shown separately
below)          
  Service cost of revenues 5  1,415,435  542,497  (59,030)  1,898,907
  Product cost of revenues —  410,128  59,190  (11,419)  457,899
   Total cost of revenues 5  1,825,563  601,687  (70,449)  2,356,806
Selling, general and administrative expenses 101  329,069  84,994  —  414,164
Accretion of environmental liabilities —  9,209  1,193  —  10,402
Depreciation and amortization —  184,017  90,177  —  274,194
Goodwill impairment charge —  4,164  27,828  —  31,992
(Loss) income from operations (106)  217,378  (29,693)  —  187,579
Other income (expense), net —  491  (1,871)  —  (1,380)
Interest (expense) income, net (78,621)  1,860  208  —  (76,553)
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of tax 91,339  (47,141)  —  (44,198)  —
Intercompany interest income (expense) —  23,156  (23,156)  —  —
Income (loss) before (benefit) provision for income
taxes 12,612  195,744  (54,512)  (44,198)  109,646
(Benefit) provision for income taxes (31,490)  104,405  (7,371)  —  65,544
Net income (loss) 44,102  91,339  (47,141)  (44,198)  44,102
Other comprehensive loss (144,050)  (144,050)  (93,983)  238,033  (144,050)
Comprehensive loss $ (99,948)  $ (52,711)  $ (141,124)  $ 193,835  $ (99,948)
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CLEAN HARBORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(19) GUARANTOR AND NON-GUARANTOR SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Following is the consolidating statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2014 (in thousands):

 
Clean

Harbors, Inc.  
Guarantor
Subsidiaries  

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries  

Consolidating
Adjustments  Total

Revenues          
  Service revenues $ —  $ 1,786,695  $ 876,085  $ (22,984)  $ 2,639,796
  Product revenues —  619,802  148,671  (6,633)  761,840
   Total revenues —  2,406,497  1,024,756  (29,617)  3,401,636
Cost of revenues (exclusive of items shown separately
below)          
  Service cost of revenues —  1,172,181  641,180  (22,984)  1,790,377
  Product cost of revenues —  538,671  119,381  (6,633)  651,419
   Total cost of revenues —  1,710,852  760,561  (29,617)  2,441,796
Selling, general and administrative expenses 114  321,069  116,738  —  437,921
Accretion of environmental liabilities —  9,240  1,372  —  10,612
Depreciation and amortization —  173,447  102,636  —  276,083
Goodwill impairment charge —  105,466  17,948  —  123,414
(Loss) income from operations (114)  86,423  25,501  —  111,810
Other income, net —  3,369  1,011  —  4,380
Interest (expense) income, net (78,570)  800  102  —  (77,668)
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of tax 18,882  (9,031)  —  (9,851)  —
Intercompany dividend income (expense) —  —  6,238  (6,238)  —
Intercompany interest income (expense) —  28,596  (28,596)  —  —
(Loss) income before (benefit) provision for income
taxes (59,802)  110,157  4,256  (16,089)  38,522
(Benefit) provision for income taxes (31,474)  91,275  7,049  —  66,850
Net (loss) income (28,328)  18,882  (2,793)  (16,089)  (28,328)
Other comprehensive loss (91,286)  (91,286)  (37,157)  128,443  (91,286)
Comprehensive loss $ (119,614)  $ (72,404)  $ (39,950)  $ 112,354  $ (119,614)
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CLEAN HARBORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(19) GUARANTOR AND NON-GUARANTOR SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Following is the condensed consolidating statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2016 (in thousands):

 
Clean

Harbors, Inc.  
Guarantor
Subsidiaries  

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries  

Consolidating
Adjustments  Total

Net cash from operating activities $ 51,033  $ 125,591  $ 83,000  —  $ 259,624
Cash flows from investing activities:          

Additions to property, plant and equipment —  (194,184)  (25,200)  —  (219,384)
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets —  12,926  7,891  —  20,817
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired —  (196,915)  (10,000)  —  (206,915)
Proceeds on sale of business —  18,885  28,249  —  47,134
Costs to obtain or renew permits —  (1,749)  (1,082)  —  (2,831)
Purchase of available-for-sale securities (102)  —  (496)  —  (598)
Investment in subsidiaries (257,125)  —    257,125  —
Intercompany —  (23,182)  —  23,182  —
Intercompany debt —  63,118  (21,000)  (42,118)  —

Net cash used in investing activities (257,227)  (321,101)  (21,638)  238,189  (361,777)
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:          

Change in uncashed checks —  (3,651)  474  —  (3,177)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 627  —  —  —  627
Remittance of shares, net (2,819)  —  —  —  (2,819)
Excess tax benefit of stock-based compensation 1,198  —  —  —  1,198
Deferred financing costs paid (4,031)  —  —  —  (4,031)
Repurchases of common stock (22,188)  —  —  —  (22,188)
Issuance of senior secured notes, including premium 250,625  250,625  —  (250,625)  250,625
Intercompany 23,182  —  6,500  (29,682)  —
Intercompany debt —  21,000  (63,118)  42,118  —

Net cash from (used in) financing activities 246,594  267,974  (56,144)  (238,189)  220,235
Effect of exchange rate change on cash —  —  4,207  —  4,207
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 40,400  72,464  9,425  —  122,289
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 11,017  83,479  90,212  —  184,708
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 51,417  $ 155,943  $ 99,637  —  $ 306,997

96



Table of Contents

CLEAN HARBORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(19) GUARANTOR AND NON-GUARANTOR SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Following is the condensed consolidating statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2015 (in thousands):

 
Clean

Harbors, Inc.  
Guarantor
Subsidiaries  

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries  

Consolidating
Adjustments  Total

Net cash from operating activities $ 9,543  $ 314,585  $ 72,255  —  $ 396,383
Cash flows from investing activities:          

Additions to property, plant and equipment —  (220,789)  (36,407)  —  (257,196)
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets —  1,447  4,748  —  6,195
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired —  (94,345)  —  —  (94,345)
Additions to intangible assets, including costs to obtain
or renew permits —  —  (5,296)  —  (5,296)
Intercompany —  (75,506)  —  75,506  —
Intercompany debt —  14,272  —  (14,272)  —

Net cash used in investing activities —  (374,921)  (36,955)  61,234  (350,642)
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:          

Change in uncashed checks —  (10,129)  (4,501)  —  (14,630)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 397  —  —  —  397
Remittance of shares, net (2,159)  —  —  —  (2,159)
Repurchases of common stock (73,347)  —  —  —  (73,347)
Payments on capital leases —  (203)  (308)  —  (511)
Excess tax benefit of stock-based compensation 71  —  —  —  71
Intercompany 75,506  —  —  (75,506)  —
Intercompany debt —  —  (14,272)  14,272  —

Net cash from (used in) financing activities 468  (10,332)  (19,081)  (61,234)  (90,179)
Effect of exchange rate change on cash —  —  (17,733)  —  (17,733)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 10,011  (70,668)  (1,514)  —  (62,171)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,006  154,147  91,726  —  246,879
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 11,017  $ 83,479  $ 90,212  $ —  $ 184,708
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CLEAN HARBORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(19) GUARANTOR AND NON-GUARANTOR SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Following is the condensed consolidating statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2014 (in thousands):

 
Clean

Harbors, Inc.  
Guarantor
Subsidiaries  

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries  

Consolidating
Adjustments  Total

Net cash (used in) from operating activities $ (5,242)  $ 70,761  $ 250,433  (18,586)  $ 297,366
Cash flows from investing activities:          

Additions to property, plant and equipment —  (172,525)  (85,088)  —  (257,613)
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets and assets held for
sale —  3,956  4,208  —  8,164
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired —  (6,550)  (9,637)  —  (16,187)
Additions to intangible assets including costs to obtain
or renew permits —  (623)  (5,896)  —  (6,519)
Intercompany —  (112,134)  —  112,134  —
Intercompany debt —  143,467  —  (143,467)  —
Proceeds from sale of long-term investments —  —  13,861  —  13,861

Net cash used in investing activities —  (144,409)  (82,552)  (31,333)  (258,294)
Cash flows used in financing activities:          

Change in uncashed checks —  11,046  4,023  —  15,069
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan 4,364  —  —  —  4,364
Remittance of shares, net (2,793)  —  —  —  (2,793)
Repurchases of common stock (104,341)  —  —  —  (104,341)
Excess tax benefit of stock-based compensation 878  —  —  —  878
Payments of capital leases —  (170)  (1,952)  —  (2,122)
Repayments of long-term obligations (5,000)  —  —  —  (5,000)
Dividends paid —  (18,586)  —  18,586  —
Intercompany 112,134  —  —  (112,134)  —
Intercompany debt —  —  (143,467)  143,467  —

Net cash used in financing activities 5,242  (7,710)  (141,396)  49,919  (93,945)
Effect of exchange rate change on cash —  —  (8,321)  —  (8,321)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents —  (81,358)  18,164  —  (63,194)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,006  235,505  73,562  —  310,073
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 1,006  $ 154,147  $ 91,726  $ —  $ 246,879
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CLEAN HARBORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(20) QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)

 
First

Quarter  
Second

Quarter  
Third

Quarter  
Fourth

Quarter
 (in thousands except per share amounts)

2016        
Revenues $ 636,083  $ 697,510  $ 729,520  $ 692,113
Cost of revenues (1) 464,279  480,002  491,915  496,661
(Loss) income from operations (3) (4,087)  34,504  16,802  21,943
Other (expense) income (350)  (189)  (198)  6,932
Net (loss) income (4) (20,871)  3,966  (10,255)  (12,713)
Basic (loss) earnings per share (2) (0.36)  0.07  (0.18)  (0.22)
Diluted (loss) earnings per share (2) (0.36)  0.07  (0.18)  (0.22)

 
First

Quarter  
Second

Quarter  
Third

Quarter  
Fourth

Quarter
 (in thousands except per share amounts)

2015        
Revenues $ 732,499  $ 936,228  $ 893,366  $ 713,044
Cost of revenues (1) 546,507  652,688  634,646  522,965
Income from operations (3) 7,302  60,758  93,970  25,549
Other income (expense), net 409  (660)  (139)  (990)
Net (loss) income (7,089)  10,395  40,228  568
Basic (loss) earnings per share (2) (0.12)  0.18  0.69  0.01
Diluted (loss) earnings per share (2) (0.12)  0.18  0.69  0.01
______________________________________

(1) Items shown separately on the statements of income consist of (i) accretion of environmental liabilities and (ii) depreciation and amortization.

(2) (Loss) earnings per share are computed independently for each of the quarters presented. Accordingly, the quarterly basic and diluted (loss) earnings
per share may not equal the total computed for the year.

(3) The third quarter of 2016 results include a $34.0 million goodwill impairment charge in the Company's Lodging Services reporting unit and the
second quarter of 2015 results include a $32.0 million goodwill impairment charge in the Company's Oil and Gas Field Services reporting unit.

(4) The third quarter of 2016 net loss includes a $16.4 million pre-tax gain on the sale of a non-core line of business within the Company's Industrial
and Field Services segment.
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CLEAN HARBORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE II

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2016

(in thousands)

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Balance
Beginning of

Period  
Additions Charged to

Operating Expense  
Deductions from

Reserves(a)  
Balance

End of Period

2014 $ 7,354  $ 8,917  $ 2,795  $ 13,476
2015 $ 13,476  $ 4,793  $ 3,075  $ 15,194
2016 $ 15,194  $ 6,907  $ 7,055  $ 15,046
________________________________________

(a) Amounts deemed uncollectible, net of recoveries.

Revenue Allowance(b)

Balance
Beginning of

Period  
Additions Charged to

Revenue  
Deductions from

Reserves  
Balance

End of Period

2014 $ 10,752  $ 20,237  $ 18,804  $ 12,185
2015 $ 12,185  $ 28,312  $ 24,265  $ 16,232
2016 $ 16,232  $ 24,252  $ 26,281  $ 14,203
________________________________________

(b) Due to the nature of the Company's businesses and the invoices that result from the services provided, customers may withhold payments and
attempt to renegotiate amounts invoiced. In addition, for some of the services provided, the Company's invoices are based on quotes that can either
generate credits or debits when the actual revenue amount is known. Based on industry knowledge and historical trends, the Company records a
revenue allowance accordingly. This practice causes the volume of activity flowing through the revenue allowance during the year to be higher than
the balance at the end of the year. Increases in overall sales volumes and the expansion of the customer base in recent years have also increased the
volume of additions and deductions to the allowance during the year, as well as increased the amount of the allowance at the end of the year. The
revenue allowance is intended to cover the net amount of revenue adjustments that may need to be credited to customers' accounts in future periods.
Management determines the appropriate total revenue allowance by evaluating the following factors on a customer-by-customer basis as well as on a
consolidated level: trends in adjustments to previously billed amounts, existing economic conditions and other information as deemed applicable.
Revenue allowance estimates can differ materially from the actual adjustments, but historically the revenue allowance has been sufficient to cover
the net amount of the reserve adjustments issued in subsequent reporting periods.

Valuation Allowance on Deferred Tax Assets

Balance
Beginning of

Period  

Additions (Deductions)
Charged to (from) Income

Tax Expense  
Other Changes

to Reserves  
Balance

End of Period

2014 $ 29,726  $ (1,812)  $ 1,147  $ 29,061
2015 $ 29,061  $ 2,274  $ (419)  $ 30,916
2016 $ 30,916  $ 22,564  $ 1,709  $ 55,189
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ITEM 9.    CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
ITEM 9A.    CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Based on an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as of the end of the
period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined under Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)) were effective as of
December 31, 2016 to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms and is accumulated and communicated to
our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as that term is defined
in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of the Company's management, including the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, the Company conducted an evaluation of its internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

The Company's management evaluated the effectiveness of Clean Harbors internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016. Based on
their evaluation under the framework in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013), the Company's management concluded that the Company
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016 based on the criteria in the Internal Control—Integrated Framework
(2013).

Deloitte & Touche LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the Company's consolidated financial statements, has issued an
attestation report on the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, which is included below in this Item 9A of this annual
report on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in the Company's internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation required by paragraph (d)

of Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 or 15d-15 that was conducted during the quarter ended December 31, 2016 that have materially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls

The Company's management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that the Company's disclosure
controls and procedures or the Company's internal control over financial reporting will prevent all errors and all fraud.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Further, the design of disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting must reflect the fact that there are resource
constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations of controls and procedures and internal
control over financial reporting, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the
Company have been detected.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Clean Harbors, Inc.
Norwell, Massachusetts

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Clean Harbors, Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2016, based
on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company's principal executive and
principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company's board of directors, management, and other personnel to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, based on
the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated financial
statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016 of the Company and our report dated February 22, 2017
expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements and financial statement schedule.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
February 22, 2017
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ITEM 9B.    OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable.

PART III

        Except for the information set forth below under Item 12 with respect to securities authorized for issuance under the registrant's equity compensation
plans, the information called for by Item 10 (Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance), Item 11 (Executive Compensation), Item 12 (Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters), Item 13 (Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and
Director Independence), and Item 14 (Principal Accountant Fees and Services) is incorporated herein by reference to the registrant's definitive proxy
statement for its 2017 annual meeting of shareholders, which definitive proxy statement will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission by
April 30, 2017.

For the purpose of calculating the aggregate market value of the voting stock of the registrant held by non-affiliates as shown on the cover page of this
report, it has been assumed that the directors and executive officers of the registrant, as will be set forth in the Company's definitive proxy statement for its
2017 annual meeting of shareholders, are the only affiliates of the registrant. However, this should not be deemed to constitute an admission that all of such
persons are, in fact, affiliates or that there are not other persons who may be deemed affiliates of the registrant.

ITEM 12.    SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

In addition to the information about the security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management and related stockholder matters which is
incorporated herein by reference to the Company's definitive proxy statement for the Company's 2017 annual meeting of shareholders, the following table
includes information as of December 31, 2016 regarding shares of common stock authorized for issuance under the Company's equity compensation plans.
The Company's shareholders previously approved each of the plans.

Plan Category

Number of securities to
be issued upon exercise
of outstanding options

and rights(a)  

Weighted average exercise
price of outstanding
options and rights(b)  

Number of securities
remaining available
for future issuance

under equity
compensation plans
(excluding securities
reflected in column

(a))(c)

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders(1) 2,000  $ 23.01  4,609,764
___________________________________________

(1) Includes: (i) the Company's 2000 Stock Incentive Plan which expired in 2010, but under which there were on December 31, 2016 outstanding
options for an aggregate of 2,000 shares; and (ii) the Company's 2010 Stock Incentive Plan (the "2010 Plan") under which there were on
December 31, 2016 no outstanding options but 4,609,764 shares were available for grant of future options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock
awards, restricted stock units and certain other forms of equity incentives. See Note 16, "Stock-Based Compensation and Employee Benefit Plans,"
to the Company's consolidated financial statements included in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data," in this report.
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PART IV

ITEM 15.    EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a)   Documents Filed as a Part of this Report

   Page

1. Financial Statements:   
    

 Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  49
    

 Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015  50
    

 Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Three Years Ended December 31, 2016  51
    
 Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the Three Years Ended December 31, 2016  52
    

 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Three Years Ended December 31, 2016  53
    

 Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity for the Three Years Ended December 31, 2016  54
    

 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  55
    

2. Financial Statement Schedule:   
    

 Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the Three Years Ended December 31, 2016  100

All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable, not required, or because the required information is included in the financial
statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits:   

The list of exhibits filed as part of this annual report on Form 10-K is set forth on the Exhibit Index immediately following the signature page to this
report, and such Exhibit Index is incorporated herein by reference.

Exhibits to this annual report on Form 10-K have been included only with the copies of the Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Upon request to the Company and payment of a reasonable fee, copies of the individual exhibits will be furnished. The Company undertakes to
furnish to the Commission upon request copies of instruments (in addition to the exhibits listed below) relating to the Company's acquisitions and long-term
debt.

ITEM 16.    FORM 10-K SUMMARY

None
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this annual report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on February 22, 2017.

 CLEAN HARBORS, INC.
 By:  /s/ ALAN S. MCKIM

   
Alan S. McKim
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this annual report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature  Title  Date

     
/s/ ALAN S. MCKIM  Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer  February 22, 2017

Alan S. McKim     
     

/s/ MICHAEL L. BATTLES  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  February 22, 2017
Michael L. Battles     

     
/s/ ERIC J. DUGAS  Vice President, Corporate Controller and Chief Accounting Officer  February 22, 2017

Eric J. Dugas     
     

*  Director  February 22, 2017
Gene Banucci     

     
*  Director  February 22, 2017

Edward G. Galante     
     

*  Director  February 22, 2017
Rod Marlin     

     
*  Director  February 22, 2017

John T. Preston     
     

*  Director  February 22, 2017
Andrea Robertson     

     
*  Director  February 22, 2017

Thomas J. Shields     
     

*  Director  February 22, 2017
Lauren C. States     

     
*  Director  February 22, 2017

John R. Welch     

*By:  /s/ ALAN S. MCKIM  

  
Alan S. McKim

Attorney-in-Fact  
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Item No.  Description  Location

2.1
 

Acquisition Agreement by and between Safety-Kleen Services, Inc., as Seller, and Clean
Harbors, Inc., as Purchaser, dated as of February 22, 2002  (1)

2.2
 

First Amendment to Acquisition Agreement by and between Safety-Kleen Services, Inc., as
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The following materials from the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2016, formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language):
(i) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations, (iii) Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss), (iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, (v)
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity, and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, tagged as blocks of text  (22)

_______________________________________________
* A “management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement” filed as an exhibit to this report pursuant to Item 15(a)(3) of Form 10-K.

(1) Incorporated by reference to the similarly numbered exhibit to the Company's Form 8-K Report filed on February 28, 2002.

(2) Incorporated by reference to the similarly numbered exhibit to the Company's Form 10-K Annual Report for the Year ended December 31, 2001.

(3) Incorporated by reference to the similarly numbered exhibit to the Company's Form 10-Q Quarterly Report for the Quarterly Period ended March 31,
2002.

(4) Incorporated by reference to the similarly numbered exhibit to the Company's Form 8-K Report filed on September 25, 2002.

(5) Incorporated by reference to the similarly numbered exhibit to the Company's Form 10-Q Quarterly Report for the Quarterly Period ended June 30,
2003.

(6) Incorporated by reference to the similarly numbered exhibit to the Company's Form 8-K Report filed on October 31, 2012.

(7) Incorporated by reference to the similarly numbered exhibit to the Company's Form 8-K Report filed on May 19, 2005.

(8) Incorporated by reference to the similarly numbered exhibit to the Company's Form 8-K Report filed on May 12, 2011.

(9) Incorporated by reference to the similarly numbered exhibit to the Company's Form 8-K Report filed on December 22, 2014.
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(10) Incorporated by reference to the similarly numbered exhibit to the Company's Form 8-K Report filed on November 2, 2016.

(11) Incorporated by reference to the similarly numbered exhibit to the Company's Report on Form 8-K filed on July 30, 2012.

(12) Incorporated by reference to the similarly numbered exhibit to the Company's Form 8-K Report filed on December 10, 2012.

(13) Incorporated by reference to the similarly numbered exhibit to the Company's Form 10-Q Quarterly Report for the Quarterly Period ended March 31,
1999.

(14) Incorporated by reference to the similarly numbered exhibit to the Company's Form 10-K Annual Report for the Year ended December 31, 2010.

(15) Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Company's definitive proxy statement for its 2012 annual meeting of shareholders filed on March
23, 2012.

(16) Incorporated by reference to the similarly numbered exhibit to the Company's Form 8-K Report filed on May 14, 2009.

(17) Incorporated by reference to the similarly numbered exhibit to the Company's Form 8-K Report filed on May 14, 2010.

(18) Incorporated by reference to Appendix B to the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement filed on March 22, 2013.

(19) Incorporated by reference by Appendix A to the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement filed on March 22, 2013.

(20) Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Company's definitive Proxy Statement for its 2014 annual meeting of shareholders filed on April 29,
2014.

(21) Incorporated by reference to the similarly numbered exhibit to the Company's Form 8-K Report filed on January 11, 2016.

(22) These interactive data files are furnished herewith and deemed not filed or part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11
or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, are deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
and otherwise are not subject to liability under those sections.
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Exhibit 21

Subsidiaries of Clean Harbors, Inc.

Subsidiary Jurisdiction of Organization
510127 NB Inc.* New Brunswick
Altair Disposal Services, LLC Delaware
Baton Rouge Disposal, LLC Delaware
BCT Structures, ULC* Alberta
Bridgeport Disposal, LLC Delaware
Cat Tech International, Ltd.* Bahamas
CH International Holdings, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors (Mexico), Inc. Delaware
Clean Harbors Andover, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Antioch, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Aragonite, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Arizona, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Baton Rouge, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors BDT, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Buttonwillow, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Canada, Inc.* New Brunswick
Clean Harbors Caribe, Inc.* Puerto Rico
Clean Harbors Catalyst Services Ltd.* Nova Scotia
Clean Harbors Chattanooga, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Clive, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Coffeyville, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Colfax, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Deer Park, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Deer Trail, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Development, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Directional Boring Services, ULC* Alberta
Clean Harbors Directional Boring Services LP* Alberta
Clean Harbors Disposal Services, Inc. Delaware
Clean Harbors El Dorado, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Energy and Industrial Services Corp.* Alberta
Clean Harbors Energy and Industrial Services LP* Alberta
Clean Harbors Energy and Industrial Western Ltd.* Alberta
Clean Harbors Energy Services ULC* Alberta
Clean Harbors Environmental Services, Inc. Massachusetts
Clean Harbors Exploration Services, Inc. Nevada
Clean Harbors Exploration Services, ULC* Alberta
Clean Harbors Exploration Services LP* Alberta
Clean Harbors Florida, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Grassy Mountain, LLC Delaware

Clean Harbors Industrial Services Canada, Inc.* Alberta
Clean Harbors Industrial Services, Inc. Delaware
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Clean Harbors Innu Environmental Services, Inc. Newfoundland
Clean Harbors Kansas, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Kingston Facility Corporation Massachusetts
Clean Harbors LaPorte, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Laurel, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Lodging Services LP* Alberta
Clean Harbors Lodging Services, ULC* Alberta
Clean Harbors Lone Mountain, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Lone Star Corp. Delaware
Clean Harbors Los Angeles, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Mercier, Inc. Quebec
Clean Harbors of Baltimore, Inc. Delaware
Clean Harbors of Braintree, Inc. Massachusetts
Clean Harbors of Connecticut, Inc. Delaware
Clean Harbors Pecatonica, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors PPM, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Production Services, ULC* Alberta
Clean Harbors Quebec, Inc.* Quebec
Clean Harbors Recycling Services of Chicago, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Recycling Services of Ohio LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Reidsville, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors San Jose, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors San Leon, Inc. Delaware
Clean Harbors Services, Inc. Massachusetts
Clean Harbors Surface Rentals, ULC* Alberta
Clean Harbors Surface Rentals Partnership* Alberta
Clean Harbors Surface Rentals USA, Inc. Delaware
Clean Harbors Tennessee, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Westmorland, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors White Castle, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Wichita, LLC Delaware
Clean Harbors Wilmington, LLC Delaware
Crowley Disposal, LLC Delaware
CTVI Inc.* Virgin Islands
Disposal Properties, LLC Delaware
Emerald Services, Inc. Washington
Emerald Services Montana, LLC Washington
Emerald West, LLC Washington
Environnement Services Et Machinerie E.S.M. Inc.* Quebec
EnviroSORT Inc. Alberta
Grizzco Camp Services, ULC* British Columbia
GSX Disposal, LLC Delaware
Heckmann Environmental Services, Inc. Delaware
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Hilliard Disposal, LLC Delaware
Industrial Service Oil Company, Inc. California
JL Filtration Inc.* Alberta
JL Filtration Operating Limited Partnership* Alberta
Laidlaw Environmental Services de Mexico S.A. de C.V.* Mexico
Murphy's Waste Oil Service, Inc. Massachusetts
Oily Waste Processors, Inc. Montana
Plaquemine Remediation Services, LLC Delaware
Rosemead Oil Products, Inc. California
RS Used Oil Services, Inc. Illinois
Roebuck Disposal, LLC Delaware
Safety-Kleen de Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V.* Mexico
Safety-Kleen Canada Inc.* New Brunswick
Safety-Kleen Envirosystems Company California
Safety-Kleen Envirosystems Company of Puerto Rico, Inc. Indiana
Safety-Kleen, Inc. Delaware
Safety-Kleen International, Inc. Delaware
Safety-Kleen International Asia Investment Company Limited* Hong Kong
Safety-Kleen of California, Inc. California
Safety-Kleen Systems, Inc. Wisconsin
Sanitherm, ULC* Alberta
Sanitherm USA, Inc. Delaware
Sawyer Disposal Services, LLC Delaware
Service Chemical, LLC Delaware
SK Holding Company, Inc. Delaware
SK D’Incineration* Quebec
SK Servicios Ambientales Administrativos, S. de R.L. de C.V.* Mexico
Spring Grove Resource Recovery, Inc. Delaware
The Solvents Recovery Service of New Jersey, Inc. New Jersey
Thermo Fluids Inc. Delaware
Tri-vax Enterprises Ltd.* Alberta
Tulsa Disposal, LLC Delaware
Versant Energy Services, Inc. Delaware
Versant Energy Services, LP* Alberta
Vulsay Industries Ltd.* Ontario

*Foreign entity or subsidiary of foreign entity



EXHIBIT 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 333-63662, 333-134381, and 333-166963 on Form S-8 of our reports
dated February 22, 2017, relating to the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule of Clean Harbors, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the
“Company”), and the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Clean
Harbors, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2016.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP  
  

Boston, Massachusetts  
February 22, 2017  



EXHIBIT 24

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Know all by these presents, that the undersigned hereby constitutes and appoints each of Alan S. McKim and Michael L. Battles, signing singly, the
undersigned’s true and lawful attorney-in-fact to:

(1)     execute for and on behalf of the undersigned, in the undersigned’s capacity as an officer and/or director of Clean Harbors, Inc. (the
“Company”), any and all documents required by the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the
rules thereunder, including, without limitation, Form 10-K;

(2)     do and perform any and all acts for and on behalf of the undersigned which may be necessary or desirable to complete and execute
any such document filing and timely file such form with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission and any stock exchange or similar
authority; and

(3)     take any other action of any type whatsoever in connection with the foregoing which, in the opinion of such attorney-in-fact, may be
of benefit to, and in the best interest of, or legally required by, the undersigned.

The undersigned hereby grants to each such attorney-in-fact full power and authority to do and perform any and every act and thing whatsoever
requisite, necessary, or proper to be done in the exercise of any of the rights and powers herein granted, as fully to all intents and purposes as the undersigned
might or could do if personally present, with full power of substitution or revocation, hereby ratifying and confirming all that such attorney-in-fact, or such
attorney-in-fact’s substitute or substitutes, shall lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue of this power of attorney and the rights and powers herein granted.
The undersigned acknowledges that the foregoing attorneys-in-fact, in serving in such capacity at the request of the undersigned, are not assuming, nor is the
Company assuming, any of the undersigned’s responsibilities to comply with Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

This Power of Attorney shall remain in full force and effect until the undersigned is no longer required with respect to the undersigned’s capacity as
an officer and/or director and/or holdings of and transactions in securities issued by the Company, unless earlier revoked by the undersigned in a signed
writing delivered to the foregoing attorneys-in-fact.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has caused this Power of Attorney to be executed as of this 22nd day of February, 2017.

 Signature
  

 /s/ GENE BANUCCI
  

 /s/ EDWARD G. GALANTE
  

 /s/ ROD MARLIN
  

 /s/ JOHN T. PRESTON
  

 /s/ ANDREA ROBERTSON
  

 /s/ THOMAS J. SHIELDS
  

 /s/ LAUREN C. STATES
  

 /s/ JOHN R. WELCH



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Alan S. McKim, certify that:

1.    I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2016 of Clean Harbors, Inc.;

2.    Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.    Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.    The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

(a)    Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)    Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)    Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)    Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.    The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)    All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)    Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

 /s/ Alan S. McKim
 Alan S. McKim
 Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 22, 2017



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Michael L. Battles, certify that:

1.    I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2016 of Clean Harbors, Inc.;

2.    Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.    Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.    The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

(a)    Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)    Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)    Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)    Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.    The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)    All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)    Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

 /s/ Michael L. Battles
 Michael L. Battles
 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date: February 22, 2017



EXHIBIT 32

CLEAN HARBORS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 1350, CHAPTER 63 OF TITLE 18, UNITED STATES CODE, 
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, each of the undersigned certifies that, to his knowledge, this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2016 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the information contained in
this report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Clean Harbors, Inc.

Date: February 22, 2017 By: /s/  ALAN S. MCKIM
 Alan S. McKim
 Chief Executive Officer
    
  
    
Date: February 22, 2017 By: /s/ MICHAEL L. BATTLES
 Michael L. Battles
 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
   
  





City of San Antonio                                                                                                                                       RFP 17-036 

Clean Harbors Environmental Services 9  www.cleanharbors.com 

GENERAL INFORMATION FORM 
Please note that Clean Harbors has limited its responses to 10 pages for sections 1 and 2 of 
Attachment A – exclusive of the required resumes, permit copies, and tax status documents. 
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016 - RFP ATTACHMENTS

RFP ATTACHMENT A, PART ONE

GENERAL INFORMATION

1. Respondent Information:  Provide the following information regarding the Respondent.
(NOTE:  Co-Respondents are two or more entities proposing as a team or joint venture with each signing the contract, 
if awarded.  Sub-contractors are not Co-Respondents and should not be identified here.  If this proposal includes Co-
Respondents, provide the required information in this Item #1 for each Co-Respondent by copying and inserting an 
additional block(s) before Item #2.)  

Respondent Name: _________________________________________________________
(NOTE:  Give exact legal name as it will appear on the contract, if awarded.)

Principal Address: __________________________________________________________

City: ___________________________State: __________________Zip Code: __________

Telephone No._____________________________ Fax No:_________________________

Website address:_____________________________

Year established: _____________________________

Provide the number of years in business under present name: _________________________

Social Security Number or Federal Employer Identification Number:  ____________________

Texas Comptroller’s Taxpayer Number, if applicable: ________________________________
(NOTE:  This 11-digit number is sometimes referred to as the Comptroller’s TIN or TID.)

DUNS NUMBER: ____________________________________________________________

Business Structure:  Check the box that indicates the business structure of the Respondent.

___Individual or Sole Proprietorship   If checked, list Assumed Name, if any: ________________________
___ Partnership 
___Corporation  If checked, check one:  ___For-Profit ___ Nonprofit
Also, check one:  ___Domestic ___Foreign
___Other   If checked, list business structure: _______________________

Printed Name of Contract Signatory:  _____________________________
Job Title: _____________________________

(NOTE: This RFP solicits proposals to provide services under a contract which has been identified as “High 
Profile”.  Therefore, Respondent must provide the name of person that will sign the contract for the Respondent, if 
awarded.)

Provide any other names under which Respondent has operated within the last 10 years and length of time under for 
each:
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________

Provide address of office from which this project would be managed:
City: ___________________________State: __________________Zip Code: ____________

Clean Harbors Environmental Services, Inc.

42 Longwater Drive

Norwell MA 02061

781.792.5000 N/A

www.cleanharbors.com

1980

37

04-2698999

10426989991

039322250

X X

William Hallam (or another Vice President in his absence)
Senior Vice President

None

4303 Profit Dr San Antonio TX 78219
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Telephone No._____________________________ Fax No: __________________________

Annual Revenue: $__________________

Total Number of Employees: __________________

Total Number of Current Clients/Customers: __________________

Briefly describe other lines of business that the company is directly or indirectly affiliated with:
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________

List Related Companies:
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________

2. Contact Information: List the one person who the City may contact concerning your proposal or setting dates for 
meetings.

Name: _______________________________ Title:  _______________________________

Address: __________________________________________________________________

City: ____________________________State: __________________Zip Code: __________

Telephone No._____________________________ Fax No: __________________________

Email: _____________________________________________________________________

3. Does Respondent anticipate any mergers, transfer of organization ownership, management reorganization, or 
departure of key personnel within the next twelve (12) months?
Yes  ___        No  ___

4. Is Respondent authorized and/or licensed to do business in Texas?
Yes  ___        No  ___         If “Yes”, list authorizations/licenses.

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

5. Where is the Respondent’s corporate headquarters located? ________________________

6. Local/County Operation:  Does the Respondent have an office located in San Antonio, Texas?
Yes  ___        No  ___         If “Yes”, respond to a and b below:

a. How long has the Respondent conducted business from its San Antonio office?

Years _______    Months_______

b. State the number of full-time employees at the San Antonio office.

If “No”, indicate if Respondent has an office located within Bexar County, Texas:
Yes  ___        No  ___         If “Yes”, respond to c and d below:

c. How long has the Respondent conducted business from its Bexar County office?

Years _______    Months_______

d. State the number of full-time employees at the Bexar County office. _____________

210.304.3055 N/A

3.275 billion

~14,000

>60,000

Please see the additional pages at the end of this form.

Parent company Clean Harbors, Inc.

Paul Bordelon Account Manager

4303 Profit Drive

San Antonio TX 78219

512.673.9502 N/A

bordelon.filmore@cleanharbors.com

X

X 
 Letter of Good Standing Texas Comptroller, Multiple transportation and disposal permits and 
licenses for our facilities.   

X

36 10

25

Norwell, MA
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7. Debarment/Suspension Information:  Has the Respondent or any of its principals been debarred or suspended 
from contracting with any public entity?
Yes ___       No ___        If “Yes”, identify the public entity and the name and current phone number of a 
representative of the public entity familiar with the debarment or suspension, and state the reason for or 
circumstances surrounding the debarment or suspension, including but not limited to the period of time for such 
debarment or suspension.

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

8. Surety Information:  Has the Respondent ever had a bond or surety canceled or forfeited?
Yes ___       No ___        If “Yes”, state the name of the bonding company, date, amount of bond and reason for such 
cancellation or forfeiture.

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

9. Bankruptcy Information:  Has the Respondent ever been declared bankrupt or filed for protection from creditors 
under state or federal proceedings?
Yes ___       No ___        If “Yes”, state the date, court, jurisdiction, cause number, amount of liabilities and amount of 
assets.  
_______________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

10. Disciplinary Action:  Has the Respondent ever received any disciplinary action, or any pending disciplinary action, 
from any regulatory bodies or professional organizations? Yes ___       No ___        If “Yes”, state the name of the 
regulatory body or professional organization, date and reason for disciplinary or impending disciplinary action.  

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

11. Previous Contracts:

a. Has the Respondent ever failed to complete any contract awarded?  
Yes ___       No ___        If “Yes”, state the name of the organization contracted with, services contracted, date, 
contract amount and reason for failing to complete the contract.  

_______________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________

b. Has any officer or partner proposed for this assignment ever been an officer or partner of some other organization 
that failed to complete a contract?
Yes ___       No ___        If “Yes”, state the name of the individual, organization contracted with, services 
contracted, date, contract amount and reason for failing to complete the contract.  
_______________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________
c. Has any officer or partner proposed for this assignment ever failed to complete a contract handled in his or her 

own name?
Yes ___       No ___        If “Yes”, state the name of the individual, organization contracted with, services 
contracted, date, contract amount and reason for failing to complete the contract.  
_______________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
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12.  References:

Provide three (3) references that Respondent has provided services to within the past three (3) years.  The contact person 
named should be familiar with the day-to-day management of the Respondent and be willing to respond to questions 
regarding the type, level, and quality of service provided.  

Reference No. 1:
Firm/Company Name ________________________________________________________

Contact Name: ________________________________ Title: ________________________

Email Address:_____________________________________________________________

Address: __________________________________________________________________

City: ______________________________State: _______________Zip Code: ___________

Telephone No._____________________________ Fax No: __________________________

Date and Type of Service(s) Provided:  _________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________

Reference No. 2:
Firm/Company Name ________________________________________________________

Contact Name: ________________________________ Title: ________________________

Email Address:_____________________________________________________________

Address: __________________________________________________________________

City: ______________________________State: _______________Zip Code: ___________

Telephone No._____________________________ Fax No: __________________________

Date and Type of Service(s) Provided:  _________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________

Reference No. 3:
Firm/Company Name ________________________________________________________

Contact Name: ________________________________ Title: ________________________

Email Address:_____________________________________________________________

Address: __________________________________________________________________

City: ______________________________State: _______________Zip Code: ___________

Telephone No._____________________________ Fax No: __________________________

Date and Type of Service(s) Provided:  _________________________________________

City of Austin HHW Program

Donald Hardee Program Manager

donald.hardee@austintexas.gov

2514 Business Center Drive

Austin TX 78744

512.974.4345

All City HHW services from 202-2005, and from 2012 to present

New Braunfels and Comal County HHW

Lynn Lyndsay Emergency Management Coordinator

lindsl@co.comal.tx.us

150 North Seguin, Suite 201

New Braunfels TX 78130

830.608.5656

Turnkey HHW services for 2004-2007, and 2011 to present

City of Rockwall

Lisa Frausto Manager

lfrausto@rockwall.com

385 South Goliad

Rockwall TX 75087

972.771.7700

Turnkey HHW services since 2004
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Briefly describe other lines of business that the company is directly or indirectly affiliated 
with: Clean Harbors is a publicly traded company that maintains a vast network of service 
centers and waste management, treatment and disposal facilities, and provides a broad range of 
environmental services. Services include hazardous and non-hazardous waste transportation and 
disposal, laboratory chemical packing, emergency response, field services and industrial 
services. Clean Harbors is an innovative leader, committed to preserving our natural environment 
and adhering to strict government regulations.  

Within Clean Harbors Environmental Services organization the Company offers Technical 
Services and Field Services.   

Our Technical Services have been developed specifically for the collection and transporting of 
all containerized and bulk waste (Transportation and Disposal), as well as the categorizing, 
packaging and removal of laboratory chemicals for disposal (CleanPack

®
). Through a highly 

coordinated transportation fleet of more than 6,000 vehicles, Clean Harbors provides reliable, 
cost-effective Transportation and Disposal to customers across North America. Our vast service 
network consists of over 100 service locations. From our Technical Service Centers, we dispatch 
our trucks to pick up customers’ waste on a pre-determined schedule as well as on demand, and 
then deliver it to one of our nearby Transfer, Storage and Disposal (TSD) facilities. From these 
same Technical Service Centers, we can dispatch chemists to a customer location to safely 
collect, label and package all quantities of laboratory chemicals for disposal.  

Clean Harbors’ Field Services are designed to provide customers highly skilled experts with 
specialty equipment and resources to perform an array of services at any chosen location. Clean 
Harbors’ Field Services ensure that crews and equipment are dispatched on a scheduled or on-
call emergency basis to perform everything from facility decontamination and large remediation 
projects to selective demolition, spill cleanup, and vacuum services. Also, as part of Clean 
Harbors’ Field Services, we provide crews focused on industrial cleaning and maintenance 
projects that typically require fast turnaround due to facility shutdowns. These services may 
include scarifying and media blasting, liquid/dry vacuuming, sodium bicarbonate blasting, and 
steam cleaning of equipment and systems.  
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LITIGATION DISCLOSURE FORM 
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LOCAL PREFERENCE PROGRAM ORDINANCE 
IDENTIFICATION FORM 













Clean Harbors Environmental Services, Inc. – San Antonio, TX 
Organization Chart 

Technical Services 
 

 

District Manager
Brian Key

William Dalzell
Branch Manager

Project Manager
John Guzman

Sr. Lead Chemist
Sam Dorman

Sr. Lead Chemist
George 

Hernandez

Chemist
Chris Edwards

InSite Chemist
Andrew Quiroga

Driver
David Marble

HHW Chemist
Gilbert Salazar

HHW Chemist
Jerry Cano

HHW Tech
Anthony Angulo

HHW Tech
Paul Farias

HHW Tech
Cade Ramirez

Account Manager
Paul Bordelon

Account Manager
Jay Urbansky



Field Services 

 

Branch Manager
Benjamin Ingles

Field Service 
Supervisor

Jeffrey Weston

Field Service 
Supervisor

Josh McCoy

Environmental 
Technician

Luid Del Valle

Environmental 
Technician

Travis Marks

Environental 
Technician

Jack Buchanan

Vac Operator
Jorge Medina

Vac Operator
Raul Vega

Administration 
Manager

Sheri Porter

Account Manager
Ken Benson
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PRICE SCHEDULE 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1.1 Staff support: 

Field Chemist rate per hour
Estimated # of 

Hours per month Total Per month
Total Number of 
Months Total for for 12 months

42.82$                                                                 200 8,564.00$        12 102,768.00$                

Technician rate per hour

Estimated # of 
Hours per month 

per technician Total Per month
Total Number of 

Months Total for for 12 months
38.54$                                                                 200 7,708.00$         12 92,496.00$                  

1.2 Equipment and Supplies:

Item/Unit
Estimated 

Annual Quantity
Unit of 

Measure
Price per 
Item/Unit Extended Prices

55 Gallon Metal Open-top Drum 840 Drum $              60.00 $                  50,400.00 
55 Gallon Metal Closed-top Drum 108 Drum $              41.00 $                    4,428.00 
85/95-Gallon Plastic Overpack 25 Drum $            250.00 $                    6,250.00 
55 Gallon Plastic Open-top Drum 420 Drum $              69.00 $                  28,980.00 
30 Gallon Plastic Open-top Drum 60 Drum $              51.00 $                    3,060.00 
2-Gallon Plastic Pail 200 Pail $                5.00 $                    1,000.00 
1 Gallon Paint Cans 1020 Pail $                1.00 $                    1,020.00 
5 Gallon Paint Cans 600 Pail $              25.00 $                  15,000.00 
5 Gallon Plastic 24 Drum $              13.00 $                       312.00 
5 Gallon Fiber Drum 24 Drum $              17.00 $                       408.00 
10 Gallon Fiber Open-top Drum 24 Drum $              24.00 $                       576.00 
15/16 Gallon Fiber Open-top Drum 24 Drum $              24.00 $                       576.00 
20 Gallon Fiber Open-top Drum 24 Drum $              43.00 $                    1,032.00 
30 Gallon Fiber Open-top Drum 24 Drum $              30.00 $                       720.00 
55 Gallon Fiber Open-top Drum 220 Drum $              33.00 $                    7,260.00 
4ft Bulb box 200 Drum $              15.00 $                    3,000.00 
8ft Bulb box 200 Drum $              18.00 $                    3,600.00 
Cubic Yard Box with Liner 720 Box $              55.00 $                  39,600.00 
FLEXBIN, NON-HAZARDOUS No Liner 200 Box $              53.00 $                  10,600.00 

Technician(s): Shall take direction from the Field Chemist and shall be trained and knowledgeable in the proper handling of
various hazardous chemicals.

ATTACHMENT B. 
Pricing Schedule Rev. I dated 3/2/2017

Respondent shall submit in Excel Format the following prices to include all labor, equipment, materials and services necessary 
for the collection, categorization, packaging, transportation and disposal of hazardous wastes as required by this specification.  
The quantities shown are estimates for the period of the contract.  The City reserves the right to purchase more or less than these 
quantities, as may be required during the contract period.  Order quantities will be on an as needed basis by the City for each 
order or shipment.  The following pricing will be considered during the rating of submittals and will become a part of the 
contract upon selection.  All potential Respondents must provide pricing for items listed below, in this particular format to be 
considered for award. Respondent shall submit pricing for each line item on Attachment B, Price Schedule, to be eligible for 
contract award.  

Respondent will receive zero (0) points for RFP Section 012, Evaluation Criteria, Price – 20 points for; 
Line Items submitted by Respondent as: "No Bid" or left blank and; 
Line Items that Respondent has changed/altered any estimated quantities or product information

Line Items marked by Respondent as: "Included" or $0.00 will be determined by the City as Respondent will provide 
to City at No Charge. 

Assistance from the selected Respondent will be required to support the Culebra and Bitters permanent HHW drop-off center.  
Support shall include at least one Field Chemist and up to four Feld Technicians per site and could increase at the City's direction 
depending on the work load. Hourly rates only apply when Respondent's staff arrive on location and sign-in at work location. 

Field Chemist(s):  Shall be a competent person, educated, trained and responsible for identifying, segregating and packaging 
hazardous chemicals.  The Field Chemist must be able to use various screening tests for the proper identification and 
categorization of hazardous chemicals.

1.0  SUPPORT FOR PERMANENT HHW DROP-OFF CENTER

Note - Only the areas highlighted in yellow of this document are editable and need to be completed.  Respondents shall not 
change/alter any estimated quantities and product information on this price schedule.



Pallet 312 Pallet $              17.00  $                    5,304.00 
Vermiculite (20 lb. bags) 360 Bags $              34.00 $                  12,240.00 
100 Ft. Roll Plastic Sheeting (6 mil.) 24 Roll $            100.00 $                    2,400.00 
Absorbent Clay (50 lb. bags) 120 Bags $                9.75 $                    1,170.00 
Absorbent Pads 100/bale 400 Bags $              60.00 $                  24,000.00 
Duct Tape 400 Each $              16.00 $                    6,400.00 
Chemical Aprons 840 Each $                1.50 $                    1,260.00 
Tyvek Suits 840 Each $                3.75 $                    3,150.00 
Nitrile Gloves 3600 Pair $                1.00 $                    3,600.00 
Cut Resistant Gloves/Dipped Gloves 1800 Pair $                3.50 $                    6,300.00 
Gloves - Leather 900 Pair $                8.00 $                    7,200.00 



2.1 INCINERATION 
Liquid Lab Pack
55-gal drum 100 Drum  $            205.00  $                  20,500.00 
30-gal drum 20 Drum  $            100.00  $                    2,000.00 
20-gal drum 20 Drum  $              75.00  $                    1,500.00 
15/16-gal drum 20 Drum  $              60.00  $                    1,200.00 
10-gal drum 20 Drum  $              40.00  $                       800.00 
5-gal drum 20 Drum  $              35.00  $                       700.00 
Solid Lab Pack
55-gal drum 100 Drum  $            205.00  $                  20,500.00 
30-gal drum 20 Drum  $            100.00  $                    2,000.00 
20-gal drum 20 Drum  $              75.00  $                    1,500.00 
15/16-gal drum 20 Drum  $              60.00  $                    1,200.00 
10-gal drum 20 Drum  $              40.00  $                       800.00 
5-gal drum 20 Drum  $              35.00  $                       700.00 
Cubic Yard Box 20 Drum $            250.00 $                    5,000.00 
2.2 FUEL BLEND
Liquid (Bulk)
55-Gallon Drum 100 Drum  $              60.00  $                    6,000.00 
30-gal drum 20 Drum  $              40.00  $                       800.00 
20-gal drum 20 Drum  $              40.00  $                       800.00 
15/16-gal drum 20 Drum  $              40.00  $                       800.00 
10-gal drum 20 Drum  $              20.00  $                       400.00 
5-gal drum 20 Drum  $              20.00  $                       400.00 
Solid (Bulk)
55-Gallon Drum 100 Drum  $              45.00  $                    4,500.00 
30-gal drum 20 Drum  $              45.00  $                       900.00 
20-gal drum 20 Drum  $              35.00  $                       700.00 
15/16-gal drum 20 Drum  $              35.00  $                       700.00 
10-gal drum 20 Drum  $              25.00  $                       500.00 
5-gal drum 20 Drum $              25.00 $                       500.00 
2.3 TREATMENT
Bulk
55-Gallon Drum 20 Drum  $            100.00  $                    2,000.00 
30-gal drum 100 Drum  $              75.00  $                    7,500.00 
20-gal drum 20 Drum  $              65.00  $                    1,300.00 
15/16-gal drum 20 Drum  $              65.00  $                    1,300.00 
10-gal drum 20 Drum  $              40.00  $                       800.00 
5-gal drum 20 Drum  $              30.00  $                       600.00 
Lab Pack
55-Gallon Drum 20 Drum  $            205.00  $                    4,100.00 
30-gal drum 100 Drum  $            100.00  $                  10,000.00 
20-gal drum 20 Drum  $              75.00  $                    1,500.00 
15/16-gal drum 20 Drum  $              60.00  $                    1,200.00 
10-gal drum 20 Drum  $              40.00  $                       800.00 
5-gal drum 20 Drum $              35.00 $                       700.00 
2.4 LANDFILL 
Bulk
55-Gallon Drum 50 Drum  $              50.00  $                    2,500.00 
30-gal drum 10 Drum  $              50.00  $                       500.00 
20-gal drum 10 Drum  $              35.00  $                       350.00 
15/16-gal drum 10 Drum  $              35.00  $                       350.00 
10-gal drum 10 Drum  $              35.00  $                       350.00 
5-gal drum 10 Drum  $              35.00  $                       350.00 
Lab Pack

2.0 COST PER DISPOSAL METHOD NOTE: Unit and extended prices shown are for fifty-five (55) gallon drums unless 
otherwise specified.

Disposal Method
Estimated 

Annual Quantity Unit Price Extended Prices
Unit of 

Measure



55-Gallon Drum 200 Drum  $              50.00  $                  10,000.00 
30-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $              50.00  $                       500.00 
20-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $              35.00  $                       350.00 
15/16-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $              35.00  $                       350.00 
10-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $              35.00  $                       350.00 
5-Gallon Pail 10 Drum  $              35.00  $                       350.00 
Contaminated absorbent materials/soil
55-gal drum 50 Drum  $              50.00  $                    2,500.00 
Cubic Yard Box (CYB)/FBIN/PAL 50 Box  $            150.00  $                    7,500.00 
Spill Clean Up
55-Gallon Drum 50 Drum  $              50.00  $                    2,500.00 
30-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $              50.00  $                       500.00 
20-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $              35.00  $                       350.00 
15/16-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $              35.00  $                       350.00 
10-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $              35.00  $                       350.00 
5-Gallon Pail 10 Pail $              35.00 $                       350.00 
2.6 PAINT
Oil Based
Cubic Yard Box 500 Box  $            250.00  $                125,000.00 
Latex
55-Gallon Drum 100 Drum  $              50.00  $                    5,000.00 
Cubic Yard Box 100 Box  $            150.00  $                  15,000.00 
Paint (landfilled)
55-Gallon Drum 100 Drum  $              50.00  $                    5,000.00 
Cubic Yard Box 100 Box $            150.00 $                  15,000.00 

Disposal Method Est. Ann. Quant.
Unit of 

Measure Unit Price Extended Prices
3.1 INCINERATION 
Alkali Metals
55-Gallon Drum 50 Drum  $            100.00  $                    5,000.00 
30-gal drum 5 Drum  $              95.00  $                       475.00 
20-gal drum 5 Drum  $              95.00  $                       475.00 
15/16-gal drum 5 Drum  $              95.00  $                       475.00 
10-gal drum 5 Drum  $              95.00  $                       475.00 
5-gal drum 5 Pail  $            300.00  $                    1,500.00 
Solids for Incineration (Non-Lab pack)
85-gal drum 1 Drum  $            500.00  $                       500.00 
95-gal drum 1 Drum  $            500.00  $                       500.00 
55-Gallon Drum 50 Drum  $            150.00  $                    7,500.00 
30-gal drum 5 Drum  $            150.00  $                       750.00 
20-gal drum 5 Drum  $            150.00  $                       750.00 
15/16-gal drum 5 Drum  $            150.00  $                       750.00 
10-gal drum 5 Drum  $            150.00  $                       750.00 
5-gal drum 5 Pail  $            150.00  $                       750.00 
Cubic Yard Box 5 Box $            450.00 $                    2,250.00 
3.2 FUEL BLEND
Low BTU Fuel
55-Gallon Drum 50 Drum  $              50.00  $                    2,500.00 
30-Gallon Drum 5 Drum  $              50.00  $                       250.00 
20-Gallon Drum 5 Drum  $              50.00  $                       250.00 
15/16-Gallon Drum 5 Drum  $              50.00  $                       250.00 
10-Gallon Drum 5 Drum  $              50.00  $                       250.00 
5-Gallon Pail 5 Pail  $              50.00  $                       250.00 
LabPack: Reactives
55-Gallon Drum 50 Drum  $            350.00  $                  17,500.00 
30-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $            350.00  $                    3,500.00 
20-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $            250.00  $                    2,500.00 
15/16-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $            250.00  $                    2,500.00 
10-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $            250.00  $                    2,500.00 



5-Gallon Pail 10 Pail $            195.00 $                    1,950.00 

Disposal Method Est. Ann. Quant.
Unit of 

Measure Unit Price Extended Prices
3.5 Other Specific Miscellaneous Materials
Specification Oils
55-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $            115.00  $                    1,150.00 
30-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $              65.00  $                       650.00 
Oil/Water Mix
55-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $              85.00  $                       850.00 
30-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $              65.00  $                       650.00 
Antifreeze
55-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $            135.00  $                    1,350.00 
30-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $              65.00  $                       650.00 
Oil Filters 
55-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $              75.00  $                       750.00 
30-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $              50.00  $                       500.00 
PCB Oil (loose pack)
55-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $            350.00  $                    3,500.00 
30-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $            260.00  $                    2,600.00 
Fluorescent Lamps
4-foot box 50 Box  $              50.00  $                    2,500.00 
6-foot box 50 Box  $              10.00  $                       500.00 
8-foot box 50 Box  $              50.00  $                    2,500.00 
Misc. Mercury Bulbs for Reclaim
55-Gallon Drum 100 Drum  $            125.00  $                  12,500.00 
30-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $            100.00  $                    1,000.00 
Broken Fluorescent Lamps
5-Gallon Pail 10 Drum  $            300.00  $                    3,000.00 
Broken mercury (Reclamation) 
5-gallon pail 10 Pail  $            350.00  $                    3,500.00 
Oil-filled Ballasts 
55-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $            450.00  $                    4,500.00 
30-Gallon Drum 10 Drum  $            350.00  $                    3,500.00 
Compressed Gas Cylinders
Propane Cylinders

Lecture size Individual Cylinder 200 Drum  $              20.00  $                    4,000.00 
Small Medium size Individual Cylinder 200 Drum  $              20.00  $                    4,000.00 

Medium Propane BBQ size 200 Drum  $              40.00  $                    8,000.00 
Fire Extinguishers

lecture size cylinder 200 Drum  $              11.00  $                    2,200.00 
small size cylinder 200 Drum  $              21.00  $                    4,200.00 

medium size cylinder/Freon Cylinder 200 Drum  $              26.00  $                    5,200.00 
Inert or Calibration Gas Cylinders

lecture size cylinder 200 Drum  $              32.00  $                    6,400.00 
small size cylinder 200 Drum  $              37.00  $                    7,400.00 

medium size cylinder 200 Drum  $              42.00  $                    8,400.00 
Flammable Cylinders for Incineration

lecture size cylinder 100 Drum  $              59.00  $                    5,900.00 
small size cylinder 100 Drum  $            119.00  $                  11,900.00 

medium size cylinder 100 Drum  $            222.00  $                  22,200.00 
Toxic Cylinders for Incineration

lecture size cylinder 50 Drum  $            114.00  $                    5,700.00 
small size cylinder 50 Drum  $            227.00  $                  11,350.00 

medium size cylinder 50 Drum  $            416.00  $                  20,800.00 
Toxic Cylinders with Corrosive Properties for 
Incineration

lecture size cylinder 50 Drum  $            135.00  $                    6,750.00 
small size cylinder 50 Drum  $            260.00  $                  13,000.00 

medium size cylinder 50 Drum  $            443.00  $                  22,150.00 



Batteries
Lead Acid
Cubic Yard Box (CYB)/FBIN/PAL 50 Box  $              50.00  $                    2,500.00 
Alkaline
55-Gallon Drum 50 Drum  $            150.00  $                    7,500.00 
30-Gallon Drum 50 Drum  $            150.00  $                    7,500.00 
Nickle Cadmium
55-Gallon Drum 50 Drum  $            150.00  $                    7,500.00 
30-Gallon Drum 50 Drum  $            150.00  $                    7,500.00 
Lithium
55-Gallon Drum 50 Drum  $            202.00  $                  10,100.00 
30-Gallon Drum 50 Drum  $            202.00  $                  10,100.00 
Big Green Box 50 Box  $            202.00  $                  10,100.00 
Mercury (Batteries)
5-Gallon Drum 50 Drum  $            100.00  $                    5,000.00 
55-Gallon Drum 50 Drum  $            300.00  $                  15,000.00 
30-Gallon Drum 50 Drum  $            100.00  $                    5,000.00 
TV's and Monitor's
Cubic Yard Box/Pallet 700 Box  $            250.00  $                175,000.00 
High Grade Electronics (HGE's)
Cubic Yard Box 100 Box  $            250.00  $                  25,000.00 
Low Grade Electronics (LGE's)
Cubic Yard Box 100 Box  $            250.00  $                  25,000.00 
Mid Grade Electronics (MGE's)
Cubic Yard Box 100 Box  $            250.00  $                  25,000.00 

4.1 CITY RESPONSIBILITIES:
(1) The City shall collect, segregate, and batch a percentage of the collected latex paint for recycling in 55-gallon drums.
(2) The City will be responsible for the distribution of the recycled paint.



5.0 QUARTERLY COLLECTION EVENTS

Item/Unit Est. Ann. Quant. Unit of Measure Unit Price Extended Prices
Neighborhood Collection Events Mobilization
Mobilization 3 Event 6,950.00$          $                  20,850.00 

5.1 The City will provided three (3) neighborhood collection events at different locations throughout the city.  The Respondent 
will be responsible for mobilization one day prior to each event.  Mobilization will cover all associated costs for equipment and 
staff to set up for the event and include one (1) forklift, one (1) 20'X60' tent over the work area, and one (1) 20'X30' tent for a 
break area.  During the event, the Respondent will be responsible to support the collection, categorization, packaging, 
transportation and disposal of material from these designated collection locations, which will include at least one (1) Field 
Chemist and up to ten (10) Feld Technicians per event.  Respondent's staff could increase at the City's direction depending on the 
work load. Hourly rates will apply when Respondent's staff arrive and sign-in at location on the day of the event.  

Areas highlighted in yellow need to be completed
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General Pricing Considerations  

This proposal is submitted contingent upon the right to negotiate mutually acceptable contract terms and 
conditions, which are reflective of the work contemplated in the Request for Proposal documents, and an 
equitable distribution of the risks involved therein. It is assumed that in submitting this proposal, Clean 
Harbors will not be liable for damage or injuries to the extent the same are directly attributable to the 
willful misconduct or negligence of Contractees, or for consequential damages. In the event that such 
agreement cannot be reached, Clean Harbors reserves the right to decline to enter into such an agreement 
without prejudice or penalty.   

Assumptions and Considerations 

Please find below the general pricing considerations for this contract.  These considerations govern all 
waste streams and generic pricing covered under this contract.  These considerations are in addition to 
specific pricing notes provided on the pricing matrixes.  

1. All manifests and labels will be furnished at no charge.  

2. Lab Pack rates do not include explosive or potentially explosive, radioactive, temperature sensitive, 
dioxins, or infectious materials.  Clean Harbors reserves the right to decline to accept for disposal any 
waste materials which, in its reasonable judgment, it cannot dispose of in a lawful manner or without 
a risk of harm to public health or the environment, or for which no legal means of disposal exists.  
Clean Harbors will provide separate quotations for any potential high-hazard work (i.e. peroxidized 
ethers, explosives, cylinders, etc.) upon request. 

 
3. Regulatory training (OSHA and/or DOT) is limited to once per year.  Additional training courses are 

available upon request for an additional fee. 
 
4. All pricing presented in this contract is based on Clean Harbors’ ability to utilize all currently 

approved TSDF’s.  If the number of sites approved by the City is reduced or restricted, additional 
costs may be applied due to increased handling of wastes and reduced economies of scale. 
 

5. Clean Harbors mobilization fee is based on the current 10-11 staff members provided for quarterly 
collections. 

 
6. Local, state and federal fees/taxes applying to the generating location/receiving facilities as well as 

applicable sales taxes are not included in disposal pricing and will be added to each invoice as 
applicable. 

 
7. Drum Size Conversions 

Unless indicated otherwise on the cost proposal, different size container pricing will be 
priced accordingly.  Odd sizes not covered herein will be priced case-by-case. 
 
Container size pricing as a percent of 55-gallon drum prices. 
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Container Size Container Multiplier* 

5 gallon or less 55 gallon price x 0.30 or drum minimums 
listed above, whichever is greater 

6 gallon – 20 gallon 55 gallon price x 0.60 

21 gallon – 30 gallon 55 gallon price x 0.75 

31 gallon – 55 gallon 55 gallon price x 1.00 

56 gallon – 85 gallon (overpacks) 55 gallon price x 1.45 

Cubic Yard Boxes 55 gallon price x 3.50 

Tote (<300 gallon) 55 gallon price x 5.00 

Tote (300 - 375 gallon) 55 gallon price x 6.30 

8. All transportation rates are based on utilization of Clean Harbors’ transportation equipment 
or Clean Harbors approved transporters. 

9. Cylinder Conditions 

9.1. Cylinders are limited to propane, recyclable refrigerants and routine flammable 
and inert gases. 

9.2. Cylinders without original stenciling, labels and/or tags will be subject to 
additional an analysis charge.

9.3. Cylinders with inoperable valves may be subject to rejection or may be charged 
an additional handling fee of $400. 

9.4. Cylinders must in DOT-shippable condition. 
9.5. All cylinders require an approved cylinder evaluation sheet and leak test for final 

acceptance
9.6. All rates on the price sheet are per cylinder and not per drum. 

Cylinder Sizes

Lecture (CYLE) - Up to 3" dia. and 13" length or 4" dia. and 10" length 

Small (CYSM) - Up to 4" dia. and 24" length 

Medium (CYME) - Up to 12" dia. and 36" length 

Large (CYLG) - Up to 16" dia. and 56" length 

Extra Lrg (CYXL) - Up to 20" dia. and 64" length 

1/2 Ton (CYHT)* - Up to 30" dia. and 52" length or 20” dia. and  82” length 

Ton (CYTN)* - Up to 24" dia. and 94" length or 30” dia. and  82” length 
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10. Payment terms will be in conformance with the Waste Disposal Services Agreement.  

11. Proposal is valid for 120 days 

12. Variable Energy and Security Recovery Fee: 

Clean Harbors is currently imposing a Recovery Fee that is comprised of two components; a 
charge covering insurance, liability and security costs and a charge for Energy costs that is 
revised monthly based on the average diesel prices from the US Department of Energy.   

Clean Harbors has included this fee in our cost proposal, and it will not be charged to the City of 
San Antonio. 



City of San Antonio                                                                                                                                       RFP 17-036 

Clean Harbors Environmental Services 105  www.cleanharbors.com 

PROOF OF INSURABILITY 
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PROPOSAL BOND 
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PROPOSAL CHECKLIST 
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RFP ATTACHMENT A, PART THREE 

PROPOSED PLAN 

 

Prepare and submit the following items.  

1. Personnel Plan:  

Describe the role of the Respondent and sub-consultants or sub-Respondents, if any.  If 
utilized, identify the type and amount of work to be performed by sub-consultants and/or 
sub-Respondents.  Identify the team/firm structure, key personnel and their relevant 
experience and education, and area(s) of responsibility, and reporting/workflow hierarchy. 

Project Employee Plan 
The following chart indicates the key personnel for providing services on this contract.  The top 
of the chart indicates the person ultimately responsible for contract performance.  The table 
following the chart briefly summarizes the role of each position and describes the level of 
interaction the individuals in each position currently has and will continue to have with City of 
San Antonio Project Management. 

 

 

 

Brian Key
District Manager

William Dalzell
Branch Manager

John Guzman
Project Manager

Sam Dorman
Sr. CleanPack 

Chemist

George Hernandez
Sr. CleanPack 

Chemist

Chris Edwards
CleanPack Chemist

Paul Bordelon
Account Manager
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Position Responsibilities 

Technical Services 
Branch Manager 
(TSBM) 

The TSBM is responsible for all Clean Harbors operations within a 
designated region.  The TSBM will negotiate contract terms, resolve 
issues at a contract level and is responsible for all contract personnel.  
The TSBM is ultimately responsible for customer satisfaction and 
compliant contract execution.  Directs regional resources to fulfill 
contract requirements. 

Account Manager 
(AM) 

The AM is responsible for a specific subset of customer accounts 
within the region.  The AM is expected to be thoroughly familiar 
with the contract and the customer and can arrange for all services, 
reports, invoices and can answer questions and resolve problems for 
the customer.  The AM will seek customer feedback and deliver 
solutions. 

Project Manager (PM) The PM is the main point of contact for City of San Antonio 
personnel.  In addition to physically working on the project, the PM 
will arrange for appropriate staffing, ensure the staff is meeting 
contract requirements, ensures compliance with contract terms and 
conditions on a daily basis and can answer most contract and 
technical questions for the customer. 

 

CleanPack Chemist 

The Chemists are responsible for testing, packaging, consolidating, 
labeling and manifesting waste.  The CleanPack Chemists are 
responsible for being aware of and meeting all contract requirements 
and working safely.  The Chemists are responsible for assigning 
tasks to and overseeing the performance of the Technicians in 
addition to providing services at the HHW events and Collection 
Center.  They will assign tasks to the Technicians to ensure that 
contract terms are met and will interact with City staff on site for 
routine issues. 

HHW Technician The HHW Technician is expected to perform all tasks safely, in 
compliance with regulations and according to contract terms as tasks 
are assigned 

 

Subcontractors 
Clean Harbors Environmental Services has the resources and capabilities to provide nearly all 
services on this contract utilizing our own in-house resources, limiting the City’s liability and 
maximizing efficiency of contract operations. 

We use our own transportation resources, drivers, technicians, and chemists, who are already 
familiar with the City’s unique requirements.  This will further streamline the service of this 
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contract in a variety of ways, such as increased response time, elimination of communication 
errors, correct and legible shipping documentation and paperwork, etc. 

Together, the Clean Harbors team ensures quality service, cost control, and risk containment. 
Furthermore, the implementation and administrating of a program of this type is simplified by 
our extensive knowledge of the City’s unique requirements as well as application of our current 
information technology systems. Clean Harbors’ integrated operating systems are the backbone 
of our service capabilities.  

Reducing liability begins with knowing where your waste materials are being disposed.  Many 
other vendors must broker out your waste, and liability, to other companies for final disposition 
because they simply don’t own the disposal outlets.  Based upon your generation rates from last 
year, Clean Harbors is able to manage more than 98% of all your hazardous waste materials at 
our own disposal sites.  

This is important to the City because it increases your liability protection by reducing the number 
vendors required to handle your waste.  Unlike other vendors, Clean Harbors will not pass your 
liability on to others.  

Clean Harbors will utilize a small list of approved SBE vendors to provide very specific services.  
The first will provide PPE and supplies, and the second personnel services.  These vendors will 
represent approximately 14% of contract operations. 

2. Training Plan 

Describe training procedures of all employees who will participate in HHW collection sites 
and mobile events, including those of Chemists, Technicians and any other employee who 
may be handling waste.  List all relevant certifications, clearances, courses and any other 
training activities that employees may receive.   

Clean Harbors Employee Training 
Clean Harbors' training program is specifically designed to familiarize all employees with 
facility license requirements, environmental regulations, the hazards associated with their job 
responsibilities, and procedures for emergency response.  Clean Harbors’ management has gone 
to great lengths to institute rigorous corporate programs regarding health, safety, and compliance 
issues.  Our training program is constantly updated to keep up with changing regulations and to 
incorporate employee feedback.  The training matrix below outlines the training that may be 
provided for each position for key job functions. 
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HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE TRAINING MATRIX 
TRAINING REQUIRED POSITION/JOB FUNCTION 

 HHW Project Mgr/ 
Supervisor/ 

Lead Chemist 

HHW 
Chemist Driver Technician 

Other Technician
(General Laborers, O

Loaders, etc.) 
40-Hour Hazardous 
Waste Operations & 

Emergency Response 29 
CFR 1910.120 

X X X X 

8-Hour OSHA Annual 
Refresher Training X X X X 

Annual RCRA Refresher X X X  
40-Hour Laboratory 
Chemical Packaging X X   

Clean Harbors 
Household Hazardous 

Waste Training for 
Project Managers and 

Supervisors 

X X   

Unknown Waste 
Material Fingerprint 
Analysis Training 

 X*   

HMTS DOT Hazardous 
Materials Transportation 

Skills Training 
X*** X*** X***  

New Driver Training X** X** X**  
Driver Refresher 

Training (tri-annually) X** X** X**  

HHW Site Safety 
Meeting (day of 

program) 
X X X X 

*     At least one Clean Harbors Chemist on-site must have completed Unknowns Training (CP1080). 
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**  Applicable to those who possess a CDL Drivers File with Haz Mat endorsement. 

*** Applicable to those who may sign off on shipping documents. 

(1) Note – Any employee working behind the segregation table is required to have OSHA 40 hour training.  A
in the preparation of hazardous material for transport must be trained. 
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Clean Harbors begins its personnel-training program with a statement of commitment to 
personnel safety and environmental protection.  The company's written safety philosophy states 
this commitment as follows: 

“The primary objective of Clean Harbors' management is to protect the 
public and the environment through full compliance with all pertinent 
regulations.  All procedures are designed to achieve this aim as well as to 
protect all Clean Harbors personnel.  Care and safety, rather than profit, are 
the primary concerns of our organization. 
Rigorous on-plant procedures have been designed to ensure safety and they 
must be followed strictly.  Our company's reputation and integrity are the 
keys to our collective successes and our employees are the key to the 
company's reputation.  All Clean Harbors personnel are trained to fully 
understand and follow proper procedures with respect to their particular 
duties and responsibilities, but they are also encouraged to learn their 
co-workers’ responsibilities and the operations of the company as a whole. 
It is necessary that all Clean Harbors employees have pride in what they are 
doing because proper waste management is very important to both the 
environment and the business community.  If we work as a team, keeping in 
mind that safety is the most important factor, success will naturally follow." 
 

3. Technical/Operational Plan:   

Describe work practices for the services described in this RFP.  Include daily operational 
procedures, site setup plans, on-site personnel and responsibilities, emergency and spill 
response policies and any other procedures that factor in to the successful performance and 
operation of HHW collection site(s) and mobile events.   

Describe any specialized equipment and supplies to be provided and used by employees 
and City staff in performance of these services.   

Describe procedures for the collection, identification, segregation and packaging of waste 
received.  Include any field tests, research procedures, segregation criteria and packaging 
regulations that pertain to the type of waste normally collected at HHW collection events.  
Include a list of materials or a class of materials that will not be accepted for disposal and 
the procedures for determining if the material will be accepted. 

Describe any unique problems perceived by Respondent that may arise through the 
operation of the HHW collection sites and mobile events, as well as proposed solutions to 
address these issues. 

HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES 
Within the Clean Harbors organization, HHW projects are the responsibility of the CleanPack® 
group, which is part of the Technical Services organization.  Technical Services provides the 
collection and transporting of all containerized and bulk waste (Transportation and Disposal), as 
well as the categorizing, packaging and removal of HHW and laboratory chemicals for disposal 
(CleanPack®).   



City of San Antonio                                                                                                                                       RFP 17-036 

Clean Harbors Environmental Services 42  www.cleanharbors.com 

Through a highly coordinated transportation fleet of more than 6,000 vehicles, Clean Harbors 
provides reliable, cost-effective Transportation and Disposal to customers across North America.  
Our vast service network consists of over 100 service locations.  From our Technical Service 
Centers, we dispatch our trucks to pick up customers’ waste on a pre-determined schedule as 
well as on demand, and then deliver it to one of our nearby Transfer, Storage and Disposal 
(TSD) facilities.  From the same Technical Service Centers we dispatch chemists and technicians 
to customer locations to safely collect, label and package all quantities of HHW or laboratory 
chemicals for disposal.   

Unlike other companies that require temporary agencies to provide labor, Clean Harbors uses 
internal, fulltime employees to staff HHW collection events.  

Please note that the following plans describe the operations for the quarterly remote events in 
detail.  Operations for the permanent collection centers while similar will not require as much 
detail.  For example, site plans for the permanent collection center are fixed and will not 
follow the plan below.  However, the segregation and packaging of waste is identical 
regardless of location of the operations.  

SITE PLANS FOR QUARTERLY 
COLLECTION EVENTS 
Through experience, Clean Harbors 
has designed a number of basic cost-
effective plans that allow for 
maximum offloading efficiency and 
minimum standing time for 
participants.  Clean Harbors uses one 
basic site design that can be modified 
to accommodate all areas selected for 
use as an HHW collection site.  Most 
events fall into the basic design 
(under 750 participants) of one 
sorting table feeding two processing 
tables or “slide” tables.  The slide 
tables feed waste to the consolidation, 
bulk, or packing areas.  Each site also 
contains an area for health and safety 
equipment, employee breaks, and pre-
event meetings. 

MOBILIZATION 
Clean Harbors’ specialists and equipment will arrive at the collection center or event site at least 
one hour prior to the opening of the event.  Clean Harbors will tailor event arrival, setup, and 
participant opening times to the specifics of each event.  The site supervisor, chemist, and 
technicians prepare the site according to the predetermined site plan as established by the 
CleanPack Specialist, Coordinator and the Event Sponsor.   

ROLL OFF
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Site Set up 
To prepare the site for receiving material, at a minimum, the following items will be done: 

� Secure site upon arrival 
� Set-up site in accordance with the Site Layout Plan 
� Ensure all equipment is functional: 

o Fire suppression equipment  
o Eyewash and shower  

� Ensure adequate aisle space in work areas 
� Ensure the proper placement of all drums and cubic yard boxes (CYBs) 
� Label and mark all drums and CYBs 
� Ensure first aid kit is available and stocked 
� Set up decontamination equipment 
� Set-up all spill kits at unloading stations and waste handling areas 
� Ensure applicable signs are posted and legible from 25 feet away 
� Clearly mark site to control access and prevent public access to HHW handling areas 
� Use physical barrier to delineate the HHW handling and storage areas 
� Determine wind direction and evacuation routes 
� Ensure all employees are familiar Plans 
� Ensure site has been properly set-up and inspected prior to opening 
� Perform Site Safety Meeting prior to opening 
� Open site 30 minutes prior to collection starting time 
� Correct any deficiencies identified prior to opening 

 

To further reduce the likelihood of environmental contamination and limit the migration of 
spilled material, the following site preparation may be performed: 

� Seal all storm drains 
� Lay poly in locations where waste will be handled.  Cover foot traffic areas with 

plywood.  (Plywood may be re-used.  Store outside in case of vapor generation.  Plywood 
grossly contaminated or having a strong odor should be discarded properly.) 

� Work tables will be set up by placing poly-covered plywood on top of 55 gallon drums 
� Designate emergency and spill equipment stations 
� Designate decontamination area 
� Restrict access to the collection and waste handling areas with caution tape 

EQUIPMENT LIST 
The following is a list of minimum equipment that will be required to set up and conduct 
collection site activities.   

� White Tyvek  
� Yellow Tyvek 
� Poly bags  
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� Poly sheets (6 mil. or thicker)  
� Caution and duct tape  
� Warning and "No Smoking" signs 
� First aid kits  
� Traffic cones  
� Tents 
� 1/2 inch plywood  
� Tables  
� Absorbent pads  
� Drip pans  
� Packing materials (vermiculite) 
� Wind sock  
� Brooms  
� Ratchets  
� Shovels  
� Screwdrivers  
� Putty knives  
� SCBA  
� Respirator cartridges  
� Gloves  
� Eyewash  
� Test kit 
� Test instruments 
� Poly and steel 55 gallon, 16 gallon kiln packs and poly 5 gallon pails  
� 85 gallon overpacks  
� Reflective vests (for personnel off-loading and directing traffic) 

Site Activities 
All activities at the collection site will be supervised by a Clean Harbors’ chemist and will be 
performed in full compliance with all local, state and federal regulations. 

Receipt of HHW 
Upon opening the site to participants, posted signs will direct the participant to the reception 
area.  At that point, the City volunteers or employees will greet the incoming participant vehicle 
and explain the collection procedures.  The participant will then drive to the collection area 
where City staff and Clean Harbors' personnel will transfer the waste material from the vehicle to 
the handling tables.  All containers will be checked for labels and participants will be asked to 
confirm contents.  If there is no label and the participant can identify the containers' contents, the 
identity will be written on the container and transferred to the handling tables for processing. 
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Excessive Waste  
In the event that a participant has an excessive amount of waste for disposal or waste suspected 
of being generated from locations other than households, the City will be advised.  The excessive 
or unusual waste shall only be accepted per the City’s approval.   If the waste is deemed 
acceptable, City staff or Clean Harbors' personnel will remove it from the participant's vehicle 
and assume all rights, titles and liability to the waste by assuming generator status. 

Segregation 
The waste will be segregated into one of the following categories: acids, bases, oxidizers, 
pesticides, aerosols, paints, solvents, reactives, unknown materials and non-hazardous/non-
regulated materials.  Questionable containers will be segregated for later inspection.  Non-
recyclable, non-regulated solid waste will be rejected or placed into waste receptacles provided 
by the City for disposal at the expense of the City. 

Testing 
The safe and economical disposal of unknown chemicals is an ever-present problem for HHW 
collection programs.  Questioning the participant can identify most unlabeled containers; 
however occasionally a participant will just not know what they have. 

Clean Harbors has specially trained field chemists to perform unknown characterizations on-site 
using a variety of analytical test methods.  Clean Harbors will set aside an area designated for the 
classification of unknown compounds.  Here the chemists will perform quantitative and 
qualitative tests to determine the physical and chemical properties of each unknown compound.   

These "fingerprint" tests determine whether the compound is acidic, basic, water reactive, a 
cyanide compound, a sulfide compound, an oxidizing agent or a combination of hazards. Once 
these properties are determined, chemicals with similar hazards will be packaged together for 
incineration. 

Packing will be done by DOT classification in 5-gallon containers.  Any items that are not 
compatible will be placed in their own containers for disposal.  The chemist must wear a 
respirator at all times in addition to the standard PPE requirements: tyvek, chemical resistant 
gloves, chemical resistant boots, and safety glasses. 

Packaging Determination 
Once materials are identified and segregated, the appropriate packaging method for each 
container is determined in accordance with container size, type, and hazardous characteristics.  
Any unknown materials will be tested as described above, and packed according to chemical 
compatibility in 5-gallon pails for incineration with up to one gallon of liquid or five pounds of 
solids. 

Certain products may be consolidated on a case-by-case basis, depending on the quantities and 
hazards involved.  Materials that are capable of being consolidated on site, such as organic 
liquids, motor oil, antifreeze, solvents, liquid paints and paints thinners are collected and 
consolidated via a pour-off operation.  5-gallon, 1-gallon and smaller containers are acceptable 
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for consolidation when the contents are entirely liquid and not viscous.  Bulking procedures are 
described below. 

Paints and paint related material in less than 1-gallon containers will be loose packed into 55-
gallon drums or cubic yard boxes when there is sufficient quantity of compatible waste.  When 
lesser quantities are accumulated, smaller drum sizes are used in proportion to the amount of 
material to be packaged, to minimize the overall cost to the City. 

Non-regulated materials may often be loose packed as well, depending on the disposal method 
and container type.  5-gallon, 1-gallon and smaller containers are acceptable, except for glass 
containers.  Candidates for loose packing include asphalt products (roofing compounds, 
driveway sealers, etc.), detergents, and grease.  The non-hazardous/non-regulated materials will 
be packed into 55-gallon drums or cubic yard boxes for secure chemical landfill or non-
hazardous incineration with up to 25 gallons of liquids or 400 pounds of solids per drum.  When 
lesser quantities are accumulated, smaller drum sizes are used in proportion to the amount of 
material to be packaged, to minimize the overall cost to the City. 

Acids, bases and oxidizers will be lab packed into 55 gallon drums for treatment, incineration or 
disposal, with up to 25 gallons of liquids or 400 pounds of solids.  Regulated pesticides will be 
lab packed into 55-gallon drums (cubic yard boxes for some solids) with up to 25 gallons of 
liquids or 400 pounds of solids for incineration.  Reactives will be lab packed into 5-gallon pails 
with up to one gallon of liquid or five pounds of solids. 

Aerosols will be "loose packed" into drums or cubic yard boxes.  No packaging materials or 
filler will be packed in these drums. 

Bulking / Consolidation 
Clean Harbors will consolidate the following materials onsite, if sufficient quantities are 
collected: paint, solvents, thinners, varnishes, flammable liquids, transmission fluid, mineral oil, 
mineral spirits, turpentine and other similar liquids. 

Prior to performing any consolidation operations, the supervisor and crew will discuss the 
appropriate health & safety and emergency response measures in the event of a fire, reaction, 
spill, or employee exposure.  The supervisor will review all operating and grounding procedures 
as well as flammable liquid or corrosive liquid safety guidelines, which include signs and 
symptoms of exposure to solvents. 

Materials that are capable of being consolidated on site will be collected and consolidated via a 
pour-off operation.  Individual containers to be poured will be transferred to poly-covered tables 
adjacent to the pour operations.  Any questionable containers will be removed for later 
inspection.  The entire side and top exterior surfaces of all glass and plastic containers will be 
wiped with a wet rag.  Each container will be opened slowly to relieve any pressure.  Containers 
will then be opened and poured into a receptacle fitted over a collection drum.  Once each drum 
is filled to capacity, it will be closed and drum tracking numbers, labels and applicable markings 
will be attached. 
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Procedures for Bulking Flammable Liquids  

Flexible grounding cables will be used to connect all drums and containers.  Damp rags will be 
available to wipe down containers prior to grounding.  Non-sparking tools such as bung 
wrenches and screwdrivers will be used for opening containers prior to consolidation.  A 20 lb. 
ABC fire extinguisher will be placed within the consolidation area to comply with established 
safety protocol.  Open head steel drums will be the receptacles for the consolidated material. 

Employees consolidating, bucket testing and opening containers will be dressed in the 
appropriate chemical protective clothing (Level C).  Level C protection includes:  poly-coated 
tyvek with hood, full faced air purifying respirator with GMC-H or GME-H cartridges, latex 
inner gloves, silver shield outer gloves, steel toe shoes and boot covers. 

The following is a partial list of flammable materials that are appropriate for consolidation: 

� Solvents � Turpentine 
� Antifreeze � Mineral spirits 
� Mineral oil � Transmission fluid 
� Acetone � Alcohols 
� Gasoline � Heptane 
� Kerosene � Lacquer thinner 
� Petroleum oils � Petroleum distillates 
� Phenol � Motor oil 
� Vegetable oils � Flammable liquids  
� Varnishes � Methyl Ethyl Ketone 

  

Loading 
As waste is packed, the waste containers will be sealed, labeled and removed from the packing 
area.  At the permanent collection center, the drums may be placed into compliant storage, or 
loaded onto a Clean Harbors vehicles as needs dictate.  At remote collection events, prior to 
being loaded onto the transportation vehicles, each drum will be weighed.  Empty flex bins/cubic 
yard boxes will be weighed on site, however once the flex bin is full of paint it will not be 
weighed until it reaches the receiving facility.  The waste will then be loaded onto the trucks as 
soon as it is entered into the completed waste documentation files. 

Paperwork and Reports 
Clean Harbors will prepare all shipping paperwork in accordance with all federal, state and local 
regulations.  Paperwork includes manifests, Land Disposal Restriction Form, packing lists, and 
container labels. 

After completion of each HHW collection event, Clean Harbors will provide representatives of 
the City with a report listing the number of participants, quantities and types of waste collected, 
disposal methods and disposal locations of the HHW collected.  The number of containers of 
packaged HHW shipped will also be reported (i.e. manifest summary).   
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Shipping 
All waste will be shipped directly from the collection site to one of our facilities.  Once at the 
facility, the waste will be routed to the ultimate disposal facility. 

Demobilization 
Prior to leaving the site, the following items will be performed: 

� Verify all waste has been properly packed 
� Review lab-pack drum inventories for compatibility 
� Check drums for proper markings and labels and accumulation dates  
� Check drum inventory sheets 
� Ensure drums are free and clean of contamination 
� Check that drum rings and bungs are secure 
� Count all drums prior to loading  
� Make sure Manifests are completed and signed by generator  
� Make sure Bills of Lading are completed and signed by generator 
� Include all proper variances with manifests 
� Place proper placards on truck prior to transport and checked against manifest 
� Load all equipment and supplies 
� Complete all upkeep and housekeeping 
� Sign out all employees 
� Remove all waste from the site after event is terminated 
� Ensure that site is at its pre-collection day condition 

 

4. Safety and Quality Assurance Plan:   

 Describe any and all safety plans, procedures and protocols necessary to ensure the health 
and safety of employees, City staff and program participants.  Include level and type of 
personal protective and safety equipment required and to be used during the operation of 
the site(s) and events.  Also, describe contingency plans, emergency actions and emergency 
information that will be referred to if and when an emergency occurs such as employee 
exposures, fires, chemical release or spills and any other emergency situations. 

Describe record-keeping and quality control policies that are in place to ensure that all 
activities outlined herein are performed in accordance with all applicable rules and 
regulations of federal, state and local governing entities and accepted industry standards.  
Submit the name, address, and U.S. Environmental Agency (USEPA) and State 
identification numbers for all transportation and disposal facilities to be used for the 
duration of the contract.  Submit a list of materials or a class of materials that will not be 
accepted for disposal. 
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SITE SAFETY PLANS 
Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) Collections pose potential health and safety hazards to 
community residents and workers at these events, as well as risks to the environment.  
Community residents may unknowingly bring substances that are extremely volatile, flammable, 
toxic or unstable.   

To minimize the potential for an accident, Clean Harbors Environmental Services, Inc. (CHES) 
has established Health and Safety Guidelines for HHW operations.   

Clean Harbors provides a site health and safety meeting prior to the opening of every event.  All 
Clean Harbors’ employees, City employees, and local volunteers are given a brief explanation of 
collection activities, information about the placement of safety equipment and instructions to 
follow in the case of an emergency.  The site-specific health and safety plan is reviewed and 
signed by each attendee.  The meeting assures each crew member is aware of the following: 

� Requirements of HHW Guidelines 

� Each person's role in the HHW collection 

� Location of safety equipment  

� Contingency plans  

� Waste Packing Guidelines 

� Unacceptable materials  

� Chemical/physical hazards associated with the wastes and collection activities 

CONTINGENCY PLANS 
To prepare for potential releases, spills or emergencies, a contingency plan must be developed.   

Prior to the HHW collection, the Site Supervisor or other Clean Harbors representative will visit 
the site to gather site-specific information.  A traffic flow plan must be established that will 
allow emergency equipment (Fire Department, ambulance, etc.) access to the site in the event of 
an emergency.  The proposed layout of the site in relation to neighboring structures and 
properties must also be identified.   

This information will be used to develop a site map.  A copy of the contingency plan should be 
distributed to the local emergency organizations and all other involved parties. 

In the event of an emergency, emergency equipment may need to have direct access to the site.  
Traffic lanes should be prearranged so there is an open path at all times. 

The CleanPack Supervisor will serve as the Emergency Coordinator in the event of an 
emergency. 

Emergency information will be located at the Command Center table.  The information will be 
placed on the table with the job folder.  Information to be present should include a copy of the 
HHW Collection Guidelines containing the site-specific information (contingency plan, 
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emergency phone numbers, hospital directions, etc.) and safety references (Chemical Dictionary, 
DOT ER Guidebook, NIOSH Pocket Guide and CHES 5-Page Emergency Response Plan).  The 
following phone numbers shall be included on the emergency phone list: Fire department, 
ambulance, hospital, poison information center, police department, state police, local CHES 
service center, and local CHES H&S Representative. 

In the event of a spill or release, the Site Supervisor will evaluate the situation and evacuate the 
site if necessary.  A continuous blast of an air horn will signal the evacuation of the site.  The 
Site Supervisor, with the assistance of the local H&S Representative, will decide how to respond 
to contain and clean up the spill/release. 

In the event of a fire, an appropriate fire extinguisher may be used if the fire is in the incipient 
stage.  The following additional actions will be taken: 

� Cease all operations and evacuate the area of all unnecessary personnel 
� Eliminate all ignition sources 
� Stop the flow of cars into the area and have all cars in the unloading area exit 

immediately 
� Notify the local official on site, the Fire Department and the local CHES H&S 

Representative. 
If an employee becomes injured or ill (i.e., heat-related illness), provide first aid and seek 
medical attention, if necessary.  Notify the Site Supervisor and the local CHES H&S 
Representative immediately.  If there is an injury involving blood, be sure to follow the CHES 
Bloodborne Pathogens Exposure Control Plan. 

If an employee experiences signs or symptoms of exposure to a chemical or physical hazard, 
remove the employee from the exposure situation.  Decontaminate the victim, if there is any 
chemical contamination.  Administer first aid and seek medical attention, if necessary.  Notify 
the Site Supervisor and the local CHES H&S Representative immediately. 

Decontamination procedures will be outlined in the Site Specific Health and Safety Plan.  The 
extent of the procedures will depend on several factors including the type of contaminant, the 
amount of contamination, levels of protection utilized, and the type of protective equipment 
worn.  The more harmful the contaminant, the more extensive and thorough the decontamination 
procedures will be.  Equipment and personnel are decontaminated in combination with the 
sequential doffing of protective equipment. 

QUALITY ASSURANCE/QUALITY CONTROL 
Clean Harbors believes that any quality assurance/quality control (QA/QC) program must 
address several key areas of performance in order to manage the needs of our customers in 
accordance with all contractual as well as regulatory requirements.  These Key Areas are: 

� Information Management 

� Waste Management 
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o On-Site Management 

o In-transit Management 

o Facility Management 

� Customer Satisfaction 

A “blanket” quality management program attempting to cover the company’s broad array of 
services would in essence provide little to no value. Conversely, internal procedures and protocol 
developed specific to a customer’s needs provide precisely the quality assurance required at 
every level of the company.  These internal procedures must address the cornerstones of quality 
control. 

1. Thorough and detailed inspections systems 

2. Qualification of issues and assignment of responsibility for issues 

3. Record keeping and documentation of quality 

4. Detection and correction of issues. 

Information Management 
Clean Harbors is uniquely qualified through its information systems to manage virtually any 
contract accurately and professionally.  Through a company-wide computer system, all service 
centers, personnel and TSDF’s are linked on a real-time basis.  Order entry, specific 
requirements and/or restrictions as well as management reports on waste volumes generated, 
types of wastes produced, waste codes, disposal methods and other key criteria can be tailored to 
the customer's needs.   

Our systems also provide communications between our logistics controllers, our drivers and our 
plant operations, keeping tight control over your waste streams at all times.  Most importantly, 
we deliver on-line tracking reports that provide the details of the transportation, processing and 
disposal of hazardous waste necessary for the completion of annual and other reports. 

Clean Harbors utilizes an array of integrated programs designed to maintain security, ensure data 
integrity, offer unique services to our customers, and be flexible to respond to the business needs 
of the company.  The primary business applications provide the platform for waste management, 
document storage, transportation management, and accounting/finance, respectively.  Clean 
Harbors system provides for distributed access and electronic report distribution to provide data 
and reporting information to our various locations.  The operating systems are referred to as 
Beacon and WIN Web. 

Beacon includes functionality such as: 

� Customer Master File: Table designed to capture important information 
specific to each customer and each generating location. 
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� Profile Management System: All pertinent information for each waste stream 
needs such as constituents, hazards, EPA and DOT information etc., is 
maintained here. 

 
� Customer Approved Vendors: Details which TSDF’s customers allow their 

waste materials to be disposed at. 
 

� Proactive Scheduling: A system where each generator location is set up on 
routine pick-up cycles. 

 
� Central Order Placement Call: A Clean Harbors representative will call two 

weeks in advance of each scheduled pickup to confirm.  Clean Harbors will 
coordinate all pertinent paperwork such as manifests and labels. 

 
� Comprehensive Tracking System: The relational database will capture and 

track all activities through the use of bar code labeling. 
 

� Compliance Management System: All uniform hazardous waste manifests and 
bills of lading are scanned into our system and will be available as part of our 
tracking and reporting systems. 

 
Clean Harbors cornerstone of order placement, on-site management and invoicing are our 
information systems. The Information Management Systems (BEACON) is accessible web 
applications to both customers and employees, and is the primary interface for order placement 
and data verification. 

� Customer Relations Management System: Beacon 

o Clean Harbors is the leader in providing a comprehensive Environmental Industry 
Operating system. This system is directly integrated with our CRMS Solution as 
well as all other Enterprise Systems.  

o Clean Harbors has developed a comprehensive Customer Relationship 
Management System (CRMS) that is accessed via the web.  

o Information contained within our Primary Operating System includes: 

� Waste Material Profile details 
� Pricing, Contracts & Quoting 
� Order Management 
� Invoicing 
� Tracking & Compliance management 
� Comprehensive Reporting System 
 

o The system provides the gateway for capturing all pertinent information for our 
client base as well as serving as the application system for our Sales Organization 
to manage day-to-day needs of our customers. 
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o Information contained within this includes: 

� All relevant customer information: 
� Contacts, Addresses, Phone numbers, etc. 
� Billing requirements 
� Activity Tracking and statuses 

� Access to: 
� Contract & pricing information 
� Order information 
� Profile details 
� Individual Job tracking details 
 

� Disaster Recovery/Failure/System Backup 
 

o CHES Technology Infrastructure understands the potential impact to its client's 
business in the event of a catastrophic occurrence and has incorporated necessary 
disaster recovery/failure mechanisms. This approach has proven effective to 
responding to outages experienced over the last several years with minimal 
impact to the performance of services by Clean Harbors and negligible impact to 
its clients.  

o CHES operates two "hot" data center environments connected by high bandwidth 
synchronous communications, separated by geography within the state of 
Massachusetts in order to ensure that technology operations could be brought 
online in the event of a loss of either location. In addition, Clean Harbors 
maintains two additional, "cold" data center environments in Utah and South 
Carolina staffed by CHES Technology Infrastructure staff full-time.  

o Electronic security of the systems is monitored daily by support staff and 
intrusion detection procedures are incorporated into this daily monitoring. 

On-site Management 
The safe and compliant management of any waste stream begins at the customer site and ends 
with final disposal and tracking.  It is critical that a quality control program begin at the customer 
site with proper identification and packaging of the waste to ensure proper disposal. 

Clean Harbors has detailed Health and Safety Policies in place to give our field staff the 
necessary tools to properly handle customer wastes.  Once on-site, Clean Harbors' employees 
will take the following steps to ensure a compliant shipment. 

� Visually inspect all containers to be shipped for: 
o Labels and markings 
o Signs of rust and deterioration 
o Bulging 
o Content information 

� Confirm that drums match the anticipated materials ordered for shipment.  This may 
include: 
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o Opening drums to verify contents 
o Simple tests such as pH verification 
o Verify the proper profiles have been selected 

� Prepare the drums for shipment: 
o Ensure appropriate DOT container has been selected for each waste 
o Package small containers/over pack damaged containers 
o Properly label and mark each drum 

� Verify the shipping documents are properly completed and accurate 
o All paperwork is electronically generated from Clean Harbors Information 

Systems to maximize accuracy and consistency of paperwork. 
o On-site chemist will verify generator information 
o Chemist will verify drum counts are accurate 
o Will prepare any new profiles necessary from waste verification step 
o Will obtain all necessary signatures 

In-transit Management 
The integrity of waste shipments is another vital step in the quality control of the waste disposal 
process.  To ensure that all materials are safe and compliant while in transit from the customers 
location to our facility Clean Harbors: 

� Maintains a DOT approved Transportation Security Plan per HM-232 
� Maintains an in-transit contingency plan to ensure that transportation incidents are 

avoided or minimized. 
� Administers an extensive and continuous training programs for all drivers 
� Verifies accuracy of shipment immediately upon receipt at the TSDF. 
� Has a stringent Vehicle Maintenance Plan in place to ensure that all vehicles are regularly 

maintained, that they are operating correctly, and that the driver/operator is empowered to 
take a non-performing vehicle out of service. 

� Holds several national contracts that allow immediate action to be taken in the event a 
vehicle is disabled anywhere in the country. 

 
Clean Harbors WIN Web operating system contains a function for tracking all customer waste in 
real time throughout the transportation cycle.  This function is HUB management. The Hub 
Management application is a tool that allows the functionality of tracking manifests and drums as 
they move through our transfer locations to their final destination.  It provides volume 
information so we can forecast and consolidate waste, and pick up efficiencies with every 
outbound shipment. 

Key aspects of HUB Management include: 

� A date tracking tool to ensure that all transfer locations are in compliance 

� Manifest tracking tool to ensure that generator manifest copies are returned on time 

� Search functionality that allows Sales or Customer Service to search system to find 
current location of manifests and waste at any time. 
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� Enhances communication efforts between National Logistics and Transfer Coordinators 

Facility Management 
The final step in the disposal process is the management of customers waste through Clean 
Harbors’ extensive network of TSDF’s and final treatment facilities. 

Drum Management 
Once a truck arrives at a Clean Harbors facility or transfer station, all drums and manifests are 
“received” into our computer systems.  This allows Clean Harbors to accurately and immediately 
determine the status of any drum in our system, correctly route each item to final disposal and to 
provide real time information to the customer for each drum.  The receiving process involves: 

� Verification of physical contents of truck and manifest 
� Creation of a unique drum number for each item on the manifest. 
� Creation of a bar code label with the unique drum number for each item 

 
After receipt of the drum, each facility implements its own internal Quality Control plan.  Each 
plant is different due to permit variations but the steps generally involved are: 
 

� Sampling 10% or more of each waste stream for lab analysis to verify contents 
� Tests for compatibility and ability to treat 
� Segregation and storage of the waste in the appropriate storage areas of the plant. 
� A written plan for off-specification material is implemented when the detailed quality 

control determines a waste has been misidentified or is off specification. 
 
Final treatment and disposal is selected based on the information contained in our operating 
system.  A combination of the information from the customer profile, the drum bar codes, and 
the lab analysis ensures that each drum is routed to a customer approved, regulatory appropriate 
facility in compliance with all mandated waste disposal time frames.  The system then further 
generates all necessary reports which can be viewed in real time by the customer directly through 
our free on-line account services. 

Facility Audit/Compliance 
As part of its commitment to employee safety and quality customer service, Clean Harbors has 
developed an extensive compliance program managed by over 50 full time regulatory and health 
and safety specialists.  To ensure the integrity and impartiality of this group, the Compliance, 
Health and Safety organization is completely independent from the operating divisions and is 
overseen by a senior vice president who reports directly to the Company's CEO.   

Clean Harbors' Compliance Department audits all ultimate disposal sites to ensure facilities are 
operating in accordance with their permits and all applicable federal, state and local regulations.  
This elite group of professionals is responsible for facilities compliance, health and safety, field 
safety, compliance training, transportation compliance auditing, and external auditing of off-site 
facilities utilized by Clean Harbors.  A thorough compliance, health and safety program has been 
developed and tailored for each Clean Harbors’ facility and service center.  
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Clean Harbors often develops internal operating procedures which are more stringent than those 
imposed by government regulation.  These high standards are constantly monitored and reviewed 
through an aggressive internal regulatory audit program. 

Customer Satisfaction 
Finally, any quality assurance program must ensure that each customer is receiving the level of 
service, accuracy of information and amount of support necessary for a satisfactory waste 
management experience. 

Customer Service Tool – Blue Call Notes 
Clean Harbors Account Managers have been given a powerful tool within the Clean Harbors 
system to assure customers that their concerns are of the outmost importance to Clean Harbors’ 
management. 

The Beacon CSRM tool allows Account Managers to create a “Blue Call Note”.  Any customer 
service issue entered as this type of note is emailed automatically to upper management on a 
daily basis.  These issues receive priority attention in the Clean Harbors system and the Director 
of Customer Service will assign the appropriate personnel to the issue, create a plan for resolving 
it, and follow up to make sure the changes are implemented. 

Best in Class Customer Service Initiative 
Clean Harbors Vision is “To be recognized as the premier provider of environmental services 
and solutions”.  In order to support this vision we have implemented a “Best in Class” program 
designed to ensure that every customer receives reliable, professional and thorough service 
during every single interaction. 

The Best in Class program entails a thirty-one (31) point checklist of policies and standards that 
Clean Harbors utilizes when performing services.  These points address a variety of topics 
related to our personnel, our vehicles, our facilities and our preparedness to perform any service 
that may be required. 

With each employee focused on providing high quality, reliable service at every opportunity, our 
customers can be assured that we will indeed be their “premier provider of environmental 
services and solutions.” 

Acceptable/Unacceptable Materials 
Clean Harbors will accept for transportation and disposal the majority of hazardous waste 
typically produced by households.  It is stressed for the safety of everyone involved that all 
materials are known and properly labeled.  Wastes that are not in their original containers will be 
accepted as "known" wastes provided they are labeled.  Unknown wastes, if acceptable, will be 
field tested and packaged for incineration.  Below is a listing of typical household hazardous 
wastes collected: 

Used and Unused Motor Oils Household Batteries 
Drain cleaners Oven cleaners 
Metal polish Arts and crafts supplies 
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Photo chemicals Floor cleaners 
Dry cleaning fluids Radiator cleaners 
Rust preventatives Wood preservatives 
Wood strippers Oil based paint 
Paint thinner Solvents 
Sealants Antifreeze 
Engine and radiator flushes Transmission fluid 
Old chemistry sets Pesticides 
Herbicides Insect sprays 
Brake fluid Rodent killers 
Pool chemicals Muriatic acid 
Creosote Batteries 
Moth balls Bleaches 
Ammonia Cesspool cleaners 

Clean Harbors reserves the right to refuse any waste deemed unsafe to handle or unsuitable for 
the collection.  Such wastes include: 

� Large quantities of unknown materials 

� Radioactive waste, including smoke detectors 

� Explosives, gun powder, flares, ammunition 

� Unstable wastes 

� Unknown gas cylinders 

� Substances regulated by the Drug Enforcement Agency 

� Biohazardous Waste, Infectious Waste, Needles / Syringes 

If the above listed unacceptable wastes are unintentionally received, Clean Harbors will work 
with the City to provide safe disposal of the materials.  Our proposal does not include pricing for 
handling these wastes.  Pricing will be provided as needed on a case-by-case basis. 

FACILITIES 
The facilities identified below would be the primary receiving facilities for this contract.  For full 
permit information, see the Facility Fact Sheets following the table.  Should additional 
technologies or options become available, Clean Harbors will notify the City of any changes 
prior to use of the new facilities. 
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Facility Address Treatment Types EPA ID No. 

Clean Harbors Deer 
Park, LLC 

2027 Independence Pkwy 
South 
Deer Park, TX 77571 

Initial TSD for all 
wastes, Final 
treatment for 
incineration 

TXD055141378 

Clean Harbors Lone 
Mountain, LLC 

Route 2 Box 170 
Waynoka, OK 73860 

RCRA landfill 
operations OKD065438376 

Clean Harbors 
Chattanooga, LLC 

3300 Cummings Road 
Chattanooga, TN 37419 

Oil/Oily water 
treatment TND982141392 

Clean Harbors El 
Dorado, LLC 

309 American Circle 
El Dorado, AR 71730 

Incinerator ARD069748192 

Clean Harbors Grassy 
Mountain 

Exit 41 off I 80 
Grassy Mountain, UT 
84029 

TSCA/RCRA Landfill UTD991301748 

Clean Harbors La 
Porte, LP 

500 Battleground Road 
La Porte, TX 77571 

Gas cylinder 
processing and TSD TXD982290140 

Clean Harbors 
Reidsville, LLC 

208 Watlington Ind. Rd 
Reidsville, NC 27320 

E Waste recovery NCD000648451 

Safety-Kleen Systems 
Inc. 

1722 Cooper Creek Road 
Denton, TX 76208 

Oil Filters TXD077603371 

WM Coastal Plains 21000 East Highway 6 
Alvin, TX 77511 

Non-hazardous 
landfill NA 

Consolidated Recycling 
Company 

11210 Solomon Road 
Troy, IN 47588 

Antifreeze recycling IND098958283 

Veolia Technical 
Solutions 

5736 West Jefferson 
Phoenix, AZ 85043 

Light tube recycling AZ0000337360 

All Safe Fire and 
Security 

26443 Fallbrook Avenue 
Wyoming, MN 55092 

Compressed gas 
recycling MND982428344 
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Waste Management 
Mercury Waste Inc 

21211 Durand Avenue 
Union Grove, WI 53182 

Mercury retort WIR000000356 

Retriev Technologies 265 Quarry Road 
Lancaster, OH 43130 

Battery Recycling OHD071654958 

LTR Lighting 
Resources Texas 

101 East Bowie Street 
Fort Worth, TX 76110 

Light Tube Recycling TXD008029191 

Cleanlites Recycling 7806 Anthony Wayne Ave 
Cincinnati, OH 45216 

Light Tube Recycling OHR000109819 

Interstate Battery 3014 Old Spanish Trail 
Houston, TX 77054 

Car Battery Recycling N/A 

Allied Waste 2601 S Jenkins Road 
Anahuac, TX 77514 

Non Haz Landfill TXD980864078 
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Deer Park, Texas Facility

Fact Sheet

The Deer Park facility is fully permitted to manage a wide variety of 
regulated materials including RCRA hazardous waste, PCBs, APHIS
soils, and non-regulated waste materials. Properly packaged infectious
waste and witness-burned DEA-controlled substances can also be 
incinerated at the Deer Park facility.  

Utilized for incineration, the Deer Park facility is self supported with 
ancillary units. It is a stand-alone disposal facility with an on-site landfill,
a wastewater treatment plant, and storage/processing units. A full staff of
technical, operational, and administrative personnel handles the most
complex customer needs.

Facility Description & General Information

Start-up Date: 1971

Facility Size: 145 acres

Services Provided

•  Incineration of all types of waste (solids, liquids, sludge, and gas),
drums, tankers, and rail

•  Storage prior to Incineration

•  On-Site Landfill of incineration residues

• On-Site Wastewater Treatment of self-generated aqueous by-products

Typical Customers

Chemical facilities, pharmaceutical companies, manufacturers, R&D 
facilities, colleges and universities, government research facilities, state
and municipal agencies, and medical facilities.

Typical Waste Streams

Contaminated process wastewaters, oils, spent flammable solvents, 
organic and inorganic laboratory chemicals, paint residues, debris from
toxic or reactive chemical cleanups, off-spec commercial products, 
cylinders, and labpacks.

Clean Harbors Permitted Services
• US EPA ID No. TXD055141378

• TCEQ Facility Permit for Industrial 
Solid Waste Management Site No. 
HW-50089-001 (Part B)

• TCEQ Compliance Plan CP-50089-001

• TCEQ New Source Review Air Permit
Nos. 5064 and N001

• TCEQ Federal Operating Permit No. 
O-1566 (Title V Air Permit)

• US EPA TSCA Authorized for Commercial
PCB Storage and Incineration

• TCEQ TPDES Permit No. WQ0001429000

• USDA APHIS Permit No. S-36024

• Harris Galveston Coastal Subsidence 
District Permit No. 100601

• TCEQ Water Well Permit No. 1487

Treatment, Storage and 
Disposal Capabilities

• Incineration: Train I, 180 MM BTU/HR;
Train II, 153.5 MM BTU/HR

• Tank Storage Capacity: 830,000 gallons 

• Drum Storage Capacity: 1,490,000 gallons
(25,000 drums)

• Tanker Storage Capacity: 132,000 gallons
(24 tankers) 

• Bin Storage Capacity: 7,650 cubic yards
(250 bins)

• PCBs - Incineration authorized on Train I:
575,000 gallon tank capacity; 300,000 
gallon drum capacity

• All non-Dioxin waste codes are 
permitted for incineration

Waste Disposal Services
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Chattanooga, Tennessee Facility

Fact Sheet

The Chattanooga facility services the Tennessee Valley, southern 
Appalachians and the Carolinas, and offers physical/chemical treatment
of non-RCRA regulated industrial waste. This site can treat liquids,
solids, and sludge, and it receives and processes bulk tankers, roll-offs, 
end dumps, and van trailers of drummed and palletized waste.  

Treated water is discharged into the city of Chattanooga’s Publicly 
Owned Treatment Works (POTW); process residuals are treated and
shipped to a local subtitle D landfill. Certain waste streams can be 
directed to a waste-to-energy facility.

Facility Description & General Information

Start-up Date: 1987

Facility Size: 11.1 acres

Services Provided

•  Wastewater Treatment

•  Oil/Water Separation

•  Solidification

•  Solids Disposal Subtitle D & Waste-to-Energy

•  Containerized Waste Processing

•  Return Goods/Consumer Commodity Destruction

Typical Customers

Manufacturers of motor vehicle parts, carpets and rugs, tires, fabricated
rubber, paints, inorganic chemicals, and toiletries.

Typical Waste Streams

Non-hazardous contaminated process wastewaters, inorganic cleaning 
solutions, oils, spent solvents, organic and inorganic laboratory 
chemicals, paint residues, off-spec commercial products.

Clean Harbors Permitted Services
• US EPA ID No. TND982141392

• NPDES Permit (POTW and Stormwater)
Nos. 9906, 9907, and TNR 051511

• Synthetic Minor Air Permits Nos. 5155-
50300810-01C, 5155-50100701-02C, 5155-
50300830-04C, 5155-50300701-06C 

• Permit by Rule No. SWP33-105-1059

• Basic Air Permits Nos. 5155-30501613-07C

Treatment, Storage and 
Disposal Capabilities

• Drum Storage Capacity: 1,040 drums

• Bulk Liquid Storage: 800,500 gallons

• Bulk Solid Storage: 800 tons

Waste Disposal Services
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El Dorado, Arkansas Facility

Fact Sheet

Clean Harbors’ El Dorado incineration facility specializes in the 
treatment of hazardous waste (RCRA regulated) and non-hazardous 
waste by high temperature incineration. RCRA liquids are fed into 
the rotary kilns and the secondary combustion chamber depending 
on the specific characteristics of the waste.

Two rotary kilns are utilized for treatment of solids and sludge.  
RCRA solids and sludge may be received from the customer, packaged 
for ram feed into the rotary kilns, repacked for ram feed, or fed directly
into the kilns through an automated shredder auger machine. This 
system enables the El Dorado facility to accept waste that is packaged 
in any size Department of Transportation (DOT) approved container.

Facility Description & General Information

Start-up Date: 1974

Facility Size: 370 acres (50 acres are currently active for 
waste management)

Services Provided

•  Incineration of all types of hazardous and non-hazardous waste 
(solids, liquids, and sludge), drums, tankers, and rail

• Storage prior to Incineration

Typical Customers

Chemical facilities, pharmaceutical companies, manufacturers, 
R&D facilities, colleges and universities, government research 
facilities, state and municipal agencies, and medical facilities. 

Typical Waste Streams

Contaminated process wastewaters, oils, spent flammable solvents, 
organic and inorganic laboratory chemicals, paint residues, debris 
from toxic or reactive chemical cleanups, off-spec commercial products,
cylinders, and labpacks.

Clean Harbors Permitted Services
• US EPA ID No. ARD069748192

• RCRA Part B Permit No. 10H-RN1

• NPDES Permit No. AR0037800

• ADEQ Operating Air Permit No. 1009-
AOP-R11

Treatment, Storage and 
Disposal Capabilities

• RCRA Solids Containerized Storage 
Capacity:  1,475,485 gallons 
(31,196 55-gallon drums)

• RCRA Liquid Tank Storage Capacity:
1,417,733 gallons 

• Total Incineration Capacity: 61,025
lbs./hour

  o  57,152 lbs./hour for the Secondary
Combustion Chamber (SCC) and its
associated equipment (kilns)

  o  3,873 lbs./hour for the Resource 
Recovery Boiler

Waste Disposal Services



Transportation & Disposal 
Grassy Mountain, Utah Facility Facts 

The Grassy Mountain landfill facility is located in 
Utah’s Great Salt Lake Desert, about 75 miles west 
of Salt Lake City.  This facility provides landfill 
services for RCRA and TSCA (PCB) wastes as well 
as solidification and metals fixation for RCRA 
material.  

Permits
RCRA Part B Permit UTD991301748 

TSCA Commercial PCB Storage and Landfill 
Approvals

Utah Air Approval Order No. DAQE 889-96 

BLM Permit to Move Soil No. S-60748 

Facility Description & General Information 
Start-up Date: 1982 

Facility Size:  1 square mile with a half-mile buffer 
zone on each side 

Services Provided: 

Truck and Rail Logistics 

Drain and Flush for PCB Transformers 

Solidification 

Stabilization 

Repackaging

Typical Customers:  incinerators, governmental 
agencies, mines, automobile manufacturers and 
utilities.

Typical Waste Streams:  PCB contaminated soils, 
PCB electrical equipment, PCB contaminated 
debris, etc., non-hazardous soils and other non-
hazardous industrial wastes, asbestos wastes, 
hazardous waste for treatment of metals, plating 
wastes, acidic wastes, caustic wastes, hazardous 
debris and non PCB liquid wastes for solidification 
and landfill.

Treatment, Storage and Disposal 
Capabilities

RCRA Drum Storage: 2,217 55-gallon 
containers

PCB Drum Storage: 350 55-gallon equivalent 
containers and two 3,000 gallon tanks 

RCRA Landfill Capacity:  710,768 cubic yards 

TSCA Landfill Capacity:  773,712 cubic yards 

Bulk Solids Container Capacity: 100  20-cubic 
yard equivalent containers 

Wide range of permitted waste codes 

PCB liquid storage for 63,982 gallons

Clean Harbors Grassy Mountain, LLC  Exit 41 Off I-80, 3 miles East, 7 miles North of Knolls  Grassy Mountain, UT 84029  801.323.8900 
www.cleanharbors.com 



Transportation & Disposal

Clean Harbors La Porte, LLC  500 Independence Parkway South La Porte, TX 77571  281.884.5000 www.cleanharbors.com 

La Porte, Texas Facility Facts

The La Porte facility is located on the Houston Ship 
Channel and is positioned to service Texas, 
Louisiana, Oklahoma and Northern Mexico.  

This facility is fully permitted to manage a wide 
variety of regulated materials including RCRA 
hazardous waste, PCBs, and non-regulated waste 
materials. It is utilized for permitted storage prior to 
shipment to company owned treatment and disposal 
facilities.  

Permits
US EPA ID No. TXD982290140

TCEQ Hazardous Waste Facility Part-B Permit 
No. HW-50225-001  

US EPA TSCA Storage Permit

Facility Description & General Information
Start-up Date:  1988 

Facility Size: 15 acres

Service Provided:

Storage prior to final treatment and/or disposal

Treatment of cylinders and compressed gases

Typical Customers: petrochemical refineries, R&D 
facilities, colleges and universities, government 
research facilities, pharmaceutical companies, 
chemical facilities, state and municipal agencies, 
manufacturers, medical facilities.

Typical Waste Streams: cylinders, drums, 
labpacks, contaminated process wastewaters, 
inorganic cleaning solutions, oils, spent flammable 
solvents, organic and inorganic laboratory 
chemicals, paint residues, debris from toxic or 
reactive chemical cleanups, off-spec commercial 
products. 

Treatment, Storage and Disposal 
Capabilities

Drum Storage Capacity:  1,064,270 gallons 
(19,350 drums)

PCB Storage:  55,000 
gallons

Wide range of permitted 
waste codes

Rail siding



 
 
 
 

Transportation & Disposal 

Clean Harbors Reidsville LLC  208 Watlington Industrial Drive  Reidsville, North Carolina  27320  336.342.6106  www.cleanharbors.com  

Reidsville, North Carolina Facility Facts 

The Reidsville facility is located in central North 
Carolina near Greensboro and is positioned to 
service the Virginia, North Carolina, South 
Carolina, and Georgia territories.  This facility is 
fully permitted to manage a wide variety of 
regulated materials including RCRA hazardous 
waste and PCBs, as well as non-regulated waste 
materials. Additionally, the facility is utilized for E-
waste dismantling, lab pack consolidation, bulking 
of solid and liquid wastes, and for storage prior to 
shipment to company owned and operated treatment 
and disposal facilities. 

Permits 
 Hazardous Waste Management Permit: RCRA 

NCD000648451-R2 

 State Air Permit: 06898R18 

 PCB Storage Approval: NCD000648451 

 Storm Water Permit: NCS000085 

 USDA-APHIS Soils Permit: P330-10-00284 

Facility Description 
Start-up Date: 1980 

Facility Size:  24 acres 

Services Provided: 

 Solids Bulking 

 Liquids Bulking 

 Rail Served 

 Labpack Consolidation, Pour-Off and Bulking 

 Cylinder Management 

 Storage prior to final Treatment and/or Disposal 

 Electronic Waste Dismantling 

Typical Customers:  hospitals, colleges and 
universities, utilities, government agencies, 
pharmaceutical companies, manufacturers, research 
and development, aeronautical industry, automotive 
assembly. 

Typical Waste Streams: contaminated process 
wastewaters, inorganic cleaning solutions, oils, 
spent flammable solvents, organic and inorganic 
laboratory chemicals, paint residues, debris from 
toxic or reactive chemical cleanups, electronic 
waste.   

Treatment, Storage and Disposal 
Capabilities   
 990,000 Gallons Permitted (350,000 gallons 

constructed) 
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SMALL BUSINESS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADVOCACY 
(SBEDA) PROGRAM FORMS 
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SIGNATURE PAGE 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

















Finance Department, Purchasing Division 
PO Box 839966    San Antonio, TX 78283-3966  Tel: 210-207-5734 

 
 

 
 

City of San Antonio 
 

 

ADDENDUM III 

 

 

                             SUBJECT: Request for Proposals for Household Hazardous Waste Collection, Characterization, Packaging, Transportation, 

Recycling and Disposal (RFP 17-036, 6100008515)                                                                         

                                                   Scheduled to Close: Monday, March 13, 2017; Date of Issue: Wednesday, January 25, 2017 

 

FROM: Denise D. Gallegos, C.P.M., CPPB 

  Procurement Administrator 

 

DATE: March 7, 2017  

 

 

THIS NOTICE SHALL SERVE AS ADDENDUM NO.  III - TO THE ABOVE REFERENCED REQUEST FOR 

PROPOSALS  

 

 

THE ABOVE MENTIONED REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS IS HEREBY AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 

1. THE RFP SUBMISSION DEADLINE HAS BEEN CHANGED FROM MONDAY, MARCH 13, 2017, 11:00 AM, 

LOCAL TIME TO WEDNESDAY, MARCH 22, 2017, 11:00 AM, LOCAL TIME. 

 

 

1.1 Revise: Section 010 – Submission of Proposal, 2nd Paragraph, 1
st
 Sentence to read as the following: 

“Proposals must be received in the Office of the City Clerk no later than 11:00 a.m., Central Time, 

on Wednesday, March 22, 2017 at the address below.” 

 

1.2 Revise: Section 014 – Schedule of Events, revising the last event to read as the following: 

                              “Proposal Due: Wednesday, March 22, 2017 at 11:00 a.m., Central Time”. 
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ADDENDUM IV 

 

 

                             SUBJECT: Request for Proposals for Household Hazardous Waste Collection, Characterization, Packaging, Transportation, 

Recycling and Disposal (RFP 17-036, 6100008515)                                                                         

                                                   Scheduled to Close: Monday, March 22, 2017; Date of Issue: Wednesday, January 25, 2017 

 

FROM: Denise D. Gallegos, C.P.M., CPPB 

  Procurement Administrator 

 

DATE: March 9, 2017  

 

THIS NOTICE SHALL SERVE AS ADDENDUM NO.  IV - TO THE ABOVE REFERENCED REQUEST FOR 

PROPOSALS  

 

 

QUESTIONS SUBMITTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 007, PRE-SUBMITTAL CONFERENCE: 

 

 

 On Monday, February 6, 2017, the City of San Antonio hosted a Pre-Submittal Conference to provide information and 

clarification for the Household Hazardous Waste Collection, Characterization, Packaging, Transportation, Recycling and 

Disposal Request for Proposals.  Below is a list of questions that were asked at the pre-submittal conference.  The City’s official 

response to questions asked is as follows:  

 

 

         Question 1:   How SBO made the determination to add subcontracting requirement?  

         Response:      City of San Antonio Small Business Economic Development Advocacy (SBEDA) Ordinance provides 

incentives to small, minority and women-owned business enterprises on city contracts. Based on the 

availability of vendors registered for the scope of the work in the Central Vendor Registry, Small Business 

Office provides recommendations to the Goal Setting Committee (GSC) that votes to either accept or reject 

the SBO’s recommendation. For this project, the GSC voted to apply the Small Business Enterprise 

(SBE) sub-contracting program at 13% recognizing that there are subcontracting opportunities and available 

small businesses. 

         

                Question 2:   Where the SBO see the subcontracting requirement being applied to this RFP? 

         Response:     Small Business Office does not dictate the areas/ functions where the prime respondent may subcontract, as 

long as the area/ function is a ‘commercially useful function’ for this particular project. For further assistance 

and please contact the Small Business Office at (210) 207-0071. 

 

 Question 3:  What are the options that a contractor has if they are not able to find a willing subcontractor to submit a 

proposal with them or if they cannot find a subcontractor that meet SBO requirements? 

Response:     A full or partial waiver of a specified subcontracting goal may be requested, for good cause, by submitting the 

Subcontracting Goal-Waiver Request form with the solicitation response AND the Subcontractor/Supplier 

Form is available at: http://www.sanantonio.gov/SBO/Forms.aspx.Submittal of waiver does NOT guarantee 

Responsiveness – it is subject to approval by SBO. The prime respondent must fully document subcontractor 

unavailability despite good faith efforts to comply with the goal to which SBO will follow up with those 

subcontractors. Please refer to the SBEDA Subcontracting Goal-Waiver Request guide for additional 

information on how to complete a Subcontracting Goal – Waiver Request Form. 

 

 

 

http://www.sanantonio.gov/SBO/Forms.aspx
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 Question 4:  Can you please explain if the 13% subcontracting requirement is for the entire term of the contract? 

Response:     Yes, thirteen (13%) of the total contract value, for the entire duration of the contract, has to be subcontracted 

to a SBEDA eligible small business enterprise. To be SBEDA eligible a firm has to certified as a SBE from 

South Central Texas Regional Certification Agency (https://sctrca.sctrca.org/) AND be headquartered or 

show ‘Significant Business Presence’ in the San Antonio Metropolitan Statistical Area (SAMSA). Significant 

Business Presence can be confirmed by registering in the San Antonio Electronic Procurement system 

(SAePS) at https://supplierregistration.sanantonio.gov/register(bD1lbiZjPTUyNA==)/main.htm  by 

completing the application to show if the firm headquartered outside the counties: Atascosa, Bexar, Bandera, 

Comal, Guadalupe, Kendall, Medina and Wilson,  have a branch location in SAMSA that has been 

established for more than one (1) year with at least 20% of the total employees located in the branch location 

in SAMSA.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://sctrca.sctrca.org/
https://supplierregistration.sanantonio.gov/register(bD1lbiZjPTUyNA==)/main.htm
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VETERAN OWNED SMALL BUSINESS PREFERENCE FORM 
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